

Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Task User's Guide

Part No. 2270532-9701 *B 15 November 1983

Texas Instruments

© Texas Instruments Incorporated 1981, 1982, 1983

All Rights Reserved, Printed in U.S.A.

The information and/or drawings set forth in this document and all rights in and to inventions disclosed herein and patents which might be granted thereon disclosing or employing the materials, methods, techniques or apparatus described herein, are the exclusive property of Texas Instruments Incorporated.

MANUAL REVISION HISTORY

DNOS Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Task User's Guide (2270532-9701)

Original Issue	1 August 1981
Revision	15 December 1982
Revision	15 November 1983

The total number of pages in this publication is 356.

The computers offered in this agreement, as well as the programs that TI has created to use with them, are tools that can help people better manage the information used in their business; but tools – including TI computers – cannot replace sound judgment nor make the manager's business decisions.

Consequently, TI cannot warrant that its systems are suitable for any specific customer application. The manager must rely on personal judgment of what is best for his or her business.

DNOS Software Manuals

This diagram shows the manuals supporting DNOS, arranged according to user type. Refer to the block identified by your user group and all blocks above that set to determine which manuals are most beneficial to your needs.



ς.

DNOS Software Manuals Summary

Concepts and Facilities

Presents an overview of DNOS with topics grouped by operating system functions. All new users (or evaluators) of DNOS should read this manual.

DNOS Operations Guide

Explains fundamental operations for a DNOS system. Includes detailed instructions on how to use each device supported by DNOS.

System Command Interpreter (SCI) Reference Manual

Describes how to use SCI in both interactive and batch jobs. Describes command procedures and gives a detailed presentation of all SCI commands in alphabetical order for easy reference.

Text Editor Reference Manual

Explains how to use the Text Editor on DNOS and describes each of the editing commands.

Messages and Codes Reference Manual

Lists the error messages, informative messages, and error codes reported by DNOS.

DNOS Reference Handbook

Provides a summary of commonly used information for quick reference.

Master Index to Operating System Manuals

Contains a composite index to topics in the DNOS operating system manuals.

Programmer's Guides and Reference Manuals for Languages

Contain information about the languages supported by DNOS. Each programmer's guide covers operating system information relevant to the use of that language on DNOS. Each reference manual covers details of the language itself, including language syntax and programming considerations.

Performance Package Documentation

Describes the enhanced capabilities that the DNOS Performance Package provides on the Model 990/12 Computer and Business System 800.

Link Editor Reference Manual

Describes how to use the Link Editor on DNOS to combine separately generated object modules to form a single linked output.

Supervisor Call (SVC) Reference Manual

Presents detailed information about each DNOS supervisor call and DNOS services.

DNOS System Generation Reference Manual

Explains how to generate a DNOS system for your particular configuration and environment.

User's Guides for Productivity Tools

Describe the features, functions, and use of each productivity tool supported by DNOS.

User's Guides for Communications Software

Describe the features, functions, and use of the communications software available for execution under DNOS.

Systems Programmer's Guide

Discusses the DNOS subsystems and how to modify the system for specific application environments.

Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Tasks User's Guide

Explains how to execute the online diagnostic tasks and the system log analysis task and how to interpret the results.

ROM Loader User's Guide

Explains how to load the operating system using the ROM loader and describes the error conditions.

DNOS Design Documents

Contain design information about the DNOS system, SCI, and the utilities.

DNOS Security Manager's Guide

Describes the file access security features available with DNOS.

Preface

This manual provides the information necessary to execute the Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Task for the Texas Instruments DNOS Operating System Release 1.2.0. It is written for all persons involved with system operation and contains the following:

- Step-by-step procedures for executing a diagnostic session
- Complete information on the commands, prompts, tests, and messages involved in executing the session
- Instructions for accessing online reference material supplied by the optional help and long-message-level features of Online Diagnostics
- Information to assist in interpreting the results of the tests

This manual contains the following sections and appendixes. Read Sections 1 through 3 before starting to execute a diagnostic session as described in Section 4.

Section

- 1 Introduction Presents an overview of the Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Task programs.
- 2 Preparing for a Diagnostic Session Provides preliminary information about selecting and preparing the resources for a diagnostic session.
- 3 Command Verbs Presents detailed information about the controlling verbs, prompts, and responses.
- 4 Executing a Diagnostic Session Provides step-by-step instructions for executing a typical disk diagnostic session.
- 5 Diagnostic Test Descriptions Describes the tests that make up the diagnostic task for each device class.
- 6 System Log Analysis Task Describes, in detail, how to generate and interpret the System Log Analysis Task reports.

Appendix

- A Keycap Cross-Reference Contains illustrations of keyboards and cross-references of key functions.
- B LP810 Output Presents output examples of all LP810 tests when executed with default options.
- C LP2260 Output Presents output examples of all LP2260 tests when executed with default options.
- D LP600 Output Presents output examples of all LP600 tests when executed with default options.
- E ST820 Output Presents output examples of all ST820 tests.
- F LP840 Output Presents output examples of all LP840 tests.
- G CPTEST Output Presents output examples of all CPTEST diagnostic (LP850) tests.
- H Messages Lists all messages generated by Online Diagnostics.
- I Reference Tables Presents tables and charts for quick reference.

In addition to the DNOS software manuals listed on the frontisplece (page iii), the following manuals provide further information about the devices tested by Online Diagnostics.

Title	Part Number
Model CD1400 Disk System Installation and Operation	2272081-9701
Model 990 Computer Model CD1400 Disk Controller Depot Maintenance Manual	2272082-9701
Model 990 Computer Model DS10 Cartridge	
Disk System Installation and Operation	946261-9701
Model 990 Computer Model DS25/DS50	
Disk Systems Installation and Operation	946231-9701
Model 990 Computer Model DS31/DS32	
Disc Systems Installation and Operation	945260-9701
Model DS80 Disk System Installation	
and Operation Manual	2302629-9701
Model 990 Computer Model DS200 Disk	
System Installation and Operation	949615-9701

Title	Part Number
Model DS300 Disk System Installation and Operation	2302631-9701
Model FD1000 Flexible Disk System Installation and Operation	2261886-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer WD500 Mass Storage System Installation and Operation Manual</i>	2302688-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer WD800 Mass Storage</i> <i>System Installation and Operation</i>	2306140-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer Model 911 Video Display</i> <i>Terminal Installation and Operation</i>	945423-9701
Model 931 Video Display Terminal Installation and Operation	2229228-9701
Model 990 Computer Model 940 Electronic Video Terminal (EVT) Installation and Operation Manual	2250368-9701
Model 990 Computer Model 940 Electronic Video Terminal Maintenance Manual	2207864-9701
Model 990 Computer Model 979A Magnetic Tape System Installation and Operation	946229-9701
Model MT1600 Magnetic Tape System Installation and Operation	2302642-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer Model 810 Printer Installation and Operation</i>	939460-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer Model 820 KSR Data Terminal Installation and Operation</i>	2250454-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer Model 2230 and 2260 Line Printers Installation and Operation</i>	946256-9701
<i>Model 990 Computers Models LP300 and LP600 Line Printers Installation and Operation Manual</i>	2250364-9701
<i>Model 990 Computer Model 840 RO Printer</i> Installation and Operation Manual	2302695-9701

Title

Model 850 Printer User's Manual

990 Family Communication Systems Field Reference Manual Part Number

2219890-0001

2276579-9701

Contents

Paragraph

Title

Page

1 — Introduction

1.1	Definition and Purpose
1.2	Diagnostic Structure
1.2.1	Online Diagnostics Driver Task1-1
1.2.2	Device Diagnostic Tasks1-2
1.2.2.1	Priority Level
1.2.2.2	Execution Mode1-2
1.2.2.3	Termination Mode1-3
1.2.3	System Log Analysis Task1-5

2 — Preparing for a Diagnostic Session

2.1	General Information	2-1
2.2	Devices to be Tested	2-1
2.3	Control Terminal	2-3
2.4	Batch Input Session	2-3
2.4.1	Creating a Batch Input File	2-3
2.4.2	Using a Batch Input File	2-4
2.5	Diagnostic Session: What to Expect	2-4
2.5.1	XODD — Execute the Online Diagnostics Driver Command	2-4
2.5.2	ENTER COMMAND VERB? Prompt	2-6
2.6	Sources of Information on Diagnostic Options	2-6
2.6.1	Long Message Level Feature	2-6
2.6.2	Help Feature	2-7
2.6.3	System Device List	2-7
2.6.4	Test Tables	2-8
2.6.5	SVC Subopcode Charts	2-8

3 — Command Verbs

3.1	Introduction
3.2	Using Command Verbs
3.2.1	Driver Action
3.2.2	Prompts and Default Responses
3.2.3	Equivalence File
3.2.4	Diagnostic Message Queue
3.3	Execute Command Verbs
3.3.1	XA — Execute All Diagnostics

Į

Paragraph	Title	Page
3.3.2	XD — Execute Diagnostic Task	3-8
3.3.2.1	Device Name	3-9
3.3.2.2	Default Options	3-10
3.3.2.3	Task Priority Level	3-10
3.3.2.4	Execution Mode	3-10
3.3.2.5	Termination Mode	3-13
3.3.3	XMEM — Execute Memory Task	3-15
3.3.4	XSLA — Execute System Log Analyzer	3-15
3.4	Change Command Verbs	3-15
3.4.1	CE — Change Execution Mode	3-16
3.4.2	CM — Change Message Level	3-16
3.4.3	CP — Change Task Priority	3-17
3.4.4	CT — Change Termination Mode	3-17
3.5	Show Command Verbs	3-18
3.5.1	SD — Show System Device List	3-18
3.5.2	SF — Show Diagnostic Files	3-19
3.5.2.1	Diagnostic History File	3-20
3.5.2.2	Diagnostic Error File	3-20
3.5.2.3	System Log Files 1 and 2	3-21
3.5.2.4	System Log Analysis Task Report File	3-21
3.5.3	SMM — Show Memory Map	3-22
3.5.4	SO — Show SVC Operation Codes	3-22
3.5.5	SP — Show Progress of Diagnostics	3-23
3.5.6	SSD — Show Supported Devices	3-24
3.6	Terminate Command Verbs	3-24
3.6.1	KD — Kill Diagnostic Task	3-24
3.6.2	WD — Wait on Diagnostics	3-25
3.6.3	QD — Quit Online Diagnostics	3-27
3.7	Miscellaneous Command Verbs	3-28
3.7.1	CH — Clean Heads on FD1000 Floppy Drive	3-28
3.7.2	CQ — Check Message Queue	3-28
3.7.3	ON — Change Device State to ON	3-29
3.7.4	DIAG — Change Device State to DIAG	
3.7.5	LDC — List Device Configuration	3-30
3.7.6	HELP — Display Long Message for Current Prompt	3-30
3.7.7	REJECT — Return to Previous Prompt	3-30

.,

4 — Executing a Diagnostic Session

4.1	Introduction	1
4.2	Preparing for the Session	1
4.2.1	Selection of Target Device4-	1
4.2.2	Control Terminal	2
4.2.3	Device State	2
4.2.4	Tests to Run	2
4.2.5	Execution Mode	2
4.2.6	Default Options	2
4.2.7	Batch Mode	3

2270532-9701

X

1

A

Paragraph	Title	Page
4.3	Executing the Session	4-3
4.3.1	Performing the Nonextended and the Extended Read Only Disk Tests	4-4
4.3.2	Performing the Extended Write Disk Tests	4-17

5 — Diagnostic Test Descriptions

5.1	General Information
5.2	Line Printers
5.2.1	LP810 — 810 Line Printer
5.2.1.1	Test 1 — Form Length and Feed5-4
5.2.1.2	Test 2 — Character Set
5.2.1.3	Test 3 — Ripple Pattern
5.2.1.4	Test 4 — Buffer Length
5.2.1.5	Test 5 — Carriage Return5-5
5.2.1.6	Test 6 — Tab to Line
5.2.1.7	Test 7 — Set and Test Vertical Tabs5-6
5.2.1.8	Test 8 — Tab to Address
5.2.1.9	Test 9 — Set and Test Horizontal Tabs
5.2.1.10	Test 10 — Lines and Characters per Inch
5.2.1.11	Test 11 — Bell
5.2.2	LP840 — 840 Receive-Only Printer
5.2.2.1	Test 1 — Character Set
5.2.2.2	Test 2 — Ripple Pattern
5.2.2.3	Test 3 — Buffer Length
5.2.2.4	Test 4 — Carriage Return
5.2.2.5	Test 5 — Form Length and Feed
5.2.2.6	Test 6 — Tab to Line
5.2.2.7	Test 7 — Set and Test Vertical Tabs
5.2.2.8	Test 8 — Remote On/Off5-10
5.2.2.9	Test 9 — Set and Test Horizontal Tabs
5.2.2.10	Test 10 — Lines and Characters per Inch
5.2.2.11	Test 11 — Bell
5.2.2.12	Test 12 — Left and Right Margins5-10
5.2.2.13	Test 13 — Top and Bottom Margins5-11
5.2.2.14	Test 14 — Answerback Memory
5.2.3	CPTEST — Model 850 Printer
5.2.3.1	Test 1 — Character Set
5.2.3.2	Test 2 — Ripple Dump Test
5.2.3.3	Test 3 — Buffer Test
5.2.3.4	Test 4 — Jitter Test
5.2.3.5	Test 5 — Jitter Interval Test5-14
5.2.3.6	Test 6 — Center Out Test
5.2.3.7	Test 7 — Alternating Left to Right Test5-14
5.2.3.8	Test 8 — Alternating Right to Left Test5-14
5.2.3.9	Test 9 — Interplaced Jitter Test5-15
5.2.3.10	Test 10 — Overstrike Test
5.2.3.11	Test 11 — Alternating Overstrike Test5-15
5.2.3.12	Test 12 — Random Print Test

Paragraph

Title

A

A

5.2.3.13	Test 13 — Left to Right Inverted Strike Test	5-15
5.2.3.14	Test 14 — Right to Left Inverted Strike Test	5-16
5.2.3.15	Test 15 — Black Line Test	5-16
5.2.4	LP2230/LP2260 — 2230/2260 Line Printers	5-16
5.2.4.1	Test 1 — Form Length and Feed	5-16
5.2.4.2	Test 2 — Character Set	5-17
5.2.4.3	Test 3 — Ripple Pattern	5-17
5.2.4.4	Test 4 — Buffer Length	5-17
5.2.4.5	Test 5 — Hammer Alignment,	5-17
5.2.4.6	Test 6 — Character Burst	5-17
5.2.5	LP300/LP600 — 300/600 Line Printers	5-17
5.2.5.1	Test 1 — Form Length and Feed	5-18
5.2.5.2	Test 2 — Character Set	5-18
5.2.5.3	Test 3 — Ripple Pattern	5-18
5.2.5.4	Test 4 — Buffer Length	5-19
5.2.5.5	Test 5 — Hammer Alignment	5-19
5.2.5.6	Test 6 — Eight Lines per Inch	5-19
5.2.5.7	Test 7 — Character Burst	5-19
5.2.5.8	Test 8 — Solid Black Box	5-19
5.2.5.9	Test 9 — Carriage Return and Underline	5-19
5.2.5.10	Test 10 — Plot Mode	5-19
5.2.5.11	Test 11 — Elongated Characters	5-19
5.2.5.12	Test 12 — Delete Characters	5-19
5.2.5.13	Test 13 — Electronic Vertical Format Unit	5-20
5.2.5.14	Test 14 — Graphic Example Plot	5-20
5.2.5.15	Test 15 — TI Logo Plot	5-20
5.3	Keyboard Devices: 820 KSR Terminal	5-20
5.3.1	Introduction	5-20
5.3.2	Test Descriptions	5-21
5.3.2.1	Test 1 — Form Length and Feed	5-21
5.3.2.2	Test 2 — Character Set	5-21
5.3.2.3	Test 3 — Ripple Pattern	5-21
5.3.2.4	Test 4 — Buffer Length	5-22
5.3.2.5	Test 5 — Carriage Return	5-22
5.3.2.6	Test 6 — Tab to Line	5-22
5.3.2.7	Test 7 — Set and Test Vertical Tabs	5-22
5.3.2.8	Test 8 — Tab to Address	5-22
5.3.2.9	Test 9 — Set and Test Horizontal Tabs	5-23
5.3.2.10	Test 10 — Lines and Characters per Inch	5-23
5.3.2.11	Test 11 — Bell	5-24
5.3.2.12	Test 12 — Interactive Keyboard	5-24
5.4	Keyboard Devices: Video Terminals	5-25
5.4.1	ST911 — 911 VDT	5-25
5.4.1.1	Test 1 — Ones and Zeros	5-26
5.4.1.2	Test 2 — Scroll	5-27
5.4.1.3	Test 3 — Beeper	5-27
5.4.1.4	Test 4 — Intensity	5-27
5.4.1.5	Test 5 — Character Generator	5-27
5.4.1.6	Test 6 — Nonblinking/Blinking Cursor	5-28

Paragraph

Title

Page

5.4.1.7	Test 7 — Interactive Keyboard	.5-28
5.4.2	ST931 — 931 VDT	. 5-30
5.4.2.1	Test 1 — Communications	. 5-32
5.4.2.2	Test 2 — RAM/ROM Host Initiated Self Tests	. 5-32
5.4.2.3	Test 3 — Cursor	. 5-32
5.4.2.4	Test 4 — Throughput	. 5-33
5.4.2.5	Test 5 — Show Graphics	. 5-33
5.4.2.6	Test 6 — Show Mask	. 5-33
5.4.2.7	Test 7 — Video Monitor	. 5-34
5.4.2.8	Test 8 — Auxiliary Port (Interactive)	. 5-34
5.4.2.9	Test 9 — Keyboard (Interactive)	. 5-35
5.4.3	ST940 — 940 EVT	. 5-35
5.4.3.1	Test 1 — Memory	. 5-36
5.4.3.2	Test 2 — Beeper	. 5-37
5.4.3.3	Test 3 — Intensity	. 5-37
5.4.3.4	Test 4 — Scrolling	. 5-37
5.4.3.5	Test 5 — Cursor	. 5-37
5.4.3.6	Test 6 — Interactive Keyboard	. 5-38
5.5	Disks	. 5-38
5.5.1	Introduction	. 5-39
5.5.1.1	Nonextended Disk Tests	. 5-39
5.5.1.2	Extended Read Only Disk Tests	. 5-40
5.5.1.3	Extended Write Disk Tests	. 5-40
5.5.2	Test Descriptions — Nonextended Disk Tests	.5-41
5.5.2.1	Test 1 — Read/Compare Diagnostic Cylinder	. 5-41
5.5.2.2	Test 2 — Read/Compare Diagnostic Cylinder With Head Motion	. 5-42
5.5.2.3	Test 3 — Write and Read Random Pattern	. 5-42
5.5.2.4	Test 4 — Write and Read Test Patterns	.5-42
5.5.3	Test Descriptions — Extended Read Only Disk Tests	.5-42
5.5.3.1	Test 1 — Read Specified Tracks	. 5-42
5.5.3.2	Test 2 — Consecutive Sector Read	. 5-43
5.5.3.3	Test 3 — Jitter Seek (With Random Head Selection)	. 5-43
5.5.3.4	Test 4 — Random Seek	. 5-43
5.5.3.5	Test 5 — Crescendo Seek (Seek and Verify All Tracks)	.5-44
5.5.4	Test Descriptions — Extended Write Disk Tests	. 5-44
5.5.4.1	Test 10 — Command Verification/ID Error Check	. 5-44
5.5.4.2	Test 11 — Format/Verify Tracks	. 5-45
5.5.4.3	Test 12 — Write/Read/Compare Tracks	. 5-45
5.5.4.4	Test 13 — Comprehensive Write/Seek/Read	. 5-46
5.6	Magnetic Tapes	. 5-46
5.6.1	MT979 — Models 979, 979A, and MT1600 Magnetic Tape Units	. 5-46
5.6.2	Test Descriptions	. 5-48
5.6.2.1	Test 1 — Basic Read/Write With Rewind	.5-48
5.6.2.2	Test 2 — Basic Read/Write With Backspace	. 5-48
5.6.2.3	Test 3 — Forward Creep	.5-48
5.6.2.4	Test 4 — Even/Odd Write and Read	.5-49
5.6.2.5	Test 5 — Special Movement and End-of-File	.5-49
5.6.2.6	Test 6 — Write Full Reel and Check for End-of-Tape	.5-50

, T

Í

Paragraph	Title		
5.6.2.7	Test 7 — Read Full Reel and Check for End-of-Tape	5-50	
5.6.2.8	Test 8 — Write Ring Status/Recording Type	5-51	
5.7	Memory Exerciser Test	5-51	

6 — System Log Analysis Task

6.1	General Information
6.2	Method of Operation
6.3	Relationship to Online Diagnostics
6.4	Initializing the System Log Analysis Task
6.4.1	Automatic Activation
6.4.2	Initialization with the XSLA Command6-4
6.5	Purge Records in .S\$DML File — XSLAP Command
6.6	System Log Records
6.6.1	Device Error Records
6.6.1.1	Software-Generated Device Error Records
6.6.1.2	Hardware-Generated Device Error Records
6.6.2	Memory Parity Error Records
6.6.3	Cache Memory Error Records
6.6.4	Device Statistics Records
6.6.5	Disk Volume Install and Unload Records6-12
6.7	System Log Analysis Task Reports
6.7.1	Level One Report
6.7.2	Level Two Report
6.7.3	Level Three Report

Appendixes

Appendix

Title

Α	Keycap Cross-Reference	A-1
в	LP810 Output	B-1
С	LP2260 Output	C-1
D	LP600 Output	D-1
E	ST820 Output	E-1
F	LP840 Output	F-1
G	CPTEST Output	G-1
н	Messages	

Glossary

Index

Page

¢

,

xiv

Illustrations

Figure	Title	Page
1-1 1-2	Diagnostics Block Diagram System Log Analysis Task Structure	
3-1 3-2 3-3 3-4	Screen Display of Command Verbs XD Command Verb Prompts SO Command Verb Display SSD Command Verb Display	
4-1	Disk Test Decision Map	
5-1 5-2 5-3 5-4 5-5	LP810 Character Set Test Example Ripple Pattern Test Output CPTEST Character Set Test Example Ripple Dump Test Output ST911 Test 7 Screen Format	
6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5	System Log Messages Processed by SLATypical System Log RecordsLevel One ReportLevel Two ReportLevel Two ReportLevel Three Report	

.

1. **1.** 1. 1. 1.

Tables

<u>ka</u>

Table	Title	Page
1-1	Functions Performed by Diagnostic Tasks	1-4
3-1 3-2 3-3	Command Verbs Prompt Responses and Equivalents Test Numbers by Device Class	3-2 3-4 3-11
5-1 5-2	Device Class Order	5-1
5-3 5-4	LP840 Tests	5-7
5-5 5-6	LP2230/LP2260 Tests	5-16
5-7 5-8	ST820 Tests	5-20
5-9 5-10	ST931 Tests	5-30
5-11	Nonextended Disk Tests (File I/O Only)	5-39
5-12 5-13	Extended Write Disk Tests	5-40
5-14 5-15	MI979 Tests	5-47

Introduction

1.1 DEFINITION AND PURPOSE

The Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Task are system diagnostic utility programs that provide vital information about the performance of peripheral devices. The programs execute as application-level tasks under your operating system. Consequently, they do not usually interfere with daily production requirements.

When detailed fault isolation is necessary, the Model 990 Computer Unit Diagnostics provide both user and service personnel with information necessary to isolate and correct specific conditions. However, using the unit diagnostics requires that the computer system be shut down. This disrupts the daily production environment and, for most users, is an unscheduled and costly interruption of business.

The most efficient approach is use of the Online Diagnostics and System Log Analysis Task programs to evaluate the current frequency and severity of errors while normal system operation continues. This evaluation may provide you with advance warning of the need for unit diagnostics and service calls, enabling you to schedule them for time periods less disruptive to business.

1.2 DIAGNOSTIC STRUCTURE

The system diagnostics package consists of three major parts:

- Online Diagnostics Driver Task
- Device diagnostic tasks
- System Log Analysis Task

1.2.1 Online Diagnostics Driver Task

The System Command Interpreter (SCI) activates the Online Diagnostics Driver task. You can start the driver from any terminal device. From this terminal, called the control terminal, you enter the command verbs that control the driver and that select, start, terminate, and specify the options for the device diagnostic tasks.

NOTE

In this manual, commands to the driver are referred to as *command* verbs or verbs, while the word *command* refers to SCI commands.

The driver performs the following functions:

- Activates, controls, and terminates device diagnostic tasks
- Processes requests from the device diagnostic tasks for services and messages
- Logs messages to the diagnostic history file

The diagnostic history file is a file or device in which the driver stores error and progress messages from the diagnostic tasks.

1.2.2 Device Diagnostic Tasks

The device diagnostic tasks are programs that exercise and test hardware devices. Each task is a group of procedures that test a specific type of device. The tasks are controlled and serviced by the diagnostic driver. Before executing a diagnostic task, you can either take default options for a priority level, an execution mode, and a termination mode, or you can select them to suit your specific requirements.

1.2.2.1 Priority Level. Each diagnostic task can execute at priority level 1, 2, or 3. The default value is 3, but you can select a higher priority level when you initiate the device diagnostic or use the Change Task Priority (CP) command verb.

1.2.2.2 Execution Mode. Diagnostic tasks can execute in one of two execution modes:

- Test
- Operation

All diagnostic tasks can operate in the test execution mode. This mode executes a predetermined group of tests for each device. After choosing the device, you can either execute all tests for that device or execute any one of the tests. Section 5 describes the individual tests for each device.

All diagnostic tasks other than disk and memory diagnostic tasks can operate in the operation execution mode. This mode performs one specific operation determined by a subopcode of the supervisor call (SVC) code for performing input/output (I/O) functions (I/O SVC code 00). Section 3 and Appendix I provide information about valid subopcodes and their execution.

NOTE

You can change the execution mode within the diagnostic session, even if you have started a task, by using the command verb Change Execution Mode (CE). **1.2.2.3 Termination Mode.** After you select the execution mode, the driver requests you to select a termination mode. You select a termination mode by specifying an action which must be completed before termination. The termination mode can be any one of the following:

- Execute continuously (terminates after you enter the Kill Diagnostic Task (KD) command verb)
- Terminate after a specified number of minutes
- Terminate after a specified number of errors occur
- Terminate after a specified number of passes through the tests or specific SVC operation codes occur

The default termination mode is one pass through the tests (when in test mode) or one specific operation (when in operation mode).

NOTE

You can change the termination mode within the diagnostic session, even if you have started a task, by using the command verb Change Termination Mode (CT).

When using Online Diagnostics, first start the driver, then select a device (diagnostic task). Then either accept the default options or select a priority level, an execution mode, and a termination mode. During the diagnostic session, you can change the priority level, the execution mode, or the termination mode with command verbs. The combination of priority level, execution modes, and length of running time (determined by the termination option) provides a flexible diagnostic session that you control.

Table 1-1 shows the hardware devices supported and the tests performed by the diagnostic tasks.

Disks:

Tapes:

Models 979, 979A

Cartridge Tape

LP300/LP600

810 (LP or RP)

Model 840 RO with or

Model 850 (CPTEST)

Keyboard devices:

option

Model 911 Video

Model 820 KSR Date

Terminal with DFC

without device forms

control (DFC) option

and MT1600, and WD800

Device	Class*	Tests
isks: CD1400, DS10, DS25, DS31, DS50, DS80, DS200, DS300, FD1000, WD500, and WD800	DS	Read diagnostic cylinder, read diagnostic cylinder with head motion, read and write random pattern, and read and write specific pattern
		Read specified tracks, seek and verify all tracks, ran- dom seek, ID error status check, write/format/verify tracks, write/read/compare tracks, and comprehensive write/seek/read
apes: Magnetic Tape Drive	МТ	Basic read/write with rewind and backspace, forward creep, even/odd read and write, special movement and

Table 1-1. Functions Performed by Diagnostic Tasks

LP or RP Line printers: Form length and feed, character set, ripple pattern LP2230/LP2260 buffer length, hammer alignment, and character burst

> Same as above with addition of 8 lines per inch (lpi), solid black box, carriage return and underline, plot mode, elongated character, delete characters, graphic example plot, and TI logo plot

end-of-file (EOF), read/write full reel and check for end

of tape, and write ring status/recording type

Form length and feed, character set, carriage return, tab to line, vertical tabs, tab to address, horizontal tabs, lpi, and characters per inch (cpi)

Character set, ripple pattern, buffer, carriage return, form feed, tab to line, set/test vertical tabs, remote on/ off, set/test horizontal tabs, cpi and lpi bell, left/right margins, top/bottom margins, and answerback memory

Character set, ripple dump, buffer, jitter, jitter interval, center out, alternating left to right, alternating right to left, interplaced jitter, overstrike, alternating overstrike, random print, left to right inverted strike, right to left inverted strike, and black line

ST Form length and feed, character set, ripple pattern, buffer length, character return, tab to line, set/test vertical tabs, tab to address, set/test horizontal tabs, Ipi and cpi, bell test, and interactive keyboard

> Ones and zeros, scroll, beeper, low intensity, high intensity, character generator, nonblinking/blinking cursor, and interactive keyboard

Display Terminal

Device	Class*	Tests
Model 931 Video Display Terminal		Host-initiated self-tests, cursor, systems throughput, show graphics, show mask, communications, auxiliary port, video monitor, keyboard
Model 940 Electronic Video Terminal		Memory, beeper, intensity, scrolling, cursor, host- initiated self-test, and interactive keyboard
Memory	MM	Read/write and compare seven test patterns (cannot be done individually)
Note:		
* The class types supported a	are as follows:	
DS = disk devices MT = magnetic tapes LP = line printers ST = keyboard devices MM = memory	3	

Table 1-1. Functions Performed by Diagnostic Tasks (Continued)

Figure 1-1 shows how you interact with the driver, the diagnostic tasks, and the diagnostic history file while at the control terminal.

1.2.3 System Log Analysis Task

The System Log Analysis Task provides information about the reliability of hardware devices and memory by analyzing and reporting on the system log files. The operating system maintains two system log files on which it writes descriptive records when certain errors and events occur. This recording of system activity occurs constantly when the operating system is active.





When a system log file is full, the operating system calls the System Log Analysis Task. The task compresses the system log records and writes them to a file (.S\$DML). From this file the System Log Analysis Task prepares one of three reports: the level one, level two, and level three reports. A brief description of the three System Log Analysis Task reports follows:

- The level one report provides a summary of system log activity. This report contains
 information that may point to errors or potential errors in devices or memory. The report
 supplies recommendations concerning the number of errors, the possibility of a hardware problem, and the need for preventive or scheduled maintenance.
- The level two report supplies the same information as the level one report along with a complete copy of each record that was logged to the system log file. The complete records provide additional details for those familiar with system hardware and software. The information in the level one report frequently indicates the need for a level two report.
- The level three report is a combination of the level one and level two reports. It contains
 a summary of each record in the system log and provides you with recommendations for
 devices that have received more than a minimum number of errors. It also includes
 complete copies of the system log records that include the errors.

You can choose to produce a report for all devices (using the default option), all devices in one class, or any specific device.

You can also execute the System Log Analysis Task at any time by performing the Execute System Log Analysis (XSLA) command. Section 6 provides more information on the operation and use of the System Log Analysis Task. Figure 1-2 shows a block diagram of its structure.



Figure 1-2. System Log Analysis Task Structure

м.

Preparing for a Diagnostic Session

2.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The options available and the ability to change them during a diagnostic session provide flexibility and variety to users of Online Diagnostics. To use the options effectively, you must make certain decisions before the diagnostic session actually begins. This section discusses topics that relate to these decisions:

- Which devices Online Diagnostics can test
- Choosing the control terminal
- Whether to use Online Diagnostics in a diagnostic session without an operator (using batch commands from an input file)
- What to expect when you are the operator in an interactive session
- How to use the reference material on devices, commands, prompts, modes, and tests

2.2 DEVICES TO BE TESTED

Table 1-1 lists the devices that Online Diagnostics can test. You can execute the diagnostic tasks on one device, on all available devices of one class, or on all available devices.

The devices you choose for testing are called *target devices*. A target device must be in a certain device state before the Online Diagnostics Driver can test it. The three possible device states are as follows:

- Online
- Diagnostic
- Offline

You must place all target devices in the diagnostic device state before testing. (The only tests that are exceptions to this rule are the nonextended disk tests and the extended read only disk tests.) Disks contain a separate file of test data that the operating system maintains; this file is available for testing when the disk is in the online device state. You should also return target devices from the diagnostic state to the online state after you have tested them.

Two commands, DIAG and ON, change the device states. You can use them as System Command Interpreter (SCI) commands before activating the Online Diagnostics Driver or as command verbs to the driver after the session starts. The SCI commands DIAG and ON were added to the SCI commands on your system during the installation of the Online Diagnostics and System Log Analvsis Task package. The format is the same as that of all other SCI commands. You cannot execute these commands for devices that are in use, as in the case of terminal devices that are logged on to SCI. You can put devices that are offline state into online or diagnostic state only from SCI, not from the driver. To change the device state of a printer that has been assigned to the spooler, you must first reenter SCI, then perform a Modify Spooler Device (MSD) command, specifying Q (Queue) or D (Delete) in response to the SPOOLER MODE prompt. For more information on the MSD command, see the DNOS System Command Interpreter (SCI) Reference Manual.

You cannot execute the ON and DIAG commands for a disk volume installed in a disk drive. You must first unload the disk volume by using the Unload Volume (UV) command. For more information about the UV command, refer to the DNOS Operations Guide.

[] DIAG

The formats of the DIAG and ON commands are as follows:

Online Diagnostics Driver

DIAG ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL devicename. class, or default to ALL

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL devicename, class, or

[] ON PLACE DEVICE IN ONLINE STATE

PLACE DEVICE IN DIAGNOSTIC STATE

SCI

DEVICE NAME: devicename

DEVICE NAME: devicename

where:

ON

default to ALL

is a valid four-character device name. The first two characters are the devicename device class, and the last two are the device number. For example, LP01 is the device name for line printer 01.

When using the SCI commands, the only valid response to the request for a device name is a specific four-character device name such as LP02, ST09, and so on.

When you are using the command verbs ON and DIAG during a diagnostic session, you can respond to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt with a two-character device class (such as LP), a four-character device name (such as LP02), or accept the default (ALL). Section 3 provides details about changing device states during the diagnostic session.

2.3 CONTROL TERMINAL

You must select one terminal from which to initiate and execute the diagnostic session and to start the Online Diagnostics Driver task. This terminal is called the *control terminal*. Since the driver task is nonreplicatable, Online Diagnostics can operate from only one control terminal at a time. The control terminal can be a Texas Instruments 911, 931, 940, 820, or a *Silent 700** series terminal. Appendix A shows equivalent keys on the various control terminals.

You cannot test the control terminal with Online Diagnostics during the diagnostic session. For example, when ST02 is the control terminal, the diagnostic task for ST02 cannot start.

2.4 BATCH INPUT SESSION

The two types of diagnostic sessions available to you are the following:

- Interactive session
- Batch input session

The interactive diagnostic session requires input from an operator at a control terminal. In contrast, when a session requires an established pattern of options and tests, the driver can also operate from a previously prepared batch input file instead of requiring interactive input. The batch session differs from the interactive session only in the method of input and the need to prepare the input before the session starts. Once you create a batch input file, you can execute diagnostic sessions from the file.

A diagnostic session can also be partially batch and partially interactive. You can stop the batch processing at any time by inserting a Wait on Diagnostics (WD) command verb in the file in the desired sequence and then deleting the rest of the input file. You can then continue the session from the terminal.

2.4.1 Creating a Batch Input File

You can create a batch input file in either of two ways. The easiest method is to name a separate DNOS file in response to the COMMAND LOG FILE prompt for an interactive diagnostic session. During that session, execute all the command verbs you want to have in your batch input file. Then use a WD command verb to keep the driver monitoring the diagnostics message queue until the completion of the diagnostic tasks. When the tasks are completed, execute the Quit Online Diagnostics (QD) command verb. The file is now a complete batch input file for the Online Diagnostics Driver.

The second method of creating a batch input file is to create the entire file using the Text Editor. This method requires a thorough knowledge of the order of the prompts within the command verbs. The data begins in column one of the file, and you enter one response per line.

^{*} Silent 700 is a registered trademark of Texas Instruments Incorporated.

The following example illustrates a batch input file.

EXAMPLE

XD	(Execute Diagnostics)
DS01	(Devicedisk 01)
YES	(Select extended disk tests)
YES	(Accept all default options)
WD	(Wait on Diagnostics)
QD	(Quit Diagnostics)

For more information on creating a batch input file, see paragraph 3.6.2.

2.4.2 Using a Batch Input File

To use the batch input file, enter the name of the file in response to the COMMAND INPUT prompt in the Execute the Online Diagnostics Driver (XODD) command. If the entire session is to be batch input (that is, the batch input file contains a QD command verb), execute the session in background. If the session is to be partially interactive (that is, the batch input file does not contain a QD command verb), execute the session in foreground.

2.5 DIAGNOSTIC SESSION: WHAT TO EXPECT

You are ready to start the diagnostic session when you have:

- Selected and prepared the devices to be tested
- Selected a control terminal
- Decided whether to accept the default options or to select priority level, execution mode, and/or termination mode for each device diagnostic task
- Set up a batch input file (if you want to run a batch session)

The rest of this section explains how to activate Online Diagnostics and how to use the aids that are available online.

2.5.1 XODD — Execute the Online Diagnostics Driver Command

To activate the Online Diagnostics Driver, enter the XODD command at the control terminal. The following display includes the default file pathnames.

Prompts

```
DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS - VERSION X.X.X
COMMAND INPUT: STxx
MESSAGE OUTPUT: STxx
COMMAND LOG FILE: volumename.S$ODIAG.CMD
HISTORY FILE: volumename.S$ODIAG.HISTORY
MODE (F,B): FOREGROUND
```

Prompt Responses

COMMAND INPUT

Enter the name of the file or class ST device (terminal) from which you enter your responses to the prompts of the diagnostic command verbs. The default is the name of the control terminal. Do not use the control terminal for COMMAND INPUT if you want to execute Online Diagnostics in background. Do not assign the same file for both this prompt and the COMMAND LOG FILE prompt. When you specify a device, enter your responses to the prompts at that device. When you specify a file, the driver reads the file as batch input.

MESSAGE OUTPUT

Enter the name of the file or device where the messages and prompts of the command verbs are displayed. The default is the name of the control terminal. Do not enter the control terminal in response to this prompt if you want to execute the diagnostics session in background.

COMMAND LOG FILE

Enter the name of the file where the driver stores your responses to the prompts of the command verbs. This file is a log of all the prompt responses in a diagnostic session and can be used for a batch input file in a later diagnostic session. The default pathname is volumename.S\$ODIAG.CMD, but you can substitute any valid DNOS file pathname. The XODD command creates the file if it does not exist. Do not assign the same file for both this prompt and the COMMAND INPUT prompt.

HISTORY FILE

Enter the name of the file or device where the driver stores diagnostic error and progress messages from the diagnostic tasks. System errors do not always correspond to diagnostic errors, and the history file does not match the system log. For example, a device error that is correctable within the acceptable number of retries might cause a system log error, but not necessarily a history file error. The default pathname for the history file is volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTORY. You can substitute any valid DNOS device or file pathname. However, if you substitute a device, you cannot execute the default option of the Show Diagnostic Files (SF) command verb. In that case, when you enter the SF command verb and accept the default (history file) you receive the following message: SF COMMAND VERB INVALID WHEN DIAGNOSTIC HISTORY FILE NOT A DNOS FILE.

MODE (F,B)

Enter either F (foreground) or B (background). Foreground execution (the default) is recommended for interactive diagnostic sessions; background execution is recommended for batch input diagnostic sessions. Execute diagnostic sessions that are mixed (interactive and batch input) in foreground.

2.5.2 ENTER COMMAND VERB? Prompt

After you respond to all of the XODD prompts, the following messages are displayed at the control terminal:

DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS VERSION X.X.X BEGINNING EXECUTION. AT ANY TIME, ENTER THE WORD 'HELP' FOR MORE INFORMATION.

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

The prompt ENTER COMMAND VERB? is referred to throughout this manual as the command prompt. When it is displayed, you can enter a command verb. You are now ready to start selecting the diagnostic tasks and specifying the options you want to execute. Read paragraph 2.6 to become familiar with the use of the help feature. Then turn to Section 3 to learn how to use the command verbs.

2.6 SOURCES OF INFORMATION ON DIAGNOSTIC OPTIONS

If you have installed the help feature, the following online aids are available to you:

- Long-message-level feature
- Help feature
- System device list (available to all users)
- Test tables (for test execution mode)
- Valid subopcode charts (for operation execution mode)

If you elected not to install the help feature in order to save disk space, you can locate most of the same information in Appendix I of this manual. The system device list is available to you whether or not you have installed the help feature.

2.6.1 Long Message Level Feature

The Online Diagnostics Driver communicates with you by displaying prompts and messages at the file or device specified in response to the MESSAGE OUTPUT prompt in the XODD command. Messages can be either short or long. The short message level displays only prompts. The long message level displays a list of all available command verbs, detailed explanations of each prompt, and the valid responses.

The driver starts the diagnostic session on the short message level. To change to the long level, enter the Change Message Level (CM) command verb as follows:

```
ENTER COMMAND VERB?
CM
ENTER MESSAGE LEVEL (SHORT, LONG)? LONG
```

Accept the default by pressing the Return key. To change back to the short message level, enter the CM command verb and respond to the prompt by entering SHORT.

The following example shows the short level display for the first prompt of the Execute Diagnostic Task (XD) command verb.

EXAMPLE

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

The next example shows the long level display for the same prompt of the XD command verb.

EXAMPLE

YOU HAVE CHOSEN TO EXECUTE A DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC TASK. YOU CAN SELECT ALL AVAILABLE DEVICES, ALL DEVICES OF ONE CLASS (SUCH AS ALL DISKS), OR ANY ONE SPECIFIC DEVICE. ENTER YOUR SELECTION AS FOLLOWS:

ALL -- SELECTS ALL DEVICES AVAILABLE

DS -- SELECTS ALL TILINE DISK DEVICES AVAILABLE MT -- SELECTS ALL MAG TAPE DEVICES AVAILABLE LP -- SELECTS ALL PRINTER DEVICES AVAILABLE RP -- SELECTS ALL REMOTE LP810 DEVICES AVAILABLE ST -- SELECTS ALL TERMINAL DEVICES AVAILABLE REJECT -- RETURN TO COMMAND PROMPT COMPLETE DEVICE NAME (ST02, DS01) -- SELECTS THAT DEVICE ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

2.6.2 Help Feature

The Online Diagnostics help feature displays the long level message for the current prompt when you enter the word HELP. You may substitute H or ? for the word HELP. Entering the Display Long Message for Current Prompt (HELP) command verb while on the long message level has the effect of repeating the long message. The feature displays the long message only for the current prompt and has no effect on your message level status.

2.6.3 System Device List

The Show System Device List (SD) command verb allows you to display a table showing the state of all devices in your system. The SD command is available to all users of Online Diagnostics and has no additional prompts. For more information on the use of the SD command verb and an example of a typical device list, see paragraph 3.5.1.

2.6.4 Test Tables

Each device diagnostic task performs a prearranged series of tests or one specific test (if so requested). Section 5 contains a description of each test, arranged by test number under the device it tests. If you install the help feature of Online Diagnostics, a summary of the same information is available at your terminal in the form of a table listing the tests for each device. To view the table, enter HELP (or H) as a command verb when the ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? prompt appears on the screeen. If you do not install the help feature, you can find the same test tables in Appendix I. You can display the table for each device by operating in the long message level, or by using the HELP command verb after selecting execution mode and before selecting the tests.

2.6.5 SVC Subopcode Charts

To execute a device diagnostic task in operation mode, you must select a valid I/O SVC subopcode. Appendix I contains a chart for each device that shows SVC operations, subopcodes, and validity codes indicating the response of the device to each subopcode. You can display the same table on your terminal screen by using the Show SVC Operation Codes (SO) command verb. See paragraph 3.5.4 for more information on the use of the SO command verb.

Command Verbs

3.1 INTRODUCTION

The Execute Online Diagnostics Driver (XODD) command transfers control from the System Command Interpreter (SCI) to the Online Diagnostics Driver. You then control the driver with command verbs. As soon as you have transferred control to the driver, you can display a screen that lists the command verbs alphabetically by using the help feature or by changing the message level to long. Figure 3-1 shows the screen display.

THE ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS DRIVER IS WAITING FOR A COMMAND VERB. ENTER A COMMAND VERB FROM THE FOLLOWING LIST:

CE	-	CHANGE EXECUTION MODE	SD	-	SHOW SYSTEM DEVICE LIST
СН	-	CLEAN HEADS ON FD1000 DSDD	SF	-	SHOW DIAGNOSTIC FILES
CM	-	CHANGE MESSAGE LEVEL	SMM	-	SHOW MEMORY MAP
CP	-	CHANGE TASK PRIORITY	SO	-	SHOW SVC OPERATION CODES
CQ	-	CHECK MESSAGE QUEUE	SP	-	SHOW PROGRESS OF DIAGNOSTICS
СТ		CHANGE TERMINATION MODE	SSD	-	SHOW SUPPORTED DEVICES
DIAG	-	CHANGE DEVICE STATE TO DIAG	WD	-	WAIT ON DIAGNOSTICS
KD	-	KILL DIAGNOSTIC TASK	XA	-	EXECUTE ALL DIAGNOSTICS
LDC	-	LIST DEVICE CONFIGURATION	XD	-	EXECUTE DIAGNOSTIC TASK
ON	-	CHANGE DEVICE STATE TO ON	XMEM	-	EXECUTE MEMORY TASK
QD	-	QUIT ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS	XSLA	-	EXECUTE SYSTEM LOG ANALYZER

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

Figure 3-1. Screen Display of Command Verbs

In this manual, commands to the driver are referred to as *command verbs* or *verbs*, while the word *command* refers to SCI commands. This section provides all the information you need in order to use each command verb. It contains general information about all verbs as well as a discussion of each one separately. The paragraphs on each individual verb contain the following:

- The verb name and description
- The prompts displayed when you use a command verb
- The possible responses for each prompt, including the default response
- A description or example of the action resulting from execution of the command verb

Command verbs are divided into five functional groups corresponding to the order in which you use them. The five groups of command verbs and their functions are as follows:

- Execute Start the tasks and select execution options
- Change Alter the execution options of a diagnostic task while it executes
- Show Display information about the diagnostic session
- Terminate End the diagnostic tasks and end the diagnostic session
- Miscellaneous Perform additional functions such as initiating the help feature

Table 3-1 lists the command verbs by group.

Verb	Description	Function	
ХА	Execute All Diagnostics	Execute	
XD	Execute Diagnostic Task		
XMEM	Execute Memory Task		
XSLA	Execute System Log Analyzer		
CE	Change Execution Mode	Change	
CM	Change Message Level		
СР	Change Task Priority		
СТ	Change Termination Mode		
SD	Show System Device List	Show	
SF(2)	Show Diagnostic Files		
SMM(2,3)	Show Memory Map		
SO	Show SVC Operation Codes		
SP(2,3)	Show Progress of Diagnostics		
SSD	Show Supported Devices		
KD	Kill Diagnostic Task	Terminate	
WD	Wait on Diagnostics		
QD	Quit Online Diagnostics		
СН	Clean Heads on FD1000 DSDD	Miscellaneous	
CQ	Check Message Queue		
ON	Change Device State to ON		
DIAG	Change Device State to DIAG		
LDC(2)	List Device Configuration		

Table	3-1.	Command	Verbs
		••••••••••	

Verb	Description	Function	
HELP(1)	Display Long Message for Current Prompt		
	Poturn to Providua Promot		

Table 3-1. Command Verbs (Continued)

Notes:

¹ HELP and REJECT are not listed on the screen display as command verbs, but are included here since the driver responds to them as miscellaneous command verbs.

² SF, LDC, SMM, and SP are not valid verbs when used in a batch stream. Use them in the interactive mode only.

³ SMM and SP are valid verbs only if your control terminal is a VDT type. You cannot use these verbs if your control terminal is a TTY type terminal (such as an 820 terminal).

3.2 USING COMMAND VERBS

To use the command verbs effectively, you need general information about their usage. Topics related to the use of command verbs, which are discussed in the following paragraphs, are as follows:

- Driver action
- Prompts and default responses
- Equivalence file
- Diagnostic message queue

3.2.1 Driver Action

The driver activates and controls the diagnostic tasks. After initializing the tasks, the driver assumes its normal state of processing requests for services and messages for the diagnostic tasks by monitoring the diagnostic message queue. Any request for service from the control terminal interrupts the normal activity of the driver and returns the driver to the terminal.

While at the control terminal, the driver responds to most command verbs by displaying prompts that ask for detailed information. When the prompts are displayed, the cursor also appears on the screen, indicating the field where you must enter your response. Whenever the cursor appears at the control terminal, the driver is inactive and cannot continue until you respond. This means that some diagnostic tasks may be unable to continue until the driver completes processing command verbs at the control terminal and returns to its normal state of monitoring the diagnostic message queue.

Before the driver can process your command verbs at the terminal, it must check your reponses to the prompts to be certain they are valid.

3.2.2 Prompts and Default Responses

Each prompt is displayed in the form of a question that can be followed by the default response to the question. In some cases, all valid responses to the prompt are also displayed in parentheses before the question mark. If the valid responses are not displayed and you need to know what they are, you can enter the HELP command verb (if you installed the help feature) or you can refer to the appropriate section of this manual (Section 3 for command verbs, Section 5 for individual tests, or Appendix I for reference tables).

The default response to the prompt always appears after the question mark. The following example shows the prompt that appears after you have entered the name or class of the device(s) to be tested. YES and NO are the possible responses; YES is the default.

EXAMPLE

USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

You can either accept the default (YES) by pressing the Return key or enter NO and then press the Return key.

3.2.3 Equivalence File

All command verb prompts have a range of valid responses. These responses correspond to numeric values in a preprogrammed table that the Online Diagnostics Driver uses. The first two columns of Table 3-2 show the contents of the preprogrammed table.

Prompt Response	Numeric Value	Default Equivalents From .S\$ODIAG.EQFILE	
ХА	1		
XD	2		
CE	3		
CP	4		
СТ	5		
SD	7		
SF	8		
SO	9		
KD	12		
QD	13		
CM	14		
YES	15	Y	
NO	16	Ν	
ALL	17		
CQ	25		
ST	26		
DS	27		
MT	28		
LP	29		

Table	3-2.	Prompt	Responses	and Ec	uivalents
					1

A
Promot Pasnonsa	Numeric Value	Default Equivalents From SSODIAG EOFU E
HELP	30	H and ?
REJECT	31	R
IGNORE	32	1
SHORT	37	
LONG	38	
STANDARD	39	
TEST	40	т
OPERATION	41	0
WD	49	QB
RP	50	
HISTORY	51	
ERRORS	52	ERR
LOG1	53	L1
LOG2	54	L2
SLARPT	55	
SP	56	
CONTINUE	57	С
ON	58	
DIAG	59	
XSLA	60	
ХМЕМ	61	ХМ

Table 3-2. Prompt Responses and Equivalents (Continued)

The driver also uses a file, the equivalence file, that contains alternate responses assigned to the same numeric values. The equivalence file is a text file named volumename.S\$ODIAG.EQFILE. You can edit this file to customize the alternate responses.

After you enter your response to a prompt, the driver searches the equivalence file for the characters you entered. If the characters are present, the driver uses the corresponding numeric value to perform the appropriate function.

If the characters are not present in the equivalence file, the driver searches the preprogrammed table for the characters. If the characters are in this table, the driver uses the corresponding numeric value to perform the appropriate function. If the characters are not present in the preprogrammed table or the equivalence file, the following error message is written to the file or device you specified in response to the MESSAGE OUTPUT prompt of the XODD command:

where:

xxxxxxx are the characters you entered.

Because the driver searches the equivalence file first, you can customize your responses to command verb prompts without affecting the Online Diagnostics software. To change the equivalence file, enter the characters of your customized response, starting in column 1. On the same line, enter the numeric value of the original response from Table 3-2, starting in column 9. For example, in Table 3-2 the numeric value of the original response OPERATION is 41. To save keystrokes, you can assign a shorter response (O) to the numeric value 41 by adding it to the equivalence table.

The following example shows an equivalence file (volumename.S\$ODIAG.EQFILE) that allows you to enter Y instead of YES, N instead of NO, R instead of REJECT, and O instead of OPERATION.

EXAMPLE

Y		15
N	•	16
R		31
0		41

3.2.4 Diagnostic Message Queue

After the driver processes a command verb from the terminal, it checks the diagnostic message queue. This queue contains messages from the diagnostic tasks that request driver action. The driver processes the messages in the order in which they are entered into the queue until you call it back to the control terminal. While the driver is monitoring the message queue, the following message appears on the screen:

ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE --- PRESS 'COMMAND' FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB

To return the driver to the control terminal, press the Command key and wait for the command prompt to appear.

CAUTION

When the driver is waiting for input at the terminal (the cursor is on the screen), diagnostic tasks with messages in the message queue waiting to be processed by the driver may be suspended. As long as the cursor stays on the screen, some of the diagnostic tasks may be unable to execute to completion. IF YOU MUST LEAVE THE TER-MINAL UNATTENDED WHILE A DIAGNOSTIC SESSION IS IN PROGRESS, RETURN THE DRIVER TO ITS NORMAL STATE OF MONITORING THE MESSAGE QUEUE BY EXECUTING A CHECK MESSAGE QUEUE (CQ), A WAIT ON DIAGNOSTICS (WD), OR SHOW PROGRESS OF DIAGNOSTICS (SP) COMMAND VERB. See paragraph 3.5.5.

3.3 EXECUTE COMMAND VERBS

The group of execute command verbs consists of four verbs that initiate the diagnostic tasks and the System Log Analysis Task. The execute command verbs are as follows:

XA	Execute All Diagnostics
XD	Execute Diagnostic Task
ХМЕМ	Execute Memory Task
XSLA	Execute System Log Analyzer

3.3.1 XA — Execute All Diagnostics

The XA command verb selects all devices configured on the system that are in the appropriate device state and starts executing diagnostic tasks for those devices. The default prompt responses are as follows:

Priority Level	= 3
Execution Mode	= TEST
Tests Selected	= ALL
Disk Write Tests	= NO
Interactive Tests	= NO
Paper Width	= 80
Timed Test Interval	= 1 SECOND
Termination Mode	= ONE PASS

You cannot choose other options when using the XA command verb. However, you can change the options of any diagnostic task while it is executing by using the Change Execution Mode (CE), Change Termination Mode (CT), and Change Task Priority (CP) command verbs. See paragraph 3.4.

To be selected by the XA command verb, disk devices (class DS) must be in the online device state, and all other devices must be in the diagnostic device state. Extended read disk tests 1 through 5 are executed by the XA command verb. You can place devices in the appropriate state by using the ON or DIAG commands from SCI (before the XODD command calls the Online Diagnostics Driver) or by using the ON or DIAG command verbs from the driver (before using the XA verb).

The format of the XA command verb is as follows:

```
ENTER COMMAND VERB?
XA
DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED.
DEVICE XXXX HAS STARTED EXECUTION.
DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED.
DEVICE XXXX HAS STARTED EXECUTION.
```

The messages DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED and DEVICE XXXX HAS STARTED EXECUTION appear for each device that the XA verb selects.

3.3.2 XD — Execute Diagnostic Task

The XD command verb starts the diagnostic task for one or more devices. You choose a target device and select the execution options by responding to the prompts of the XD command verb. If you choose more than one device, you must go through the prompts for each device.

You can customize the diagnostic task by selecting options that best suit your needs, or you can select the default options. You can alter your choice of options while the task is executing by using the CE, CT, and CP command verbs.

Before the XD command verb can start a diagnostic task, the target device must be in the appropriate device state. Disk devices (class DS) must be in the diagnostic state to run the extended write tests, or in the online state to run all other tests. Other devices must be in the diagnostic state.

Figure 3-2 shows an aggregate view of many of the prompts of the XD command verb in the order in which they appear. They do not all appear for any one device class. The prompts appear on the terminal screen one at a time; when a response is entered, the next one will appear. The indentation of prompts in the figure indicates subordination; they are not indented when they appear on your terminal screen. Study Figure 3-2 to familiarize yourself with the order and subordination of the prompts.

> ENTER COMMAND VERB? XD ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED. USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1, 2, 3)? 3 CHANGE EXECUTION MODE (YES, NO)? NO ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? TEST ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

> > Figure 3-2. XD Command Verb Prompts (Sheet 1 of 2)

USE EXTENDED DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES or EXECUTE INTERACTIVE TERMINAL TESTS (YES, NO)? NO ENTER TIMED TEST INTERVAL (0..59)? 1 or EXECUTE LONG TAPE TESTS (YES, NO)? NO or ENTER PAPER WIDTH (80, 136)? 80 or ENTER SVC SUBOPCODE (HEX 0..0F)? OB ENTER DATA BUFFER LENGTH (1..8192 BYTES)? 161 ENTER NUMBER OF RECORDS TO SKIP (1..32767)? 1 ENTER DATA PATTERN (HEX 0..0FFFF)? 03737 CHANGE TERMINATION MODE (YES, NO)? NO EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (YES, NO)? NO ENTER NUMBER OF MINUTES FOR TASK EXECUTION (1..32767)? IGNORE ENTER MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS FOR TERMINATION (1..32767)? IGNORE ENTER NUMBER OF PASSES OR SPECIFIC OPERATIONS (1...32767)? 1 DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED.

(This prompt appears again if you select more than one device.)

USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

DEVICE XXXX HAS STARTED EXECUTION.

(The appropriate prompts for device xxxx appear until you enter all necessary responses.)

Figure 3-2. XD Command Verb Prompts (Sheet 2 of 2)

3.3.2.1 Device Name. The first prompt of the XD command verb is ENTER DEVICE NAME?. The device name you enter is the target device(s). The three valid responses are as follows:

- A full device name to specify one specific target device (example: LP02)
- A two-character device class to specify all devices in a class (example: LP)
- The word ALL, which is the default, to specify all devices configured on the system that Online Diagnostics supports

Each specified device *must be* in the appropriate device state for the diagnostic task to test that device. The diagnostic task starts by displaying the following acknowledgment message:

DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED.

This message appears for one device at a time; the appropriate prompts of the XD verb for that device follow. You must respond to a series of prompts for each device that you want to test.

3.3.2.2 Default Options. The next prompt of the XD command verb asks whether or not you want to use all the default options. The possible responses appear in parentheses (YES, NO) and the default is YES. Some default options are valid only for certain device classes. The default options are as follows:

Priority Level= 3Execution Mode= TESTTests Selected= ALLInteractive Tests= NOPaper Width= 80Timed Test Interval= 1 SECONDTermination Mode= ONE PASSUSE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

To select the default options, enter YES. This completes the XD command verb if you are testing only one device. If you are testing more than one device, you must respond to the default options prompt that appears after the acknowledgment message for each device.

If you enter NO, the prompts for the remaining options appear.

3.3.2.3 Task Priority Level. The first of the remaining options is priority levels 1, 2, or 3. The priority level helps the operating system allocate system resources to balance the workload and give special consideration to your most important tasks. Priority level 1 is the highest level, and those tasks assigned to level 1 have access to the majority of system resources. The default task priority is level 3.

Select the task priority by responding to the following prompt:

ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1, 2, 3)? 3

3.3.2.4 Execution Mode. The next prompt offers you the opportunity to change the execution mode. The prompt appears as follows:

CHANGE EXECUTION MODE (YES, NO)? NO

If you enter NO, the default option for test execution mode prevails, and the diagnostic task that you bid will run through one pass of all tests for each device. The prompt for termination mode appears after you enter NO.

If you want to specify the tests to be run, you must enter YES in response to this prompt. Then, a series of prompts for test and operation execution modes follows.

Test Execution Mode. For the diagnostic test execution mode, you must decide whether to execute one test or all of the tests. Each device has a different number of tests associated with its diagnostic task. Table 3-3 shows the test number ranges for each device. A test table summarizing test information appears at the control terminal when you are in the long message level or when you enter the HELP command verb (if you installed the help feature). If you did not install the help feature, you can find all of the test tables in Appendix I.

If you choose to execute all of the tests, you must respond to additional prompts for disk (DS), printer (LP or RP), magnetic tape (MT), and keyboard terminal (ST) devices. These additional prompts request information that the diagnostic task uses for each device.

Device	Test Numbers
DS — ALL (nonextended)*	1 through 4
DS — ALL (extended read)	1 through 5
DS — ALL (extended write)	10 through 13
LP — 300/600	1 through 15
LP — 810	1 through 11
LP 840	1 through 14
LP 850 (CPTEST)	1 through 15
LP 2230/2260	1 through 6
MT — 979A, MT1600	1 through 8
RP — 810	1 through 11
ST — 911	1 through 7
ST — 820	1 through 12
ST — 931	1 through 9
ST — 940	1 through 6

Table 3-3. Test Numbers by Device Class

The following paragraphs describe the prompts that appear when you choose the test execution mode (enter your response to the ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? prompt). Not all prompts appear for all tests. The first of these prompts appears on the screen as follows:

ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

You can choose to execute any one of the numbered tests by entering the test number. You can choose to execute all of the tests in numeric order by entering ALL.

When the target device is a disk, you must know if the disk is in the online or diagnostic state before specifying ALL. If the disk is in the online state and you select all of the tests, the diagnostic executes the nonextended disk tests or the extended read disk tests (depending on your response to the DO YOU WANT TO EXECUTE THE EXTENDED DISK TESTS (YES,NO)? prompt). If you select all the tests and the disk is in the diagnostic state, the diagnostic executes only the extended write tests.

Other disk prompts follow the test selection prompts. For more information on disk testing requirements, see Section 5.

When the target device is a keyboard terminal (class ST) and you select all of the tests, the following prompt is displayed:

EXECUTE INTERACTIVE TERMINAL TESTS (YES NO)? NO

The interactive tests require you to be present at the target device to respond to the test. After you enter either YES or NO, the following prompt is displayed:

ENTER SECONDS OF TIMED INTERVAL (0..59)? 1

The timed test interval is used for several items in the diagnostic tests for class ST devices. For further information, refer to the test descriptions in Section 5.

When the target device is a magnetic tape drive (class MT) and you choose to execute all of the tests, the following prompt appears:

EXECUTE THE LONG TAPE TESTS (YES, NO)? NO

You must decide whether to execute tape tests 6 through 8. Tests 6 and 7 take a long time to execute. Test 8 offers you the opportunity to put on or remove the write ring. For further details on magnetic tape tests 6 through 8, refer to the test descriptions in Section 5.

When the target device is a line printer (class LP) device or an 820 KSR (class ST), and you choose to execute all of the tests, the following prompt appears:

ENTER PAPER WIDTH (80..136)? 80

Enter the appropriate paper width (80 to 136) for the device being tested.

Operation Execution Mode. For the operation execution mode, the tasks exercise subopcodes of I/O SVC code > 00. You must choose the particular I/O SVC subopcodes and, for certain Supervisor Calls (SVCs), you must select the data buffer length and ASCII data pattern. Only certain subopcodes are valid for each device class. You can display these subopcodes by entering the Show SVC Operation Codes (SO) command verb (see paragraph 3.5.4). The SVC subopcode tables are also available in Appendix I. Certain SVC subopcodes require special conditions or prerequisite actions on your part. For example, the Read ASCII operation for a 911 Video Display Terminal (VDT) requires your presence at the target 911 to press key(s) for each operation performed.

NOTE

The specific SVC operation execution mode is not valid for disk devices or memory devices.

A right angle bracket (>) preceding a value indicates a hexadecimal value.

The following paragraphs describe the prompts of the XD command verb that appear when you enter OPERATION as your new execution mode (as your response to the ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? prompt). Not all prompts appear for all tests. The first of these prompts is as follows:

ENTER SVC SUBOPCODE (HEX 0..0F)? OB

Enter the I/O SVC subopcode from the chart called to the screen with the SO command verb.

After you enter subopcode > 06, > 07, > 09, > 0A, > 0B, or > 0C, the following prompt appears:

ENTER DATA BUFFER LENGTH (1...XXXX BYTES)? XXXX

where:

xxxx is a decimal value dependent on the particular device class.

Enter the number of bytes to be allocated for the buffer that the subopcode uses. This prompt allows you to exercise varying buffer lengths and even/odd buffer lengths. For class LP and ST devices, the buffer is deblocked to 80 characters at output time.

If you enter subopcode > 06 or > 07, the following prompt appears:

ENTER NUMBER OF RECORDS TO SKIP (1..32767)? 1

This prompt allows you to space forward or backward a specific number of records (from 1 through 32,767). Enter the desired number of records.

If you enter subopcode > 0B or > 0C, the following prompt appears:

ENTER DATA PATTERN (HEX 0..0FFFF)? 03737

Enter the hexadecimal number that represents the two-character ASCII code you want to use as the data pattern. For example, the default value > 3737 is the hexadecimal representation of the ASCII 77, and > 4141 is the hexadecimal representation of the ASCII AA.

3.3.2.5 Termination Mode. The following paragraphs describe the prompts of the termination mode option. Not all prompts appear under all conditions. Refer to Figure 3-2 for subordination relationships between these prompts and the remainder of the XD verb prompts.

The first prompt concerning termination mode is as follows:

CHANGE TERMINATION MODE (YES, NO)? NO

If you enter NO, the diagnostic uses the default termination mode of one pass.

If you enter YES, the prompts for selecting the termination options appear.

The termination options are as follows:

- Execute continuously, until you enter a Kill Diagnostic (KD) or a Quit Online Diagnostics (QD) command verb (see paragraphs 3.6.1 and 3.6.3).
- Execute for a specified number of minutes.
- Execute until a specified minimum number of errors occur.
- Execute a specified number of passes through all of the tests, a specified test, or a specified number of operations.

The next prompt appears as follows:

EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (YES, NO)? NO

If you enter YES, the diagnostic task executes until you enter a KD or a QD command verb.

If you enter NO, the following prompt appears:

ENTER NUMBER OF MINUTES FOR TASK EXECUTION (1..32767)? IGNORE

If you enter a decimal number from 1 through 32,767, the task executes until the number of minutes you enter have elapsed. If you enter IGNORE, the Online Diagnostic Driver (ODD) does not select this termination option. The following prompt appears whenever you enter any valid response (including IGNORE):

ENTER MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS FOR TERMINATION (1..32767)? IGNORE

If you enter a decimal number from 1 through 32,767, a counter is initialized, and the task executes until the number of errors counted equals the number you enter. If you enter IGNORE, the ODD does not select this termination option. The following prompt appears whenever you enter any valid response (including IGNORE):

ENTER NUMBER OF PASSES OR SPECIFIC OPERATIONS (1..32767)? 1

If you selected the test execution mode, the task executes until the number of passes through all of the tests is equal to the decimal number you enter. If you selected the operation execution mode, the task executes until the number of operations of the SVC subopcode executed is equal to the decimal number you enter. If you enter IGNORE, the ODD does not select this termination option.

3.3.3 XMEM --- Execute Memory Task

The diagnostic memory task exercises the memory by writing a series of seven data patterns into memory, reading them from memory, and comparing the output to the input. The tests cannot be executed separately. The format of the XMEM command verb is as follows:

```
ENTER COMMAND VERB?
XMEM
ENTER NUMBER OF MEMORY TASKS: (1..XX)? 1
```

No other prompts appear for the XMEM command verb. Other execution options are not available.

If you want the memory task to exercise more than one area of the memory, you can specify the number of areas by entering a number other than 1 in response to the ENTER NUMBER OF MEMORY TESTS prompt. Each series of memory tests execute in a different area of memory. You can execute as many memory tasks simultaneously as the system resources permit. The diagnostic does not permit you to request more tests than the system resources can handle (see paragraph 5.7). To view the area of the memory being exercised, enter the Show Memory Map (SMM) command verb.

3.3.4 XSLA — Execute System Log Analyzer

The XSLA command verb initiates the System Log Analysis Task. For a complete explanation of the use of the XSLA verb, see paragraph 6.4.2.

3.4 CHANGE COMMAND VERBS

The change command verbs allow you to respecify the execution options of the XD command verb for a diagnostic task while it is executing, without stopping and restarting the task. When you enter a change command verb, the diagnostic task will stop and wait for you to complete respecifying the options. If you are operating for a specified number of minutes, the time you take in changing options will be included as part of the execution time before termination.

The prompts of the change command verbs are the same as, or similar to, the prompts of XD command verb. For this reason, details of responses to the change command verb prompts are not provided in the following paragraphs. For details of the responses, refer to the XD command verb description.

The change command verbs are as follows:

- CE Change Execution Mode
- CM Change Message Level
- CP Change Task Priority
- CT Change Termination Mode

3.4.1 CE — Change Execution Mode

The CE command verb modifies the execution mode of the diagnostic task after it begins execution. The prompts and default options of the CE command verb are as follows:

```
ENTER COMMAND VERB?
CE
ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL
DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED.
CHANGE TEST EXECUTION MODE (YES, NO)? NO
ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? TEST
ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL
USE EXTENDED DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES
or
EXECUTE INTERACTIVE TERMINAL TESTS (YES, NO)? NO
or
EXECUTE THE LONG TAPE TESTS (YES, NO)? NO
ENTER TIMED TEST INTERVAL (0..59)? 1
or
ENTER PAPER WIDTH (80..136)? 80
or
```

ENTER SVC I/O OPERATION CODE (HEX 0..0F)? OB ENTER THE NUMBER OF RECORDS TO SKIP (1..32767)? 1 ENTER BUFFER LENGTH (1..8192 BYTES)? 161 ENTER DATA PATTERN (HEX 0..0FFFF)? 03737

3.4.2 CM — Change Message Level

The CM command verb changes the message level of the user/driver interface from the current level to the specified new level. The new level is in effect until you enter another CM command verb.

The user/driver interface message levels are long and short. The diagnostic session always begins on the short level, displaying only the command prompt. The long level displays charts and expanded explanations of the command prompts.

The prompts and default options of the CM command verb are as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB? CM ENTER MESSAGE LEVEL (SHORT, LONG)? LONG

3.4.3 CP — Change Task Priority

The CP command verb changes the priority of a diagnostic task while it is executing. The default priority is 3; you select it by pressing the Return key without entering any value. The priority change takes place at the first opportunity after the request is processed. You can use this command verb to speed up or slow down task execution.

Be careful when using the CP verb to change online diagnostic task priorities. The recommended procedure is to change *all* tasks of the same priority level. If selected tasks have different priority levels (DS01 = 1, DS02 = 2, ST03 = 3), a priority 3 task message could possibly block the message queue to the Online Diagnostics Driver (ODD) if the operating system rolls that message for long periods of time. This condition does not occur if all tasks are of the same priority level.

The prompts and default options of the CP command verb are as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB? CP ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED. ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1, 2, 3)? 3

3.4.4 CT — Change Termination Mode

The CT command verb changes the termination mode of the diagnostic task while it is executing. The CT verb is accurate to within a minute, therefore, if you select a time value of eight minutes, the task will terminate within seven to nine minutes.

The prompts and default options of the CT command verb are as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB? CT ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL DEVICE XXXX IS SELECTED. CHANGE TERMINATION MODE (YES, NO)? NO EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (YES, NO)? NO ENTER NUMBER OF MINUTES FOR TASK EXECUTION (1..32767)? IGNORE ENTER MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS FOR TERMINATION (1..32767)? IGNORE ENTER NUMBER OF PASSES OR SPECIFIC OPERATIONS (1..32767)? 1

The prompts appear in the order shown. A positive response to the EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY? prompt suppresses the following prompts. Any valid response (including IGNORE) to the other prompts causes the next one to be displayed.

3.5 SHOW COMMAND VERBS

The show command verbs display information at the control terminal. The verbs are as follows:

- SD Show System Device List
- SF Show Diagnostic Files
- SMM Show Memory Map
- SO Show SVC Operation Codes
- SP Show Progress of Diagnostics
- SSD Show Supported Devices

3.5.1 SD — Show System Device List

The SD command verb displays a list consisting of all the devices on your system that are supported by Online Diagnostics, the device state associated with them, and their availability for testing. The device list is not sorted. It appears in the same order as the devices are shown when you use the SCI command List Device Configuration (LDC) to display the state of the devices configured on your system. The SD command verb has no subordinate prompts.

In response to the SD command verb, the Online Diagnostics Driver displays the device state information in the format shown in the following example:

EXAMPLE

DEVICE	STATE	AVAILABLE	FOR	TEST
DS02	ONLINE	YES		
DS03	ONLINE	YES		
LP01	ONLINE	NO		
LP02	DIAGNOSTIC	YES		
ST01	ONLINE	NO		
ST02	OFFLINE	NO		
ST03	DIAGNOSTIC	YES		
DS01	OFFLINE	NO		

To suspend the upward scrolling of the SD command verb display, press the Attention key on your terminal (see Appendix A for equivalent keys on control terminals). To resume scrolling, press the Attention key again.

A

3.5.2 SF — Show Diagnostic Files

Five diagnostic files are available to you when you use the SF command verb of the Online Diagnostics Driver. They are:

- HISTORY Diagnostic history flle. This is the default for the SF command verb. For information about the history file, see paragraph 2.5.1.
- ERRORS Diagnostic error file. This file extracts error records from the history file and stores them in a file with volumename.S\$ODIAG.ERRORS.
- LOG1 System log file 1. See paragraphs 6.1 and 6.5 for information about the system log files.
- LOG2 System log file 2.
- SLARPT System Log Analysis Task report file. See paragraph 6.1.

The SF command verb displays a screen listing the choices available to you if you are in the long message level. It displays the following screen in the short message level.

ENTER COMMAND VERB? SF ENTER FILE NAME? HISTORY

The SF command verb is not valid in batch mode; however, messages are logged to the diagnostic history and error file. You can display them on a terminal by using the SF command in SCI. Pathnames are volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTORY and volumename.S\$ODIAG.ERRORS if you accepted the default pathname when you executed the XODD command.

3.5.2.1 Diagnostic History File. If you accept the default to the ENTER FILE NAME? prompt, the diagnostic history file appears at the control terminal. The file shown is current to the time of the request, and you can manipulate the display with full DNOS show file functions. The following example shows entries in a diagnostic history file:

EXAMPLE

ODD	0001 I 08/24/83 08:36:36
	DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS VERSION 1.2.0 BEGINNING EXECUTION.
	AT ANY TIME, ENTER THE WORD 'HELP' FOR MORE INFORMATION.
ST03	5000 I 08/24/83 08:45:28
	DNOS ST911 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID=>FE.
ST03	5100 T 08/24/83 08:45:28
	TEST 1 - ONES AND ZEROS TEST BEGINNING.
ST03	5142 E 08/24/83 08:45:29
	MEMORY ERROR! ZERO'S TEST PATTERN CHANGED.
ST03	5200 T 08/24/83 08:45:31
	TEST 2 - SCROLL TEST BEGINNING.
ST 03	5300 T 08/24/83 08:45:34
	TEST 3 - BEEPER TEST BEGINNING.
ODD	0402 I 08/24/83 08:47:37
	DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC STO3 TERMINATED WITH 1 ERRORS, 1 PASSES.
ODD	000E I 08/24/83 08:48:30
	DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS COMPLETED EXECUTION.

3.5.2.2 Diagnostic Error File. If you enter the prompt response ERRORS, the following screen display appears:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

The diagnostic error file does not exist until you enter ERRORS in response to the ENTER FILE NAME? prompt. The SF verb then creates the file and copies appropriate entries from the history file into it. The following example shows entries in a diagnostic error file that are extracted from the entries in the example shown in paragraph 3.5.2.1:

EXAMPLE

ST03 5142 E 08/24/83 08:45:29 MEMORY ERROR! ZERO'S TEST PATTERN CHANGED. **3.5.2.3** System Log Files 1 and 2. Entering LOG1 or LOG2 displays the entries in the system log file. The following example shows some typical entries in a DNOS system log file:

EXAMPLE

0919:0902 **** SCI - IV JEW025 AT ST07 INSTALLED DNODOBJ IN DS03 0919:0903 STAT DEV=DS03 RDS G=0006 B=0000 WRTS G=0000 B=0000 OTHER G=0000 B=0000 0919:0903 **** SCI - UV JEW025 AT ST07 UNLOADED DNODOBJ 0919:0959 MEMP BIT=00 ROW=OC CORRECT=Y BASE=0000 MEM=64KB TYPE=1 TPCS=FB10 0919:1035+DS05 ERR=1C JOB=0004 IID=17 BLOCK=0000 001C 0A02 C000 9014 0100 S=00 L=02 ST09 RID=30

3.5.2.4 System Log Analysis Task Report File. When the System Log Analysis Task finishes processing system log records, it writes the report it produces to the System Log Analysis Report File. The reports are printed from that file. To see the file, enter SLARPT in response to the ENTER FILE NAME? prompt. The following example shows the beginning entries in a System Log Analysis Task report file:

EXAMPLE

1 EB - DISK PACK CHANGE DETECTED READS G=000044, B=000000 WRITES G=000000, B=000000 OTHER G=000255, B=000002 RAL7 UNLOADED FORM DSO4 MT01 FROM 09/17/83 AT 20:34 TO 09/17/83 AT 20:34 4 45 - PARITY ERROR ENCOUNTERED ON MAGNETIC TAPE MT02 FROM 09/17/83 AT 20:34 TO 09/17/83 AT 20:34 1 43 - MAG TAPE UNIT IS OFFLINE

This example shows only a portion of one report file. See Section 6 for more information.

3.5.3 SMM — Show Memory Map

The SMM command verb performs the same function under the driver that the Show Memory Map (SMM) command prrforms under SCI. It displays the allocation of main memory to system and user tasks and estimates if more or less memory is needed for the operating system to handle these tasks. If any portion of memory is blank, that portion is currently not in use.

CAUTION

Do not leave the SMM display active if you activated it from the Online Diagnostic Driver (ODD). If you do, the SMM verb will disallow the processing of Online Diagnostics progress messages. Use the Show Progress (SP) verb as the normal means of viewing the progress of a diagnostic session.

For examples and a description of the fields of the SMM display, see the DNOS Systems Programmer's Guide.

3.5.4 SO — Show SVC Operation Codes

The SO command verb displays a chart of all the available I/O SVC subopcodes. You can use the SO command verb only under certain conditions during the execution of a diagnostic session. The three times when you can invoke the SO verb follow:

- When the ENTER COMMAND VERB? prompt appears on the screen
- When you have selected to operate the diagnostic session in the operation execution mode
- When you have changed the execution mode to operation by using the CE command verb

Each device class has a separate chart. Each chart contains the name of the operation, the subopcode, and a validity code for the device class. The legend at the bottom of the chart explains the validity codes. The disk and memory device classes have no operation chart because only the test execution mode is valid for them.

The SO command verb displays the following prompt:

ENTER DEVICE CLASS?

Enter a valid two-character device class: LP, MT, or ST.

Figure 3-3 shows the SO command verb display that appears if you enter LP as the device class. The display is valid for both class LP and RP devices. For other subopcode charts, see Appendix I.

OPERATION	CODE	VALIDITY	OPERATION	CODE	VALIDITY
ODEN	00	D		08	F
CLOSE	00	R D		00	с г
	01	ĸ	KEAU ASUII	09	E
CLOSE/EUF	02	ĸ	READ DIRECT	UA	E
OPEN/REWIND	03	R	WRITE ASCII	0B	R
CLOSE/UNLOAD	04	R	WRITE DIRECT	00	E
READ STATUS	05	I	WRITE EOF	0 D	R
FORWARD SPACE	06	I	REWIND	0E	R
BACK SPACE	07	I	UNLOAD	0 F	I
OR VALIDITY = R, I,	DEVIC	E RESPONDS E IGNORES S	TO SUBOPCODE. UBOPCODE.		
E,	DEVIC	E RETURNS E	RROR CODE.		

*** ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS DEVICE SUBOPCODE CHART *** DEVICE CLASS: LP, RP

Figure 3-3. SO Command Verb Display

3.5.5 SP — Show Progress of Diagnostics

The SP command verb displays a dynamic picture of the diagnostic session as it runs. The Online Diagnostic Driver (ODD) enters each device that is being tested into the chart, logs the status of the tests as they proceed, and logs any errors encountered into the chart. The following example shows a picture of one instant in a diagnostic session:

 DEVI	CE TES	T/OP PASSE	ES ERROR	 RS DEV1 	CE TI	EST/OP	PASSES	ERRORS
 DS03 LP02 ST07 DS05 DS01 DS02 	3 3 11 2 1	1 0 0 0 0	0 0 4 0 8					

EXAMPLE

3.5.6 SSD — Show Supported Devices

The SSD command verb displays a list of the devices that are supported by Online Diagnostics. Figure 3-4 shows the screen display that appears when you enter the SSD command verb.

AUETUC DIVIDUOLITOO AOLLOVI IUE LAEFAMINA LEALAI	
NOTE: THE ONLINE TEST MUST BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO EXECUTION.	
TESTS CLASS DEVICE	
DSnn DISKS CD1400, DS10, DS25, DS31, DS50, DS80, DS200, DS300,	
FD1000, WD800	
MTnn TAPES MT979A, MT1600,	
Cartridge Tape	
LPnn LINE PRINTER Printronix 300/600	
Data Products 2230/2260	
Omni Model 810, 850, or 840 R	0 with
or without DFC	option
RPnn REMOTE PRINTER Omni Model 810 (DNOS ONLY)	
STnn KEYBOARD DEVICES Model 820 KSR with DFC option	
Model 911, 931 Video Display	Terminal
Model 940 Electronic Video Te	rminal
MMnn MEMORY	
ENTER THE LETTER 'C' TO CONTINUE	

Figure 3-4. SSD Command Verb Display

3.6 TERMINATE COMMAND VERBS

The terminate command verbs cause normal termination for the individual diagnostic task or the Online Diagnostics Driver. They are as follows:

KD	Kill Diagnostic Task
WD	Wait on Diagnostics
QD	Quit Online Diagnostics

3.6.1 KD — Kill Diagnostic Task

The KD command verb terminates diagnostic tasks, but does not affect the Online Diagnostics Driver (ODD). You can terminate one, several, or all diagnostic tasks with the KD command verb. If you have selected the execute continuously termination mode, you must either change the termination mode with a CT verb or terminate the task with the KD command verb.

You must enter the device name for the task you want to terminate. When you enter the full fourcharacter device name (for example DS01), only the task for that device terminates. When you enter the two-character device class (for example DS), all tasks for devices of that class terminate. When you enter ALL, all diagnostic tasks are terminated. The prompts and default options of the KD command verb are as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

The following messages appear for each diagnostic task:

DEVICE XXXX TERMINATION STARTED.

ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE PRESS 'COMMAND' FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB.

DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC XXXX TERMINATED WITH nnnnn ERRORS, nnnnn PASSES.

where:

xxxx is the device name of the diagnostic task.

nnnnn represent the appropriate decimal numbers.

3.6.2 WD — Wait on Diagnostics

Although the WD verb is listed as a termination verb, it actually suspends execution rather than terminating it. For this reason, you normally use the WD command verb only for a batch input file to suspend the reading of the file until the device diagnostic completes execution. (The batch input file is the file specified in response to the COMMAND INPUT prompt of the XODD command.) When the driver suspends reading of the batch file, the driver monitors the message queue, as if you entered a Check Message Queue (CQ) command verb. When the device diagnostic terminates, the driver reads the remainder of the batch input file. If the remainder of the file contains a QD command verb, the diagnostic session ends. If it contains another command verb, the driver reads the batch input file until the next WD command verb.

If there is no remainder of the file (the WD command verb is the last element of the file), you can continue the diagnostic session from the control terminal. This can be helpful when you need to execute batch diagnostics, but must return to interactive execution to view the diagnostics history file or show device status after the batch execution.

The WD command verb prevents the QD command verb from ending a batch diagnostic session before diagnostic task completion. The following example shows a batch input file that does not contain a WD command verb. When reading this file, the driver reads and executes the QD command verb after reading the other input, thus ending the diagnostic session immediately. The disk diagnostic tasks do not execute.

XD DS YES QD The following example shows one correct usage of the WD verb. The diagnostic session ends after all the diagnostics are complete.

EXAMPLE

XD MT02 YES XD LP03 YES XD DS01. YES WD QD

The following example shows another correct usage of the WD command verb. In this example, several WD command verbs are in the batch input file. The diagnostic session ends after the diagnostic for LP01 is complete. This example does not allow multiple diagnostic tasks to execute concurrently. Using only one WD verb allows all tasks to execute concurrently and is the recommended method.

EXAMPLE

XD **DS01** YES WD XD MT01 YES XD LP02 YES WD XD LP01 YES WD QD

The following example shows another correct usage of the WD command verb. The WD command verb ends the batch execution, but the diagnostic session does not end because the file contains no QD command verb. The driver returns control to the control terminal for further input after the diagnostic task for DS01 is complete. This is an example of a diagnostic session that is both batch and interactive.

2270532-9701

EXAMPLE

XD DS01 YES WD

3.6.3 QD — Quit Online Diagnostics

The QD command verb ends the diagnostic session, returning the control terminal to SCI. The target devices placed in the diagnostic device state remain in that state even though the diagnostic session is over. (Use the ON command to place these devices back in the online state.)

Usually, all diagnostic tasks terminate before you enter the QD command verb. Either they terminate according to specified termination mode options, or you terminate them with the KD command verb. However, when diagnostic tasks are still executing at the time you enter the QD command verb, the Online Diagnostics Driver terminates these tasks first before terminating itself. The driver cannot terminate interactive tasks awaiting I/O; therefore, it cannot terminate itself. The driver displays the following messages for each task it terminates:

DEVICE XXXX TERMINATION STARTED.

DEVICE XXXX TERMINATED WITH nnnnn ERRORS, nnnnn PASSES.

where:

xxxx is the device name of the target device.

nnnn represent the appropriate decimal numbers.

When all the diagnostic tasks have been terminated, the driver displays the following message:

TOTAL NUMBER OF ERRORS REPORTED = nn:

When the cursor returns to the terminal screen, the QD verb has completed execution, and the driver is terminated.

NOTE

When you attempt to terminate the driver with a Quit Online Diagnostics (QD) command, and diagnostics are still awaiting I/O (such as with the interactive terminal tests), the driver will not terminate. In this situation, you have two possible ways of terminating the driver. One is to press any key on the target terminal awaiting I/O. The other is to identify all tasks that have not been killed by using the Show Task Status (STS) SCI command. Once you have identified these tasks, kill them with the Kill Task (KT) SCI command. A synonym table overflow can replace the total number of errors message with the following message:

0500 PARAMETER DOES NOT EXIST

This is a system message which appears on the screen as soon as the driver terminates and displaces the errors message. You should delete unnecessary synonyms.

3.7 MISCELLANEOUS COMMAND VERBS

The miscellaneous command verbs perform additional functions to aid you during the diagnostic session. The verbs are:

- CH Clean Heads on FD1000 DSDD
- CQ Check Message Queue
- ON Change Device State to ON
- DIAG Change Device State to DIAG
- LDC List Device Configuration
- HELP Display Long Message for Current Prompt
- **REJECT** Return to Previous Prompt

3.7.1 CH — Clean Heads on FD1000 Floppy Drive

The CH verb can be executed only on an FD1000 disk drive in the diagnostic state when a special cleaning diskette has been inserted. Execution of the CH verb causes the heads to come in contact with the cleaning surface of the diskette for approximately 30 seconds.

The prompts and defaults of the CH verb are as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB? CH ENTER THE FD1000 DEVICE NAME TO BE CLEANED. A HEAD CLEANING DISKETTE SHOULD BE IN THE DRIVE. ARE YOU READY TO EXECUTE (YES, NO)? YES

3.7.2 CQ — Check Message Queue

The CQ command verb causes the Online Diagnostics Driver to monitor the diagnostic message queue for diagnostic tasks in need of service.

When a diagnostic task needs service, it places a message on the queue and may be suspended until the driver responds to the message. The driver, in its normal state, displays the following message on the control terminal and services the diagnostic tasks by monitoring the message queue:

ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE -- PRESS 'COMMAND' FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB

When you transfer control of the driver from monitoring the message queue to awaiting input from the control terminal by pressing the Command key, the cursor appears on the screen. As long as the cursor is on the screen, the driver is waiting for you to enter a response at the control terminal and cannot return to its normal state of servicing the diagnostic tasks. You can force the driver to return to the diagnostic message queue by entering the CQ command verb in response to the command prompt.

If you must leave the terminal while a diagnostic session is in progress, you can be sure that the driver is responding to any diagnostic tasks that need servicing by entering the CQ command verb. There are no additional prompts for the CQ command verb.

3.7.3 ON — Change Device State to ON

The ON command verb allows you to change the device state of any device from the diagnostic state to the online state. Change devices back to the online state after testing has completed. The prompts and default options of the ON verb are as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB? ON ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

3.7.4 DIAG — Change Device State to DIAG

The DIAG verb allows you to place any device in the diagnostic state before testing it. You can use the command verb SD or LDC to check the current device state; then use the DIAG or ON verb to change a state as required. The prompts and default options of the DIAG verb are as follows:

```
ENTER COMMAND VERB?
DIAG (or ON)
ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL
```

You can enter the four-character device name to change the state of an individual device, a twocharacter device class to change the state of all devices in that class, or the default option (ALL) to put all available devices into the diagnostic state or back into the online state. After you change the state of the devices, control is returned to the driver, and the following message appears:

ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE -- PRESS 'COMMAND' FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB

If the device is in use, the following message appears:

UNABLE TO PLACE XXXX IN DIAGNOSTIC STATE.

where:

xxxx is the device name of the target device.

3.7.5 LDC — List Device Configuration

The LDC command verb executes in the same way the List Device Configuration (LDC) SCI command executes. It displays a table of all devices configured on your system along with information about those devices. For an example of a device configuration table, see the DNOS System Generation Reference Manual.

3.7.6 HELP — Display Long Message for Current Prompt

The HELP command verb invokes the help feature that displays the long level message for the current prompt. You can enter HELP at any time during the diagnostic session. If you did not install the help feature at installation time, the same information can be found in Appendix I of this manual. For more information on the HELP feature, refer to Section 2.

3.7.7 REJECT — Return to Previous Prompt

The REJECT command verb causes the driver to reject a prompt and display the previous prompt in any series. It is valid at any time during the diagnostic session. To reject a series of prompts, use the REJECT (R) verb to reject each prompt individually until you arrive back at the prompt you want to retain.

Executing a Diagnostic Session

4.1 INTRODUCTION

This section provides an example of the execution of a diagnostic session on a disk drive. The example is designed specifically to:

- Serve as a prototype for any diagnostic session
- Show the order of prompts that the diagnostic driver displays when it initiates the disk diagnostic task

Here you find step-by-step instructions for initiating the diagnostic driver, selecting a diagnostic task, selecting all the options necessary to operate the disk diagnostic task, and interpreting the results when the diagnostic task terminates. If you are already familiar with Online Diagnostics, you may want to skip this section. However, it is the only place in the manual where all the prompts for both nonextended and extended disk tests are detailed.

If you have never executed a diagnostic session, the step-by-step instructions will assist you in the following ways:

- Using the manual
- Learning to select the options necessary to execute a diagnostic session
- Practicing the prompt responses for execution of disk tests
- Interpreting the results

4.2 PREPARING FOR THE SESSION

You have already installed the Online Diagnostics and Systems Log Analysis Task and verified the installation. To prepare for the diagnostic session, you need to establish some of its parameters before you initiate the diagnostics driver.

4.2.1 Selection of Target Device

You can execute Online Diagnostics and the System Log Analysis Task either as a routine maintenance operation or to investigate a problem in a particular device. For routine sessions, you may prefer to use a batch input file and background operation. For this example session, assume that a disk drive (DS02) or specific disk (volume name ORDERS) indicates a problem, and you want to execute Online Diagnostics for information. You prefer, if possible, not to interrupt daily operations.

4.2.2 Control Terminal

Select a control terminal. It must be one that is not needed for other purposes during the diagnostic session. Assume it is the terminal with device name ST01.

4.2.3 Device State

Since you want to run the tests without interrupting normal operations (both on the system as a whole, and on the target disk), you must test the disk while it is in the online state. You can run only the nonextended disk tests and the extended read only disk tests on a disk drive in the online state. If you decide the problem is the disk drive rather than the disk media, you can use a scratch disk to test the drive while it is in the diagnostic state with the extended write tests.

4.2.4 Tests to Run

Turn to Tables 11, 12, and 13 of Section 5 of this manual to find the list of tests that you can execute on disks. Following the table is more specific information on each of the three disk test categories and each individual disk test.

The driver does not allow you to execute all of the categories in the same session since the extended write disk tests destroy data on the disk they are testing. The prompts for the extended write disk tests appear only if the disk is in the diagnostic (DIAG) state. If you choose to execute these tests, no other options are offered to you. Execute the extended write disk tests only on a scratch disk, and do not attempt to install it with the Install Volume (IV) command.

Figure 4-1 shows the disk test decision map that you follow as you respond to the prompts displayed on the screen. The prompts for the extended write disk tests are not displayed if you execute your disk diagnostic task in the online (ON) state. In that case, you start selecting tests at the second decision box.

Section 4 explains how to execute each of the 3 disk test categories. All 3 categories execute on the premise that you want to perform all possible tests. You must execute each category of disk tests separately. To test the system disk or a disk drive with an installed volume in place, you execute one session with the nonextended disk tests and a second session with the extended read only disk tests. If you then want to test the drive further, you run a third diagnostic session using a scratch disk to execute the extended write disk tests.

Determine if the disk volume you want to test was initialized on one of these operating systems: DNOS Release 1.1.0 or later, or DX10 Release 3.3.0 or later. If it was, you can perform the nonextended disk tests and the extended read only disk tests. If it was not, you cannot test the disk with those tests. You can, however, test the disk drive with the extended write disk tests and a scratch disk.

4.2.5 Execution Mode

Since you are testing a disk, only the test execution mode is valid.

4.2.6 Default Options

You must accept the default options or select a priority level and a termination mode. (See paragraph 1.2.2.3.) The default priority level is 3, and the default termination mode is one pass through all tests.



2285077



4.2.7 Batch Mode

You can record the commands and prompt responses that you enter during the session by assigning a pathname to a file in order to retain the commands. This allows you to run the same diagnostic session again in batch mode and in background. Assign volumename.DSKBATCH to this file, which is the command log file (specified in the XODD command).

4.3 EXECUTING THE SESSION

You now know that you want to execute an interactive session that includes all three disk test categories and that has the following parameters:

- Target device DS02
- Device state ON for the nonextended disk tests and the extended read only disk tests, DIAG for the extended write disk tests
- Control terminal ST01
- Tests nonextended disk tests and extended read only disk tests when disk drive is in the ON state, extended write disk tests when disk drive is in the DIAG state

- Termination mode one pass through all tests (default)
- Priority level 3 (default)
- Command log file volumename.DSKBATCH (batch input file)

NOTE

For the first part of the session, you will execute the nonextended disk tests and the extended read only disk tests, since both groups of tests require the target disk to be installed (by the IV command) and in the online (ON) state.

In the second and final part of the session, you will execute the extended write disk tests. At that time you will perform an Unload Volume (UV) command and then change the target disk to the diagnostic (DIAG) state.

You are now ready to execute your diagnostic session by using the following instructions. All instructions are numbered and the terminal's responses are preceded by an arrow (\rightarrow). The word *enter* is used to indicate the action of typing in the response to a prompt and pressing the Return key.

4.3.1 Performing the Nonextended and the Extended Read Only Disk Tests

The following instructions describe how to execute the nonextended and the extended read only disk tests.

- 1. Turn on the terminal.
- 2. Log on.

 \rightarrow The DNOS System x.x.x menu screen appears. The cursor is in the lower left-hand corner of the screen following the SCI command prompt ([]), indicating that SCI is bid.

3. Enter the Execute the Online Diagnostics Driver (XODD) command.

→ The Online Diagnostics Driver displays the following:

DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS - VERSION x.x.x COMMAND INPUT: STxx MESSAGE OUTPUT: STxx COMMAND LOG FILE: volumename.S\$ODIAG.CMD HISTORY FILE: volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTORY MODE (F,B): FOREGROUND

2270532-9701

4. Enter the prompt responses as follows:

COMMAND INPUT: ST01 (or accept default) MESSAGE INPUT: ST01 (or accept default) COMMAND LOG FILE: volumename.DSKBATCH HISTORY FILE: (accept default) MODE (F,B): (accept default)

 \rightarrow The following message appears on the control terminal:

DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS VERSION X.X.X BEGINNING EXECUTION.

AT ANY TIME, ENTER THE WORD 'HELP' FOR MORE INFORMATION.

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

5. Since this is the first disk diagnostic session to be executed on your system, change the message level from short to long by entering the Change Message Level (CM) command verb. You can change the level only if you have installed the help feature.

ENTER COMMAND VERB? CM

 \rightarrow The following display appears on the screen:

ENTER MESSAGE LEVEL (SHORT, LONG)? LONG

6. Accept the default (the long message level).

 \rightarrow The following display appears on the screen:

ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE -- PRESS COMMAND FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB

- 7. The driver is checking the diagnostic message queue to see if it contains any messages to be processed. To call the driver back to the control terminal, press the Command key.
 - \rightarrow The following display appears on the screen:

THE ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS DRIVER IS WAITING FOR A COMMAND VERB. ENTER A COMMAND VERB FROM THE FOLLOWING LIST:

CE	-	CHANGE EXECUTION MODE	SD	-	SHOW SYSTEM DEVICE LIST
СН	-	CLEAN HEADS ON FD1000 DSDD	SF	-	SHOW DIAGNOSTIC FILES
CM	-	CHANGE MESSAGE LEVEL	SMM	-	SHOW MEMORY MAP
CP	-	CHANGE TASK PRIORITY	S0	-	SHOW SVC OPERATION CODES
CQ	-	CHECK MESSAGE QUEUE	SP		SHOW PROGRESS OF DIAGNOSTICS
СТ	-	CHANGE TERMINATION MODE	SSD	-	SHOW SUPPORTED DEVICES
DIAG	-	CHANGE DEVICE STATE TO DIAG	WD	-	WAIT ON DIAGNOSTICS
KD	-	KILL DIAGNOSTIC TASK	XA	-	EXECUTE ALL DIAGNOSTICS
LDC	-	LIST DEVICE CONFIGURATION	XD	-	EXECUTE DIAGNOSTIC TASK
ON	-	CHANGE DEVICE STATE TO ON	XMEM	-	EXECUTE MEMORY TASK
QD	-	QUIT ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS	XSLA	-	EXECUTION SYSTEM LOG ANALYZER

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

8. Since you want the driver to initiate only the diagnostic task for a disk drive, not all of the tasks, enter XD, the Execute Diagnostic Task command verb.

 \rightarrow The following message and prompt appear on the screen:

YOU HAVE CHOSEN TO EXECUTE A DIAGNOSTIC TASK. YOU CAN SELECT ALL AVAILABLE DEVICES, ALL DEVICES OF ONE CLASS (SUCH AS ALL DISKS), OR ANY ONE SPECIFIC DEVICE. ENTER YOUR SELECTION AS FOLLOWS:

ALL - SELECTS ALL DEVICES AVAILABLE

DS - SELECTS ALL TILINE DISK DEVICES AVAILABLE MT - SELECTS ALL MAG TAPE DEVICES AVAILABLE LP - SELECTS ALL PRINTER DEVICES AVAILABLE RP - SELECTS ALL REMOTE LP810 DEVICES AVAILABLE ST - SELECTS ALL TERMINAL DEVICES AVAILABLE

REJECT -- RETURN TO COMMAND PROMPT COMPLETE DEVICE NAME (ST02, DS01) - SELECTS THAT DEVICE

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

9. Enter the device name DS02.

 \rightarrow A message appears stating that device DS02 has been selected. Device DS02 is being readied for testing.

 \rightarrow The following message is displayed, asking if you want the nonextended or extended disk tests.

DO YOU WANT TO EXECUTE THE EXTENDED DISK TESTS (YES, NO)? YES

 \rightarrow Since you earlier left the target disk in the ON state, you can only execute either the nonextended disk tests or the extended read only disk tests. For this first part of the session, you want to execute the nonextended disk tests. Enter NO.

 \rightarrow The following screen is displayed, asking if you want to operate your session with all of the default options.

THE DEFAULT OPTIONS ARE: PRIORITY LEVEL = 3 TESTS SELECTED (1-4) = ALL TERMINATION MODE = 1 PASS TO SELECT THESE DEFAULT OPTIONS, ENTER YES... TO SELECT OTHER OPTIONS, ENTER NO. TO RETURN TO THE COMMAND PROMPT, ENTER 'R' FOR REJECT.

USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

10. Even though you want to use the default options, enter NO in order to see the options available when executing the nonextended disk tests.

 \rightarrow The following screen display appears:

CHOOSE A NEW PRIORITY FOR THIS TASK. THE DIAGNOSTIC WILL MAKE THIS PRIORITY CHANGE WHEN THE TASK IS GIVEN CPU TIME SLICES.

ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1, 2, 3)? 3

11. Accept the default unless you want to assign a priority level higher than 3.

 \rightarrow The next display appears as follows:

THE FOLLOWING TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE DISK DIAGNOSTIC TASK:

NOTE: AN INITIALIZED AND INSTALLED DISK VOLUME MUST BE USED TO EXECUTE THE FOLLOWING TESTS.

TEST 1 - READ DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER TEST: READ/COMPARE OF S\$DIAG FILE.
 TEST 2 - READ DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER WITH HEAD MOTION: S\$DIAG AND VCATALOG.
 TEST 3 - READ/WRITE RANDOM PATTERN TEST: WRITE/READ OF FILE S\$ODDWRT.
 TEST 4 - READ/WRITE PATTERNS TEST: WRITE/READ SET PATTERNS OF S\$ODDWRT.

ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

12. Again, accept the default.

 \rightarrow The termination mode message and prompt appear as follows:

- THE TERMINATION MODES ARE:
- 1. EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (TASK DOES NOT TERMINATE UNTIL YOU ENTER A 'KD' COMMAND VERB)
- 2. TERMINATE AFTER A SPECIFIED NUMBER OF MINUTES
- **3. TERMINATE AFTER A SPECIFIED NUMBER OF ERRORS**
- 4. TERMINATE AFTER A MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PASSES THROUGH THE TESTS OR MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SPECIFIC OPERATION CODES (SVC).
- TO ALTER THE TERMINATION MODE, ENTER YES. TO CONTINUE, ENTER NO.

CHANGE TERMINATION MODE (YES, NO)? NO

13. Since some of the disk tests take a long time to complete, you may want to change the termination mode when executing a disk diagnostic session. Enter YES.

 \rightarrow The following screen displays appear successively:

THE 'EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY' TERMINATION MODE CAUSES THE TASK TO EXECUTE UNTIL YOU ENTER A KD COMMAND VERB.

ENTER 'YES' TO SELECT THIS TERMINATION MODE. ENTER 'NO' TO CONTINUE.

EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (YES, NO)? NO

NOTE

If you select continuous execution, be sure to terminate the task with a Kill Diagnostic Task (KD) command verb and the driver with a Quit Online Diagnostics (QD) command verb when the session has run as long as you want.

IF YOU WANT THE DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC TASK TO EXECUTE FOR A NUMBER OF MINUTES LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 32767, ENTER THE NUMBER. IF NOT, ENTER THE WORD 'IGNORE'. THE TASK TERMINATES WHEN THE TIME IS UP. IF THE NUMBER OF MINUTES IS MORE THAN 32767, ENTER 'R' FOR REJECT AND SELECT THE 'EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY' TERMINATION MODE.

ENTER NUMBER OF MINUTES FOR TASK EXECUTION (1..32767)? IGNORE

IF YOU WANT THE TASK TO STOP WHEN A MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS HAVE OCCURRED, ENTER THE NUMBER. IF NOT, ENTER 'IGNORE'.

ENTER MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS FOR TERMINATION (1..32767)? IGNORE

2270532-9701

IF YOU SELECTED THE TEST EXECUTION MODE, ENTER THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PASSES THROUGH THE TESTS. IF YOU SELECTED THE SPECIFIC SVC OPERATION EXECUTION MODE, ENTER THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF TIMES TO REPEAT THAT SVC SUBOPCODE. THE DIAGNOSTIC TASK ENDS WHEN THE NUMBER YOU ENTER IS REACHED.

ENTER NUMBER OF PASSES OR SPECIFIC OPERATIONS (1..32767)? 1

14. Accept the default in each case. The default termination is one pass through all the tests. For many sessions, however, you may want to respond YES to the prompt for continuous operation and stop the test at your discretion with a KD command verb.

 \rightarrow The diagnostics driver now has all the information it needs to start the disk diagnostic task. When the task starts, the driver returns the command prompt (step 6) to the screen.

The driver is monitoring the diagnostic message queue and can be called back to the terminal with the Command key. If you want to leave the terminal while the tests are executing, be sure that the command prompt is on the screen. It is displayed after execution of either the CQ or SP command verbs. When the task terminates, the following prompt appears:

DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC XXXX TERMINATED WITH X ERRORS, X PASSES

15. If you want to ensure the task is operating as desired, execute the Show Progress (SP) command verb.

 \rightarrow A chart appears, showing which tests are operating and the number of errors found. The chart is a dynamic picture that changes as the tests are executed. Paragraph 3.5.5 shows an example of a typical progress chart.

For the nonextended tests, the SP chart displays a total of four tests as they begin operation. After that, the chart goes blank, indicating that the nonextended tests have completed executing. When that happens, press the Command key. The command verb menu appears with the prompt:

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

- 16. During the execution of the disk tests, all diagnostic error and progress messages from the diagnostic task are stored by the driver in the diagnostic history file. To view the history file, enter the Show Diagnostic File (SF) verb.
 - → The SF command verb message and prompt appear:

```
YOU HAVE CHOSEN TO DISPLAY A DIAGNOSTIC FILE. ENTER THE NAME OF
THE FILE YOU WISH TO SHOW.
VALID FILES ARE:
ERRORS - ONLINE DIAGNOSTIC ERROR FILE
HISTORY - ONLINE DIAGNOSTIC HISTORY FILE
LOG1 - SYSTEM LOG FILE 1
LOG2 - SYSTEM LOG FILE 2
SLARPT - SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT FILE
WHILE IN SF MODE, ALL KEYS RESPOND THE SAME AS A SCI SHOW FILE.
ENTER FILE NAME? HISTORY
```

17. Accept the default for the SF command verb prompt. The diagnostic history file is displayed. You can find an example of a history file from a disk diagnostic session in paragraph 3.5.2.1.

The error messages are extracted from the history file and stored in the diagnostic error file. If you want to see only errors, you can view the error file as indicated in paragraph 3.5.2.2. When you have finished looking at the files, press the Command key to return to the command verb menu.

18. You are now ready to perform the extended read only disk tests. To do so, enter XD, the Execute Diagnostic Task command verb.

 \rightarrow The following message and prompt appear on the screen:

YOU HAVE CHOSEN TO EXECUTE A DIAGNOSTIC TASK. YOU CAN SELECT ALL AVAILABLE DEVICES, ALL DEVICES OF ONE CLASS (SUCH AS ALL DISKS), OR ANY ONE SPECIFIC DEVICE. ENTER YOUR SELECTION AS FOLLOWS:

ALL - SELECTS ALL DEVICES AVAILABLE DS - SELECTS ALL TILINE DISK DEVICES AVAILABLE MT - SELECTS ALL MAG TAPE DEVICES AVAILABLE LP - SELECTS ALL PRINTER DEVICES AVAILABLE RP - SELECTS ALL REMOTE LP810 DEVICES AVAILABLE ST - SELECTS ALL TERMINAL DEVICES AVAILABLE REJECT -- RETURN TO COMMAND PROMPT COMPLETE DEVICE NAME (ST02, DS01) - SELECTS THAT DEVICE

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

2270532-9701
19. Enter the device name DS02.

 \rightarrow A message appears stating that device DS02 has been selected. Device DS02 is being readied for testing.

 \rightarrow The following message is displayed asking you if you want the nonextended or extended disk tests.

DO YOU WANT TO EXECUTE THE EXTENDED DISK TESTS (YES, NO)? YES

20. The target disk is still in the ON state, so you can execute either the nonextended disk tests or the extended read only disk tests. You now want to execute the extended read only disk tests, so accept the default value YES.

 \rightarrow The following screen is displayed asking you if you want to operate your session with all of the default options.

THE DEFAULT OPTIONS ARE: PRIORITY LEVEL = 3 TESTS SELECTED (1-5) = ALL TERMINATION MODE = 1 PASS TO SELECT THESE DEFAULT OPTIONS, ENTER YES. TO SELECT OTHER OPTIONS, ENTER NO. TO RETURN TO THE COMMAND PROMPT, ENTER 'R' FOR REJECT. USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

21. Again, you will use the same values listed as the default options. However, to view the available options for the extended read only disk tests, enter NO.

 \rightarrow The following screen display appears:

CHOOSE A NEW PRIORITY FOR THIS TASK. THE DIAGNOSTIC WILL MAKE THIS PRIORITY CHANGE WHEN THE TASK IS GIVEN CPU TIME SLICES.

ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1, 2, 3)? 3

22. Accept the default unless you want to assign a priority level higher than 3.

→ The next display appears as follows:

THE FOLLOWING READ TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE EXTENDED DISK TASK.

TEST 1 - READ SPECIFIED TRACKS TESTS: FULL TRACK READ WITH CRC CHECK.

```
TEST 2 - CONSECUTIVE SECTOR SEEKS TEST.
```

- TEST 3 JITTER SEEK/READ TEST.
- TEST 4 RANDOM SEEK SEEKS TO RANDOM GENERATED TRACK ADDRESSES. TEST 5 - CRESCENDO SEEK - COMPREHENSIVE TRACK TO
- TRACK SEEK.

ENTER DISK DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

23. Again, accept the default.

 \rightarrow The next prompt to appear is:

```
DEFAULT VALUES FOR THE EXTENDED ''READ ONLY'' TESTS:
STROBE OFFSETS = NONE
HEAD OFFSETS = NONE
DEFAULT TRACKS = ALL
```

USE EXTENDED DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

To see the explanation of the default values, enter NO. The following messages then appear:

TRIDENT AND CD1400 DISKS HAVE ADDITIONAL HARDWARE FEATURES THAT ALLOW THE DATA STROBE TO BE ADVANCED (EARLY) OR RETARDED (LATE). THIS IS USED WITH THE READ DATA AND UNFORMATTED READ COMMANDS TO ATTEMPT TO RECOVER DATA THAT YIELDS ERRORS WHEN READ WITH A NOMINAL STROBE SETTING.

ENTER STROBES (EARLY, LATE, NORMAL)? NORMAL

TRIDENT AND CD1400 DISKS HAVE ADDITIONAL HARDWARE FEATURES THAT ALLOW OFFSETS IN THE DISK DRIVE HEADS. OFFSET FORWARD MEANS THE DISK DRIVE HEAD IS OFFSET TOWARD THE SPINDLE. THE PURPOSE OF THIS IS TO FACILITATE THE RECOVERY OF MARGINAL DATA.

ENTER HEAD OFFSET (FORWARD, REVERSE, NONE)? NONE

DISK TYPE	HEAD RANGE	DISK TYPE	HEAD RANGE
FD1000 DS31 DS10 DS25 DS50 DS80 DS200 DS300 CD1400 (32mb REMOVABLE)	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	CD1400 (32mb FIXED) CD1400 (64mb FIXED) CD1400 (96mb FIXED) WD500 (FLOPPY) WD500 (FIXED) WD800 (2 PLATTERS) WD800 (4 PLATTERS)	$ \begin{array}{r} 0 \\ 0 - 2 \\ 0 - 4 \\ 0 - 1 \\ 0 - 3 \\ 0 - 2 \\ 0 - 6 \end{array} $

THE FOLLOWING TABLE CONTAINS INFORMATION ABOUT DISK HEADS:

ENTER STARTING HEAD (0..MAX)? 0

THE FOLLOWING TABLE CONTAINS INFORMATION ABOUT DISK HEADS:

DISK TYPE	HEAD RANGE	DISK TYPE	HEAD RANGE
FD1000	0 - 1	CD1400 (32mb FIXED)	0 - 2
DS10	0 - 1	CD1400 (96mb FIXED)	0 - 4
D\$25 D\$50	0 - 4 0 - 4	WD500 (FLOPPY) WD500 (FIXED)	0 - 1 0 - 3
DS80 DS200	0 - 4 0 - 18	WD800 (2 PLATTERS) WD800 (4 PLATTERS)	0 - 2 0 - 6
DS300 CD1400 (32mb REMOVABLI	0 - 18 E) 0		

ENTER ENDING HEAD (0..MAX)? 0

THE FOLLOWING TABLE CONTAINS INFORMATION ABOUT DISK CYLINDERS:

DISK TYPE	CYLINDER RANGE	DISK TYPE	CYLINDER RANGE
FD1000 DS31 DS10 DS25 DS50 DS80 DS200 DS300 CD1400 (32mb RE	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$	CD1400 (32mb FIXED) CD1400 (64mb FIXED) CD1400 (96mb FIXED) WD500 (FLOPPY) WD500 (FIXED)) WD800 (2 PLATTERS) WD800 (4 PLATTERS)	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$

ENTER STARTING CYLINDER (0..MAX)? 0

DISK TYPE CY	LINDER RANGE	DISK TYPE	CYLINDER RANGE
FD1000 DS31 DS10 DS25 DS50 DS80 DS200 DS300	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$	 CD1400 (32mb FIXED) CD1400 (64mb FIXED) CD1400 (96mb FIXED) WD500 (FLOPPY) WD500 (FIXED)) WD500 (2 PLATTERS) WD800 (4 PLATTERS)	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$

THE FOLLOWING TABLE CONTAINS INFORMATION ABOUT DISK CYLINDERS:

ENTER ENDING CYLINDER (0..MAX)? 0

24. After you specify the ending cylinder, a prompt display appears on the screen, asking if you want to change the termination mode.

 \rightarrow The termination mode message and prompt appear as follows:

THE TERMINATION MODES ARE:

- 1. EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (TASK DOES NOT TERMINATE UNTIL YOU ENTER A 'KD' COMMAND VERB)
- 2. TERMINATE AFTER A SPECIFIED NUMBER OF MINUTES
- **3. TERMINATE AFTER A SPECIFIED NUMBER OF ERRORS**
- 4. TERMINATE AFTER A MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PASSES THROUGH THE TESTS OR MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SPECIFIC OPERATION CODES (SVC).
- TO ALTER THE TERMINATION MODE, ENTER YES. TO CONTINUE, ENTER NO.

CHANGE TERMINATION MODE (YES, NO)? NO

25. Since some of the disk tests take a long time to complete, you may want to change the termination mode when executing a disk diagnostic session. Enter YES.

 \rightarrow The following screen displays appear successively:

THE 'EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY' TERMINATION MODE CAUSES THE TASK TO EXECUTE UNTIL YOU ENTER A KD COMMAND VERB.

ENTER 'YES' TO SELECT THIS TERMINATION MODE. ENTER 'NO' TO CONTINUE.

EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY (YES, NO)? NO

NOTE

If you select continuous execution, be sure to terminate the task with a Terminate Diagnostic Task (KD) command verb and the driver with a Quit Online Diagnostics (QD) command verb when the session has run as long as you want. IF YOU WANT THE DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC TASK TO EXECUTE FOR A NUMBER OF MINUTES LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 32767, ENTER THE NUMBER. IF NOT, ENTER THE WORD 'IGNORE'. THE TASK TERMINATES WHEN THE TIME IS UP. IF THE NUMBER OF MINUTES IS MORE THAN 32767, ENTER 'R' FOR REJECT AND SELECT THE 'EXECUTE CONTINUOUSLY' TERMINATION MODE.

ENTER NUMBER OF MINUTES FOR TASK EXECUTION (1..32767)? IGNORE

IF YOU WANT THE TASK TO STOP WHEN A MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS HAVE OCCURRED, ENTER THE NUMBER. IF NOT, ENTER 'IGNORE'.

ENTER MINIMUM NUMBER OF ERRORS FOR TERMINATION (1..32767)? IGNORE

IF YOU SELECTED THE TEST EXECUTION MODE, ENTER THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PASSES THROUGH THE TESTS. IF YOU SELECTED THE SPECIFIC SVC OPERATION EXECUTION MODE, ENTER THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF TIMES TO REPEAT THAT SVC SUBOPCODE. THE DIAGNOSTIC TASK ENDS WHEN THE NUMBER YOU ENTER IS REACHED.

ENTER NUMBER OF PASSES OR SPECIFIC OPERATIONS (1..32767)? 1

26. Accept the default in each case. The default termination is one pass through all the tests. For many sessions, however, you may want to respond YES to the prompt for continuous operation and stop the test at your discretion with a KD command verb.

 \rightarrow The diagnostics driver now has all the information it needs to start the disk diagnostic task. When the task starts, the driver returns the command prompt (step 6) to the screen.

The driver is monitoring the diagnostic message queue and can be called back to the terminal with the Command key. If you want to leave the terminal while the tests are executing, be sure that this message is on the screen. It is displayed after execution of the CQ, SP or WD command verbs.

27. If you want to be sure the task is operating as desired, execute the Show Progress of Diagnostic (SP) command verb.

 \rightarrow A chart appears, showing which tests are operating and the the number of errors found. The chart is a dynamic picture that changes as the tests are executed. Paragraph 3.5.5 shows an example of a typical chart.

For the extended read only disk tests, the SP chart displays a total of five tests as they begin operation. After that, the chart goes blank, indicating that the nonextended tests have completed executing. When that happens, press the Command key. The command verb menu appears with the prompt:

ENTER COMMAND VERB?

28. During the execution of the disk tests, all diagnostic error and progress messages from the diagnostic task are stored by the driver in the diagnostic history file. To view the history file, enter the Show File (SF) verb.

→ The SF command verb message and prompt appear:

```
YOU HAVE CHOSEN TO DISPLAY A DIAGNOSTIC FILE. ENTER THE NAME OF
THE FILE YOU WISH TO SHOW.
VALID FILES ARE:
ERRORS - ONLINE DIAGNOSTIC ERROR FILE
HISTORY - ONLINE DIAGNOSTIC HISTORY FILE
LOG1 - SYSTEM LOG FILE 1
LOG2 - SYSTEM LOG FILE 2
SLARPT - SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT FILE
WHILE IN SF MODE, ALL KEYS RESPOND THE SAME AS A SCI SHOW FILE.
```

ENTER FILE NAME? HISTORY

29. Accept the default for the SF command verb prompt. The diagnostic history file is displayed. You can find an example of a history file from a disk diagnostic session in paragraph 3.5.2.1.

The error messages are extracted from the history file and stored in the diagnostic error file. If you want to see only errors, you can view the error file as indicated in paragraph 3.5.2.2.

Since both the diagnostic history and error files are erased the next time you initiate the driver, you may want to make a permanent copy of the history file.

You can copy the diagnostic history or error file in either one of two ways:

- Use the Copy Concatenate (CC) command to copy the file to a permanent file.
- Use the Print File (PF) command to print a copy of the file contents.

You cannot do either of these procedures while the diagnostic session is in operation. You must first end it with a QD command verb.

- 30. If you are sure the tests have completed execution, terminate the driver with the QD verb.
 - → The following screen display appears:

DEVICE XXXX TERMINATION STARTED.

DEVICE xxxx TERMINATED WITH nnnnn ERRORS, nnnnn PASSES.

DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS COMPLETED EXECUTION.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ERRORS REPORTED = nn:

where:

xxxx is the device name of each target device.

nnnnn represent the appropriate decimal numbers.

31. When the last message and the cursor appear on the screen, the driver has terminated. Press the Return key.

 \rightarrow The SCI menu and cursor position will be displayed.

- 32. Copy the diagnostic history file and/or error file if desired. Use the following pathnames:
 volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTORY
 - volumename.S\$ODIAG.ERRORS

4.3.2 Performing the Extended Write Disk Tests

If you suspect that the trouble is in the disk drive itself, execute the extended write disk tests on the same disk drive with a scratch disk in it. For this demonstration session, enter a UV command and remove the disk that you have just tested. Place a scratch disk in disk drive DS02. Do not perform an IV command. Tests 10 through 13 are designed to run on a volume that is not installed.

Follow steps 1 through 4 in the previous example (paragraph 4.3) to log on and to activate the Online Diagnostics Driver. For the following example, all prompts are displayed as they would be without the long message format. Remember that if you have a question at any point during the diagnostic session, you can enter H, ?, or HELP and press the Return key to obtain the same information for the currently displayed prompt as you can see with the long message format.

Once the command verb prompt is displayed, verify that the disk drive is in the DIAG state. Proceed to step 1 to check the device state as follows:

1. The command prompt is on the screen display. Execute the Show System Device List (SD) command verb.

 \rightarrow The following is an example of the device state information that appears:

AVAILABLE FOR TEST DEVICE STATE _____ DS01 ONLINE YES DS02 ONLINE YES DS03 OFFLINE NO LP01 OFFLINE NO **ST01** ONLINE NO (etc.)

2. In this example, disk drive DS02 is available for testing because it is in the online state. To execute the extended write tests, however, it must be in the diagnostic state. To change the device state, first return to the command prompt by pressing the Command key. Then execute the Change Device State to DIAG (DIAG) command verb. Remember that you cannot change a device from the offline state to the diagnostic state while the driver is activated. If the device is offline, you must place it in the online (ON) or diagnostic (DIAG) state before the diagnostic session starts.

 \rightarrow The following prompt is displayed:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

3. Enter DS02.

 \rightarrow The following display appears on the screen:

DEVICE DS02 IS SELECTED. ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE -- PRESS 'COMMAND' FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB

4. Press the Command key. The ENTER COMMAND VERB? prompt appears. Since you want the driver to initiate only the diagnostic task for a disk drive, not all of the tasks, enter XD, the Execute Diagnostic Task command verb.

 \rightarrow The following prompt appears on the screen:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

5. Enter the device name DS02.

 \rightarrow A message stating that device DS02 has been selected appears. Device DS02 is being readied for testing.

 \rightarrow The following message is displayed asking you if you want the nonextended or extended disk tests.

DO YOU WANT TO EXECUTE THE EXTENDED DISK TESTS (YES, NO)? YES

 \rightarrow Since the target disk is now in the DIAG state, you can only execute the extended write disk tests. Accept the default value. Since DS02 is now in the DIAG state, the following prompts appear:

** THE DISK WRITE TESTS HAVE BEEN SELECTED!!! ** ALL DISK DATA MAY BE DESTROYED!! DO YOU WISH TO CONTINUE (YES, NO)? NO

6. Enter YES.

 \rightarrow The next extended write disk test prompt appears:

**** WARNING *** WARNING *** WARNING *** WARNING *** WARNING **** THE EXTENDED WRITE TESTS WILL DESTROY ALL DATA AREAS ON THE DISK! ARE YOU SURE YOU WANT TO EXECUTE THESE TESTS (YES, NO)? NO

7. Enter YES.

 \rightarrow The following screen is displayed asking if you want to operate your session with all of the default options.

USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

8. Even though you want to use the default options, enter NO in order to see the options available when executing the extended write disk tests.

 \rightarrow The following screen display appears:

ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1, 2, 3)? 3

9. Accept the default unless you want to assign a priority level higher than 3.

→ The next display appears as follows:

ENTER DISK DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

- 10. To see what tests are available as extended write tests, enter H or HELP.
 - \rightarrow The next display appears as follows:

THE FOLLOWING WRITE TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE EXTENDED DISK TASK.

. . .

. 1

NOTE: USE SCRATCH MEDIA AND THE DISK IN DIAGNOSTIC STATE TO EXECUTE THE FOLLOWING TESTS.

TEST 10 - COMMAND VERIFICATION/ID ERROR CHECK TEST 11 - FORMAT DISK/TRACKS TEST 12 - WRITE/READ/COMPARE TRACKS TEST 13 - COMPREHENSIVE WRITE/SEEK/READ

ENTER DISK DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

11. Enter either 10, 11, 12, or 13, or press the Return key to accept the default.

→ The next prompt appears as follows:

DO YOU WISH TO DESTROY THE SYSTEM BAD TRACK MAP (YES, NO)? NO

Accept the default value of NO.

→ The next display appears as follows:

USE EXTENDED DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES

Enter NO to see the default values.

 \rightarrow The following prompts for the individual tests are displayed successively if you enter NO:

ENTER WRITE DATA PATTERN (0.. OFF HEX)? 0DB67

ENTER STARTING HEAD (0..MAX)? 0

ENTER ENDING HEAD (0..MAX)? 0

ENTER STARTING CYLINDER (0..MAX)? 0

ENTER ENDING CYLINDER (0..MAX)? 0

12. Accept the defaults for format verification, and the data pattern. Enter strobes, offset, and beginning and ending heads and cylinders. You can enter values for heads and cylinders, or accept the default values of zero.

 \rightarrow The screen display appears asking if you wish to change the termination mode.

۰.

13. Accept defaults for termination mode as in steps 24 to 26 in the preceding diagnostic session.

 \rightarrow The diagnostic driver now has all the information it needs to start the extended write disk diagnostic task. When the task has been started, the driver returns the command prompt to the terminal.

- 14. Monitor the files to observe messages, enter the QD command verb, and copy the diagnostic history and/or error files if you want, as explained in steps 30 to 32 in the previous example.
- 15. Return disk drive DS02 to the online state using the SCI ON command.

-

•

Diagnostic Test Descriptions

5.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Each diagnostic task executes a series of tests for a device class. When devices within a class vary in operating characteristics, the tests performed on those devices must also vary. Since some device models require custom designed tests, the diagnostic task for that device class must be able to distinguish each model and select the program module to execute the appropriate tests. For disks, tapes, and memory, when you specify device class at the beginning of the diagnostic session, the diagnostic task will execute the same tests on every model that is configured on the system. For line printers and terminals, however, when you specify class alone, the diagnostic task will execute different tests on different models, or more than one diagnostic task will be executed.

This section contains information on every test executed by every diagnostic task. The device classes are treated in the order listed in Table 5-1. Within each class, individual models are listed when the tests that exercise them are custom designed. The tests are listed in the order in which they run when all tests are executed.

/	Paragraph	Device Class	Class Mnemonic	
	5.2	Line printers Keyboard devices:	LP or RP	
	5.3	820 KSR terminal	ST	
	5.4	Video terminals	ST	
	5.5	Disks	DS	
	5.6	Magnetic tapes	MT	
	5.7	Memory	MM	

Table 5	·1.	Device	Class	Order
---------	-----	--------	-------	-------

The paragraphs dealing with each device class include the following information:

- A table for each device or device class showing the test name, the test number, and other necessary information
- A description of each test that runs on that device or device class
- Information on interpreting the results of each test

5.2 LINE PRINTERS

The diagnostic task for all line printers provides hard-copy results that you must evaluate. Monitoring the control terminal during the execution of line printer tests can only tell you whether the tests are running. Errors show up on the paper output produced by the printer during the task execution. Different tests are performed on different line printer models. Appendixes B, C, D, F, and G show examples of hard-copy output for each test exercised by the diagnostic task for each line printer model.

The following models of line printers are supported by Online Diagnostics and the System Log Analysis Task:

- LP810
- LP840
- LP850 (CPTESTS)
- LP2230/LP2260
- LP300/LP600

If you enter the device class mnemonic (LP) when you start the diagnostic session, all of the line printer models in the diagnostic state on your system are selected for testing. You must be sure that all of the printers you want tested, and only those, are in the diagnostic state. If other printers are also in the diagnostic state, you must specify each printer you want tested separately.

NOTE

Be sure that the spooler is off before putting any printers into the diagnostic state.

5.2.1 LP810 - 810 Line Printer

The LP810 diagnostic task executes 11 noninteractive tests for a Model 810 printer classified as either an LP (Line Printer) or RP (Remote Printer) device. Table 5-2 lists the tests of the LP810 diagnostic.

 Test Number	Test Name	
1	Form Length and Feed	
2	- Character Set	
3	Ripple Pattern	
4	Buffer Length	
5	Carriage Return	
6	Tab to Line	
7	Set and Test Vertical Tabs	
8	Tab to Address	
9	Set and Test Horizontal Tabs	
10	Lines and Characters per Inch	
11	Bell	

Table 5-2. LP810 Tests

×...

To begin the LP810 diagnostic, enter the name of the target printer in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the Execute Diagnostic Task (XD) command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL LPxx or ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL

RPxx

..

where:

LP, RP identify the line printer diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 810 to be tested.

B.

 $| {\bf h}_{i} | = {\bf h}_{i} = {\bf h}_{i}$

5.2.1.1 Test 1 — Form Length and Feed. Test 1 checks for accuracy in form length and feed. The forms in the printer must be properly aligned to the top of the form before Test 1 begins. Test 1 performs the following:

- 1. The form length is set to 33 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 2. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM is printed.
- 3. The form length is set to 99 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 4. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM is printed.
- 5. The form length is set to 64 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 6. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FORM is printed.
- 7. The form length is set to 66 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 8. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM is printed.

Check the positions of the printed messages to ensure they are correct.

5.2.1.2 Test 2 — Character Set. Test 2 prints all of the characters in the LP810 character set in a block format as shown in Figure 5-1.

These block letters represent the dot-matrix structure of the LP810 output. The dot-matrix struc-, ture is shown in the *Model 990 Computer Model 810 Line Printer Installation and Operation* manual.

In Figure 5-1, each letter that makes up a block letter represents one dot. Compare the structure of the block letters to the structure of the individual letters making up the block letter. The dotmatrix structure of the individual letter A also has two dots across the top and three dots across the center. The large block letter A has two characters across the top and three characters across the center. Since the comparison is correct, the character A is printing correctly.

A A		BBE	3 B		ССС		DDDD	1
A A	ŕ	в		в	С	С	D	D
A	A	в		в	С		D	D
A	A	BE	3 B		С		D	D
AAAA	A A	В		в	С		D	D
A	A	в		в	С	С	D	D
A	A	BBB	3 B		ССС		DDDD	ł

Figure 5-1. LP810 Character Set Test Example

5.2.1.3 Test 3 — Ripple Pattern. Test 3 prints 94 lines of a ripple pattern of all available nongraphic characters, as shown in Figure 5-2. Since each character appears in each print position at least once, you can examine the output for problems such as characters not printing in certain positions. The width of the ripple pattern is determined by the response to the ENTER PAPER WIDTH prompt of the XD command verb.

5.2.1.4 Test 4 — Buffer Length. To determine the maximum buffer length, Test 4 uses the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. The buffer length test prints the character string PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST, beginning with only the first two characters. Each successive line increases by two characters until the maximum buffer length is reached. Then the test reverses and prints from the maximum buffer length back to the first two characters.

5.2.1.5 Test 5 — Carriage Return. Test 5 prints a sentence with every other character missing, followed by a carriage return to the same line. Then, the same sentence is printed again with the opposite characters missing, followed by another carriage return. The full sentence THIS LINE IS PRINTED IN TWO PASSES is the result.

!"#\$%&^()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop "#\$%&<()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnops #\$%&^()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnop9r \$%%*()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rs %&<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
%<//>
% &^()*+,-./0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopqrstu ()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuv ()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvw)*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwx *+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxy +,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz ,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz() ./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(\) /0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKĹMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnoP9rstuvwxyz())~ 0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZE\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopsrstuvwxyz(()~! 123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnop9rstuvw×yz(;)~!" 23456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"# 3456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$ 456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopsrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$% 56789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopsrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$% 6789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopsrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$% 789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnop9rstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&^(89:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^() 9:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()* :;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(\)~!"#\$%&^()*+ ;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz({)~!"#\$%&^()*+, <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz({)~!"#\$%&^()*+,-

Figure 5-2. Ripple Pattern Test Output

5.2.1.6 Test 6 — Tab to Line. Test 6 prints the following message:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE x

This message prints on the following lines:

2, 3, 5, 9, 17, 33, 49, 57, 61, 63, 64

The variable x is the line number where the message is printed. For example, the first line printed by the test is as follows:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2

When the forms are properly aligned in the LP810, the line numbers should be correct.

5.2.1.7 Test 7 — Set and Test Vertical Tabs. Test 7 sets the vertical tab stops as follows:

2, 3, 5, 9, 17, 33, 49, 57, 61, 63, 64

The test causes the printer to tab to each of these stops. After each tab stop, the following message is printed:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE x

The variable x is the tab stop number where the message is printed. For example, the test tabs to vertical tab stop 2, and prints the following message:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2

5.2.1.8 Test 8 — Tab to Address. Test 8 prints lines of reference numbers that identify the horizontal columns of the paper. The test sets addresses and prints an up arrow (†) at each address.

The test prints the following message:

ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:

The test prints a list of the addresses below this message. You must verify that the arrows are in the correct columns.

5.2.1.9 Test 9 — **Set and Test Horizontal Tabs.** Test 9 prints lines of reference numbers that identify the columns of the paper. The test sets horizontal tab stops and prints an up arrow at each tab stop.

The test prints the following message:

ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:

The test prints a list of the tab stops below this message. You must verify that the arrows are in the correct columns.

5.2.1.10 Test 10 — Lines and Characters per Inch. Test 10 prints the following:

- 1. 8 lines of 10 characters at 8 lines per inch (lpi) and 10 characters per inch (cpi)
- 2. 6 lines of 10 characters at 6 lpi and 10 cpi
- 3. 8 lines of 17 characters at 8 lpi and 16.5 cpi
- 4. 6 lines of 17 characters at 6 lpi and 16.5 cpi

The message BLOCK IS x CHRS/INCH AND n LINES/INCH is printed before each output group. For example, 8 lines of 10 characters printed at 8 lpi and 10 cpi appear as a square after the following message:

BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH

You must verify that the output is approximately one inch square to determine that it is correct.

5.2.1.11 Test 11 — Bell. Test 11 sounds the printer alarm for three seconds and prints the following message:

PRINTER BELL SHOULD SOUND FOR 3 SECONDS

5.2.2 LP840 — 840 Receive-Only Printer

The diagnostic task that tests the Model 840 Receive-Only (RO) Printer executes 4 tests on the basic 840 with no options and 14 tests on the 840 with the device forms control (DFC) option.

Table 5-3 lists the 14 tests that execute on the LP840 with the DFC option. The first four of the tests can execute on the LP840 without the DFC option. Test 14 is interactive and requires input at the target terminal.

 Test Number	Test Name	
1	Character Set	
2	Ripple Pattern	
3	Buffer Length	
4	Carriage Return	
5	Form Length and Feed	
6	Tab to Line	
7	Set and Test Vertical Tabs	
8	Remote On/Off	
9	Set and Test Horizontal Tabs	
10	Lines and Characters per Inch	
11	Bell	
12	Left and Right Margins	
13	Top and Bottom Margins	
14	Answerback Memory	

Table 5-3. LP840 Tests

To begin the LP840 diagnostic task, enter the name of the target printer in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL LPxx

where:

LP identifies the line printer diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 840 to be tested.

The following message and prompt appear on the screen:

THE DEVICE/FORMS CONTROL OPTION NEEDS TO BE INSTALLED IN ORDER TO EXECUTE TEST NUMBERS 5 THRU 14. FOR MORE DETAILS SEE THE TEST DESCRIPTIONS IN THE USER'S GUIDE AND THE LP840 INSTALLATION AND OPERATIONS MANUAL.

IS THE DEVICE/FORMS CONTROL OPTION INSTALLED (YES, NO)? NO

Your response to the prompt determines whether the diagnostic task can execute Tests 1 through 4 or 1 through 14.

5.2.2.1 Test 1 — Character Set. Test 1 prints all of the characters in the LP840 character set in a block format, as shown in Figure 5-1 for the LP810 character set. These block letters represent the dot-matrix structure of the LP840 output.

In Figure 5-1, each letter that makes up a block letter represents one dot. Compare the structure of the block letters to the structure of the individual letters making up the block letter. The dot-matrix structure of the individual letter A has two dots across the top and three dots across the center. The large block letter A also has two characters across the top and three characters across the center. Since the comparison is correct, the character A is printing correctly.

5.2.2.2 Test 2 — Ripple Pattern. Test 2 prints 94 lines of a ripple pattern of all available nongraphic characters, as shown in Figure 5-2 for the LP810. Since each character appears in each print position at least once, you can examine the output to verify that the 840 RO printer can print all characters in all columns. The width of the ripple pattern is determined by the response to the ENTER PAPER WIDTH prompt of the XD command verb.

5.2.2.3 Test 3 — Buffer Length. To determine the maximum buffer length, Test 3 uses the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. The buffer length test prints the character string PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST, beginning with only the first two characters. Each successive line increases by two characters until the maximum buffer length is reached. Then, the test reverses and prints from the maximum buffer length back to the first two characters.

5.2.2.4 Test 4 — Carriage Return. Test 4 prints a sentence with every other character missing, followed by a carriage return to the same line. Then, the same sentence is printed again with the opposite characters missing, followed by another carriage return. The full sentence THIS LINE IS PRINTED IN TWO PASSES is the result.

5.2.2.5 Test 5 — Form Length and Feed: Test 5 checks for accuracy in form length and feed. The forms in the printer must be properly aligned to the top of the form before Test 5 begins. Test 5 performs the following:

- 1. The form length is set to 33 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 2. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM is printed.
- 3. The form length is set to 99 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 4. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM is printed.
- 5. The form length is set to 64 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 6. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FORM is printed.
- 7. The form length is set to 66 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 8. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM is printed.

Check the positions of the printed messages to ensure they are correct.

5.2.2.6 Test 6 — Tab to Line. Test 6 prints the following message:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE x

This message prints on the following lines:

2, 3, 5, 9, 17, 33, 49, 57, 61, 63, 64

The variable x is the line number where the message is printed. For example, the first line printed by the test is as follows:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2

When the forms are properly aligned in the LP810, the line numbers should be correct.

5.2.2.7 Test 7 — Set and Test Vertical Tabs. Test 7 sets the vertical tab stops as follows:

2, 3, 5, 9, 17, 33, 49, 57, 61, 63, 64

The test causes the printer to tab to each of these stops. After each tab stop, the following message is printed:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE x

The variable x is the tab stop number where the message is printed. For example, the test tabs to vertical tab stop 2, and prints the following message:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2

5.2.2.8 Test 8 — Remote On/Off. Test 8 issues the printer-off command to the 840 RO and then sends it three messages to print. The task then issues the printer-on command and gives the printer three more messages to print. If the remote on and off feature is operating correctly, the following lines will be printed:

THIS MESSAGE SHOULD APPEAR ONLY 3 TIMES. THIS MESSAGE SHOULD APPEAR ONLY 3 TIMES. THIS MESSAGE SHOULD APPEAR ONLY 3 TIMES.

An invalid printout may indicate a faulty DFC ROM or ROM interface.

5.2.2.9 Test 9 — **Set and Test Horizontal Tabs.** Test 9 prints lines of reference numbers that identify the columns of the paper. The test sets horizontal tab stops and prints an up arrow at each tab stop. It then prints the following message:

ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:

The test prints a list of the tab stops below this message. You must verify that the arrows are in the correct columns.

5.2.2.10 Test 10 — Lines and Characters per Inch. Test 10 prints the following:

- 1. 8 lines of 10 characters at 8 lpi and 10 cpi.
- 2. 6 lines of 10 characters at 6 lpi and 10 cpi.
- 3. 8 lines of 17 characters at 8 lpi and 16.5 cpi.
- 4. 6 lines of 17 characters at 6 lpi and 16.5 cpi.

The message BLOCK IS x CHRS/INCH AND n LINES/INCH is printed before each output group. For example, 8 lines of 10 characters printed at 8 lpi and 10 cpi appear as a square after the following message:

BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH

You must verify that the output is approximately one inch square to determine that it is correct.

5.2.2.11 Test 11 — Bell. Test 11 sounds the printer alarm for three seconds and prints the following message:

PRINTER BELL SHOULD SOUND FOR 3 SECONDS

5.2.2.12 Test 12 — Left and Right Margins. Test 12 exercises the terminal's ability to modify the left and right margins. A row of column numbers is printed across the top of a page. The left and right margins are set to 10 and 50, respectively. Lines of Xs are printed. For every set of lines, the margins are increased by 10. The first set of lines of Xs are printed between columns 10 and 50, the next set between columns 20 and 60, and the next set between columns 30 and 70. An invalid printout may indicate a faulty DFC ROM or ROM interface.

5.2.2.13 Test 13 — Top and Bottom Margins. Test 13 exercises the terminal's ability to modify the top and bottom margins. The task sets the form length to 33, the top and left margins to 10, and the bottom and right margins to 20. It prints Xs, producing 121 Xs in an 11-by-11 array.

The last X printed causes a form feed to line 43. If the bottom margin has been set correctly, no change will take place. The task then increases the bottom margin to 30, and prints Xs again. This time the array will be 11-by-21 and will contain 231 Xs. The task then resets the margins to normal settings. An invalid printout may indicate a faulty DFC ROM or ROM interface.

5.2.2.14 Test 14 — **Answerback Memory.** Test 14 is an interactive test which requires input from the target terminal. You should preprogram the answerback memory with up to 32 characters. For information on programming the ABM, see the *Model 990 Computer Model 840 RO Printer Installation and Operation Manual*. When Test 14 executes, the answerback memory contents are read and printed. For the LP840 to print the output of the answerback memory test, configuration codes 72 and 82 must be set; check at your terminal before the test starts to ensure that these codes are set.

5.2.3 CPTEST — Model 850 Printer

CPTEST is a diagnostic task comprised of 15 tests for verifying the correct operation of the Model 850 Printer. Table 5-4 lists the 15 tests that execute on the LP850.

NOTE

CPTEST can also be executed on the model 810 Printer, using the option LP850.

Test Number	Test Name
1	Character Set Test
2	Ripple Dump Test
3	Buffer Test
4	Jitter Test
5	Jitter Interval Test
6	Center Out Test
7	Alternating Left to Right Test
8	Alternating Right to Left Test
9	Interplaced Jitter Test
10	Overstrike Test
11	Alternating Overstrike Test
12	Random Print Test
13	Left to Right Inverted Strike Test
14	Right to Left Inverted Strike Test
15	Black Line Test

Table 5-4. CPTEST Tests

To begin the CPTEST diagnostic task, enter the name of the target printer in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL LPxx

where:

LP identifies the line printer diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 850 to be tested.

5.2.3.1 Test 1 — Character Set. Test 1 prints a row of each non-graphic character available to the 850 printer as shown in Figure 5-3.

5.2.3.2 Test 2 — Ripple Dump Test. Test 2 prints 94 lines of a ripple pattern of all available nongraphic characters, as shown in Figure 5-4. Since each character appears in each print position at least once, you can examine the output for problems such as characters not printing in certain positions. The width of the ripple pattern is determined by the response to the ENTER PAPER WIDTH prompt of the XD command verb.

5.2.3.3 Test 3 — Buffer Test. Test 3 begins by printing a single character on a line, and then increasing the number of characters printed on each succeeding line by one until reaching the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. At this point, the test decrements by one the number of characters printed on each succeeding line until only one character is printed.

NOTE

Tests 4 through 14 require you to select a character to be printed by answering the prompt:

SELECT CHARACTER TO BE PRINTED:

Enter the character that you desire *twice*, since certain single character entries (H for HELP, R for REJECT) are interpreted as control characters by the ODD.

All CPTEST examples are explained in terms of 80 column wide paper. The tests actually use a column width based on your response to the ENTER PAPER WIDTH prompt of the XD command verb (80 through 132).

TEST 1 - CHARACTER SET TEST

	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	! 	!	1	!	!	!	!	!	!		!	!	!	!	!	!	!	! ''	! 11	! 14	!	!	!	! ! * *	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	! !	!	!	! 11	!	!	! 11	!	! #	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	!	! !	: • •	!!	!!	! !	! .	! !	! !	! !	! !	!!	
:	‡	#	#	#	#	++	† †	**	#4	#;	#:	#1	**	#4	#:	#	#	#	#	#	; ;	ŧ ‡	; 	**	#:	#	#:	#	#	#	#	#	#	:#	; ‡	‡‡	‡‡	**	#1	##	#;	#:	#	#:	#	#	#	#	#	#	#	#	#	#	#	#:	# 1	#;	#1			‡‡	‡ ‡	;	‡‡	ŧŧ	ŧŧ	‡‡	ŧŧ	#1	##	*	ŧŧ	**	*#	:
	₽ 2	÷ 7	₽ %	₹ 7.	¥ %	7	, ,	þ: ()	2,	• · ·	р: ()	2 7	47	/ /	* //	Ф Х.	* 7	т Х	7	/	.7	.7	р 1 ()	р: / ,	р: ()	₽ %`	₽ 7.1	₽ %'	₽ /	⊅ ∕	¥ 7.	₽ %	₽ 7	7	2) 4 ()	/ /	р = ()	, ;	P :	* *	7	₽ %`	₽ %`	₽ 7.	₽ 7	₽ 7	⊅ 7	₽ %	Ф 7	₽ %	₽ 7	₽ %	₽ 7.	₽ %	₽ 7.	р // 1	Х	7	P = //	Р: /)	69 (7	/ 7	67 (7	6 4 (7	. 7	//	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	24 (7	P3 77	рч %7	рч (У	>4 (7) = ()	·*	,
a a	<u>.</u>	3 .	<u>8</u> .	&	8/	8 /	18		() ()	/ (/	4						3,	2	8.	Š	e de	(°	28		2	<u>.</u>	4	343 /	<u>,</u>	8. 	&	2, 	2	8	8	e S	e.	2	<u>, </u>	2.8 / .	48		4	<u>,</u>	8.	2	<u>.</u>	8.: 	&. /	84) /	2ı /	<u>8</u> ,	2	2	2.	2.) /	4		2		a	28 	28 • • •	28 	28 	68 	8 . /	&، · · ·	с8 - /	<8	.8	×8	<8 / /	*8 / /	iši V	
1	(((((\	(((()	()		((() }	()	((((\	((((1	Ś	(í	(((((\	í	()	(((()	()	()	((((((((ć	((\	(((()	()	() \	((()	()	((((((. ((: (((· (; ((((
ł	+ -	۲ Hr	۲ H	*	*	×	+	{· -}	* *	; ;;;	(· -)	{· }	ŀ.⊀	ł ->	; ; ;	, ;	r r	×	*	*	×	, i		, ,	۰ ۲۰	, ;	/ {	/ #- i	R··		×	×	*	¥	*	я	+ +	+ +	{ { }	* 3	* *	/ + -}	/ #-1	* 1	×	*	, H	*	×	*	*	×	*	×	*	×-1	* ;	* 3	**	r ≯	; ;-;	÷-₩	-	÷-X	-#	- 11	**	- X	F-14	ł÷	* *	F 18	+#	F-M	*	
-	₽ , ,	+∙• , ·	+··	+ ,	+,	+ ,	۰-۱ ,			• •		⊦⊣ `,	 ر	 ,		+	+···	+ · ,	+	+,	+,	· -+ ,	· -+	 ,	• •	⊢- , ;		}	+·· ,	+ · ,	+ ·	+ ,	+,	+,	+	• +	 ,	 ر	• •		F 4	+ - , ,	, - , ;	• • • •	+ , ·	+· ,	+	+ , ·	+ · ,	+· ,	+ ·	+ · ,	-1- · 7	+- ·	+· ,	+		• - • •		 ,	۰- ,	- + ,	+• • •	-+ ,	•+	•+	•+	'+ ,	+ 7	-+ . ,		-+	+	· +	·+ ,	
-																			_	-	-											-			-			• ••																									•					•				•				
,	/	/	/	/	/	/	1	/	1	/	1	/	/	' /	/	//	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	1	,	/	/	/ /	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	1	1	1	/	/	//	/	/	/	/ .	/	/	/ /	/	/	/	/		/	/	/ /	/	/	,	1	'/	/	1	1	1	1	1	1	/	1	1	/	, /	1	1	

Figure 5-3. CPTEST Character Set Test Example

TEST 2 - RIPPLE TEST

!"#\$%&<()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshi "#\$%%1()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[N]^_`abcdefshij #\$%&<()*+,-./0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk \$%%(()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk] X&(()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOFQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]m &(()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mn ′()*+,−./0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^…`abcdefshijk]mno ()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnop)*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOF@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnops *+,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopgr +,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopgrs ,-./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperst +./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopsrstu ./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopgrstuv /0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvw 0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZENI^_`abcdefehijk1mnoperstuvwx 123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGH1JKLMNOF@RSTUVWXYZIN]^_^abcdefghijk1mnopgrstuvwxy 23456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz 3456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz(| 56789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOF@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz())

Figure 5-4. Ripple Dump Test Output

5.2.3.4 Test 4 — Jitter Test. Test 4, the jitter test, prints a character on the far left (column one) and then prints a character in the far right column (column 80). Then the test increments the far left column number by one and prints a character in that column (column two would be next). Then the test decrements the far right column number and prints a character in that column (column 79). This alternating pattern is continued until characters have been printed in the two center columns, 40 and 41.

5.2.3.5 Test 5 — Jitter Interval Test. The jitter interval test first examines the line width for your 850 printer. It then divides that numeric value (80, 132, and so on) by 20, and determines the integer value of the quotient. For example, if the line width for your 850 printer is 132, the test divides 132 by 20, obtaining 6 as the integer value of the quotient. If the line width of your printer is 80, the quotient would be 4. The test then divides the line to be printed into a number of segments equivalent to the integer value of the quotient from the first portion of the test. Finally, the jitter interval test performs a jitter test on each segment, one at a time.

5.2.3.6 Test 6 — **Center Out Test.** This test performs a reverse function to the jitter test. The test first prints a character in the centermost column of the left hand half of the printer paper (column 40). It then prints a character in the centermost column of the right hand half of the printer paper (column 41). At this point, the center out test alternates between decrementing the left hand column numbers and printing a character and incrementing the right hand column numbers and printing a characters in columns according to this pattern:

40, 41, 39, 42, 38, 43, 37, 44, . . .

This process continues until a character is printed in column 80.

5.2.3.7 Test 7 — Alternating Left to Right Test. In a manner similar to the immediately previous tests, Test 7 prints a preselected character in an alternating left to right pattern. The test first prints a character in the column 1. Next it prints a character in the first column of the right hand half of the printer paper (column 41). At this point, the center out test alternates between incrementing the left hand column numbers and printing a character and incrementing the right hand column numbers and printing a character. The test prints characters in columns according to this pattern:

1, 41, 2, 42, 3, 43, 4, 44, . .

This process continues until a character is printed in column 80.

5.2.3.8 Test 8 — Alternating Right to Left Test. Test 8 is the reverse of Test 7. The alternating right to left test prints a preselected character in an alternating right to left pattern, beginning with column 80. Next it prints a character in the last column of the left hand half of the printer paper (column 40). Having established this pattern, the test alternates between decrementing the right hand column numbers and printing a character and decrementing the left hand column numbers and printing characters in columns according to this pattern:

80, 40, 79, 39, 78, 38, 77, 37, . . .

This process continues until a character is printed in column 41.

5.2.3.9 Test 9 — **Interplaced Jitter Test.** Test 9 is a variation of the jitter test. The interplaced jitter test prints whatever character you select in the far left column (column one) and then prints the character in the far right column (column 80). Next, the test increments the far left column number by two and prints the selected character in that column (column three would be next). Then the test decrements the far right column number by two and prints the selected character is continued until the selected character is printed in column 40. At this time, the test begins its second half. Using the same character you previously selected, the test prints the same pattern, beginning with column 2 and continuing until it prints the selected character in column 41. Therefore, the test prints characters in columns according to this pattern:

1, 80, 3, 78, 5, 76, . . . 40, 2, 79, 4, 77, 6, 75 . . . 41

5.2.3.10 Test 10 — Overstrike Test. The overstrike test prints the character H in every column, from column one through column 80, in order. After a carriage return, the test repeats itself, overstriking the previously printed H's.

5.2.3.11 Test 11 — Alternating Overstrike Test. The alternating overstrike test prints an H character in column one, skips to column 40, and prints an H character there. After incrementing column one, the test prints an H character in that column (column two). Next, the test increments column 40 and prints an H character in that column (column 41). The test repeats this left to right pattern until it prints an H character in column 80; then it repeats the entire pattern a second time, overstriking the previously printed line. This completes the first half of Test 11.

The second half of the test issues a line feed and then repeats the first half of the test, alternating from right to left this time. To do this, the test prints an H character in column 80, then column 39, column 79, column 38, and so on until it prints the H character in column 1. This procedure is then repeated, overstriking the previously printed line in the same right to left pattern from column one through column 80. After a carriage return, the test repeats itself, overstriking the previously printed H's.

5.2.3.12 Test 12 — Random Print Test. The random print test prints a full line of characters. However, it prints these characters in random order.

5.2.3.13 Test 13 — Left to Right Inverted Strike Test. The left to right inverted strike test prints a character in column one, and after incrementing this position by two, prints a character in column three. The test then decrements its column position by one and prints a character in column two. At this point the test establishes a pattern of incrementing the column position by three, printing a character, and then decrementing the column position by one, and printing another character. Therefore, the test prints characters in columns according to this pattern:

1, 3, 2, 5, 4, 7, 6, 9 . . . 74, 77, 76, 79, 78, 80

5.2.3.14 Test 14 — Right to Left Inverted Strike Test. Test 14 is the inverse of the previous test. The right to left inverted strike test prints a character in column 80, and after decrementing this position by two, prints a character in column 78. The test then increments its column position by one and prints a character in column 79. At this point the test establishes a pattern of decrementing the column position by three, printing a character, and then incrementing the column position by one, and printing a character. Therefore, the test prints characters in columns according to this pattern:

80, 78, 79, 76, 77, 74, 75, 72 . . . 7, 4, 5, 2, 3, 1

5.2.3.15 Test 15 — Black Line Test. The black line test overstrikes each cursor position several times for one line length, producing a solid black line across the width of the printer paper. In effect, it tests the wires on the printhead.

5.2.4 LP2230/LP2260 — 2230/2260 Line Printers

The diagnostic task that tests the Models 2230 and 2260 Line Printers executes six noninteractive tests. Table 5-5 lists the tests of the LP2230/LP2260 diagnostic task.

Test Number	Test Name
1	Form Length and Feed
2	Character Set
3	Ripple Pattern
4	Buffer Length
5	Hammer Alignment
6	Character Burst

Table 5-5. LP2230/LP22	260 Tests
------------------------	-----------

To begin the LP2230/LP2260 diagnostic task, enter the name of the target printer in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL LPxx

where:

LP identifies the line printer diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 2230 or 2260 to be tested.

5.2.4.1 Test 1 — Form Length and Feed. Test 1 checks for accuracy in the form feed function of the LP2230/LP2260. Test 1 executes two form feeds and prints the message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF FORM on the first line of each page. You must check this output for accuracy.

5.2.4.2 Test 2 — Character Set. Test 2 prints all of the characters in the 2230/2260 character set in a block format similar to that shown in Figure 5-1 of the LP810 test descriptions. Because the 2230/2260 is not a dot-matrix printer, the block characters do not represent the internal structure of the characters, and Test 2 functions only as an exercise.

5.2.4.3 Test 3 — Ripple Pattern. Test 3 prints 64 lines of a ripple pattern of the characters represented by the ASCII codes > 21 through > 5F.

NOTE

A right angle bracket (>) preceding a value indicates a hexadecimal value.

Since each character appears in each print position at least once, you can examine the output for problems such as characters that do not print in certain positions. The width of the ripple pattern depends on the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. See Figure 5-2 for an example similar to the output of Test 3 for the LP2260.

5.2.4.4 Test 4 — Buffer Length. To determine the maximum buffer length, Test 4 uses the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. The test prints the character string PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST, beginning with only the first two characters. Each successive line increases by two characters until the maximum buffer length is reached. Then, the test reverses and prints from the maximum buffer length back to the first two characters.

5.2.4.5 Test 5 — Hammer Alignment. Test 5 enables you to isolate defective or misaligned hammers. Test 5 prints a line of hammer and hammer-bank reference numbers, followed by 18 lines of a character and another line of hammer and hammer-bank reference numbers. The first 18 lines of characters contain H, the next 18 lines contain /E, and the last 18 lines contain the hyphen (-). You can identify the malfunctioning hammer by examining the output and locating the hammer and hammer-bank numbers for the characters that do not print correctly.

5.2.4.6 Test 6 — Character Burst. Test 6 prints a full line of each available character on the 2230/2260 line printer, beginning with the exclamation point (!) and ending with the left arrow (\leftarrow). You can examine the output to ensure that all characters on a line are printing accurately.

5.2.5 LP300/LP600 — 300/600 Line Printers

The diagnostic task that tests and exercises the Model 300 Line Printer and the Model 600 Line Printer executes 15 noninteractive tests. Table 5-6 lists the tests of the LP300/LP600 diagnostic.

	Test Number	Test Name
	1	. Form Length and Feed
	2	Character Set
	3	Ripple Pattern
	4	Buffer Length
	5	Hammer Alignment
	6	Eight Lines per Inch
	7	Character Burst
	8	Solid Black Box
	9	Carriage Return and Underline
÷	10	Plot Mode
	11	Elongated Characters
	12	Delete Characters
	13	Electronic Vertical Format Unit
	14	Graphic Example Plot
	15	TI Logo Plot

Table 5-6. LP300/LP600 Tests

To begin the LP300/LP600 diagnostic, enter the name of the target printer in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL LPxx

where:

LP identifies the line printer diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 300 or 600 to be tested.

5.2.5.1 Test 1 — Form Length and Feed. Test 1 checks for accuracy in the form feed function of the LP300/LP600. The forms in the printer must be properly aligned to the top of the form before Test 1 begins. Test 1 executes two form feeds and prints the message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF FORM on the first line of each page. You must check this output for accuracy.

5.2.5.2 Test 2 — Character Set. Test 2 prints all of the characters in the 300/600 character set in a block format. The small characters that make up the large character represent the dot matrix of the actual character. (See Figure 5-2, LP810 Test 2.)

5.2.5.3 Test 3 — **Ripple Pattern.** Test 3 prints 94 lines of a ripple pattern using ASCII codes > 21 through > 7E. The output of the LP300/LP600 Test 3 is similar to the ripple pattern shown in Figure 5-2 for LP810. Appendix D shows the ripple pattern for an LP600.

Since each character appears in each print position at least once, you can examine the output for problems such as characters not printing in certain positions. The width of the ripple pattern depends on the paper width you specified in the XD command verb.

5.2.5.4 Test 4 — Buffer Length. To determine the maximum buffer length (either 80 or 150 characters), Test 4 uses the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. The test prints the character string PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST, beginning with only the first two characters. Each successive line increases by two characters until the maximum buffer length is reached. Then, the test reverses and prints from the maximum buffer length back to the first two characters.

5.2.5.5 Test 5 — Hammer Alignment. Test 5 enables you to isolate defective or misaligned hammers. It prints a line of hammer and hammer-bank reference numbers, followed by 55 (or 58) lines of a character and another line of hammer and hammer-bank reference numbers. The first 55 lines of characters contain H, the next 58 lines contain E, and the last 58 lines contain the hyphen. You can identify the malfunctioning hammer by examining the output and locating the hammer and hammer-bank numbers for the characters that do not print correctly.

5.2.5.6 Test 6 — Eight Lines per Inch. Test 6 checks the electronic control of the feature of the LP300/LP600 that allows those printers to print eight lines per inch.

5.2.5.7 Test 7 — Character Burst. Test 7 prints a full line of each available character on the LP300/LP600. You can examine the output to ensure that all characters on a line are printing accurately.

5.2.5.8 Test 8 — Solid Black Box. Test 8 prints a three-inch, single-density solid black box using the plot mode of the LP600. (See T8600 in Appendix D.)

5.2.5.9 Test 9 — Carriage Return and Underline. Test 9 repeatedly prints the message *THIS LINE SHOULD BE UNDERLINED* across the full width of the page. It then executes a carriage return and again prints the underlined message. This sequence is repeated until five complete underlined sentences, spanning the width of the page, are printed.

5.2.5.10 Test 10 — Plot Mode. To test the plot mode of the LP300/LP600, Test 10 prints the following across the page: a screen of alternating dots, a solid horizontal line of single-density plot, a solid line of double-density plot, and two rows of alternating vertical lines. (See Appendix D.) The LP300 does not have double-density capability and prints series of double-spaced lines instead of the double-density plot.

5.2.5.11 Test 11 — Elongated Characters. Test 11 causes data placed in the data stream to be printed in elongated characters.

5.2.5.12 Test 12 — Delete Characters. Test 12 checks the delete option of the LP300/LP600. The following sentence is stored in the buffer and the delete option is turned on for the characters in spaces 30 through 45:

15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FOLLOW--ERROR-ERROR--15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS

If your delete option is operating correctly, the following sentence appears on your hard-copy test results:

15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FOLLOW 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS

5.2.5.13 Test 13 — Electronic Vertical Format Unit. Test 13 exercises the 14 electronic vertical format unit (EVFU) channels and the paper-slewing operation of LP300/LP600 printers. It causes lines of text (identifying the line number) to be printed by setting appropriate channel numbers for both slewing and vertical tabs. If the line number in the text corresponds to the actual line number of the hard-copy page, the EVFU is operating correctly.

5.2.5.14 Test 14 — Graphic Example Plot. Test 14 exercises the plot mode by producing a graphic representation of r*cos(theta) and r*sin(theta).

5.2.5.15 Test 15 — TI Logo Plot. Test 15 exercises the plot mode by producing a graphic representation of the TI logo.

5.3 KEYBOARD DEVICES: 820 KSR TERMINAL

The ST820 diagnostic task tests only the Model 820 Keyboard Send/Receive (KSR) Terminal devices that have the device/forms control (DFC) option. For more information about the DFC, refer to the *Model 990 Computer Model 820 KSR Data Terminal Installation and Operation* manual.

5.3.1 Introduction

The ST820 diagnostic is composed of 11 noninteractive tests and 1 interactive test. The tests produce hard-copy results that you must evaluate. Examples of the results of all 12 tests are shown in Appendix E. The interactive keyboard test (Test 12) will not execute unless you are present at the target terminal to respond to the prompts. Interactive tests must be asked for specifically. Do not take the default prompts. Monitoring the control terminal during the ST820 tests does not provide meaningful information about the test results. Table 5-7 lists the tests of the ST820 diagnostic.

 Test Number	Test Name	
1	Form Length and Feed	
2	Character Set	
3	Ripple Pattern	
4	Buffer Length	
5	Carriage Return	
6	Tab to Line	
7	Set and Test Vertical Tabs	
8	Tab to Address	
9	Set and Test Horizontal Tabs	
10	Lines and Characters per Inch	
11	Bell	
12	Interactive Keyboard	

Table 5-7. ST820 Tests

đ

To begin the ST820 diagnostic, enter the name of the target 820 terminal in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL STxx

where:

ST identifies the terminal diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 820 to be tested.

5.3.2 Test Descriptions

The following paragraphs describe the ST820 diagnostic tests in detail. Tests 1 through 11 are noninteractive. Test 12 is interactive and requires your presence at the target terminal.

5.3.2.1 Test 1 — Form Length and Feed. Test 1 checks for accuracy in form length and feed. The forms in the printer must be properly aligned to the top of the form before Test 1 begins. Test 1 performs the following:

- 1. The form length is set to 30 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 2. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM is printed.
- 3. The form length is set to 34 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 4. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM is printed.
- 5. The form length is set to 64 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 6. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FORM is printed.
- 7. The form length is set to 66 lines, followed by a form feed.
- 8. The message THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM is printed.

Check the positions of the printed messages ensure they are correct.

5.3.2.2 Test 2 — Character Set. Test 2 prints all of the characters in the 820 KSR character set in a block format similar to that shown in Figure 5-1 of the LP810 test descriptions.

The block letters represent the dot-matrix structure of the 820 KSR printed output. The dot-matrix structure is shown in the *Model 990 Computer Model 820 KSR Data Terminal Installation and Operation* manual. Compare the dot-matrix structure of the Test 2 output with that shown in the manual.

5.3.2.3 Test 3 — **Ripple Pattern.** Test 3 prints 94 lines of a ripple pattern consisting of all available nongraphic characters, similar to Figure 5-1 of the LP810 diagnostic. Since each character appears in each print position at least once, you can examine the output for problems such as characters not printing in certain positions. The width of the ripple pattern depends on the paper width you specified in the XD command verb.

5.3.2.4 Test 4 — Buffer Length. To determine the maximum buffer length, Test 4 uses the paper width you specified in the XD command verb. The test prints the character string PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST, beginning with only the first two characters. Each successive line increases by two characters until the maximum buffer length is reached. Then, the test reverses and prints from the maximum buffer length back to the first two characters.

5.3.2.5 Test 5 — Carriage Return. Test 5 prints a sentence with every other character missing, followed by a carriage return to the same line. Then the same sentence is printed again with the opposite characters missing, followed by another carriage return. The full sentence THIS LINE IS PRINTED IN TWO PASSES is the result.

5.3.2.6 Test 6 — Tab to Line. Test 6 prints the following message:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE x

This message prints on the following lines:

2, 3, 5, 9, 17, 33, 49, 57, 61, 63, 64

The variable x is the line number where the message is printed. For example, the first line printed by the test is as follows:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2

When the forms are properly aligned in the ST820, the line numbers should be correct.

5.3.2.7 Test 7 — Set and Test Vertical Tabs. Test 7 sets the vertical tab stops as follows:

2, 3, 5, 9, 17, 33, 49, 57, 61, 63, 64

The test causes the printer to tab to each of these stops. After each tab stop, the following message is printed:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE x

The variable x is the tab stop number where the message is printed. For example, the test tabs to vertical tab stop 2, and prints the following message:

THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2

5.3.2.8 Test 8 — Tab to Address. Test 8 prints lines of reference numbers that identify the horizontal columns of the paper. The test sets addresses and prints an up arrow (\uparrow) at each address. The test prints the following message:

ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:

The test prints a list of the addresses below this message. You must verify that the arrows are in the correct columns.

5.3.2.9 Test 9 — Set and Test Horizontal Tabs. Test 9 prints lines of reference numbers that identify the columns of the paper. The test sets horizontal tab stops and prints an up arrow at each tab stop. It then prints the following message:

ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:

The test prints a list of the tab stops below this message. You must verify that the arrows are in the correct columns.

5.3.2.10 Test 10 — Lines and Characters per Inch. Test 10 prints the following:

- 1. 6 lines of 10 characters at 6 lpi and 10 cpi
- 2. 6 lines of 5 characters at 6 lpi and 5 cpi
- 3. 6 lines of 17 characters at 6 lpi and 16.5 cpi
- 4. 6 lines of 8 characters at 6 lpi and 8.25 cpi
- 5. 3 lines of 10 characters at 3 lpi and 10 cpi
- 6. 3 lines of 5 characters at 3 lpi and 5 cpi
- 7. 3 lines of 17 characters at 3 lpi and 16.5 cpi
- 8. 3 lines of 8 characters at 3 lpi and 8.25 cpi
- 9. 8 lines of 10 characters at 8 lpi and 10 cpi
- 10. 8 lines of 5 characters at 8 lpi and 5 cpi
- 11. 8 lines of 17 characters at 8 lpi and 16.5 cpi
- 12. 8 lines of 8 characters at 8 lpi and 8.25 cpi
- 13. 4 lines of 10 characters at 4 lpi and 10 cpi
- 14. 4 lines of 5 characters at 4 lpi and 5 cpi
- 15. 4 lines of 17 characters at 4 lpi and 16.5 cpi
- 16. 4 lines of 8 characters at 4 lpi and 8.25 cpi

The message BLOCK IS x CHRS/INCH AND n LINES/INCH is printed before each output group. For example, 6 lines of 10 characters printed at 6 lpi and 10 cpi appear as a square after the following message:

BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH

You must verify that the output is approximately one inch square to determine that it is correct.

5.3.2.11 Test 11 — Bell. Test 11 sounds the terminal alarm for three seconds and prints the following message:

PRINTER BELL SHOULD SOUND FOR 3 SECONDS

5.3.2.12 Test 12 — Interactive Keyboard. Test 12 is an interactive test and uses the test interval timer. You must go to the target terminal and enter the information requested by the screen instructions. The test compares the character read from the keyboard (the entered value) to the character requested by the test (the expected value). When the entered and expected values do not match, an error condition is recognized. The error is noted at the target terminal, and an error message is written to the diagnostic history file.

Test 12 has five categories with several parts for each category. The five categories of Test 12 are as follows:

NOTE

The following list refers to key names as they appear on the actual key cap. No generic key names are used in this list.

Category

Description

- 1 ASCII KEYS, UPPER CASE LOCK, NO SHIFT The UPPER CASE LOCK key must be in the lower, or locked, position. Do not press the SHIFT key during this category.
- 2 ASCII KEYS, NO UPPER CASE LOCK, NO SHIFT The UPPER CASE LOCK key must be in the upper, or unlocked, position. Do not press the SHIFT key during this category.
- 3 ASCII KEYS, NO UPPER CASE LOCK, SHIFT The UPPER CASE LOCK key must be in the upper, or unlocked, position. You must continuously press one SHIFT key throughout this category. The recommended method is to press the SHIFT keys alternately.
- 4 CTRL KEY COMBINATIONS Category 4 tests certain keys with the CTRL key pressed. You must press the CTRL key throughout this category.
- 5 FUNCTION KEYS Category 5 tests the function keys Tab, Return, and Line Feed, and also tests the space bar.

Examples of results of all categories of Test 12 are shown in Appendix E. Test 12 prints two columns of information, KEY and CODE. The KEY column names the key you are to press (the expected value), and the CODE column displays the ASCII value of that key (the entered value). When the entered value does not match the expected value, the message *** ERROR *** is written next to the CODE column.
5.4 KEYBOARD DEVICES: VIDEO TERMINALS

The diagnostic task for keyboard devices supports the following four terminal devices:

- 911 video display terminal (VDT)
- 931 VDT
- 940 electronic video terminal (EVT)
- 820 KSR terminal (nonvideo keyboard device See Paragraph 5.3)

When you initiate the keyboard device diagnostic task by entering ST after the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt, all 911 VDTs, 931 VDTs, 940 EVTs, and 820 KSR terminals that are configured on your system and in the diagnostic state are tested. You must ensure that all the terminals you want to test, and only those, are in the diagnostic state. Since most of the tests performed on 820 KSR devices are printer tests, they are described separately in paragraph 5.3 and are not included here.

The ST911, ST931, and ST940 diagnostic tests produce observable results on the target terminal that you must evaluate. Some tests are interactive and require you to respond to prompts at the target terminal. Unless you enter responses at the appropriate time during the tests, the task cannot continue. Monitoring the control terminal during the tests does not provide meaningful information about the test results. You must be at the target terminal to interpret the results.

5.4.1 ST911 - 911 VDT

The ST911 diagnostic exercises the screen and keyboard on the Model 911 Video Display Terminal. It is composed of seven tests, of which five are noninteractive and two are interactive. (Target Terminals do not need to be logged on to have diagnostics run on them.) Table 5-8 lists the tests of the ST911 diagnostic task.

Test Number	Test Name
1	Ones and Zeros
2	Scroll
3	Beeper
4	Intensity
5	Character Generator
6	Nonblinking/Blinking Cursor (Interactive)
7	Interactive Keyboard

Table 5-8. S	ST911 Tests
--------------	-------------

To begin the ST911 diagnostic task, enter the name of the target 911 VDT in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL STxx

where:

ST identifies the terminal diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 911 to be tested.

You can enter a particular device or accept the default (ALL). Messages and prompts appear as follows:

DEVICE STxx HAS BEEN SELECTED.

USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES/NO)? YES

If you want to execute the interactive tests, you must not select the default options. Change the prompt response to NO. The following prompts appear:

ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1,2,3)? 3

CHANGE TEST EXECUTION MODE (YES/NO)? NO

Accept the default for priority level. If you want to select the interactive tests, answer YES to the CHANGE EXECUTION MODE? prompt and accept the default for the following prompt:

ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? TEST

ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

If you specify an interactive test (Test 6 or 7), it will start to execute. You must go to the target terminal and respond. If you accept the default (ALL), the following prompt will appear:

EXECUTE INTERACTIVE TERMINAL TESTS (YES, NO)? NO

To execute Tests 6 and 7 you must answer YES to this prompt. The next prompt to appear is:

ENTER TIMED TEST INTERVAL (0 - 59)? 0

Your response to this prompt determines the length of time Test 3 operates. Next, you are asked to respond to termination mode prompts. When the information is complete and the task starts execution, go to the target terminal to monitor the tests and respond to the interactive test.

5.4.1.1 Test 1 — **Ones and Zeros.** Test 1 exercises the controller memory. It begins by writing ones (> FFFF) to the first 960 controller memory locations. This appears on the screen as blanks. Next, the task writes zeros (> 0000) to the bottom half of the controller memory. This appears on the screen as lines of dashes. The test reads all 1920 locations, checking for a match with what is written. Any mismatch is recognized as an error condition.

The writing process is repeated with the output locations reversed (that is, >0000 written to the top half of the controller memory and >FFFF written to the bottom half). The data is read and checked for a match with what is written. Any mismatch is recognized as an error condition.

Test 1 appears on the screen as a group of lines of dashes. The lines appear alternately on the bottom and top halves of the 911 screen.

5.4.1.2 Test 2 — Scroll. Test 2 also exercises the controller memory and uses the test interval timer. It writes one line containing the 26 characters of the English alphabet, A through Z, in uppercase, followed by 54 blanks. This line is always displayed at the bottom of the screen, then moves upward (scrolls) so that the bottommost line of the screen is blank. The pattern is written and the line scrolled until the first line written is at the top of the screen (the uppermost line). The task reads the uppermost line of the screen, checking for a match with what is written. Any mismatch is recognized as an error. The interval timer is started at the time of the first read. For example, when the response to the ENTER TIMED TEST INTERVAL? prompt of the XD command verb is zero, the first read is performed and the test ends. When the response is other than zero, the read, compare, and scroll cycle continues for the specified number of seconds.

Test 2 appears on the screen as the letters A through Z, in the left part of the screen, continuously moving from the bottom of the screen to the top. The test momentarily stops this continuous scrolling when waiting for display of an error message on the control terminal.

5.4.1.3 Test 3 — Beeper. Test 3 uses the test interval timer. It sounds the audible alarm for the number of seconds you specified in response to the timed test interval prompt of the XD command verb. When the response is zero seconds, the beeper sounds for the shortest possible time. When the response is other than zero, the beeper sounds for the specified number of seconds. The message BEEPER SHOULD BE SOUNDING appears on the screen.

5.4.1.4 Test 4 — Intensity. Test 4 exercises the ability of the 911 to write and refresh in one intensity or the other. To check the high and low intensity display, the test uses an adaptation of the ripple pattern of the LP810 diagnostic. (See Figure 5-2.) The test displays, from left to right, lines of all available nongraphic characters. Each line starts and ends with a different character.

First, the test writes the pattern in low intensity, displaying the message PATTERN SHOULD BE IN LOW INTENSITY at the top of the screen. When the screen is filled, the test holds the low intensity display for a specified number of seconds. Then, the test changes the display to high intensity, holding the display for the same number of seconds and displaying the message PATTERN SHOULD BE IN HIGH INTENSITY at the top of the screen.

5.4.1.5 Test 5 — Character Generator. Test 5 uses the test interval timer and exercises the character generator of the 911 VDT controller board. This test is noninteractive because it can execute to completion without your intervention. However, it does not recognize error conditions; therefore you must evaluate the displays at the target device. When you cannot be present to evaluate the displays, Test 5 provides no information and has value only as a device exercise.

Test 5 displays characters on the 911 VDT screen as combinations of small lit or unlit dots, called pixels. The test displays the characters of the 911 VDT character set in an expanded format, representing the pixels of each character. For further information about pixels and the 911 VDT character display, refer to the *Model 990 Computer Model 911 Video Display Terminal Installation and Operation* manual.

Each character is displayed as a block character inside a box of smaller characters, all in low intensity. The block character is made of cursor boxes. For example, the character A is displayed as a large A made of blocks (double cursors) surrounded by smaller As to make a square. The block character A represents the pixels that are lighted during 911 VDT character display. The smaller characters making up the box represent pixels that are not lighted during 911 VDT character ter display.

The pixel characters are displayed from left to right across the center of the screen. When the right side of the screen is reached, the leftmost pixel character is overwritten with a new pixel character. This process continues from left to right until all characters have been displayed. The speed of this process depends on the timed test interval you specified in the XD command verb. The number of seconds you specified determines the length of the pause between the display of each character.

You can detect errors in Test 5 only by careful observation. The following conditions indicate errors:

- Small characters appear as a different character than the block character.
- A block character consists of something other than cursor boxes.
- Small characters appear in high intensity.

5.4.1.6 Test 6 — **Nonblinking/Blinking Cursor.** Test 6 exercises the ability of the 911 VDT to display a continuously nonblinking or blinking cursor. The test is interactive; therefore you must respond at the target terminal. The test starts with the cursor not blinking. The message CURSOR SHOULD NOT BE BLINKING, PRESS RETURN TO CONTINUE is displayed at the top of the screen. The nonblinking cursor is displayed below this message. When you press the Return key, the nonblinking cursor is no longer displayed, and the blinking cursor part of the test begins.

The message CURSOR SHOULD BE BLINKING, PRESS RETURN TO CONTINUE is displayed at the top of the screen. A blinking cursor is displayed below this message. When you press the Return key, the blinking cursor is no longer displayed and the test ends.

5.4.1.7 Test 7 — Interactive Keyboard. Test 7 is an interactive test and uses the test interval timer. You must go to the target terminal and enter the information requested by the screen instructions. The test compares the character read from the keyboard (the entered value) to the character requested by the test (the expected value). When the entered and expected values do not match, an error condition is recognized. The error is noted at the target terminal, and an error message is displayed at the control terminal.

Test 7 has five categories with several screen displays for each category. When all the characters that you enter appear on the screen, the screen display remains for the number of seconds you specified in response to the timed test interval prompt of the XD command verb. Then the next screen is displayed. The five categories of Test 7 are as follows:

NOTE

The following list refers to key names as they appear on the actual key cap. No generic key names are used in this list.

Category	Description
1	ASCII KEYS, UPPER CASE LOCK, NO SHIFT The UPPER CASE LOCK key must be in the lower, or locked, position. Do not press the SHIFT key during this category.
2	ASCII KEYS, NO UPPER CASE LOCK, NO SHIFT The UPPER CASE LOCK key must be in the upper, or unlocked, position. Do not press the SHIFT key during this category.
3	ASCII KEYS, NO UPPER CASE LOCK, SHIFT The UPPER CASE LOCK key must be in the upper, or unlocked position. You must continuously press a SHIFT key throughout this category. The recommended method is to press both SHIFT keys alternately.
4	CONTROL KEY COMBINATIONS Category 4 tests certain keys with the CONTROL key pressed. You must press the CONTROL key throughout this category. Note that the hyphen key is not used in this category.
5	FUNCTION AND EDIT KEYS

•

Category 5 tests the function keys (F1 through F8) and edit keys (TAB, SKIP, INS CHAR, and so on).

Figure 5-5 illustrates a typical keyboard test screen as described in the following paragraphs.

DEP WIT	RESS H UPP	KEY ER	(S) NEXT TO CASE LOCK EN	BLINKING (GAGED	CURSOR	٤		
	KEY		CODE	RETURN	CODE			
	1 2	1 2	31 32	31 32				
	3 4 5	W 4	33 34 35	57 34	*	**	ERROR	***
	6 7		36 37					
	8 9 0		38 39 30					
	+ -		2B 2D 5F					
ACTIVE CONTROL KEYS: RETURN - ABORTS TES' DOWN ARROW - SKIPS '		EN	EXT LINE					
UP ARROW - SKIPS TO	THE	PRE	VIOUS LINE					

Figure 5-5. ST911 Test 7 Screen Format

1

The instructions for the category are displayed at the top center of the screen. Beneath the instructions are columns of information. From left to right, the columns are as follows:

- 1. Expected key (KEY)
- 2. Flashing cursor and entered key
- 3. Expected ASCII value (CODE)
- 4. Entered ASCII value (RETURN CODE)
- 5. Error

Column 1 is a list of the keys you must press. The flashing cursor in column 2 indicates which of those keys is expected next. The key that you press is displayed, and the flashing cursor automatically moves to indicate the next key to press. You can move the flashing cursor up and down. Therefore, you can single out a key you want to test repeatedly and skip over keys you do not want to test.

The expected ASCII value of each of the keys, or the CODE, is displayed in column 3. The entered ASCII value, or RETURN CODE, is displayed in column 4. When the entered value does not match the expected value, the message *** ERROR *** is displayed in column 5. Figure 5-5, the user pressed the W instead of the 3. Columns 1 and 2 show the expected 3 and the entered W. Columns 3 and 4 show the ASCII values of the 3 and the W, respectively. Column 5 notes the error.

The lower left corner of the screen contains descriptions of special keys that control the movement of the cursor during this test. With the exception of the Repeat key, which is always available, the keys that are available to control the cursor vary throughout the test. The descriptions in the lower left corner of the screen change as available keys change.

5.4.2 ST931 - 931 VDT

The ST931 diagnostic exercises the Model 931 Video Display Terminal with nine tests, two of which are interactive. Table 5-9 lists the tests of the 931 VDT diagnostic.

Test Number	Test Name	
1	Communications	
2	RAM/ROM Host Initiated Self Tests	
3	Cursor	
4	Throughput	
5	Show Graphics	
6	Show Mask	
7	Video Monitor	
8	Auxiliary Port (Interactive)	
9	Keyboard (Interactive)	

Table 5-9. ST931 Tests

To begin the ST931 diagnostic task, enter the name of the target 931 VDT in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL STxx

where:

ST identifies the terminal diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 931 to be tested.

You can enter a specific device or accept the default (ALL). Messages and prompts appear as follows:

DEVICE STxx HAS BEEN SELECTED.

USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES/NO)? YES

If you want to execute the interactive tests, you must not select the default options. Change the prompt response to NO. The following prompts appear:

ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1,2,3)? 3

CHANGE EXECUTION MODE (YES/NO)? NO

Accept the default for priority level. If you want to select the interactive tests, answer YES to the CHANGE EXECUTION MODE? prompt and accept the default for the following prompt:

ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? TEST

ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL

If you specify an interactive test (Test 8 or 9), it will start to execute. You must go to the target terminal and respond. If you accept the default (ALL), the following prompt will appear:

DO YOU WANT TO EXECUTE THE INTERACTIVE TERMINAL TESTS (YES, NO)? NO

To execute Tests 8 and 9 you must answer YES to this prompt. The next prompt to appear is:

ENTER TIMED TEST INTERVAL (0 - 59)? 0

Your response to this prompt determines the length of time that Tests 5 and 6 operate. Next, you are asked to respond to termination mode prompts. When the information is complete and the task starts execution, go to the target terminal to monitor the tests and respond to the interactive tests.

The following paragraphs describe the ST931 tests. Two of the tests are interactive; that is, they issue prompts, and require further input from you once they have started.

5.4.2.1 Test 1 — Communications. Test 1 checks the communications interface between the computer and the target terminal. First it transmits and receives a string of characters in a data loopback. Next it compares the received string with the transmitted string for errors, issues a Report Terminal ID command to verify that the target terminal is a 931. And finally, it checks for parity errors.

5.4.2.2 Test 2 — RAM/ROM Host Initiated Self Tests. Test 2 issues separate commands to the target 931 terminal that execute a Cyclical Redundancy Character (CRC) check on the Read Only Memory (ROM) and then the Random Access Memory (RAM) in that terminal.

One of the following messages appear when the test completes:

931 ROM N:VERSION W, REVISION X, TI P/N YYYYYYY YYYY: ZZZZZZ CRC.

where:

W	is the version number.
x	is the revision letter.
ΥΥΥΥΥΥΥ ΥΥΥΥ	is the ROM part number.
<u> 777777</u>	is either PASSED or FAILED.

The 931 ROM message appears one time for each program ROM that is installed (up to four ROMs can be installed).

5.4.2.3 Test 3 — Cursor. Test 3 tests the terminal's ability to perform cursor functions. The test clears the terminal screen and moves the cursor to the home position. First, the cursor moves from left to right across the screen to verify its ability to address every column while the row address remains constant. Then the cursor moves from right to left, back to the home position while verifying column addressability again. In the next portion of the test, test 3 holds the column address constant and increases the row address to its limit, and then decreases the row address to row 0. Finally test 3 performs a cursor wrap subtest that verifies the cursor wrap function at the four corners of the screen.

5.4.2.4 Test 4 — Throughput. Test 4 verifies that the 931 VDT is able to accept a full screen of characters without pacing. (Pacing occurs when the 931 VDT is busy and a signal is issued to not send any data until the 931 VDT is not busy.) Test 4 also verifies that the 931 pacing works properly. The following steps are performed:

- 1. A barber pole of 1920 characters is written to the 931 VDT screen.
- 2. The data received on the screen is then verified using the Read to Address command, reading back the characters one at a time.
- 3. A series of scrolling commands is then issued to verify that the ready/busy hardware works correctly.

5.4.2.5 Test 5 — Show Graphics. Test 5 uses the test interval timer. After clearing the 931 screen, the test displays all available block graphics characters. They appear in the following three groups:

- Vertical graphics characters (displayed from smallest to largest character from left to right)
- Horizontal graphics characters
- Miscellaneous graphic characters

The test displays the characters roughly in the shape of a square in the center of the screen for the number of seconds you specified in response to the timed test interval prompt of the XD command verb.

5.4.2.6 Test 6 — Show Mask. Test 6 also uses the test interval timer. After clearing the 931 screen, Test 6 fills it with individual characters (the letter O), which remain displayed for the number of seconds you specified in response to the timed test interval prompt of the XD command verb.

5.4.2.7 Test 7 — **Video Monitor.** Test 7 also uses the test interval timer. The video monitor test allows you to judge the quality of the video monitor on the target terminal and verify certain video hardware. It performs the following functions:

- 1. Initializes the target terminal's screen and locks the keyboard.
- 2. Verifies that the 931 VDT hardware is able to extend the graphics character > 36 across the horizontal character cell boundaries. The screen is painted with horizontal lines.
- 3. Verifies that the 931 VDT hardware is able to extend the graphics character > 29 across the vertical character cell boundaries. The screen is painted with vertical lines.
- 4. Verifies character cell extension in both horizontal and vertical directions. The screen is then painted with graphics character > 38 to display a crosshatch.
- 5. Verifies the character generator ROMs and allows for measurement of monitor specifications. The screen is then painted with a barber pole pattern. The character attributes are then changed to reverse video.
- 6. Verifies the cursor hardware features by positioning the cursor in the center of a blank screen.
- 7. Checks the hardware's ability to make the cursor blink.
- 8. Checks the hardware's ability to turn the cursor off.
- 9. Checks the hardware's ability to display all character attributes. Refer to the *Model 931 VDT General Description Manual* for a description of this display.
- 10. Erases the screen and restores the status line.

5.4.2.8 Test 8 — Auxiliary Port (Interactive). Test 8 first clears the target terminal's screen and verifies that the auxiliary port is online and not busy. If the port is ready, a formfeed is issued. Otherwise, an error message appears.

Next the test writes the following text, first to the 931 screen and then to the auxiliary port.

THE QUICK BROWN FOX JUMPED OVER THE LAZY DOGS BACK-- XX

where:

XX represents the line number.

The test sends 24 lines of data to the 931 terminal and printer. A formfeed is then issued to dump the printer's buffer. When the test completes, check the printer output for errors.

NOTE

Test 8 tests the auxiliary port by using the line printer. It is not a line printer test.

2270532-9701

5.4.2.9 Test 9 — Keyboard (Interactive). Test 9 verifies that the 931 keyboard is generating the correct raw ASCII keycodes that the 931 processes internally. This test can be used on all international keyboards. Refer to the *Model 931 VDT General Description Manual* for more information.

Test 9 provides a visual display of the main keyboard and then the keypads of the keyboard. When you press any key, the corresponding keycap in the display is filled in. If you press a key more than once, a key count is displayed on the screen in the corresponding keycap. You can press the keycaps in any order. The maximum value of the key count is > FF.

The mode keys (CTRL, ALT, SHIFT, and CAPLOCK) are displayed and updated whenever a mode change occurs. Test 9 keeps a separate count for each key pressed per mode.

NOTE

Mode shifts and key count updates cause a brief locking of the keyboard. This is to prevent a character from being received when test 9 is unable to read the keystroke.

The assumed initial state of the keyboard is with the CAPS LOCK key off. When changing modes do not press two mode keys simultaneously, because test 9 will generate a test warning message.

When you use the alternate keyboard mode (ALT), local 931 functions (on/offline, display brightness, and so on) take precedence and do not generate internal ASCII keycodes.

CAUTION

If you press the ALT 4 key (on/offline function) during the keyboard test, the diagnostic reports an error indicating that the terminal is offline, and then terminates. You must cycle the power to the 931 once this happens in order to insure proper operation when you return the unit to the online state.

Refer to the *Model 931 VDT General Description Manual* for the location and functions of the ALT function keys.

5.4.3 ST940 - 940 EVT

The ST940 diagnostic task exercises the Model 940 Electronic Video Terminal with six tests, one of which is interactive.

Table 5-10 lists the tests of the 940 EVT diagnostic.

 Test Number	Test Name	
1	Memory	
2	Beeper	
3	Intensity	
4	Scrolling	
5	Cursor	
6	Interactive Keyboard	

Table 5-10. ST940 Tests

To begin the ST940 diagnostic task, enter the name of the target 940 EVT in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL STxx

where:

ST identifies the terminal diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular 940 to be tested.

You can enter a specific device or accept the default (ALL). Messages and prompts are displayed in the same sequence as they are for the 911 VDT. If you wish to execute the interactive keyboard test, you must follow the sequence detailed in paragraph 5.4.3.

The following paragraphs describe the ST940 tests. Tests 1 through 5 are noninteractive. Test 6 is interactive, requiring you to respond at the target terminal.

5.4.3.1 Test 1 — Memory. Test 1 exercises the controller memory. It begins by writing ones (> 3030) to the first 960 controller memory locations. This appears on the screen as blanks. Next, the task writes zeros (> 0000) to the bottom half of the controller memory. This appears on the screen as lines of dashes. The test then reads the data and checks for matches with what is written. Any mismatch is recognized as an error condition and an error message is written to the diagnostic history file.

The writing process is repeated with the output locations reversed. The data is read and checked. Any mismatches are indicated as errors in the diagnostic history file.

Test 1 appears on the screen as a group of lines of dashes. The lines appear alternately on the bottom and top halves of the 940 screen.

5.4.3.2 Test 2 — Beeper. Test 2 turns off the cursor and sounds the beeper for a specified number of seconds. The test uses the test interval timer to sound the audible alarm for the number of seconds you specified in response to the timed test interval prompt of the XD command verb. When the response is zero seconds, the beeper sounds for the shortest possible time. When the response is other than zero, the beeper sounds for the specified number of seconds. The message BEEPER SHOULD BE SOUNDING appears on the screen.

5.4.3.3 Test 3 — Intensity. Test 3 displays a ripple pattern at low intensity for a specified number of seconds, then at high intensity for the same number of seconds. To check the high and low intensity display, the test uses the ripple pattern of the LP810 diagnostic. (See Figure 5-2.) The test displays, from left to right, lines of all available nongraphic characters. Each line starts and ends with a different character.

First, the test writes the pattern in low intensity, displaying the message PATTERN SHOULD BE IN LOW INTENSITY at the top of the screen. When the screen is filled, the test holds the low intensity display for a specified number of seconds. Then, the test changes the display to a high intensity, holding the display for the same number of seconds and displaying the message PATTERN SHOULD BE IN HIGH INTENSITY at the top of the screen.

5.4.3.4 Test 4 — **Scrolling.** Test 4 exercises the terminal's ability to perform scrolling functions. It writes a line containing the 26 characters of the alphabet, A through Z, in uppercase, followed by 54 blanks on each line. This line is repeated until each row contains the pattern. The test turns on the smooth scrolling; the screen scrolls up 10 lines and down 10 lines. The test checks the pattern for accuracy.

5.4.3.5 Test 5 — Cursor. Test 5 tests the terminal's ability to perform cursor functions. The test clears the terminal screen and moves the cursor to the home position. First, the cursor moves across the screen to verify its ability to address every column while the row address remains constant. Next, the column address remains constant while the cursor accesses every row. Then, the test places the terminal in 132-character mode and repeats the same process. Finally, the test returns the terminal to 80-character mode and positions the cursor in every corner for approximately two seconds. This tests the terminal's ability to respond to the Set Cursor Address command.

5.4.3.6 Test 6 — Interactive Keyboard. Test 6 is an interactive test that checks the ability of the keyboard to send the proper ASCII code in response to the pressing of a specific key. The test checks the following keys:

NOTE

Items in all capitals in the following list refer to key names as they appear on the actual key cap.

Keyboard: UPPERCASE lowercase SHIFT key CTRL key CTRL/SHIFT keys Numeric key pad Cursor key pad Cursor key pad shift Erase, insert, delete, and PRINT keys Erase, insert, delete, and PRINT keys with SHIFT key

You must go to the target terminal and enter the information requested by the screen instructions. The test compares the character requested by the test (the expected value) to the character read from the terminal (the entered value). When the entered and expected values do not match, an error condition is recognized. The display on the target terminal is the same as that illustrated in Figure 5-3 for Test 7 on the 911 terminal.

5.5 DISKS

The disk diagnostic task exercises and tests all models of class DS devices. (It does not test single-density flexible diskettes, which are class DK devices.) The task writes a record of each controller error, software or hardware retry, and error correction from the error correction circuitry (ECC)* in the diagnostic history file (volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTORY). If you want a permanent record of the messages in the diagnostic history file, after executing the task you must print the records in the file or copy them to another file.

^{*} The controller used with the models CD1400, DS80, and DS300 disk drives provides auto detection and correction (ECC) of certain data error patterns. For more information on the ECC logic operation, refer to the *Model 990 Computer Model* CD1400 Disk Controller Depot Maintenance Manual, the Model 990 Computer Model DS80 Disk System Installation and Operation Manual, or the Model 990 Computer Model DS300 Disk System Installation and Operation.

5.5.1 Introduction

Disk tests are separated into the following categories:

- Nonextended disk tests Tests 1 through 4
- Extended read only disk tests Tests 1 through 5
- Extended write disk tests Tests 10 through 13

NOTE

The nonextended and the extended disk tests both start with test 1. This is possible since both groups of tests are completely separate tasks that are independently bid by the Online Diagnostic Driver (ODD). Tests 6 through 9 are reserved for future extended read test expansion.

5.5.1.1 Nonextended Disk Tests. Table 5-11 lists the nonextended disk tests and the information you need to execute the tests. Be sure to perform an Install Volume (IV) command on the disk before executing the nonextended disk tests.

Number	Name	Cyl. Used	State	Status
1	Read/Compare Diagnostic Cylinder	Yes	ON	IV
2	Read/Compare Diagnostic Cylinder with Head Motion	Yes	ON	IV
3	Write and Read Random Pattern	Yes	ON	IV
4	Write and Read Test Patterns	No	ON	IV

Table 5-11. Nonextended Disk Tests (File I/O Only)

Tests 1 and 2 of the nonextended disk tests (file I/O only) are read only tests that use the diagnostic cylinder. The diagnostic cylinder is the innermost cylinder on all disks that have been initialized under DNOS Release 1.0.0 or later, or DX10 Release 3.3.0 or later. It contains special diagnostic data in a file named volumename.S\$DIAG. Disk packs that have not been initialized under DX10 Release 3.3.0 (or later) or DNOS Release 1.0.0 (or later) do not contain the diagnostic cylinder and cannot be tested with nonextended disk tests 1 or 2. This same restriction can also apply to FD1000 floppy disks. If, while performing the Initialize New Volume (INV) command on the floppy disk, someone specified YES to the USED AS A SYSTEM DISK? prompt, the floppy disk does not contain the diagnostic cylinder and cannot be tested with nonextended disk tests 1 or 2.

Tests 3 and 4 of the nonextended disk tests are read/write tests that create an output file on the target disk. The file is two cylinders in length and is named volumename.S\$ODDWRT. It is erased after Test 4 is executed.

5.5.1.2 Extended Read Only Disk Tests. Table 5-12 lists the extended read only disk tests and the information you need to execute the tests. None of the extended read tests use the diagnostic cylinder. Be sure to perform an IV command on the disk before executing the extended read only disk tests.

Test Number	Test Name	Diag Cyl. Used	Device State	Volume Status
1	Read Specified Tracks	No	ON	IV
2	Consecutive Sector Read	No	ON	IV
3	Jitter Seek/Read (With random head selection)	No	ON	IV
4	Random Seek/Read	No	ON	IV
5	Crescendo Seek/Read (Seek and verify all tracks)	No	ON	IV

 Table 5-12.
 Extended Read Only Disk Tests (Direct Disk I/O)

The extended read only tests perform direct track addressing (direct disk I/O). Target disks for these tests must be in the online device state. When the target disk is in the online device state, other users and tasks can access the disk while the diagnostic task is executing. This creates a usage environment with activity and stress equal to or greater than that of a normal production workload.

5.5.1.3 Extended Write Disk Tests. Table 5-13 lists the extended write disk tests and the information you need to execute the tests. These tests can only be performed on unloaded volumes that are in the diagnostic (DIAG) state.

Test Number	Test Name	Diag. Cyl. Used	Device State	Volume Status
10	Command Verification/ID Error Check	No	DIAG	UV
11	Format/Verify Tracks	No	DIAG	UV
12	Write/Read/Compare Tracks	No	DIAG	UV
13	Comprehensive Write/Seek/Read	No	DIAG	UV

Table 5-13. Extended Write Disk Tests

Tests 10 through 13 are the extended write tests. Target disks for these tests must be scratch disks in the diagnostic device state. Be sure not to perform an IV command on the disk before putting it in the diagnostic state; if it has been installed, be sure to unload it with a UV command before you issue a DIAG command or command verb. The driver displays the prompt for the extended write disk tests when it initiates the disk diagnostic task only when the target disk is in the diagnostic state.

WARNING

Tests 10 through 13 will destroy data on the target disk. Therefore, you must execute these tests only on scratch disks. Once these tests are performed on the target disk, you must perform an IDS command on the disk before reusing it.

You can perform the extended write disk tests even on disk packs that have not been initialized under DX10 Release 3.3.0 (or later) or DNOS Release 1.0.0 (or later). Such disk packs can be used as scratch disks for the extended write disk tests, but remember that data on the surfaces being tested will be destroyed.

To begin the disk diagnostic task, enter the name of the target disk in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL DSxx

where:

DS identifies the disk device class.

xx is the device number of the particular disk to be tested.

To select all disks on the system that are in either the online or the diagnostic state, enter only the device class DS. The driver responds with additional prompts, providing you with options for categories of tests and requesting additional information for some of the tests. All of the prompts and prompt responses for executing disk diagnostics are described in Section 4.

5.5.2 Test Descriptions — Nonextended Disk Tests

The following paragraphs describe the nonextended disk tests in detail.

5.5.2.1 Test 1 — Read/Compare Diagnostic Cylinder. Test 1 sequentially reads the diagnostic cylinder and checks the data for accuracy. The front panel lights can indicate disk activity, and the beginning messages of the test are written to the diagnostic history file along with error messages. There are no other visible effects of this test.

5.5.2.2 Test 2 — Read/Compare Diagnostic Cylinder With Head Motion. Test 2 reads records from the diagnostic cylinder, located on the innermost cylinder of the disk, and then moves the read/write heads to the outermost cylinder of the disk. Test 2 checks the data for accuracy. The read-move-read-move cycle is repeated throughout the test. The purpose of this cycle is to force the read/write heads to move rapidly from the inside to the outside of the disk between read operations.

The front panel lights can indicate disk activity, and beginning messages of the test are written to the history file along with error messages. In most cases, the target disk drive visibly vibrates or shakes during this test. Also, noise levels may increase due to the large volume of disk activity.

5.5.2.3 Test 3 — Write and Read Random Pattern. Test 3 writes the diagnostic cylinder data to the diagnostic write file (volumename.S\$ODDWRT). The test reads the data, checks it for accuracy, and records mismatches in the diagnostic history file. The diagnostic write file is left on the disk so that you can examine it; however, the next test (Test 4) erases the diagnostic write file at its completion.

5.5.2.4 Test 4 — Write and Read Test Patterns. Test 4 fills the diagnostic write file with hexadecimal patterns of data. Then, the test reads the file, record by record, and compares it to what is written. Any mismatch is recognized as an error condition. The test fills the file again with the next pattern and continues to fill and read the file until all the patterns are used. Test 4 then deletes the diagnostic write file.

The first hexadecimal data pattern is generated as follows: the first record contains > 01; each successive record contains a value that is > 101 greater than the previous value, until the value meets or exceeds > FFFF. Data patterns 2 through 6 are as follows:

Pattern	Data
2	>0000
3	> 5555
4	>AAAA
5	> FFFF
6	>DB67

5.5.3 Test Descriptions — Extended Read Only Disk Tests

The following paragraphs describe the disk device diagnostic tests in detail.

5.5.3.1 Test 1 — Read Specified Tracks. If you do not accept the default options for Test 1 of the extended read only disk tests, you must specify the following:

- Starting and ending heads and cylinders
- Early, late, or no strobes
- Forward, reverse, or no offset

For more information about strobes and offsets for a particular disk drive, you must consult the appropriate disk drive installation and operation manual listed in the Preface.

The task executes a Read Data command and transfers a full track of data from the specified starting head and cylinder through the specified ending head and cylinder to memory for each track specified. If defaults are accepted, all tracks are tested. The test checks to ensure that no error bits are turned on in either the controller status word (TILINE Peripheral Control Space (TPCS) word 7), or the disk status word (TPCS word 0) after each track is read and records any error conditions in the diagnostic history file.

If the selected drive has early/late strobe and head-offset capabilities, and you select the driver prompt that enables them, the test reads each track using the combination of strobes and/or offsets as entered. The test does not report errors that occur on tracks that the operating system has mapped as bad (catalogued in track 0, sector 1). Only the status of uncatalogued tracks is reported to the history file. To view the error report, use the Show File (SF) command verb and accept the default option.

5.5.3.2 Test 2 — **Consecutive Sector Read.** Test 2 runs only in a default mode (no prompting for heads, cylinders, and so on). With a Read Data command, the task alternately reads a sector from track 0 and then a sector from the maximum numbered track. Then, after incrementing the sector address, the task repeats this action. This process continues until the last sector in both track 0 and the maximum numbered track have been read. Early/late strobe and head-offset capabilities are not used in Test 2. Errors are reported as described in Test 1 of the extended read only disk tests.

5.5.3.3 Test 3 — Jitter Seek (With Random Head Selection). Test 3 executes only in a default mode, and executes a series of Seek commands, selecting the head through the use of a random number generator. Beginning with the center cylinder of the disk, Test 3 seeks toward the outermost cylinder and then the innermost cylinder of the disk. Then the test increments the inner cylinder and decrements the outer cylinder used in the last Seek command and performs two more seeks. This process continues until the outer cylinder equals zero and the inner cylinder equals the maximum numbered cylinder for the disk. Test 3 runs only in the default mode and does not use any early/late strobe and head-offset capabilities. Errors are reported as described in Test 1 of the extended read only disk tests.

5.5.3.4 Test 4 — Random Seek. When you select Test 4, the driver displays the following prompt on the screen:

ENTER NUMBER OF RANDOM SEEKS (1....32767)? 1000

When you have entered the designated number of seeks or accepted the default, Test 4 issues a Seek command using a random number generator to select the track address. Errors are reported as described in Test 1 of the extended read only disk tests.

5.5.3.5 Test 5 — **Crescendo Seek (Seek and Verify All Tracks).** Test 5 executes a Seek command from each track to every other track, starting with the values entered for starting head and cylinder, and ending with the values entered for ending head and cylinder. The track addressing algorithm is implemented by use of a starting track counter (STC) and a track address register (TAR). Initially both the STC and the TAR are set to the track addressed by the entered starting head and starting cylinder values. The first seek is made to the track addressed by the TAR. The second seek is made to the track addressed by the STC. The TAR is then incremented by one and the two-seek sequence is repeated. This sequence continues until the TAR reaches the track addressed by the ending head and cylinder values entered from prompts. At this point, the STC is incremented by one, the TAR is set equal to the STC, and seeking resumes. This entire sequence continues until the STC reaches the track addressed by the entered ending head and ending cylinder values. Note that after the seek to TAR, a seek is always made back to the STC; the STC is not incremented until the TAR reaches maximum and the test does not finish until the STC reaches maximum.

CAUTION

Test 5 can easily take several hours to complete if a large number of tracks are specified.

If you specify defaults for this test, only one pass is made through all tracks of the selected drive. This means that the test completes when the TAR reaches maximum the first time and terminates before the STC is incremented. Errors are reported as described in Test 1 of the extended read only disk tests.

5.5.4 Test Descriptions — Extended Write Disk Tests

The following paragraphs describe the extended write disk tests in detail.

NOTE

Prior to executing any of the extended write disk tests, an Initialize Disk Surface (IDS) command should have been performed on the selected disk in order for the disk tests to avoid any bad tracks.

5.5.4.1 Test 10 — Command Verification/ID Error Check. Test 10 checks the proper execution of the Write Unformatted disk command, and the controller's ability to detect an ID error. You should be aware that the test forces an ID error, and that ID error is reported to the system log. This is an expected error, and should not be regarded as a failure.

Test 10 performs the following sequence of steps:

- 1. Executes a Write Format command to format a track and write one sector of data.
- 2. Executes a Read Unformatted command to recover the ID words, the data, and the CRC.
- 3. Alters one of the ID words.
- 4. Executes a Write Unformatted command to rewrite the ID words, the data, and the CRC.
- 5. Issues a Read Data command in an attempt to recover the original information. The controller-calculated CRC and the actual CRC should now be different.
- 6. Checks to ensure that the ID error bit is set in controller status.
- 7. Executes a Write Unformatted command to write the correct ID words.
- 8. Executes a Read Data command to ensure that the header has been corrected. An ID error should not occur.

NOTE

You cannot run this test on FD1000, WD500, or WD800 disks because the controllers do not support the functions necessary to modify and/or recover header ID words. If you respond ALL to the ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST? prompt when testing the disks listed, only the prompts for 11 and 12 will appear.

5.5.4.2 Test 11 — Format/Verify Tracks. Test 11 formats tracks using the Write Format command. Available tracks are formatted to one sector per record, beginning with the starting head and cylinder (which you specify) and ending with the ending head and cylinder (which you also specify). Test 11 verifies each track by executing a Read Unformatted command after each available Write Format command, and comparing the actual header words with the expected values. If defaults are accepted, all tracks are formatted.

NOTE

Available tracks are all tracks specified, except those reserved for the bad track map, and those mapped by the system as being bad.

5.5.4.3 Test 12 — Write/Read/Compare Tracks. Test 12 writes a full track of data beginning with the starting head and cylinder, which you specify, and ending with the ending head and cylinder. After writing each track, the test reads the track and compares it bit for bit. Mismatches are recorded as errors, and the number of errors found are recorded in the history file.

5.5.4.4 Test 13 — Comprehensive Write/Seek/Read. Test 13 performs the following functions to test a target disk:

- Write and read all tracks sequentially
- Perform all seek lengths

In performing these functions, Test 13 concentrates its operations on the cylinders that present worst-case bit crowding (inner cylinders) and those cylinders most likely to contain servo crosstalk (outer cylinders). In these two critical zones, the test provides random track selection.

While sequentially writing and reading full tracks from cylinder 0 through the maximum numbered cylinder, the test performs the following steps:

- 1. Performs a Read command to read one sector of the maximum numbered cylinder for the selected head
- 2. Writes a randomly selected track within a zone of cylinders from 0 through 49 (zone 1)
- 3. Reads a randomly selected track within a zone of cylinders from 49 to the maximum numbered cylinder (zone 2)
- 4. Reads the track written in step number 2

Once Test 13 performs the preceding steps, it repeats them again. However, on this second pass, steps 2 and 3 exchange cylinder zones; that is, in step 2 the test writes a randomly selected track within zone 2, and in step 3, the test reads a randomly selected track from zone 1.

5.6 MAGNETIC TAPES

The MT979 diagnostic task tests the 979, 979A, MT1600 Magnetic Tape Units or the WD800 cartridge tape unit. It exercises the tape drive functions of rewind, read, write, detect end-of-file (EOF), backspace single and multiple records, and forward space single and multiple records. It also tests the ability to correctly handle requests for erroneous record lengths. The test writes errors to the diagnostic history file.

5.6.1 MT979 — Models 979, 979A, and MT1600 Magnetic Tape Units

The MT979 diagnostic task is composed of eight tests that are classified as either short or long. Tests 1 through 5 are short tests and are the default selection. Tests 6, 7, and 8 are the long tests: 6 and 7 because they take a long time to execute; 8 because it provides you with an additional option for executing with or without the write ring. When you select the MT979 diagnostic task, a second prompt will ask you whether you want to execute the long tests. If you select the long tests, you need to also decide whether you want to execute Test 8 with or without the write ring. Table 5-14 lists the tests of the MT979 diagnostic.

Test Number	Test Name
1	Basic Read/Write Test With Rewind.
2	Basic Read/Write Test With Backspace.
3	Forward Creep Test.
4	Even/Odd Record Length Write and Read Test.
5	Special Movement and End-of-File.
6	Write Full Reel of Tape, Check for EOT.
7	Read Full Rell of Tape, Check for EOT.
8	Write Ring and Recording Density Check.

Table 5-14. MT979 Tests

The target tape drive must be in the diagnostic device state. You must mount a tape on the target tape drive. For more information about tape mounting, refer to the installation and operation manual for your particular tape drive.

To begin the MT979 diagnostic, enter the name of the target tape drive in response to the ENTER DEVICE NAME? prompt of the XD command verb, as follows:

ENTER DEVICE NAME? ALL MTxx

where:

MT identifies the MT979 diagnostic task.

xx is the device number of the particular tape drive to be tested.

To select all tape drives that are in the diagnostic state, enter only the device class MT.

The diagnostic has both long and short duration tests. The short tests are the default selection tests (tests 1 through 5). If you only want to execute tests 1 through 5, answer the USE DEFAULT OPTIONS prompt with YES. However, if you want to execute all tests (including tests 5 through 8, be aware that the long tape tests (test 6 through 8) have excessive execution times, and that test 8 may require installing or removing the write ring. To perform all tests, answer each of the prompts that follow as shown in the right angle brackets beneath them.

```
USE DEFAULT OPTIONS (YES, NO)? YES
<NO>
ENTER PRIORITY LEVEL (1,2,3)? 3
<either 1, 2, or 3>
CHANGE TEST EXECUTION MODE (YES, NO)? NO
<YES>
ENTER NEW EXECUTION MODE (TEST, OPERATION)? TEST
<TEST>
ENTER DIAGNOSTIC TEST (INTEGER, ALL)? ALL
<ALL>
EXECUTE THE LONG TAPE TESTS (YES, NO)? NO
<YES>
```

5.6.2 Test Descriptions

The following paragraphs describe the MT diagnostic tests in detail.

5.6.2.1 Test 1 — Basic Read/Write With Rewind. Test 1 exercises the target tape drive by repeatedly performing the following steps:

- 1. Rewinds the tape.
- 2. Writes a record that is 256 characters long.
- 3. Rewinds the tape. The tape should now be positioned at the beginning of the record written in step 2.
- 4. Reads the 256-character record.
- 5. Compares the data in the record read in step 4 with the record written in step 2. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition.

5.6.2.2 Test 2 — Basic Read/Write With Backspace. Test 2 exercises the target tape drive by repeatedly performing the following steps:

- 1. Writes a record that is 256 characters long.
- 2. Backspaces the tape one record. The tape should now be positioned at the beginning of the record written in step 1.
- 3. Reads the 256-character record.
- 4. Compares the data in the record read in step 3 with the record written in step 1. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition.

5.6.2.3 Test 3 — Forward Creep. Test 3 exercises the target tape drive by repeatedly performing the following steps:

- 1. Writes two records that are each 256 characters long.
- 2. Backspaces one record. The tape should now be positioned at the beginning of the second record.
- 3. Reads the 256-character record.
- 4. Compares the data in the record read in step 3 with the record written in step 1. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition.
- 5. The test is performed 100 times.

The pattern is as follows: write, write, backspace, and read. The first record written is not read, the second is, the third is not, and so on. Alternate records are read back and compared. Any comparison error indicates a forward tape creep.

5.6.2.4 Test 4 — Even/Odd Write and Read. Test 4 exercises the target tape drive by repeatedly performing the following steps:

- 1. Rewinds the tape.
- 2. Writes 20 records in the following record lengths: 16, 17, 32, 33, 64, 65, 128, 129, 512, 513, 1024, 1025, 2048, 2049, 3096, 3097, 4096, 4097, 8191, and 8192.
- 3. Rewinds the tape.
- 4. Reads back the 20 records, one at a time.
- 5. Compares each record with the corresponding record written in step 2. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition.

For this test, the input and output buffers are separate buffers. Data comparison consists of logical comparisons, character by character, between the separate buffers.

5.6.2.5 Test 5 — Special Movement and End-of-File. Test 5 exercises the target tape drive by repeatedly performing the following steps:

- 1. Writes an EOF marker on the tape.
- 2. Writes 16 records in the following record lengths: 31, 32, 63, 64, 79, 80, 127, 128, 511, 512, 1023, 1024, 2047, 2048, 4095, and 4096.
- 3. Writes another EOF marker on the tape.
- 4. Backspaces one record. The tape should now be positioned at the EOF marker. Checks for the EOF marker.
- 5. Attempts to read an 80-character record. Checks for the EOF marker.
- 6. Backspaces one record. Checks for the EOF marker.
- 7. Forward spaces one record. The tape should now be positioned after the EOF marker. Checks for the EOF marker.
- 8. Backspaces one record. Checks for the EOF marker.
- 9. Backspaces 17 records. The tape should now be positioned at the first EOF marker, written in step 1.
- 10. Attempts a read for a record length of 1024 bytes. This read should result in an EOF condition.
- 11. Checks for an EOF condition.
- 12. Forward spaces five records. The tape should now be positioned at the 80-character record.

- 13. Attempts to read a record length of 2047 bytes.
- 14. Checks to see that the character length read was actually 80 bytes.
- 15. Compares those 80 bytes with the record written in step 2. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error.
- 16. Forward spaces nine records. The tape should now be positioned at the 4096-character record.
- 17. Reads the 4096-character record.
- 18. Compares the data of this record with the record written in step 2. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition.
- 19. Backspaces 3 records.
- 20. Reads the 2048-character record.
- 21. Compares the data of this record with the record written in step 2. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition.

For this test, the input and output buffers are separate buffers. Data comparison consists of logical comparisons, character by character, between the separate buffers.

5.6.2.6 Test 6 — Write Full Reel and Check for End-of-Tape. Test 6 writes a full reel of records and checks for an end-of-tape (EOT) condition. The records are 19,200 characters in length. Because Test 6 writes a full reel of tape, it can execute for long periods of time. This test is classified as long and must be selected by entering YES when the long tape test prompt appears on the screen. Accepting the default will exclude it from the tape tests you select.

The output tape from Test 6 is used as input for Test 7. A suggested use of Tests 6 and 7 is to alternate tape drives for both of the tests. This provides a drive-to-drive compatibility measurement that is useful in isolating the source of certain malfunctions.

5.6.2.7 Test 7 — **Read Full Reel and Check for End-of-Tape.** Test 7 reads the records on the tape from Test 6 and compares them with what should have been written. Any discrepancy is recognized as an error condition. The test also checks for the EOT condition. The input tape must be the tape created in Test 6. Because Test 7 reads a full reel of tape, it can execute for long periods of time. This test is classified as long and must be selected by entering YES when the long tape test prompt appears on the screen. Accepting the default will exclude it from the tape tests you select.

A suggested use of Tests 6 and 7 is to alternate tape drives for both of the tests. This provides a drive-to-drive compatibility measurement that is useful in isolating the source of certain malfunctions.

5.6.2.8 Test 8 — Write Ring Status/Recording Type. Test 8 checks the write ring status bit, the device state, and recording type status bits. It displays the write ring status at the control terminal. You can leave the ring on or off for this test. This test is classified as long to allow removal or insertion of the write ring before execution of the test. It must be selected by entering YES when the long tape test prompt appears on the screen. Accepting the default will exclude it from the tape tests you select.

The test writes the device state of the target tape drive to the history file. When the drive is in a LOAD condition (READY light on), the drive should be in the online device state. When the drive is in a RESET condition (READY light off), the drive should be in the offline device state.

The recording type is displayed at the control terminal. The recording types are as follows:

- Phase-encoded (PE) recording, 1600 bits per inch (bpi)
- Nonreturn-to-zero inverted (NRZI), 800 bpi

5.7 MEMORY EXERCISER TEST

The memory exerciser test first fills a 14,000-character buffer in memory with a specific character pattern. Then, the test reads the data and compares the actual value with the expected value. If the test finds a discrepancy, it writes an error message to the diagnostic history file. The test reads the next specified pattern into the memory buffer and repeats the process until it executes all seven patterns.

NOTE

The XMEM diagnostic has a governor that does not allow you to enter more memory tasks than the system can accommodate at one time. The governor determines the maximum number of memory tasks according to the size of your system's memory. The prompt ENTER NUMBER OF MEMORY TASKS? (1..X) shows the maximum number of tasks (X) that you are allowed to enter. If you enter a larger value than X, the diagnostic returns an error, and reprompts you for another value. Table 5-15 shows the seven patterns.

 Table 5-15. Memory Exerciser Test Data Patterns	
 Data Pattern	
1010	
0000	
5555	
AAA	
FFFF	
I – INDEX (Incrementing Pattern)	
I – INVERSE (Decrementing Pattern)	

System Log Analysis Task

6.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The System Log Analysis Task provides you with information about the reliability of the hardware devices and memory on your system by analyzing and reporting on the system log files. The DNOS Release 1.2 Operating System maintains two system log files. In these files it stores information about errors along with messages generated by hardware operations, input/output (I/O) operations, tasks, and user programs. This recording of system activity occurs at all times when the operating system is active.

There are many types of system log records. However, the System Log Analysis Task analyzes and reports only on the following record types:

- Device error
- Memory parity error
- Cache memory error
- Device statistics
- Disk volume install and unload

You can find descriptions of the records processed by the System Log Analysis Task in paragraph 6.5.

The System Log Analysis Task maintains three additional files that must be on the system disk. They are the following:

- volumename.S\$DML File to which compressed system logs are concatenated. This
 is a circular file which keeps the records until they are overwritten by new records, or
 deleted by the Execute System Log Analyzer Purge (XSLAP) command.
- volumename.S\$SLARPT File to which the analysis reports are written.
- volumename.S\$SLAMSG File containing a list of messages used in the System Log Analysis Task reports. Each message is assigned a hexadecimal number. Most of the numbers and messages correspond to the supervisor call (SVC) error codes in the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual.

NOTE

In the preceding list, volumename is the name of the system disk and is optional in building and accessing system files. Hereafter the three files will be referred to as .S\$DML, .S\$SLARPT, and .S\$SLAMSG.

6.2 METHOD OF OPERATION

The System Log Analysis Task compresses, sorts, and analyzes the system log files. Each time the task is activated, it compresses the records on the system log file which is currently active and concatenates them onto the .S\$DML file. This file is limited in size to 30 records and, when it is full, newly compressed records are written over previously compressed records. After compressing the records, the task retrieves an appropriate message for each record from the .S\$SLAMSG file. The retrieved messages are sorted as follows:

- 1. Alphabetically by class of the device in question:
 - a. Devices are arranged numerically within each class.
 - b. Memory messages are placed at the end.
- 2. Numerically by message number: when a volume unload or install occurs, the message number order starts over.

Each error message is then matched up with its record from the compressed record file; the new records, sorted and formatted into the requested level report, are stored in the System Log Analysis report file, volumename.S\$SLARPT. From that file you can print the report. A report of any of the three levels can be generated for:

- All devices (the default option)
- All devices in one class
- Any specific device

The level one report provides a summary of system log activity containing information that may point to errors (or developing errors) in devices or memory. Recommendations concerning the number of errors, the possibility of a hardware problem, and the need for corrective or scheduled maintenance are also supplied.

The level two report supplies the same information as the level one report with the addition of a copy of each record that was logged to the system log file. The complete records provide detail to those familiar with system hardware and software. The information in the level one report frequently indicates the need for a level two report.

The level three report is a combination of the levels one and two reports. It provides you with a summary of system log activity and recommendations for devices that have received more than a minimum number of errors. It also includes complete copies of the system log records that contain the errors.

Typical level one, two, and three reports are presented at the end of this section. (See Figure 6-3, Figure 6-4, and Figure 6-5.)

6.3 RELATIONSHIP TO ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS

Online Diagnostics provoke certain system error conditions and events. The operating system is active when Online Diagnostics are executed, and it writes records of these provoked system errors and events to the system log files. No distinction is made between those system log records resulting from usual system activity and those resulting from Online Diagnostics. Therefore, no distinction is made on the System Log Analysis Task reports.

Online Diagnostics have error messages identifying specific diagnostic test failures. These messages are listed in Appendix H. They are not part of the system log and are not included in the System Log Analysis Task reports. While they may coincide with system log errors under some conditions, this is not always true, as in the case of correctable device errors. Such errors cause a system log record, but cause neither a diagnostic error message nor a history file record.

When you are executing Online Diagnostics, you may want to produce a Systems Log Analysis Task report. You can call the task from an Online Diagnostics session with the Execute System Log Analyzer (XSLA) command verb.

6.4 INITIALIZING THE SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS TASK

The System Log Analysis Task is activated in one of two ways:

- Automatically
- With the Execute System Log Analyzer (XSLA) Command (either from SCI or the driver)

6.4.1 Automatic Activation

When you initialize your system logs with the Initialize System Log (ISL) command, the System Log Analysis Task identification (ID) is assigned. When a log file is filled, the system calls the task which processes the records in that file. The ISL command displays the following prompts:

```
[] ISL
INITIALIZE SYSTEM LOG
ATTENTION DEVICE: pathname
LOGGING DEVICE: pathname
MODIFY FILE PROCESSING?: NO
RECREATE FILES?: NO
```

Refer to the DNOS System Command Interpreter (SCI) Reference Manual for specific information on proper responses to the ISL prompts. For automatic activation, however, you must respond YES to the MODIFY FILE PROCESSING? prompt. As soon as you have done so, the next two prompts appear:

INITIALIZE SYSTEM LOG SYSTEM LOG PROCESSOR TASK ID: 000 USER LOG PROCESSOR TASK ID: 000

Enter 051 as your response to the SYSTEM LOG PROCESSOR TASK ID prompt, and accept the default value for the next prompt.

In order to have the System Log Analysis Task Report printed while in the automatic mode, you must perform a Modify Spooler Device (MSD) command.

The prompts for the MSD command appear as follows:

MODIFY SPOOLER DEVICE DEVICE NAME: LPxx SPOOLER MODE (E,S,Q,D): SHARED FORM: STANDARD CHANGE CLASS NAME(S)?: NO

Enter the name of the device on which you want to print the System Log Analysis Task report. Accept the default values for the next two prompts. For the CHANGE CLASS NAME(S)? prompt, you must specify YES; after which the last of the series of MSD prompts appears:

ENTER CLASS NAME CHANGE CLASS NAME(S):

Enter SLARPT in response to the ENTER CLASS NAME CHANGE prompt. You have now completed the necessary modifications to enable volumename.S\$SLARPT to be printed while executing in the automatic mode.

6.4.2 Initialization with the XSLA Command

You can enter the XSLA command as either an SCI command or as a diagnostics driver command verb during a diagnostic session. The command bids the System Log Analysis Task. It then compresses the current log file regardless of whether it is full, concatenates it onto .S\$DML, and reports on the entire contents of that file (including the previously compressed log files).

The format of the XSLA command executed from SCI is as follows:

[] XSLA

```
EXECUTE LOG ANALYSIS REPORT - VERSION 1.2.0
LEVEL(1,2,3): 1
ANALYSIS OUTPUT PRINTER(0-9): 0
SPECIFIC DEVICE: ALL
```

The format of the XSLA command verb executed from the driver is as follows:

ENTER COMMAND VERB? XSLA ENTER DEVICE NAME FOR SLA? ALL ENTER SLA MESSAGE LEVEL (1,2,3)? 1 ENTER OUTPUT PRINTER (0=.S\$SLARPT ONLY, 1..9=PRINTER NUMBER)? O SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS TASK HAS BEGUN EXECUTION.

LEVEL refers to the level number (1, 2, or 3) of the System Log Analysis Task report. The prompts allow you to print the report, or you can call it to the screen with the Show Diagnostic Files (SF) command verb using the file .S\$SLARPT.

6.5 PURGE RECORDS IN .S\$DML FILE — XSLAP COMMAND

The Purge Records in .S\$DML File (XSLAP) command purges existing data from the System Log Analysis master log file (.S\$DML) when hardware problems have been corrected and the existing error data must be eliminated. XSLAP executes only from SCI (not from Online Diagnostics).

The format of the XSLAP command is as follows:

```
[ ] XSLAP

PURGE RECORDS IN .S$DML FILE - VERSION 1.2.0

STARTING DATE (MMDD):

ENDING DATE (MMDD):

DEVICE NAME:
```

The STARTING DATE and ENDING DATE prompts require a four-digit input, two for month (MM) and two for the date (DD). The DEVICE NAME prompt requires one of the following:

- A device class (DS, LP, ST, and so on)
- A specific device (DS04, LP01, ST17, and so on)
- ALL (All devices) All records between the starting and ending dates will be purged for the device(s) you specify in response to the DEVICE NAME prompt. If you leave the DEVICE NAME prompt blank, XSLAP purges the records for all devices between the starting and ending dates.

6.6 SYSTEM LOG RECORDS

The system log consists of system log messages on a pair of mandatory disk files (.S\$LOG1 and .S\$LOG2), and optionally on a dedicated output device. There are many types of messages. You can find examples and field descriptions of all types of system log records in the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual.

Figure 6-1 shows the types of records processed by the System Log Analysis Task. Figure 6-2 shows examples of actual system log records and tells you which ones are processed by the System Log Analysis Task.

All records contain the date and time of occurrence of the recorded event as the first two fields of the record. The date is expressed as a 4-digit combination; the first 2 digits representing the month, and the last 2 digits representing the day. The time is expressed on the basis of the 24-hour clock. A plus sign (+) before the third field indicates that the record has more than one line. Each type of system log record analyzed by the task is described in the following paragraphs.

6.6.1 Device Error Records

Two types of device errors produce messages for the system log; one is software-generated, the other is hardware-generated.

RECORD TYPE	MESSAGE TYPE
1	DEVICE ERROR MESSAGES
1a	SOFTWARE ERRORS
1b	HARDWARE ERRORS
2	MEMORY PARITY ERROR MESSAGES
3	CACHE MEMORY ERROR MESSAGES
4	DEVICE STATISTICS
5	DISK VOLUME LOAD AND UNLOAD MESSAGES

2282963

Figure 6-1. System Log Messages Processed by SLA

і і Түре '	System Los Records
·	
	27
: 1b:0917:1959+DS04	ERR=18 JOB=0003 IID=06 A=F0F0 0700 0100 0000 0006 4AF8 0400 9001
1 1 1 1	S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=21 B=FFFF 0700 0100 0000 0006 4AF8 0400 1000;
	**** 1 LOG MESSAGE(S) LOST
: :0917:2000	SYSTEM LOG ANALYZER HAS STARTED PROCESSING
: :0917:2000	SYSTEM LOG ANALYZER HAS FINISHED PROCESSING
: :0917:2001 TASK	ERR=10 JOB=0003 IID=07 RID=1F ST09 WP=3446 PC=28D8 ST=21CF
10100:0000	**** SYSTEM IPL OCCURRED
: :0917:2203	**** DATE AND TIME INITIALIZED
10917:2203	**** INITIALIZE SYSTEM LOG COMMAND PROCESSED :
5 :0919:0902	**** SCI - IV JEW025 AT STO7 INSTALLED DNODOBJ IN DS03
: 4 :0919:0903 STAT	DEV=DS03 RDS G=0006 B=0000 WRTS G=0000 B=0000 OTHER G=0000 B=0000;
: 5 :0919:0903	**** SCI - UV JEW025 AT STO7 UNLOADED DNODOBJ
2 10919:0959 MEMP	BIT=00 ROW=0C CORRECT=Y BASE=00000 MEM=64KB TYPE=1 TPCS=FB10
1a:0919:1035+DS05	ERR=1C JOB=0004 IID=17 BLOCK= 0000 001C 0A02 C000 9014 0100
1 1	S=00 L=02 ST09 RID=30
1610922:2104+MT01	ERR=45 JOB=0002 IID=35 A=0000 0000 2847 0000 0000 BB70 8609 84201
	S=01 L=03 ST09 RID=32 B=0000 0000 0000 0000 2580 5160 8609 1000;
1610923:1329+LP02	ERR=06 JOB=0003 IID=59 A=59EC :
	F=00 L=02 STXX RID=1D B=59FC
10926:1113	**** QUEUE SERVER BID ERROR, JOB=0000 IID=00 LUNG=00 ERR=06 ;
3 10926:1225 NEMC	BANK=A PARITY: A=G, B=G BASE=1F000 MEM=64KB EVEN=Y TPCS=FB10
5 0926:1434	**** SCI - IV JEW025 AT STO4 INSTALLED RAL7 IN DS03
	:

Figure 6-2. Typical System Log Records

6.6.1.1 Software-Generated Device Error Records. The device service routine (DSR) generates software error records. The example that follows shows a software-generated device error.

EXAMPLE

0919:1035+DS05 ERR=1C JOB=0004 IID=17 BLOCK= 0000 001C 0A02 C000 9014 0100 S=00 L=02 ST09 RID=30 The fields of the device software error record are as follows:

Field	Description
ERR	Type of error shown in hexadecimal, occurring when I/O SVC $>$ 00 is issued
JOB	Job ID of the job in which the task in error was running, shown in hexadecimal
IID	Installed task ID, shown in hexadecimal
BLOCK	The first six words of the SVC block in error, shown in hexa- decimal
S, F	Number of controller retries, shown in decimal. When S, opera- tion successfully completed. When F, operation failed.
L	Logical Unit Number (LUNO) assigned for this I/O request, shown in hexadecimal
STxx	Station requesting I/O services
RID	Task run ID, shown in hexadecimal

6.6.1.2 Hardware-Generated Device Error Records. Device hardware error records are the result of hardware failures or error conditions. In the following example, a magnetic tape parity error is encountered, indicating that the data on the tape is faulty.

EXAMPLE

0922:2104+MT01 ERR=45 JOB=0002 IID=35 A=0000 0000 2074 0000 0000 A8B0 8609 8A20 S=01 L=03 ST09 RID=32 B=0000 0000 0000 0000 2580 2BE0 8609 1000
The fields of the device hardware error record are as follows:

Field	Description
ERR	Error code for I/O SVC $>$ 00, shown in hexadecimal.
JOB	Job ID of the job in which the task in error was running, shown in hexadecimal
IID	Installed task ID, shown in hexadecimal.
S, F	Number of controller retries, shown in decimal. When S, opera- tion successfully completed. When F, operation failed.
L	LUNO assigned for this I/O request, shown in hexadecimal.
STxx	Station requesting I/O services.
RID	Task run ID, shown in hexadecimal.
A	State of controller after the operation. For TILINE* devices, state is shown as eight words. For communications register unit (CRU) devices, state is shown as one word. Value shown is hexadecimal.
В	State of controller before the operation. Always valid for TILINE devices. May contain one word for CRU devices. Value shown is hexadecimal.

6.6.2 Memory Parity Error Records

Parity errors in four types of memory produce messages that are logged to the system log and are processed by the System Log Analysis Task. The four types are:

- Normal memory (type = 0)
- Cache memory (type = 1)
- Correction control chip (type = 2)
- Double word controller (type = 3)

Each of the four types can be correctable or noncorrectable. The CORRECT field in the message tells whether the error has been corrected. Noncorrectable errors cause a level 2 interrupt to occur. If the error occurs in a system task, the system crashes. If the error occurs in a user task, the task is killed. For noncorrectable errors, the BIT and ROW fields shown in the log message are not valid. The following example shows a correctable type 1 memory error record.

^{*}TILINE is a trademark of Texas Instruments Incorporated.

EXAMPLE

0926:1554 MEMP BIT=00 ROW=0C CORRECT=Y BASE=00000 MEM=64KB TYPE=1 TPCS=FB10

The fields of the memory error record are as follows:

Field	Description
BIT	The number of the failing bit, shown in hexadecimal. Bits >0 through $>0F$ represent memory data, bits >10 through >15 represent error correcting circuit (ECC) bits. Not valid for noncorrectable errors.
ROW	The row of memory chips in which the error occurred, shown in hexadecimal. The value is within the range >0 through $>03F$. Each row has 32K bytes of memory.
CORRECT	The letter Y indicates a correctable error. The letter N indicates a noncorrectable error.
BASE	Starting physical memory address of the memory on the con- troller board, shown in hexadecimal.
MEM	Number of kilobytes (KB) of memory on the controller board, shown in decimal (type 1).
ТҮРЕ	Memory type: $0 =$ normal memory, $1 =$ cache memory, $2 =$ correction control chip, $3 =$ double word controller. Cache memory errors produce an additional record.
TPCS	TILINE Peripheral Control Space address, shown in hexadecimal. The controller interrogates the memory through this address.

6.6.3 Cache Memory Error Records

ŝ

,

If the controller is a cache controller, errors can be in the cache. The format of the cache memory error is shown in the following example.

EXAMPLE

1204:0555 MEMC BANK=A PARITY: A=B, B=G BASE=1F000 MEM=64KB EVEN=Y TPCS=FB10

The fields of the cache memory error record are as follows:

Field	Description
BANK	The memory bank (A or B) where the error occurred.
PARITY	Status of parity bit in the bank. For example, PARITY: $A = G$ indicates that the parity in bank A is good. Values for banks A or B are G for good and B for bad.
BASE	Starting physical memory address of the memory on the con- troller board, shown in hexadecimal.
MEM	Number of kilobytes (KB) of memory on the controller board, shown in decimal.
EVEN	Y indicates that the error occurred on an even-address word boundary. N indicates that the error occurred on an odd-address word boundary.
TPCS	TILINE Peripheral Control Space address, shown in hexadecimal. The controller interrogates the memory through this address.

6.6.4 Device Statistics Records

The device service routines (DSRs) generate log records that summarize statistics of device use. Three pairs of counters are kept for all devices: a Good (successful) and a Bad (failed) pair each for reads, writes, and other events. The statistics record is written when the number in any of these counters exceeds > 7FFF. Additionally, statistics records for disk devices are written when a disk volume is unloaded. The example that follows shows a device statistics record.

EXAMPLE

0919:0903 STAT DEV=DS03 RDS G=0006 B=0000 WRTS G=0000 B=0000 OTHER G=0000 B=0000

The fields of the statistics record are as follows (all values are hexadecimal):

Field	Description
DEV	Device name.
RDS	Number of read operations performed. The number of successful reads is listed in the $G = field$, the number of unsuccessful reads in the $B = field$.
WRITES	Number of write operations performed. The number of successful writes is listed in the $G =$ field, the number of unsuccessful writes in the B = field.
OTHER	Number of other operations performed. The number of successful other operations is listed in the $G =$ field, the number of unsuccessful other operations in the $B =$ field.

6.6.5 Disk Volume Install and Unload Records

.

Whenever a disk volume is installed or unloaded, a record of the event is written to the system log file. The example that follows shows disk volume install and unload records.

EXAMPLE

 0919:0902
 **** SCI - IV JEW025 AT ST07 INSTALLED DNODOBJ IN DS03

 0919:0903
 **** SCI - UV JEW025 AT ST07 UNLOADED DNODOBJ

Information included in the volume install and unload record is as follows:

Volume install: userid AT stationid INSTALLED volumename IN devicename Volume unload: userid AT stationid UNLOADED volumename

I.

6.7 SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS TASK REPORTS

Each of the three System Log Analysis Task reports contain two parts as follows:

- A summary of the log records accumulated for each device
- Recommendations that are based on the number and type of errors found

The summary includes the DNOS error code and the corresponding message for each accumulation. The level two and three reports also reproduce the actual records. You can find more information about the error codes and messages in the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual.

The recommendations may indicate to you the possibility of a hardware problem and/or the need for corrective maintenance. However, the statistical analysis upon which the recommendations are based does not always apply in individual cases. You need to apply your careful analysis of the reports and their implications for your particular system and devices. Also, some of the errors may be simple operational errors (device unplugged or offline) or media errors (faulty tape or disk pack). Such errors are included in the count that the task uses to produce the recommendations but have no implications for hardware problems.

The following paragraphs describe the three System Log Analysis Task reports.

6.7.1 Level One Report

The level one report is the short form report designed for the system operator and data center manager. The report consists of two parts: summaries of records and recommendations.

The first part of the report summarizes system log record information for each device. The following examples show the development of the summary of the log records for several disk drives (similar to the level one report shown in Figure 6-3). The summaries are arranged in the following order:

1. Alphabetically by device class as shown in the following:

DS

2. Numerically by unique device number. The date/time of the first and last record is included at this level. For example:

DS01 FROM 09/08/83 AT 09:44 TO 09/09/83 AT 15:11

3. By ascending hexadecimal numbers of I/O SVC error codes. Records are accumulated at this point and number of errors, code, and meaning of the code are presented in the report, as shown in the following:

DS01 FROM 09/08/83 AT 09:44 TO 09/09/83 AT 15:11

- 3 00 I/O ERROR
- 1 1D SEEK INCOMPLETE

4. Disk records are further divided by disk installs and unloads, so that accumulations of errors for each error code are made for each disk volume as well as each unique number device. Before each unload, a statistic record is included. An example of a statistic record and disk install and unload records follows:

DSKPROCD INSTALLED ON DS03 12 18 - DISK UNIT IS OFFLINE READS G=000161, B=000000 WRITES G=000000, B=000000 OTHER G=00006B, B=000000 DSKPROCD UNLOADED FROM DS03

The second part of the report presents recommendations for consideration. They are arranged by device class and number in the same way as the summaries in the first part of the report, as shown in the following:

EXAMPLE

DSO4 HAS RECEIVED ONE OR MORE ERRORS WHICH HAD UNSUCCESSFUL RETRIES. THE PRESENCE OF THESE ERRORS MAY INDICATE A NEED FOR CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE.

When the system log records are analyzed, memory is treated as a device class. The order of appearance of device classes is alphabetical, other than MEMP and MEMC which come at the end of the listing.

Devices that have not generated log records are not included in the reports.

Figure 6-3 is an example of a level one report for all devices. The title at the top of the report states that this is a level one report. Devices summarized in the report that have generated log messages are DS03, DS04, MT01, MT02, and ST13.

You can interpret the errors summarized in this report by consulting the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual for information about the error codes and messages. You can also produce a level two or three report to show the actual log records that produced the summaries in the level one report.

6.7.2 Level Two Report

The level two report is the long form report designed for those persons familiar with system hardware and software and for system maintenance personnel. This report presents summarized system log information and also shows each complete record from which the summary was compiled. The records are sorted in the same order as the level one report: device class, device number, date, and ascending hexadecimal error number. As with the level one report, entries appear only for those devices or device classes for which error records exist on the system log files.

Figure 6-4 is an example of a level two report for one specific device. The title at the top of the report states that this is a level two report for disk drive DS04. The dates and times given in the second line are the date and time of the first record to the last record for DS04 on the system log. During this time period, twelve error records have been logged to the system log file. The number of times the error has occurred, the error code, the error message, the system log records and a recommendation are included in the report.

09/19/83

15:11:49

SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT 1.2.0 -- LEVEL ONE

DS03 FROM 09/16/83 AT 11:46 TO 09/19/83 AT 13:48

7 1D - SEEK INCOMPLETE 2 EB - DISK PACK CHANGE DETECTED READS G=0000E7, B=000001 WRITES G=00009B, B=000000 OTHER G=0000D2, B=000000

DSKPROCD INSTALLED ON DS03 12 18 - DISK UNIT IS OFFLINE READS G=000161, B=000000 WRITES G=000000, B=000000 OTHER G=00006B, B=000000 DSKPROCD UNLOADED FROM DS03

DS04 FROM 09/16/83 AT 11:45 TO 09/19/83 AT 13:08

1 EB - DISK PACK CHANGE DETECTED READS G=000044, B=000000 WRITES G=000000, B=000000 OTHER G=000255, B=000002 RAL7 UNLOADED FROM DS04

MT01 FROM 09/17/83 AT 20:34 TO 09/17/83 AT 20:34

4 45 - PARITY ERROR ENCOUNTERED ON MAGNETIC TAPE

MT02 FROM 09/17/83 AT 20:34 TO 09/17/83 AT 20:34

1 43 - MAG TAPE UNIT IS OFFLINE

ST13 FROM 09/16/83 AT 12:15 TO 09/19/83 AT 11:47

19 07 - DEVICE ERROR

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS MAY BE CONSIDERED:

- DSO3 HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN SIX ERRORS THAT MAY REQUIRE ANALYSIS TO DETERMINE IF A HARDWARE PROBLEM EXISTS AND WHETHER PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE SHOULD POSSIBLY BE SCHEDULED.
- ST13 HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN TWELVE ERRORS THAT ARE OPERATIONAL TYPE ERRORS THAT MAY BE USUALLY IGNORED. THE ERRORS MAY BE ANALYZED TO DETERMINE IF A HARDWARE PROBLEM REALLY EXISTS.

END OF REQUESTED SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT

Figure 6-3. Level One Report

6.7.3 Level Three Report

The level three report is a combination of the level one and two reports. The format of the first part of the report is identical to the format of the first part of the level one report. In the second part of the report, each recommendation is followed by complete system log records for those errors which were involved in producing the recommendations. When the recommendation is informative and does not indicate errors, the complete record is omitted. 09/19/83

SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT 1.2.0 ON DEVICE DS04 -- LEVEL TWO

1 EB - DISK PACK CHANGE DETECTED

0916:1145+DS04 ERR=EB JOB=0016 IID=17 A=00F0 0000 0000 0000 0006 4AF8 0400 9000 S=00 L=02 ST08 RID=2D B=0001 8000 0000 0000 0002 4B0E 0400 1000 READS G=000044, B=000000 WRITES G=000000, B=000000 OTHER G=000255, B=000002 RAL7 UNLOADED FROM DS04

3 11 - ID WORD ERROR DURING DISK TRANSFER 0916:1203+DS04 ERR=11 JOB=0011 IID=06 A=00F0 0200 0101 0000 0120 2188 0406 9010 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=76 B=FFFF 0200 0101 0000 0120 2188 0406 1000 0916:1203+DS04 ERR=11 JOB=0011 IID=06 A=00F0 0200 0101 0000 0120 2188 0406 9010 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=76 B=FFFF 0200 0101 0000 0120 2188 0406 1000 0916:1203+DS04 ERR=11 JOB=0011 IID=06 A=00F0 0200 0101 0000 0120 2188 0406 9010 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=76 B=FFFF 0200 0101 0000 0120 2188 0406 1000 1C - ILLEGAL DISK ADDRESS 1 0916:1517+DS04 ERR=1C JOB=0011 IID=17 BLOCK= 0000 001C 0A02 C000 9014 0100 S=00 L=02 ST09 RID=93 1 1E - DATA ERROR IN HEADER OR DELETED SECTOR READ ON FLOPPY 0916:1203+DS04 ERR=1E JOB=0011 IID=06 A=00F0 0100 0100 0001 0120 2188 0406 9050 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=76 B=FFFF 0100 0100 0001 0120 2188 0406 1000 1 **EB - DISK PACK CHANGE DETECTED** 0917:1339+DS04 ERR=EB JOB=0000 IID=06 BLOCK= 0000 00EB 0B00 C000 9006 0100 S=00 L=00 STXX RID=19 READS G=000410, B=000000 WRITES G=000366, B=000000 OTHER G=000005, B=000001 DNODOBJ UNLOADED FROM DS04 READS G=0006FD, B=000000 WRITES G=000000, B=000000 OTHER G=000001, B=000000 DNODOBJ INSTALLED ON DS04 06 - I/O HAS BEEN ABORTED OR I/O OPERATION HAS TIMED OUT 1 S=00 L=01 ST04 RID=04 B=0001 C100 0100 0001 0120 42B6 0408 1000 2 11 - ID WORD ERROR DURING DISK TRANSFER 0919:0901+DS04 ERR=11 JOB=0007 IID=56 A=00F0 0200 0100 0000 0100 208C 0408 9010 S=00 L=01 ST04 RID=04 B=FFFF 0200 0100 0000 0100 208C 0408 1000 0919:0901+DS04 ERR=11 JOB=0007 IID=56 A=00F0 8000 0000 0000 0002 4B0E 0400 9010 S=06 L=01 ST04 RID=04 B=FFFF 8000 0000 0000 0002 4B0E 0400 1000

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS MAY BE CONSIDERED:

DSO4 HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN SIX ERRORS THAT MAY REQUIRE ANALYSIS TO DETERMINE IF A HARDWARE PROBLEM EXISTS AND WHETHER PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE SHOULD POSSIBLY BE SCHEDULED.

END OF REQUESTED SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT

Figure 6-4. Level Two Report

Figure 6-5 shows a typical level three report for all devices that have accumulated log records. The devices are disk unit DS03 and terminal ST13. Recommendations are given for both. Since the recommendation for ST13 is an informative message rather than a recommendation, the log records producing the message are not reproduced. Complete log records for DS03 are printed after the recommendation.

09/19/83

¥

15:28:05

SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT 1.2.0 -- LEVEL THREE

DS03 FROM 09/16/83 AT 11:46 TO 09/19/83 AT 13:48

7 1D - SEEK INCOMPLETE READS G=0000E7, B=000001 WRITES G=00009B, B=000000 OTHER G=0000D2, B=000000

ST13 FROM 09/16/83 AT 12:15 TO 09/19/83 AT 11:47

19 07 - DEVICE ERROR

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS MAY BE CONSIDERED:

DS03 HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN SIX ERRORS THAT MAY REQUIRE ANALYSIS TO

DETERMINE IF A HARDWARE PROBLEM EXISTS AND WHETHER PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE SHOULD POSSIBLY BE SCHEDULED. 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 1000 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 1000 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 1000 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 1000 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 1000 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE8 0120 FBC8 0804 1000 0916:1208+DS03 ERR=1D JOB=0011 IID=06 A=04F0 0200 0100 FFE3 0EA0 FBC8 0804 9001 S=00 L=01 ST09 RID=79 B=FFFF 0200 0100 FFE3 0EA0 FBC8 0804 1000

ST13 HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN TWELVE ERRORS THAT ARE OPERATIONAL TYPE

ERRORS THAT MAY BE USUALLY IGNORED. THE ERRORS MAY BE ANALYZED TO DETERMINE IF A HARDWARE PROBLEM REALLY EXISTS.

END OF REQUESTED SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS REPORT

Figure 6-5. Level Three Report

· ·

Appendix A

Keycap Cross-Reference

Generic keycap names that apply to all terminals are used for keys on keyboards throughout this manual. This appendix contains specific keyboard information to help you identify individual keys on any supported terminal. For instance, every terminal has an Attention key, but not all Attention keys look alike or have the same position on the keyboard. You can use the terminal information in this appendix to find the Attention key on any terminal.

The terminals supported are the 931 VDT, 911 VDT, 915 VDT, 940 EVT, the Business System terminal, and hard-copy terminals (including teleprinter devices). The 820 KSR has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal. The 915 VDT keyboard information is the same as that for the 911 VDT except where noted in the tables.

Appendix A contains three tables and keyboard drawings of the supported terminals.

Table A-1 lists the generic keycap names alphabetically and provides illustrations of the corresponding keycaps on each of the currently supported keyboards. When you need to press two keys to obtain a function, both keys are shown in the table. For example, on the 940 EVT the Attention key function is activated by pressing and holding down the Shift key while pressing the key labeled PREV FORM NEXT. Table A-1 shows the generic keycap name as Attention, and a corresponding illustration shows a key labeled SHIFT above a key named PREV FORM NEXT.

Function keys, such as F1, F2, and so on, are considered to be already generic and do not need further definition. However, a function key becomes generic when it does not appear on a certain keyboard but has an alternate key sequence. For that reason, the function keys are included in the table.

Multiple key sequences and simultaneous keystrokes can also be described in generic keycap names that are applicable to all terminals. For example, you use a multiple key sequence and simultaneous keystrokes with the log-on function. You log on by *pressing the Attention key, then holding down the Shift key while you press the exclamation (!) key.* The same information in a table appears as *Attention/(Shift)!*.

Table A-2 shows some frequently used multiple key sequences.

Table A-3 lists the generic names for 911 keycap designations used in previous manuals. You can use this table to translate existing documentation into generic keycap documentation.

Figures A-1 through A-5 show diagrams of the 911 VDT, 915 VDT, 940 EVT, 931 VDT, and Business System terminal, respectively. Figure A-6 shows a diagram of the 820 KSR.

2274834 (1/14)

Generic Name	911 VDT	940 EVT	931 VDT	Business System Terminal	820¹ KSR
Alternate Mode	None	ALT	ALT	ALT	None
Attention ²		SHIFT			CTRL
		PREV FORM NEXT			S
Back Tab	None	SHIFT	SHIFT 🟠	None	CTRL
		TAB	Тав		Ţ
Command ²		PHLV FORM NEXT	CMD		
					Ľ
Control	CONTROL	CTRL	CTRL	CTRL	CTRL
Delete Character	DEL CHAR	HNE DTT CHAR	DEL CHAR	DEL CHAR	None
Enter		SEND	ENTER	ENTER	CTRL
					Y
Erase Field	FRASE	EOS ERASE EOF	FRASE	FRASE	CTRL

Table A-1. Generic Keycap Names

Notes:

'The 820 KSR terminal has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal with the TPD Device Service Routine (DSR). Keys on other TPD devices may be missing or have different functions.

 $^{\rm 2}$ On a 915 VDT the Command Key has the label F9 and the Attention Key has the label F10.

2284734 (2/14)

Generic Name	911 VDT	940 EVT	931 VDT	Business System Terminal	820' KSR
Erase Input	ERASE	ALL ERASE INPUT	ERASE	ERASE	
Exit	ESC	PREV PAGE NEXT	SHIFT	SHIFT	ESC
			ESC	ESC	
Forward Tab	SHIFT	ТАВ	TAB	SHIFT	CTRL
	TAB SKIP			ТАВ	
F1	F1	F1	Ē	F1	CTRL
					A
F2	F2	F2	F2	F2	CTRL
					B
F3	F3	F3	F3	F3	CTRL
					C
F4	F4	F.4	F4	F4	CTRL
					D

. . .

Notes:

Ì

Í

1

'The 820 KSR terminal has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal with the TPD Device Service Routine (DSR). Keys on other TPD devices may be missing or have different functions.

2284734 (3/14)

Generic Name	911 VDT	940 EVT	931 VDT	Business System Terminal	820' KSR
F5	F5	F5	FS	1.5	
F6	F8	F6	F6	Γb.	CTRL
F7	F		ET.	F7	
F8	FB	F8	F8	F8	
F9		F9	R	SHIFT F1	
F10	CONTROL	F 10	Fto	SHIFT F2	CTRL

Notes:

¹The 820 KSR terminal has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal with the TPD Device Service Routine (DSR). Keys on other TPD devices may be missing or have different functions.

2284734 (4/14)

.....

A

Generic Name	911 VDT	940 EVT	931 VDT	Business System Terminal	8201 KSR
F11	CONTROL	F11	F11	SHIFT	CTRL
	5 4			F3	
F12	CONTROL	F12	F12	SHIFT	CTRL
	5			F4	
F13	CONTROL	SHIFT		SHIFT	CTRL
	Ĝ	F1	F1	F5	<u>ال</u>
F14	CONTROL	SHIFT	SHIFT 1	SHIFT	CTRL
	<u>&</u> 7	F2	F2	F6	
Home	HOME	HOME	HOME	HOME	CTRL
Initialize Input		SHIFT			CTRL
		LINE INS CHAR			

Notes:

1

ŕ

i

,

¹The 820 KSR terminal has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal with the TPD Device Service Routine (DSR). Keys on other TPD devices may be missing or have different functions.

2284734 (5/14)

Generic Name	911 VDT	940 EVT	931 VDT	Business System Terminal	8201 KSR
Insert Character	CHAR		INS CHAR	INS	None
Next Character	or		E		None
	SHIFT				
Next Field	:HIFT	LINE	SHIFT 🟠	SHIFT	None
	F			FELD	
Next Line	ÌŢ				CTRL
					or
					LINE FEED
Previous Character				•	None
	or				
Previous Field	FEE	SHIFT Street	FELD	FILLD	None
		SKIP			

Notes: 'The 820 KSR terminal has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal with the TPD Device Service Routine (DSR). Keys on other TPD devices may be missing or have different functions.

2284734 (6/14)

2270532-9701

Generic Name	911 VDT	940 EVT	931 VDT	Business System Terminal	8201 KSR
Previous Line					
Print	PRINT	PRINT	PRINT	PRINT	None
Repeat	REPEAT	See Note 3	See Note 3	See Note 3	None
Return			RETURN		
Shift	SHIFT	SHIFT	SHIFT O	SHIFT	SHIFT
Skip	TAB SKIP	SKIP	SKIP	TAB SKIP	None
Uppercase Lock	UPPER CASE LOCK	UPPER CASE	CAPS	UPPER CASE LOCK	UPPER CASE

Notes:

Ì

į

'The 820 KSR terminal has been used as a typical hard-copy terminal with the TPD Device Service Routine (DSR). Keys on other TPD devices may be missing or have different functions.

³The keyboard is typamatic, and no repeat key is needed.

2284734 (7/14)

 Function	Key Sequence
Log-on	Attention/(Shift)!
Hard-break	Attention/(Control)
Hold	Attention
Resume	Any key

Table A-2. Frequently Used Key Sequences

Table A-3. 911 Keycap Name Equivalents

911 Phrase	Generic Name	
Blank gray	Initialize Input	
Blank orange	Attention	
Down arrow	Next Line	
Escape	Exit	
Left arrow	Previous Character	
Right arrow	Next Character	
Uparrow	Previous Line	
	Blank gray Blank orange Down arrow Escape Left arrow Right arrow Up arrow	911 PhraseGeneric NameBlank grayInitialize InputBlank orangeAttentionDown arrowNext LineEscapeExitLeft arrowPrevious CharacterRight arrowNext CharacterUp arrowPrevious Line

2284734 (8/14)

2270532-9701

4

Ξ.



۹.

SPECIAL CONTROL

DATA ENTRY

2284734 (9/14)

Figure A-1. 911 VDT Standard Keyboard Layout

ς.



2284734 (10/14)



۹.,

2284734 (11/14)



A-11

-14,





2284734 (11/14)



PRINT

TAR

RET

Ú R N



2284734 (12/14)



2270532-9701

1	 1	Ť	2

ч.,

2270532-9701

F1 F2 F3 F4 F5 F6 F7 F8	FRASE FIELD INPUT	
ESC 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 = : ENTER Q W E R T Y U I O P 5 7 3 5 6 TH UT A S D F G H J K L : ALT SHIFT Z X C V B N M ? ? SHIFT	FELD PRINT HOME PRINT INS CHAR DEL CHAR	7 8 9 - 4 5 6 , 1 2 3 RETURN 0 . RETURN

2284734 (13/14)



•

A-13

٩.,



2284734 (14/14)



L

Appendix B

LP810 Output

The following pages are examples of the output of the LP810 tests when executed with the default options. You can use these examples for comparison with the output you receive.

Ĵ

****** TISIO FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST			()	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	an i	***** T1810 FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST	2	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	~~~~		3 38 7	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	4		4	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	s an		5 👷 6	
 N N	~ ->		,	
 N N			ं 🛞	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			3	
 THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM THIS LINE IS AT THE	a		11 🐼	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	×		12	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			13	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			14 💓	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			16	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			17 🛞	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	\rightarrow		18	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	æ		:9 20 🐼	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	w		21	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	_		''? 	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			23 🐼 -	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	\rightarrow		25 25	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM 31 Solution 32 Solution 33 Solution 34 Solution 35 Solution 36 Solution 37 Solution 38 Solution 39 Solution 39 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 31 Solution 32 Solution 33 Solution 34 Solution 35 Solution 36 Solution 37 Solution 38 Solution 39 Solution 39 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 31 Solution 31 Solution 32 Solution 33 Solution 34 Solution 35 Solution 36 Solution 37 Solution 38 Solution 39 Solution 39 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 31 Solution 31 Solution 32 Solution 33 Solution 34 Solution 35 Solution 36 Solution 36 Solution 37 Solution 37 Solution 38 Solution 39 Solution 39 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 31 Solution 31 Solution 31 Solution 32 Solution 33 Solution 34 Solution 35 Solution 36 Solution 36 Solution 37 Solution 37 Solution 38 Solution 39 Solution 39 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 30 Solution 31 Solution 31 Solution 31 Solution 32 Solution 33 Solution 34 Solution 35 Solution 36 Solution 36 Solution 37 Solution 37 Solution 38 Solution 39 Solution 39 Solution 30 Solution 3	A		:0 🐼	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			27	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			29 🐼	
Image: Second secon	367		30	
THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM			31	
HIS LINE IS HI THE CENTER OF THE FORM 33 34 35 35 36 36 37 37 38 38 40 39 40 40 42 41 44 42 44 43 44 44 44 45 45 46 47 47 40 48 46 49 50 50 50 51 50 52 50 53 50 54 50 55 50 56 50 57 50 58 50 59 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 <td< td=""><td>~</td><td>THE ALL AT THE CENTER OF THE CORM</td><td>32 🛞 -</td><td></td></td<>	~	THE ALL AT THE CENTER OF THE CORM	32 🛞 -	
		THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	34	M
			38 🍪	But
	>		36	ness F
			38 🖏	um,
40 41 42 42 43 44 44 46 47 48 49 9 91 31 49 9 91 31 101 32 111 32 122 31 133 32 149 301 101 32 101 32 101 32 101 33 101 33 101 33 102 33 103 12 103 12 103 12 103 12 103 13 103 13 103 13 103 13 103 14 103 15 103 14 103 15 103 15 103 15 103 15 104	~		19 19	In S
1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1	1		40	
	-		41 🥸 -	
44 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	>		-2	
46 46 47 43 49 90 11 12 13 14 49 90 11 12 13 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15			44 🋞	
4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔ 4 ↔	\rightarrow		45	
4 4	*		40	
49 9 3 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3			48	
So So Control			49	
Trasse T	**		50 🎯 -	
Si S			52	
H H H H H H H H H H H H H H			63 🏈	
LT-22225 TT-22225 S S S S S S S S S S S S S	>		94 1	
U 11-222328 30 00 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01	**		55 56 🔉	
88 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90			67 67	
99 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 9			18	
G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G	W		59 💥 60	
ມີ ມີ ເຊີຍ ເຊີຍ ເຊີຍ ເຊີຍ ເຊີຍ ເຊີຍ ເຊີຍ ເຊີ	>		61	
ເມ ເຊ ເພື	ي (ئ)		62 🎯	
ఈ ^É ట. త	2232		63	
	∭ [∓]		61 (5.200	
	4		· · ·	

đ



į

Κ

	•	THIS LIN	IE IS AT	THE TOP O	THE FORM		 	
	- 100							**
							:	~
	. 889						5	**
							1	
	ିଙ୍କ						.:	\otimes
ŕ							0	
							11	\otimes
							10	
							17	\otimes
	→ →						18	
							'0	\otimes
	К						ני. קי	
							23	\otimes
	\rightarrow						24 25	
	•						01	۰
• 4	•						27 78	
	ି 🛞						24)	\otimes
							ณ เม	
	Ø						.L.	
							33	ş
							.5	$\langle \langle \rangle \rangle$
• •	>						.46	
								🔊 (
							111	۰,
·	់ខ						40	∞
							12	
	0						43	∞
	2 • • • • •						45	
	8						16 47	⊗
	°. ≯						48	·
	`						49	⊗
	-						5.1	~
	8						52 53	.⊗ □
	·						is l	
	1						50 50	⊗
							57	~
							58 59	∞
	- -						60	~
	* -						61	
	12325						63	×
							61	
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	THIS LIN	E IS AT	THE BOTTOM	OF THE FO	DRM		~~
							•	

2270532-9701



i

ł

i

	THIS LINE IS AT THE TOP OF THE FORM	2
4		4 5 🐼
• 		6 7
®		з 🛞 9
a		10 11 🛞
		12 13
ø		14 💓 15
		17 🛞
		19 20 🐼
8		21 22
«		23 💸 24
		75 26 💸
		28 29 🐼
% 		30 T
¢	•	37 🐼 33
8		34 35 🚷
		37 38 🐝
9	9,	39 40
4		41 🐼 42
8	3	43 44 🛞
-		46 47
×		48 49
4		50 🛞 51
4	ð	52 53 🍪
-	► ×	50 56 🐼
	ý	57 98
×		59 🛞 60
	> ≱	61 62 🏈
	1-2232	63 (A a 🔊
ŝ	¢۲	65 <b>W</b>

4



2270532-9701

Ż

ł

B-7

1-2: 1-2:	2325	↑ © ↑ ⊙ ⇒ ↑	↑ © _ © ↑ ©	© → ♥	·↑ © © ↑ ©	© → ©	
		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	ссс с с с ссс	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы	0000 0000 0000 0000 0000	к к к к к к к к к к к к к к
	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	ن ن ن ن ز ز	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	• • • • •	× × × × × × × × × × ×	R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R	լ լ լ լ լ լ լ լ լ լ
	9999 999 9999 999 9	k k k k k k k k k k k	e e e e e e e e e e		Y Y Y Y Y Y	555 555 555 555 555	M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M
	r r r r r r	1 1 1 1 1 1 1	f f f f f f f f f f f		Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z	T T T T T T T T T T T	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
	555 5 55 555 555	നന്നന്ന സന്നന സന്നന സന്നന സന്നന	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 2 3 2 2 3 3 2 3	222 222 222 222 222 222 222	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
	t t t t t t t t t t	000 000 000 000 000 000	h h h h h h h h h h h h h	6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6			РРРР Р Р РРРР Р Р Р
64 65 💥 🕈	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	$\begin{array}{c} 46 \\ 47 \\ 48 \\ 49 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 1 \\ 52 \\ 53 \\ 54 \end{array}$	.0 37 18 19 10 41 42 43 44 45	28 29 30 31 33 34 56 56	18 19 20 21 22 23 23 24 25 26 25 25 25 25	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

.

2270532-9701

		ม บ ม บ ม บ	* * * * *	ա ա ա ա ա ա ա ա ա	× × × × ×	Y Y Y Y	z z z	. 1 2 ∰ 3
	<b>∾</b>		Ý	w w w w	X X	Ŷ	z z z z	4 5 🐼 2
	*			ر ر ر ر	~ ~ ~ ~			, 
		( ( ( (	1	) ) ) )	· ~ ~			11 🛞 12 13
	**							15 15
	* ©							17 💥 18 19 20 🐼
	۲							21 22 23 🔇
	` → (1)							24 25 26 🔅
	*							28 29 🐯 30
	۵							31 32 🐼 33
-								34 35 🏈 Burner F 36 37
į.	<b>@</b>							38 🛞 🕴 39 🧳
-	∞ →							41 🌺 42 43 44 🎬
-	→ ⊗							45 46 47 🏈
-	> ⊗							48 49 50 🚫
	*							51 52 52 🔆
	٢							55 56 🛞 57
	() ,							58 59 🎡 60
	: 1-22325							62 🛞 63 64
	⊗ [_]							65 🌺

į

į

	***** T3810 RIPPLE TEST	: 1
		2 🚳
000		з 🎌
		4
	"##7% () *+ /0123456789; :<=>20ABCDEEGHIJKLMN0PORSTUVWXY7[\1^ \abcdefebijklmnopg	5 🐟
	#\$74 () ++ /0123456789; i<=>2@ABCDEEGHIJKI MNOPORSTUVWXY7[\]^ `abcdefgbijkimpoper	6
	\$28(()*+,/0123456782;:<=>2@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\1^_`abcdefgbijklmnopgrs	7
$\otimes$	28 ()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mpopgrst	8 🐼
	<pre>% () #+, -, /0123456789;; &lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnopgrstu</pre>	9
	<pre>()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuv</pre>	10
-	()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvw	н 🗇
>	)*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwx	12
_	<pre>*+,/0123456789::&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoparstuvwxy</pre>	13
	+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz	14 🛞
	,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxyz[	15
	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnop9rstuvwxyz()	16
<b>6</b> 6	./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz[})	17 😻
>	/0123456/8931<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGKS/UVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9h1JklmnoP9rstuvwxyZ(\]~	18
6	UI23406/87:3C=>?@ABUDEFUHIJKLMNUPWKSIUVWXYZL\J~_`&DCdef9NIJKIMNOP9PSTUVWXYZ()?~!	20.00
~	1234507077777726H050EF0H10HLHHNOF0H510VWAYZL\J"_ BDC0ef9H1JKIMHOP9H5TUVWAYZ()/4" 2016/200172701722000000000000000000000000000	21
	2354799127 - 22600 CDEFGHILLKI MNDDRSTIVWYYII ) ^ abcdefahiikimnovanstuvwyyii 771174 (**	22
0	454789:1(=>200RCDEFOHI.KENNOPORSTIVUXYI()10 = abcdefshiabkinnoperstivuXX2()/****	23 🗱
**	56789:1<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefahijklmnoparstuvwvy())~!"##%	24
	6789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef=hijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"##%&	25
٨	789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOFQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnoparstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&~(	26 🐼
	89:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()	27
-	9;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*	28
$\otimes$	;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&<()*+	79 🛞
>	;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*++	30
•	<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&<()*+,-	31
<b>\$</b> 2	=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(})~!"#\$%&^()*+,	32 😻
	>/@ABCUEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZE\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%%()*+,/	33
æ	<pre>/@ABCDEFEMILAKLMNUFQKSIUVWXYZL\J^BDCGef9hijkImnoP9fStuvWxYZ()/~!"#\$%%'()*+,/0 AACCDECCUI WU MNDDDETUUVYZL\J^BOCGEFEELUTAL</pre>	34 8
w	empoder on tokenhour who toy watte to " a becateten tokenhopen stuvwary () /* "##%%() #+,/01 Aschergett.whononestiwwyritia () abecatetei () measagastiwwwary () al ##*%*() *+/01	30 W BU
>	BODEFGHIJKI MNOPORSTIVWYZELIA – abcdefehijki mnopenetuvwyzelia (14494/14494/14494/14494/14494/14494/14494/14494	37 3
0	CDEFGHIJKLMNDFQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_ abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz[)~'##\$%&()*+/01234	38 🛞 🎚
1.	DEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz()~!"#\$%&()*+,/012345	39 .
1	EFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyZ(!)~!"#\$%&(()*+,/0123456	40
۲	FGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz(')~!"#\$%&^()*+,/01234567	41 🎡
>	GHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopsrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/012345678	42
~	HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk\mnopqrstuvwxYz(\)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789	43
Ŵ	IJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:	44 🏵
>	JKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&~()*+,/0123456789:;	45
an.	KLMNUPWRSIUVWXYZL\1~_`abcdefshijkimnoperstuvWxYZ(;)~!"#\$%&'()#+,/0123456789:;<	46
Ŵ	LINNUFWRSIUVWAYZLNI'_'ADCGET9NIJKIMNOPPESTUVWXYZ()/''##\$Z&'()*+,/0123456789:1<<= MNDEDESTINUFWYZLNIC Nabeddebi (Diperpestuverus)/////##\$V&'()*+,/0123456789:1<<=	47 💥
$\rightarrow$	INFORMATICS = ducueteniskimnuperstuvuxyz(i)////##XA(//#+/-//U123436/8911(=> NDPORETIVUXYZ()^- shodadahiib/impagenetuvuvyz(i)///##XA(//xt = //012342700+/>	40 40
@	$\label{eq:constraint} \begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	50 🗱
-	PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz[]>/'##/& (///)++/012345/7891/=>?@A	51
	QRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz(\)~!"##%&()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@AB	52
۵	RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnop9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%%^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABC	53 🎃
	STUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*++/0123456789;;<<=>?@ABCD	54
	TUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoparstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDE	55
۳	UVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnoperstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEF	56 🌺
	VWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnoP9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF6	57
an.	WXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&{()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGH	58
Ŵ	XYZL\J^abcdefshijk)mnoPqrstuvwxyz(;)~!#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHI	59 💥
>	Y2L\J"_`abcdetenijk(mnoperstuvwxY2())~!"#%%())*+,/01234567891;{=>?@ABCDEFGHIJ	60
<i>a</i> a	<pre>21.13.2 abcdet9n1Jk1mnoP9rStUVWXYZ(1)~!"##\$%2(1)*!</pre>	പാക
	LING _ BUCGEFSNIGKIMNUPAPSTUVWXYZ(;)*:"#\$%&`()*+;-;/0123436/87;;<=2?@ABCUEFGHIUKL	°″ ↔
325	-\]^ \abcdafabiik]mnoparstuvwyy7(!}~!!##\$7%//** = //\!>>760**/~\>>ADODECCUT #4 M	63
-22325	<pre>\labcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&amp;{()*+,/0123456789:;{&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLM l^ `abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&amp;{()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN</pre>	63 64
TI-22325	\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz({)~!"#\$%&`()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLM ]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz({)~!"#\$%&`()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMM ^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&`()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMM	63 64 65 🎎

2270532-9701

<pre>     *abcdefshijkimoerstuuwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGR     bcdefshijkimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRST     defshijkimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRST     defshijkimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUW     shijkimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUW     shijkimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUW     shijkimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72()     skimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72()     skimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72()     skimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72()     skimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())     skimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())     skimoerstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())     senstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())     senstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())     senstuwwor2()&gt;!'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     senstuwwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-     setuwor2()'##\$%'()*+-,/012345678911&lt;-&gt;?PARDEFGHIJKLINNOPGRSTUWW72())-</pre>			
<pre>     abcdefshijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRS     cdefshijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUW     fshijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUW     fshijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUW     hijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUW     hijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUW     hijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWX     ijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWX     ijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWX     ijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())     ijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())     ijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())     ijklmorerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$22'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$24'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$24'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$24'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwukr2()&gt;:"#\$24'()++,-/012345/7871:&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIJkLMOPGRSTUWXY2())-     immerstuwkr2()&gt;:"##\$24'()++,-/012345/7871:</pre>	•	<pre>`abcdefshijk)mnoperstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&amp;(()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQ</pre>	1
CcdFFB11kI MnoPHFStUWW2(1)/1******()***/01234578911<***********************************	~~	abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@R	2 W
<pre>defailstimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUW fabilstimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUW iJkimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWY7 iJkimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWY7 iJkimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWY7 iJkimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWY7 iJkimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWY72 iJkimopenstuwwrz(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWY72 iJkimopenstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72() mopenstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72() mopenstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % mstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % mstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % % mstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % % mstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % % mstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % % mstuwr2(1)-''#\$X'()*+/012345578911<c>?PABCDEFGHIJLLNNOPORSTUWX72()/- % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></c></pre>		DCGG499114KHMT69945510VWXY2(1)7?"##X&()**.=/0123436787:\=??@ABCDEF69114KLMN0FWR3 ;da5661ib1mopage541VWWXY2(1)7?"##X&()*+.=/0173456789::<=?@ABCDEF691	1
<pre>     ###hilkImnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVW     #hilkImnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVW     #hilkImnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVW     #kimnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWX'     #kimnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWX'     #kimnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWX'     #kimnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWX'     #kimnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWX'     #kimnoverstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #oemstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #oemstuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostuvwz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostu*     wvz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #ostu*     wvz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #oste*fi     wvz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #odeffi     wvz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #odeffi     wvz(1)*!*#\$%'()*+/012345/7991(&lt;&gt;&gt;20ABCCEFGHIJKLINDOPORSTUVWXY(1)*-     #odeffi     wvz(1)*!</pre>		defails homoperstuvery () $\sim$ 1 $^{+}$ $^{+}$ $^{+}$ $\sim$ () $^{+}$ , $^{-}$ . /0123456789:: <=>2@ABCDEFGHLUK (MOOPBRSTI	5 🛞
<pre>fshiklmnowstruwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY') iklmnowstruwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY') klmnowstruwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY') klmnowstruwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY') morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY') morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY')) morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY')) morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;?#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')++/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')+/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')+/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY'))* morenstuwst2(1)-1"#\$2%(')+/012345578911(&lt;&gt;&gt;#ABCDEFGHIUKLNNOPGRSTUWXY')).</pre>	>	efshijklmnoparstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%%'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUV	à
<pre>bhikkImnoerstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2 ikkImnoerstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2() ikkImnoerstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2() ikkImnoerstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2() imnoerstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2() imnoerstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) operstuwwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuwx2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuex2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuex2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;&lt;&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUWWX2()) issuex2(1)~!"#\$%%()*+/012345578911&lt;</pre>		fshijklmnopprstuvwxyz(;)~!"##%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVW	7
hikkinnoemes tuvuuvz (1) -/ ***** (1) ***** (1) 23455/8911 (<>?************************************	$\sim$	<pre>shijk1mnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&amp;^()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWX</pre>	<u>≥</u> 🛞
<pre>bit/himopersituwwr:l)&gt;-:'##3%'()++/0123455799:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;2485CDEFOHIJKLINNOPORSTUWWY:I(): Innopersituwwr:l)&gt;-:'##3%'()++/0123455799:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;2485CDEFOHIJKLINNOPORSTUWWY:I(): mopersituwwr:l)&gt;-:'##3%'()++/0123455799:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;2485CDEFOHIJKLINNOPORSTUWWY:I(): #The stuwwr:l)&gt;-:'##3%'()++/0123455799:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;2485CDEFOHIJKLINNOPORSTUWWY:I(): #The stuwwr:l)&gt;-:************************************</pre>		hijkImnop9rstuvwxyz()/~!"#\$2&*()*+,/0123456/89*i*<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKINNOPWRSTUVWXY ////////////////////////////////////	9 10
<pre>klmmoperstuwwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1) 1 mnoperstuwwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 operstuwwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 erstuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stuwr2(1)~''#\$%&amp;'()++,-,/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;PRADCDEFGHIJKLHNOPGRSTUWKY2(1)^- 1 stodf####################################</pre>		istmonoperstuvwevz()//:##### (/**;=//01234567801///=/20HDDEFOHIUKLINUPWR3IUVWATZ	11 🔊
<pre>InnoPerstuvwcr2(1)~!'#\$X*(1*+/012345789:1&lt;) 20485789:1</pre> morerstuvwcr2(1)~!'#\$X*(1*+/012345789:1 c> 20485CDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1		k1mnopgrstuvwxyz(1)~!"##%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZ[\	12
<pre>mnoerstuuwxz(1)~!'##\$%'()*+/0123456789:t&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUUWXZ(1)^-</pre>		1mnoperstuvwxyz(()~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789;;<<>>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]	13
<pre>nor#rstuvukvz(1):/:##X&amp;/()#+,/0123456/8911</pre> <pre>commentstuvukvz(1):/:##X&amp;/()#+,/0123456/8911</pre> <pre>commentstuvukvz(1):/:##X&amp;/(]#+,/0123456/8911</pre> <pre>commentstuvukvz(1):/:##X&amp;/(]#+,/0123456/8911</pre> <pre>commentstuvukvz(1):/:##X&amp;/(]#+,/0123456/8911</pre> <pre>commentstuvukvz(1):/:##X&amp;/(]#+,/0123456/8911<!--</td--><td>~</td><td>mnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&amp;&lt;()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^</td><td>14</td></pre>	~	mnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^	14
<pre>OPH1510UW32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_ab rstuww32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd stuww32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd tuww32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd tuwx2(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLHNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLMNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLMNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLMNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFOH1JKLMNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'_abcd w32(1)-''##2&amp;'()#+/012345678911&lt;&gt;''#4BCDEFOH1JKLMNOPQRSTUWW32(1)-'</pre>		noperstuvwwyz())~!"##X&()#+,/0123456/89;;(=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPWRSIUVWXYZ()]^_	15
<pre>arstvukurz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abc stuvukurz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcde uvukrz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef uvukrz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKUYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X&amp;'()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X''()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X''()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X''()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X''()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X''()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ(1)^_abcdef vxvz(1)-''#\$X''()*+,-,/012345578911&lt;-&gt;?28ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUVKYZ</pre>		0P4510VWXY2())~! ##X&()**,/0123456789:(<>>20ABCDEF6HI.KIMN0P0R5110VWX12()] Parstywnxy2()/~!##X%()/0123456789:(<>>20ABCDEF6HI.KIMN0P0R5110VWX12()^^ a	1/ 33
rstuvwxr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1<>?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcd tuvwxr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1<>?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9 wwxr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1<>?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9 wxr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9<br xr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br xr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br xr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br xr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br xr2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br 2(1)~!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br )/?!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br )/?!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br )/?!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br )/?!!#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789:1 @?@ABCDEFOHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ(1)^_iabcdef9hi<br 0 **********************************	$\rightarrow$	grstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ab	18
<pre>stuvwxz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/012345678911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJkLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef3 uvwxz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJkLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef3 vwxz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJkLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% uvxz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% vz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% vz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% vz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% vz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% vz(1)~!!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% 0//!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/01234578911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% 0//!#\$2&amp;'()*+,-,/012345678911(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPQRSTUVWXZ[\]^_abcdef4 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%</pre>		rstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abc	19
tuvuxyz(1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456/89'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdef vuxyz(1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefsh xyz(1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi vz(1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi z(1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi z(1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi 1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi 1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi 1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi 1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi 1)~''##X&'()*+,/0123456789'i(<>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVUXYZ(1)^_'abcdefshi 3) * * * * * * * * * * * * *	<b>*</b>	<pre>stuvwxyz(1)~!"#\$%&amp;(()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@@BCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[)^_`abcd</pre>	20 🔆
<pre>     vurve(1)://##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefsh     vurve(1)://##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):/##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):/##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_1abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()*+/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()**/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()**/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()**/0123456789:1&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_abcdefshi)     vurve(1):##X&amp;()**/0123456789:1&lt;</pre>		TUVWXYZ(1)?''#\$7&''()*+,-/'0123456/87:1(=>?@ABUDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZ[1]^_'abcde uvwyy (1)?''#\$7&''()*+,-/'0123456789::'=>?@ABUDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZ[1]^_'abcde	22
<pre>wxz(1)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_1brdefshi xz(1)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_1brdefshij z(1)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 1)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 1)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 1)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWKYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWXYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWXYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWXYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWXYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()*+/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWXYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10)^!*#\$Z&amp;'()**/012345678911&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUUWXYZ(1)^_bbrdefshijk 10) 10) 10) 10) 10) 10) 10) 10) 10) 10)</pre>	۲	0/00/22(1)~1 ##%% ()/**/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0P@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefg	23 🐼
<pre>xvz(1)~!'#\$X&amp; vz(1)~!'#\$X&amp; vz(1)~!'#\$X vz(1)~!'!#\$X vz(1)~!'!#\$X vz(1</pre>	<b>&gt;</b>	wxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefeh	24
<pre>vrc(j)~:***x*(')**+,/0123455789':(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ(')]^_'abcdefshijk c(j)~!'***x*(')**+,/0123455789':(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ(')]^_'abcdefshijk1m d(j)~!'***x*(')*+,/0123455789':(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ(')]^_'abcdefshijk1m ~'!***x*(')*+,/0123455789':(=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ(')]^_'abcdefshijk1m d''***********************************</pre>	<i>.</i>	xyz(!)~!"##%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshi	25 26
<pre>Clip.i!##\$Z*()#+,-,/0123456789::(&lt;)?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ()]abcdefshijkl () ~!!##\$Z*()#+,-,/0123456789::(&lt;)?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ()]abcdefshijklm ) ~!!##\$Z*()#+,-,/0123456789::(&lt;)?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ()]abcdefshijklm ~!!##\$Z*()#+,-,/0123456789::(&lt;)?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ()]abcdefshijklm % **********************************</pre>	~~	Yz(;)~!"##\$%x()#+,-,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ()]^_\&bcdefbhij JC/Ja(!##\$%x()#+,-,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ()]^_\&bcdefbhij	20 💥 27
<pre>     ()~!*##2&amp;^()*+,/0123456789::&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefshijklm     //*#\$2&amp;^()*+,/0123456789::&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefshijklm     //*#\$2&amp;^()*+,/0123456789::&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefshijklm     //**     //*#\$2&amp;^()*+,/0123456789::&lt;&lt;&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefshijklm     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //**     //********</pre>		2()//: ##X& ()#+,-,/0123456/07:10=20000F04L0000000000000000000000000000000	28
<pre>&gt; ) ~! "#\$%&amp; '() *+, /0123456789*; &lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmno ?! "#\$%&amp; '() *+, /0123456789*; &lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmno 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3</pre>		<pre>[]~!"#\$%&amp;`()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklm</pre>	29 🐼
<pre>     *'!"#\$%%^()*+, -, /0123456789:; c=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshi.ik1mno     33     33     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3     3</pre>		)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmn	30
33       33         34       35         35       37         36       37         37       38         38       37         38       38         39       38         30       38         31       38         32       38         33       38         34       38         35       37         38       38         39       38         30       40         40       42         41       42         42       44         44       44         45       46         47       48         48       49         49       51         51       52         52       55         51       55         51       55         52       55         51       55         52       55         55       55         56       57         57       58         58       58         59       51 <td></td> <td>~!"#\$%&amp;^{\}*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZE\]^_`abcdefshijklmno</td> <td>31 22 🐼</td>		~!"#\$%&^{\}*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZE\]^_`abcdefshijklmno	31 22 🐼
3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         3       3         40       3         41       3         42       4         43       4         44       4         45       4         46       4         47       4         48       5         51       51         51       51         52       54         56       57         58       60         60       61         63       63         64       63         63       63         64       64         65       67         56       57         57       56         63       63         64       64         65       65         64	<b>W</b>	~	33 🐼
35       35         36       36         37       38         38       39         39       41         41       42         43       44         44       44         45       46         47       47         48       49         50       48         51       52         51       52         51       51         52       54         55       57         54       55         57       56         57       57         58       57         59       57         50       57         51       52         52       57         54       55         57       57         56       57         57       57         58       57         57       57         57       57         57       57         57       57         57       57         57       57         57       57 <td></td> <td></td> <td>34</td>			34
→       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →			35 🐼 🛊
37       37         39       39         39       40         40       41         42       43         44       45         45       46         46       46         47       48         48       49         49       49         50       51         51       52         52       54         54       56         55       55         56       57         57       58         58       59         60       60         61       62         63       63	$\rightarrow$		36
→       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       →       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓       ↓			3/ 1
40 41 % 42 43 44 % 45 46 47 % 48 49 90 % 51 52 53 54 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	**		39 🦾
<ul> <li>41 (2)</li> <li>42</li> <li>43</li> <li>44 (2)</li> <li>44</li> <li>45</li> <li>46</li> <li>47 (2)</li> <li>48</li> <li>49</li> <li>49</li> <li>50 (2)</li> <li>51</li> <li>51</li> <li>52</li> <li>53 (2)</li> <li>54</li> <li>55</li> <li>56</li> <li>56</li> <li>56</li> <li>56</li> <li>56</li> <li>60</li> <li>61</li> <li>62</li> <li>63</li> <li>64</li> </ul>	1		40
42         43         44         45         45         46         47         48         49         50         51         52         53         54         55         56         56         57         58         59         60         61         62         63         64         55         56         57         58         59         60         61         62         63         64          65          61          62          63			41 🏵
43       44         45       45         46       47         47       48         49       50         50       51         51       52         53       54         54       55         55       55         56       55         57       58         59       57         58       59         60       60         61       62         62       63         63       64	$\rightarrow$		42
45       46         46       47         48       49         50       50         51       52         52       53         54       55         55       55         56       55         57       58         59       57         58       59         60       61         62       63         64       63         63       64         63       64			43
46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 54 55 56 56 57 56 56 57 56 56 56 57 58 58 59 50 51 54 54 54 55 56 56 56 57 56 56 57 56 56 57 56 56 56 57 58 58 59 58 59 58 59 58 59 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58			45
<ul> <li>3</li> <li>47</li> <li>48</li> <li>49</li> <li>50</li> <li>51</li> <li>52</li> <li>53</li> <li>54</li> <li>55</li> <li>56</li> <li>57</li> <li>58</li> <li>58</li> <li>59</li> <li>60</li> <li>61</li> <li>62</li> <li>63</li> <li>64</li> <li>64</li> <li>65</li> </ul>	~		46
48         49         50 ↔         51         52         53 ↔         54         55         56 ↔         57         58         60         61         62 ↔         63         64         63         64	<b>\$</b>		47 😻
49 51 52 53 54 54 56 56 56 57 56 57 58 50 68 50 68 57 57 58 57 58 57 58 50 57 58 50 57 58 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	$\rightarrow$		48 49
51 52 53 53 54 55 55 56 57 57 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 59 60 60 61 61 62 63 63 63 63 63 63	۵		50 🎡
Second S			51
So S			52
55 56 ↔ 57 58 59 ↔ 60 60 61 61 62 ↔ 63 63 64 63 64 65	w i		53 🥸
SCCCLT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT SCCCT	$\rightarrow$		55
57 58 59 60 61 62 63 63 64 64	8		56 🐼
58 59 60 61 62 63 63 64 65			57
	<i>0</i> 0.		58
60 61 62 (20) 63 63 64 64 65			59 🥸 60
62 ∰ 63 64 65 ∰			61
63 64 65	ي 🕲 ،		62 🐝
	532		63
₩	· ·		
	11-22		64

i

1
8	33888 TASIO BUFFER TEST	· 🔊
100		3
1	66 C	4
$\otimes$	OR TH	6
	PRINTE	6
	FRINTER*	/
	PRINTER*BU	8
2	PRINTER*BUFF	9
-	PRINTER*BIFFER	10
. 🛇	PRINTER*RUFFER*T	11
	PRINTER*RUFFFR*TES	12
~	PRINTER*RUFFER*TEST*	13
62	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	14💬
3	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	15
~	PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTE	16
-	FRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	17
·	PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BU	18
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	19
<b>W</b>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	20
4	PRINTER*PUFFER*1ESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	21
	PRINIEK*RUFEEK*IESI*PRINIEK*RUFEEK*IES PRINIEK*RUFEEK*IESI*PRINIEK*RUFEEK*IES	22
-	FRINIERSBUFFERSIESISFRINIERSBUFFERSIESIS DRINIERSBUFFERSIESISTROINEOSUBEERSSIESES	23
	CRINIERROUFERRATESIAFRINIERRAUFEERATESIAFR	25
0	ENTINEENDUFFENTIESTADETNIEENTEUFFENTETETADETNIE	26
-	INTRIGATION FORTANTAINGATOREGATION FATAR AND FEATURE DE STATE AND FE	27
5	PRINTER/OUTFFERMITESTARETNICE/POLICEEDATESTARETNICE/A	28
° 🚳	PRINTERADUF FRANCESCA CONTRACTOR CAN CONTRACTAR	29
-	PRINTER*BURFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	30
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	31
1 🕲 –	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	32
6	PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	33
-	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	34
- 🚳	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	35🏵
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	36
~	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	37
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	38
7	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	39
8	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	40
0	PRINTER*PUPEER*TEST*PRINTER*PUPEER*TEST*PRINTER*PUPEER*TEST*PRINTER*PUPEER*T	42
	FRINTER&BUSTER&IESI&FKINTER&BUSTER&IESI&FKINTER&BUSTERS DENNER&BUSTER&IESI&FKINTER&BUSTERS	43
8	ENINGERADUEEENATESIAEENINGERADUEEENATESIAEKINGERADUEENATESIAEKINGERADUEEENATESIAEENINGERADUEEENATESIA	44
~	PRINTERANDIERTESINGENTERATIERTERTEFERTESINGENTERANDURERTERTESINGENTERANDERENTERANDERENTERANDERENTERANDERENTERAN	45
. 8	PRINTER&RUFFER&TEST&PRINTER&RUFFER&TEST&PRINTER&RUFFER&TEST&PRINTER&RUFFER	46
0	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	47
_	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	48
	PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*FRINTER*BU	49
<u>ن</u> کې	PRINTER*DUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*DUFFER*TEST*PR(NTER*DUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	se🕸
9	PRINTER*BUFFER*TFST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	51
-	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTFR*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	562 24
$\otimes$	PRINTER&BUFFER&TEST&PRINTER&BUFFER&TEST&PRINTER&BUFFER&TEST&PR	ಂತ್ರ
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	(5-1
	PRINTER&BUFFFR#TFST&PRINTER#BUFFER#TEST#PRINTER#BUFFFR#TES	55
စ္ခ	PRINTER*8UFFFCR*TEST*PRINTER*8UFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*8UFFER*T	<u> </u>
ສັ 10	PRINTEB*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	
É 🛷	PRINTER*BUSEFERST*PRINTER*BUSEFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUSE	000 1. AND
$\otimes$	PRINTER#DUFFFR#TFST#PRINTER#BUFFFR#TFST#PRINTER#BU	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	
	PSINTED&BUFFER&TEST&PSINTER&BUFFER&TEST&PSINTF	e 30.
8	PRINTER&BUFFFIXETERT PRINTER&BUFFFFXETERT PRIN	. w
11	PEINTER&BUFFER&TEST&PRINTER&BUFFER&TEST&PR	0.
-000	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	335
` `	PRINTER*RUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*RUFFER*TES	

**A** 



n

į



20200000000			
	***** T6810 TAB TO LINE TEST THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2	2	
Ť	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 3	3	
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 5	े 🛞 5	
<b>≻</b>		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
~~~	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 9	3 <b>88</b> 3	
		10 1 🔅	
\rightarrow		12 13	
		14 🛞 15	
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT I INE 17	16 17 🍩	
\rightarrow		18 19	
۲		20 🛞	
		22	
_→		24	
*		25 26 🛞	ľ
		27 28	
 →		29 🔆 30	
Ø		31 32 🔆	
1	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 33	33 34 §	
*		35 😻 🖥	
- -		37 Seams	
		39	
۲		41 🛞	
\rightarrow		42	1
		44 💥 45	
8		46 47 🍪	
\rightarrow	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 49	48 49	
*		50 🍪	
		52 53 🛞	
\rightarrow		54 55	
0		56 🛞	
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 3/	57 58	
		59 💥 60	
∞,	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 61	61 62 🏈	
1-2232	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 63THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 64	63 64	
⊗ ⊦_		65 🛞	

1

											· · · · ·
5		****	+ T78	10 SET/	TEST	T VE	RTICA	λL ·	TABS TEST	; 1	· · ·
	\otimes	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	2		2 🛞	
		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	З		4	
	-@	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	АТ	LINE	5		5 🛞	
	\rightarrow									6	
	0									8 🔅	
		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	9		9 . 10	
										10 11 🐼	
	>									12	
										14 🐼	
	~~~									15	
										16 17 🔊	-
		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	RF	AI	LINE	17		18	
	-									19	
	62									20 💥 21	
	_									22	
	Ø									23 🕵 24	
	>									25	•
	ø									26 🌺	
										28	
	۵									29 🐼	
	>									30	
	Ø									32 💸	
		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	33		33 34	
	⊗									25 🛞	nie 8.,
										-6	1354
	@									38 🐼	1
÷	-									39	
	20									40 41 🕸	
	₩ >									42	
	<i>m</i>									43 44 🕸	
	<i><i>w</i></i>									44 000	
	~									46	
	•									47 🌄	
		THIS	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	49		49	
	<b>W</b>									50 🥸 51	
										52	
	4									53 🎯 54	
	>									- 55	
	44				<b>-</b>					56 🎯	4
		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	RE	AT	LINE	57		57 58	
	8									59 🔆	
	*	тніс	TEYT	SHOLLIN	BF	АТ	LINE	61		60 63	
	ي 🕲	1112.0			<b>L</b> . L.	191	1. A 1 7 8.	~.		62 🛞	
	2232	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	63		63 64	
	<u>چ</u> ۽	1013	ICAI	000000	56	ні	LINE	64		65 🏈	
				محيوي							

a f



.

2270532-9701

1

***** TOBIO TAB TO ADDRESS TEST		``
<pre>**** 111111111112222222333333333444444444555555</pre>	555556666666666777777777788	
1234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345	56789012345678901234567890	
ඟ tt t t t	T T T	6
ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:		7
		а 887 ж. а 887
3 5 9 17 41 65 73 77 79		·0
		11 😻 🔮
		'3
		_ <u>'</u> ⊗ ∭
		6
<b>a</b>		17 🛞 📲
$\rightarrow$		18
@		ः <b>० 🇇 </b>
		21
		3 🕸 🎽
•		24
		26
Ŵ		27
•		28 80 29 88 8
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		30
$\rightarrow$		- 01 - 8 - 8 
<b>\$</b>	··	33
		34 Mo
©		35 💥 🖁 🖉
·····>		37
۵		38 🌑 🔓
1		40
٢		41 🛞
		43
Ø		44 🎡
		46
<b>0</b>		47 🛞 📲
-→		48 49
		50 🛞
Ť		51 52
<i>"</i>		53 🛞
		54 Lui
		50 🛞 🖉
		57
		59 👯
		60
		61 (2 🛞
22 W		63
1-23 1-23		64
		~~ ₩

	***** T9810 SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TAB TEST	· @	
	11111111112222222223333333334444444445555555555	3	÷
	123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890	4	i.
		5	
	ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:	7	
	3 5 9 17 41 65 73 77 79	э 👾 г	
		10	
$\rightarrow$		12	
		13	
		14 💥	
		16 17 🔊	
$\rightarrow$		18	
		19 20 🐼	
	·	21	
		22	
$\rightarrow$		24	
		25 26 33	
		27	
		28 29 200	
$\rightarrow$		30	
0		31 32 🚳	
		33	
		34 💈	
$\rightarrow$		36	
1 🖒		37	
		39 0	
a 💿		40 41 🛞	
$a_{ij} \rightarrow a_{ij}$		42	
Sec.		43	
$\rightarrow$		45	
		40	
$\rightarrow$		48	
		50 🛞	
		51 52	
		53 🎯	
$\rightarrow$		54 [°] 55	
*		56 🛞	
		57 58	
		59 炎	
$\rightarrow$		60 61	
₂₂ 🛞		62 🛞	
1-223		63 64	
		65 😻 🛛	

i

1

B-19

	- <i>m</i> -	***** TASIO LINES AND CHARS/INCH TEST	2
	**		- **** 3 4
	1	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	5 🛞 👘
n Satur	>	<u> </u>	7
n in a Na S	©	********	3
	<i>~</i>		10 11 🐼
	$\rightarrow$		12
	0	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH	14 🛞
		×××××××× ××××××××	16
· .		xxxxxxxx xxxxxxxx	17 🛞
s: ¹	0	******	19 20 🐼
		~~~~~~	21 22
	0	BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	23 🗇
4			25
	ø		26
i, tak			28 29 🔇
	⊸ →		30 31
	0	BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH	32 🚷
	~	******	34
	. ₩ →		30 30 June 9
	©		37 38 🛞 🙀
d en l	ł	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	39 ∽ 40
֥	8		41 💸 42
	 @		43 44 🗱
	·>		45
	0		47 🌚
			49
	۵		50 🅁 51
			52 53 🛞
			54 55
	0		56 💸 57
	an		58 59 🌤
	₩ →		60 61
	۲		62
	1-2232		63 64
	⊗⊦		65 🛞

,

.

LP810 Output

8 1		
	**** TB810 BELL TEST	1
	PRINTED DELL CUCHED COLUDING OF COMPANY	2 🗰 3
	FRINTER BELL SHOOLD SOUND FOR 3 SECONDS	4 5 🛞 .
>		з́
		3 🛞
		i0 3
∾ →		11 🛞
, m		13
~~		14 🛞 -
0		16
→		18
•		19 20 🗱
		21
\otimes		23
\rightarrow		24 25
0		26 🚫
a		28
\rightarrow		29 🔆 30
•		31 20 6 70
		32
۲		34 है 35 🐼 🖻
\rightarrow		36
(3)		38 🛞 🕺
		39 ° 40
₩		41 🍪 🥈
ø		42
>		44 🛞 45
8		46
\rightarrow		48
۲		49 50 🅸
		51 52
		53 😻
es.		54 55
Ť		56 🚫 57
*		58
		59 💥 60
<u>ي</u> 🛞		61
1-2232		<u>63</u>
Set 1		64 65 🛞

1

Appendix C

LP2260 Output

The following pages are examples of the output of the LP2260 tests when executed with the default options. You can use these examples for comparison with the output you receive from both the LP2260 and LP2230.

			 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	***** 112260	TOP OF FURM TEST			2	
					3	
					4 5 🛞	
					6	** 1
					7 8 🐼	1.5
					9	1.1.1
@					10 11 🐼	
					12	an agad
0					13 14 🐼	
Ť					15	
0					16 17 🐼	
					18	
					19 20 🐼	
· ~					21	
6					2? 23 🔊	
· · •					24	
					25 26 🌌	
**					27	
et al.					28 29 🕸	
*					30	
a					31	
~					32	
്ക					34	Mayner B
					36	10085
					37	Former 1
~					39	S N
6					40	
~					42	
ess					43	
÷					45	
~					46 47 💥	
*					48	
					49 50 🗱	
-					51	
*					52 53 🔆	
×					54	
*					55 56 ≫	
-					57	
					58 59 💸	
•					60	
. ⊗					61 62 🐲	
52.25					63	
۳ ۲					64 65 ≫	
-			 			

	TUTO	1. 5.44	I O		Т.:.Г	TOD		THE	S (1) M			 		`	<u>.</u>		1		\geq
	1115	LINE	15 /	A 1	1146	IUP	UF	195	FURM		 	 				 	2 : 3	۲	*
																	4		
` ⊗ #																	6	997 1997	
0																	7 83		
										•							9 10	÷	*
\otimes										•							11 (8	***
*																	12 13		
																	14 (15	*	
																	16	•	8
																	18	~	
																	19 20 (8	8
-																	21 22		2
۲																	23	®	2
																	24 25		8
٩																	26 27	*	2
<i>m</i>																	28 29 -	~	2
~~~>																	30	~~	
۲																	31 32 (		8
																	33 34	ş	
۲																	35	• 🕲	8
																	37		
																	38 ( 39	@ {	
*																	40 41 S	<b>~</b>	
																	42	-	20
0																	43 44 (	<b>3</b>	*
>																	45 46		
۲																	47 ( 48	*	
																	49	æ.	****
w i																	50 ( 51	<u>.</u>	*
۵		a															62 53	*	
•																	5 <b>4</b> 56	-	
*																	66 (	8	*
																	57 58		8
۵																	69 ( 60	8	8
-																	61	<i></i>	
4325 V 4722																	63	955 1	8
÷ آ																	64 65 (	*	
***													_			 		ця:	8

ź

į

					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 	 100 100 100	
	THIS LINF	IS AT TH	E TUP OF TH	E FURM -		 	 1 2 🐼	
							3	
$\bigcirc$							5 🛞	
>							6 7	
							8 🛞	
							10	
>							11 💓 12	
<b>@</b>							13 14 🐼	
~		,					15	
Ø							17 📚	- ² - 2 
>							18 19	
•							20	
							22	
<i>₩</i>							²³ 🚫 24	
							25 26.83	
~							27	
ø							28 29 💸	
$\rightarrow$							30 31	
۵							32 🐼	
1							33 34	
0							35 🥸 📲	
Ŵ							37	
, <b>*</b>							39	
							40 41 🛞	
>							42 43	
۲							44 🛞	
>							45 46	
() ()							47 🍪 48	
							49	
, v							51	
8							52 53 🛞	
· · · <b>&gt;</b>							54	
۲							56 🛞	
							57 58	
*							59 🛞	
							61	
2325							62 💥 63	
÷۲							64 65 🔆	
L								and and a





_		. 1
0	**** 132260 RIPPLE PAITERN TEST	2 🐼
		3
-	1 * # # # K · () * + = /0123436/3935<=> [##ACUDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSIUVWATZ(\) + + * # # K K · () * + ; = /01 # # \$ * 31 () + + = /0123436/394574 + = > 30 AUCUEFGHIJKLMNUPURSIUVWATZ(\) + + = /01234	4
$\odot$		5 🛞
	#####\`()#*j=,/V123430/07+,/~~;###################################	6
	# A G () * * J = * / 01234 50 / 07 * * * = * * A KOUDEL ON LANDY MATELY   1 * * # # A G () * * J = * / 01234 * * * * * / 01234 54 / 07 89 * * = * * A KOUDEF ENTINE MODESTIUW XY 7 () * * * * * * / / 01234 54 * * * * / / 01234 54 * * * * * / 01234 54 * * * * * / 01234 54 * * * * * / 01234 54	7
i 🛞	X ( ) + · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	8 🛞
	1()++	9
	() *+ /0123456789 : : <=>?adBCDEFEHIJKI MNOPORSTUVWXYZ [\] ++ /012345678	10
. 🛇	) ++/0123456789: I <=>?#ABCDEFGHLJKLMNOPURSTUVWXY71\1++"######() ++/0123456789	11 🛞
>	*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOP9RSTUVWXYZ[\1++!"#\$%8'()*+/0123456789:	12
	+/0123456789:;<=>?#AHCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\] +/0123456789:;	13
- 😒	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPORSTUVWXY2[\]1++!"#\$%8'()*+,/0123456789:;<	14 🐼
e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#\$%%'()*+,/0123456789:;<=	15
	./0123456789:;<=>?vAHCDEFGHIJKLMNUPDRSTUVWXYZ(\) ++/0123456789:;<=>	16
~~	/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPNRSTUVWXYZ(\) ++,-,/0123456789;;<=>?	17 💓
>	0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVWXYZ[\11++!"#\$%*'()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@	18
	123456789:;<=>?@AHCUEFGHIJKLMNUPWRSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#\$X&!()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@A	19 20 <b>4</b>
- W2	23456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]++!"#\$%8'()*+,-,/0123456789;;<=>?@AB	20 💥
	3456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABC	21
	456789;;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVWXYZ[\]↑€!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@AHCD	22
- W	5678y:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVwxYZ[\]↑+!"#\$\$&'()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDE	23 W 74
>	- 6789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#%%*'()*+;/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF	25
0	789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVWXYZ[\]1+!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFG	26
~	89:;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMNUPQRSTUVWXYZ[\] ++!"#\$\$&\"() ++,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGH	27
1 - C	9:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPNRSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#\$%%'()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGHI	28
0	;;<=>?#ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPQRSTUVWXYZ(\]T+!"#\$\$&'()++,-,/0123456789;;<=>?#ABCDEFGHIJ	29 🔆
	;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPURSTUVWXYZ(\)++;"#\$\$&'()++,/0123456/89";<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJK	30
	<pre>&lt;=&gt; zaabuuber GH [ JKLMN0PURSTUVWXYZ [ \ 1 ++ "#\$X&amp;' ( ) ++, -, /0123456789; ; &lt;=&gt; ?@ABCDEFGH [ JKL</pre>	31
۲	=> function of the state of	32 🐼
	$>$ francule for LJKLMNUPGKSTUVWATZ(1) fet "###X&'(J) $+ + = \sqrt{012}$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 5000$ $+ 50$	33
1	(MANDUELEMIJNEMNUMUKSIUVWATZIVITE, "WOAG"(JATJ")/UISS430/07;;<=>(MANDUELEMIJNEMNU) SAUDDELEMIIVIANDDUGEIVWATZIVITEMERVI/)AZ = /0137025300;/=>SAUDDELEMIJNEMNU	34 §
٢	AND DEFINITING AND TO WANTELY THE FRANCES (JEFF -/ VIESADD 107+)SEE (MADD DEFINITING AND DEFINITION AND DEFINITING AND DEFINITING AND DEFINITION AND DEFINIT	35 🎡 🛔
->	AND LEE GRAAN LEMOE AND LOVINATE LIVITE ADAGE (JATTE) VIEDA DE CONTACTE CONTACTE CONTACT AND LEE CONTACT VE AND DO STILVAVY JIITE ADAGE (JATTE) VIEDA DE CONTACTE CONTACTE VIA MONDAL	36
. í	COFFICIELTS MUTURES [INVESTIGATE COFFICIENTS AND COFFICIENTS AND	37
•	DEFGHIJKLMNDPDRSTUVXXYZI\1++1"#\$\$&\)	38 🎯 🔅
	EFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVWXY2[\1++!#\$\$&'()*+/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDFFGHIJKLMNUPURSTU	39 🧳
20	FGHIJKLMNUPWRSTUVAXYZ[\] t+1"#\$%%'()*+,/0123456769:J<=>?#AHCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RS1UV	40
3	GHIJKLMNUPURSTUVWXYZ(\ T+!"#\$X&'()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVW	41 🥸
· · >	HIJKLMNOPOKSTUVWXYZ[\ 1+1"#\$X4'()++,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCUEFGHIJKLMNOPOKSTUVWX	42
20.	IJKLMNOPURSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789*;<=>?#AHUDEFGHIJKLMNOPURSTUV#XY	43
. യ	JKLMNUPORSTUVWXYZ[\]++!"#%%%'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMNUPORSTUVWXYZ	44 🥸 45
>	• KLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]++!"#\$X&!()++,-,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[	40
654	LMNOPHKSTUVWXYZ(\)1++!"#%%%'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPHKSTUVWXYZ(\	47 🕸
Ű	MNUPURSTUVMXYZ[\] ++!"#\$X&!()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVMXYZ[\]	48
<b>`</b>	NOPGRSTUVWXYZ(\)++!"#\$X&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?dABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ(\)+	49
- 22	OPGKSTUVWXYZ[N] ++: "#\$%%'() ++,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGH1JKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[N] ++	50 🎎
<i>w</i>	PURSIUVWXYZ[\]T+!"#\$XX'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMN0PURSTUVWXYZ[\]T+!	51
	UKSTUVWXTZ(\)T+;"#35%'()++,-,/U123456/39;;<=>?dABC0EF6HIJKLMNUPUKSTUVWXZ[\]T+!"	52
-	KOTUVATELUJTE; "#366" (J#+, = ./UI23436787; <=> ; ##BDUEEBHIJKEMNUPRKOTUVATELUJTE; "# CTUVATELUJTE; "#366" (J#+, = ./UI23436787; <=> ; ##BDUEEDHIJKEMNUPRKOTUVATELUJTE; "#	53 🎡
	יאס און גער	54
	コンダウムさとしていてで、 かみかみ コンタオナー・シッシュションカウラン・アトーン・ボカロンション ひついしかしかいかい ひいかいかい しょう アンパンション ひつい	55
	vwxy/(\)t+t+##Xx(()++.=_/)t23455749::<=>@adc0bEGH1JKLMN0P(RSTIVWXY/[\)t+t=##X2K	56 🥁
	MXYZ[\]↑+1"#\$X8'()*+/0123456789::<=>?#AHCDEFGHIJKLMNOPUKSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+1"#\$X&'(	57
	XYZ[\11+!"#\$X&'()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGH1JKLMN0P0KSTUVWXYZ[\11+!"#\$X&'()	58
$\otimes$	YZ [\] ++ 1 ##\$%&'() ++,-,/0123456789:;<=> 20ABCDFF6HIJKLMN0PNRSTUVWXYZ[\1++!##\$%&'()+	59 🔆
~	Z(\] 1+! #\$%&'()*+,-,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCUEFGHIJKLMNUPUKSTUVWXYZ(\] 1+! #\$%&'()*+	60
	(\) ++: "#\$%*()*+,-,/0125456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMN0P0KSTUVWXYZ[\) ++: "#\$%*'()*+,	61
~	% \) t+!"#\$X&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDFFGHIJKLMNUPURSTUVWXY7(\) t+!"#\$X&'()*+,-	62
	1; 1++1"#\$%*'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?0ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOPORSTUV%XYZ[\]++1"#\$%*'()*+,	63
	<pre>=</pre>	04 C5
8	+!"#\$%%*()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@AHCDEFGHIJKLMNUP9RSTUVWXYZ[\]↑+!"#\$%%*'()*+,/0	00 200
L		

Ì

	+++++ 142260 HUFFER TEST	:1	
		2 W .	
	PR	3	
	PRIN	5 🐼	
<b>19</b>	PRINTE	6	
· • <b>&gt;</b>	PRINTER*	7	
8	PRINTER*BU	8 🛞	
	PRINTER + BUFF	9	
	PRINTER*BUFFER	10	167
۰	PKINIEK*BUFFEK*I DutwifedamifeEoates	11 🛞 🕤	
>		12	. A.
-	PRINTER *BUFFFK*TEST*PR	13	1
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	14 💥	÷.,
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	16	1
	PRINTEK*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTEK*	17 33	
- WA	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	18	
····>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	19	
0	PRINIEK#BUFFEK#IESI#PKINIEK#BUFFEK	20 💮	
~	MAINIERROUFFENTIESITAMINIERROUFFENTI adinteligneerssteetsotestadintesineersit	21	
	PRINTER-AUFERPATESTAPRINTERADUTERATES	22	
	PRINTER + AUFFFW + TEST + PRINTER + BUFFER + TEST + PR	23 💮	
· · ····>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	24	24 - 1., 
`	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	25	
Ŵ	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	20 00	
	PRINTEK*HUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	28	r sirs
æ	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	29 🐼	
~	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	30	
>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T DOTATED HUG ET DATEST*DATEDATUESEDATEGT*DDINTEM#NUESEDATES	31	
0	PRINIERROUFFERRIEGIERRINIERROUFFEREIGIERRINIERROUFFERRIEG BOTATEDILAIGEGIITETIIOTATEDILAIFEFEITETIDITEDILAIFEFENTEST	32 🏈	
	printer-and ferentest-approximates-and ferentest-approximates and the second	33	
·	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	34	
<b>\$</b>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	35 🥨 🚏	
$\rightarrow$	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	36 1	
253	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	39.000	
00	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	39	
1	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	40	1
0	PRINIER#BUFFER#IESI#PRINIER#BUFFER#IESI#PRINIER#BUFFER#IESI#PRINIER#BUFFER#I Dotiteu-buieredatestaddintedabuffer#IESI#Prinier#butheed#testabotntedabuffer#	41 🛞	
	PRINTERADUFFERATESTAFRINTERADUFFERATESTADUTNERADUFFERATESTAFRINTERANDFERATEST	42	
	PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+	43	1. A. A.
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	44 🛞	
>	PRINTER*HUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*HUFFER*TEST*PRINTEK*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	45	1.14
200	PRINTER*buffer*test*printer*buffer*test*printer*buffer*test*printek*buffer	46 47 000	
8	PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	48	
>	PRINTER*BUFFER*IEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*IEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	49	
	PRINTER*BUPPER*TEST*PRINTER*BUPPER*TEST*PRINTER*BUPPER*TEST*PRINTER*	50 🗱	
	PKINIERABUFFEKAIESIAPKINIEKABUFFEKAIESIAPKINIEKABUFFEKAIESIAPKINIE Dotatesamieteoatestadotateoamieteoamieteoatietaotatestatuataota	51	
	PRINICRADUFFERAICSIAPRINIEVABUFFERAICSIAPRINIERADUFFERAICSIAPRIN DSINICRADUFFERAICSIAPRINIEVABUFFERAICSIAPRINIERADUFFERAICSIAPRIN	52	
$\otimes$	PRINTERADUS CENTES AND AND TRANSFERRED AND AND TRANSFERRED AND TRANSFERR	53 🋞	
· · · <b>&gt;</b>	PRINTER #BUFFER#TEST#PRINTER#BUFFER#TEST#PRINTER#BUFFEF##TES	54	
~~	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFEH*TEST*PHINTEN*BUFFEN*T	55	
$\otimes$	PRINTER*HUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*HUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*HUFFER	56 🛞	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	57 58	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	50 59 🕸	
~~	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	60	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	61	
<b>@</b>	PRINIERABUPPERAIESIAPRINIERABUPPERAIESIAPRIN DOINTERABUPPERAIESIAPRINIERABUPPERAIESIAPRIN	62 💥	
2325	rkinieradurfentiesitrrinieradurfentiesitr Dsinieradurfentiesitrrinieradurfentiesitr	63	
1-22	PRINTERABULE FRATESTAPRINTERABULEERALGIA	64	· · · · ·
`⊗	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	65 🌺	
	PRINTER * RUFFER * TEST * PRINTER * RUFFER		

ø.

		:1
	PRINIERADUFFERNIESINFRINIERADUFF Butnieradufferniesinfortoft	2 🙊
	FRINIERADUFFEKTIESINFRINIERADU DDINIERADUFFEKTIESINFRIDI	3 💥
à		4
<b>1</b>	PRINTER ABUFFERATESTAPRIN	۵ 🔊 ا
	PRINTEK*BUFFER*TEST*PR	6
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	7
w.	PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	° ⊗ 8
	PRINTER*BUFFER*T	9
	PRINTER*BUFFER	10
	PRINTER*BUFF	12
>	PRINTERABU	13
		14.000
		15 \$
-	PR	16
(C)		17 🛞
>		18
•		19
<b>W</b>		²⁰ 🐼 💈
		21 5
		23 👧
		24
		25
<b>1</b>		26 🕋 💈
		27
AT.		28
•		29 🛞
>		30
		31
•	•	32 700
ł		34
٨		35 3
		36
~		37
<b>\$</b>		38 🐼 🐇
		39 🏑
Ś.		40
•		41 🛞
		42 42
۲		44 600
>		45
		46
0		47 🌑 💈
>		48
~		49
6		50 🛞
		51
8		52 XX
		54
		55
8	·	56 🎡 🕺
		57
		58
₩		59 🔅
· >		60
<i></i>		61
<b>9</b>		62 🛞
2		63
÷ ۲		64 65 AX
~		00 XX

ì

.



#### an ang ata tala

	***** T62260 CHARACTER BURST TEST	1
		3 4
$\odot$	*****	5 🛞
*	\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$	6 7 ;
*	&*************************************	8 🛞
		10
<b>W</b>		11 🛞 12
	***************************************	13
w		14 💥
		16 17 🐼
	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	18
		20 🚫
	3 (33 ) 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33	21 22
Ø	444444444444444444444444444444444444444	23 🐼
$\rightarrow$	666666666666666666666666666666666666666	24 25
<b>A</b>	888888848888888888888888888888888888888	26 🐼
	999999999999999999999999999999999999999	28
۵.	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	29 🌺 30
$\rightarrow$	<pre>&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;</pre>	31
<b>9</b>	<pre>&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;&gt;</pre>	32 🎡 33
25	ႻჽႦႻຆຆຆຆຆຆຎຎຎຆຆຆຆຎຎຆຆຆຆຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎຎ	34
©9 —→		36
		37 38 🚳
		39 .
6	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	40 41 🛞
>	барарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарар	42
-		44 🛞
>	KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK	45 46
۲	LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL	47 🍪
		48 49
0	₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽	50 🏈
	арионооноровороворовороворовороворовороворо	52
8	\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$	53 🏈 54
>		55
*		50 🛞 57
<i>4</i> 00	***************************************	58 59 ≫
<u>چ</u>	YYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYY	60
<i>8</i> 85		61 62 🔆
1233e	\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	63
<u>َ</u>	***************************************	64 65 🛞
-	***************************************	

Ì

ł

× 

## Appendix D

### LP600 Output

The following pages are examples of the output of the LP600 tests when executed with the default options. You can use these examples for comparison with the output you receive from the LP600.

				:					 	1				
6	<b>শ</b> কর্তন্থত	71600	FORM	LENGTH	AND	FEED	TEST						2 2	
,													े न	
0													5. 19 <b>9</b> 15	
→ (©													ś 🏟	
													9 10	
۲													11 🌑 12	
→ ©													13 . 14 🌑	
													15 16	
۲													17 🌑 13	
$\rightarrow$													19 20 🚳	
****													21	
۲													23	
													24 25 26 (11)	
<b>*</b>													27	
۲													29 🏈	
>												•	31	
													32 *****	4
۲													34 35 🛞	ann Busa
$\rightarrow$													36 37	1
۲													38 🌒	, In( 2
۲													40 41 🏈	
>													42 43	
													44 🎯 45	
۲													46 47	
													48 49	
۲													50 🏈 51	
۲													52 53 🛞	
													54 55	
													56 🛞 57	
۲													58 59 🔊	
$\rightarrow$													60 61	
325													62 🏈 63	
ті-22													64 65 🌑	
								a a	÷				-	

.

())	THIS LINE	IS AT THE	TOP OF T	HE FORM		,1 3
6						3 4 5 இ)
						6 / 8 🖏
0						9 10 11 🔊
`` @				•		12 13 14 🔊
0						15 16 17
``` ©						13 19 20 🔊
6						21 22 23
- → (©						24 25 26 🔊
۲						27 28 <b>29 🛞</b>
• • ©						30 31 32
۲						33 34 35 🛞 g
→ ©						36 37 38
0						39 () 40 41 🛞
õ						42 43 44 🌑
••→ •						45 46 47
$\rightarrow$						48 49 50
0						52 53 🛞 54
e e						55 56 🛞 57
۲						58 59 👀 60
2325						61 62 🔊 63
т: ₂ ;						 64 65 🏈

1

ŕ

į.

(s) (s)	THIS JINE IS AT THE TUP OF THE FURM	2 🛞	
		3 4	
Ś		5 🛞	
- >		6 7	
۲		ε 🌒	
		9 10	
		11 🛞	, i
$\rightarrow$		13	
•		14 💓 15	
đu		16	
		17 🐲 18	
		19 20 🖏	
Ŵ		20 🎲	i.
ø		22 23	
>		24	
0		25 26 🔊	
		27	
۲		28 29 🛞	
>		30 31	S.
0		32 🛞	
		33 34 8	
۲		35 🛞 🚦	
<b>&gt;</b>		36 g 37 J	
		38 🌒 🥍	
		40	
		41 🔇 🌶 42	
		43	
		44 🎯 🖌	
Ó		46 47 🔊	
•••		48	
0		49 50 🛞 -	
		51	
0		52 53 🛞	
$\rightarrow$		54 55	
۲		56 🛞	
		57 58	
۲		59 🛞	
$\rightarrow$		ый 61	
122 🔊		62 👀	
1-223		64	
₩ F		65 🤍	

0	ALGAZ-11	9 9		7	6 ©	5 ©	4	0	3 ()	ø	2 ()		1 - <b>()</b>	0
•	≱ ) ' ) ) )	)  }	;  )	}	• •	) }	)	}	)	 }	)	)	<b>)</b>	.
		7	7	ç,	3		-							*
,		•	, ,	5	3									+**
		ی د د د	9 9 9	, ,	3 3					, ,	:	:	!	+#+#
	: E : E	· ?	, <del>7</del>	9 9	) 3 ) 3	1.3				,				T
v	E	?	9	9	333	1								2600
														) Cł
,		୍ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ ତ			4									IAR
	F	e e	:	:	4 4 4	•			(	(			11 11	AC
	F	0 0 0	:	:	4	4			(	(				TE
	FF	9 9 9 9 9 9			4 4 4 4 4	4							**	<del>२</del>
	Ŧ	<u>8</u>			4									3ET
												4	4	TES
4		A 4 4 4		i	5	5					1	* * *	1       	ST.
	э ( э (	_A ∧ ∧ ≠	, , , ,	; ;	5 5	55	j		;	) :	Ħ.	+ 	₩ # # #	
	G G G	A A A			5 5	5 5	/		)	)	Ŧ	+ + + +	++ ++ + ++	
м	0 0 0 0				555	5		,	-			#	#	
N	******	B I I I B	<		6 6 6	ſ	0 0 0		'n	b,		4	9 95	
	н	B 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	<	<	ی چ د	, ,	0	c	* ⊀	*		5 <b>\$</b>	5 \$	
	н	B B B	<	<	6 6	0 6		5 0	<b>⊦ +</b> ⊀-	÷ *	Ŧ	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	₽ \$\$ \$	đ
	н	B	<	<	6 6	, ,	d		*	*		*	\$ 	
N	******	B B B B	<	<	6 6	,	) 0 0		<b>.</b>	<b>J</b> (		, \$ 5	5	
			:	:										- 19 - 19 - 19
r	1		-		7	1	1				/=	- 7	× 7	y •
ן ה			- 19		7777	1	1 1 1	1	+	+ +		×.		,
חו	1	c c	: 32		7 ,7	1			•		/•	. 7.	,×	
		c c	æ	=	7	7			•	4	/•	7.	/•	<b>,</b>
Р	r L		>	>	888	2	2					8/ 8/	8. 8	2
Ρ	J	ם כככ כככ כככ	>	>	8	22	0	2	,		Ç.4	×.		. 9.
Р	J	D D	>	>	8	2	2	2	2 2		с <i>к</i>	8.	&	
P			>	>	8 8 8	2 2 8	2	2				دی 82 18		
			>			2	22					2	٤.	
4	56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63	47 48 49 50 51 52 * 53 54 55	42 43 44 45 46	37 38	31 32 33 34 35 36	20 27 28 29	22 23	19 20 🍏 21	16 17 🖓 18	12 13 14	10 11 📢	7 8 🆓	4 5 ())	3
)			)	)	loore Business Forms, Inc. S	)		)	)	)	)	)	)	)

.

2270532-9701

i

1

Í

D-5

11 ●	10 01 0	8 9 9		5 • •	© 4 •	2 © 3	
U U U U		I I I I I I I I I I I I	ссс с с с с с с	1 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы		К К К К К К К К К К
	P P P P P P P P P	ل ل ل ل ل ل	ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם ם		x x x x x x x x x x x x x x	RRRR RRRR RRRR RRRR RR R R R R R R R	L L L L L L L L L L
ы ы ы ы ы	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	к к к к к к к к к к к	Е Е Е Е Е Е Е Е Е Е Е Е		Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	555 555 555 555 555	M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M M
× × × ×	R R R R R R R R	L L L L L L	F F F F F F F F F F F	``````````````````````````````````````	Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z	T T T T T T T T T T T T	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
Y Y	555 5 55 55 555	M MM M M M M M M M M M M M M M	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
ZZZZ	т т т т т т т т т	N N N N N N N N N N N		B B B B B B B B B B B B B			역 역 역 역 역 역 역 역 역 역 역
. •	54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63	44 45 46 47 48 49 50 50 51 51 52 53	36 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	26 (2) 27 28 29 (2) 30 31 32 (2) 33 34	17 🛞 18 19 20 🎱 21 22 23 🌍 24 25	8 🔊 9 10 11 🎱 12 13 14 <b>④</b> 15 16	3 4 5 6 7

.

4



i

J

-	***** T3400 RIPPLE TEST	
•		' 🛞
1		3
	"#\$%% () *+, /0123456789;; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[)1^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPG	5 🗱
Ψ	##%&^()*+;/0123456789:;<<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZI\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQR	6
<i>6</i> >	\$2&/()*+, -/0123456789;; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRS Y?///DALE_/012365789; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRS	7
Ø	<pre>%()*+,/0123456789;;&lt;=&gt;?@Abbbef@HiJkLmN0P@RSTUVWXY2[\]^ ABbbef@HiJkLmN0P@RSTU</pre>	9
2	()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZI\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUV	10
0	()*+, /0123456789:; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZI\]^_\ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVW	11 🕥
——	)*+,-/0123456789;;<>>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZL\3^_ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWX *+,-/0123456789;;<>>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDGRSTUVWYZL\3^_ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDGRSTUVWY	12
0	+, -, /0123456789;; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWX7Z[\]^_ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWX7Z[\]^	14
3	/0123456789:;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[	15
<u>a</u>	- /0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZC\]^_ ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZC\ /012365789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZC\]^_ ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZC\	16 17 🖓
w	123456787; <=>?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[]]^ ABCDEFGHTJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[]}^	18
	0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]?!	19
•	123456789: (<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]?"	20
4	23456789;;<<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ(;}"# 3456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`ABCDFFQHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ(;}"##	21
0	456789:; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{}}"#\$%	23
	56789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{\}~!"##%&	24
a	- 6757:;\=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}""#\$%&/ 789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDFFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}""#\$%&/	25
w.	87;; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ(\)^_\ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ(\)~!"#\$%&`()	27
5	9:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ{}}"#\$%&'()*	28
•	:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{\}^*'"#\$%&^()*+ ;<=>?@ABCDEEQHI,KIMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEEQHI,KIMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{\}^*'"#\$%&^()*+	29 🛞
	C=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{\}^*!"#\$%& ()*+,~	31
	=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{!}~!"#\$%&'()*+,	32
6	>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]?^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ{\}?!"#\$%&'()*+,~./	33
6	<pre>// ceasurerenityFiningksin/wxxxi/lile/enityFiningksin/wxxi/fis/**********************************</pre>	35
	ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{!}~!"#\$%&'()*+,/012	36 0
	BCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{}?*!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123	37
W	<pre>UDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZL\]^_'ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZL}"#\$%&amp;'()*+,/01234 DEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZL\]^ \ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWYZZL}"#\$%&amp;'()*+,/012345</pre>	38
7	EFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{!}~!"##%&'()*+,~. /0123456	40
0	FGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^'ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{ }~!"#\$2&'()*+,/01234567	41
	GHIJKLMNUPGRSIUVWXYZL\J^YABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}~!"#\$%&'()*+,/012345678 HIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZL\J^_YARCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZ{}?~!"#\$%&'()*+,/012345678	42 43
0	IJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ{\}^!"#\$%&'()*+, /0123456789:	44
8	JKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{}}~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;	45
	KLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}***********************************	46 47
w	MNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{;}~!"#\$%&(()*+,/0123456789:;<=>	48
	NOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{!}~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?	49
0	UPGRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}~!"#\$%&'()*+;/0123456789:;{<=>?@ PGRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`ABCDEFGHI,KLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}~!"#\$%&'()*+;/0123456789:;{<=>?@	50
9	GRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ{}}"!#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@A	52
0	RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ{;}~!"##%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABC	53
	STUVWXYZ[\]^_}*!*#\$%&'()*+, /0123456789;; <=>?@ABCD	54
. 🚳	UVWXYZ[\]^_}~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789';{<=>?@ABCDEF	55 66 <b>68</b>
2 10	VWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFG	57
F 👧	WXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ{}}*!###%%//)#+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGH	58 019
W	★★★↓、★★↓ ★★↓ ★★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★↓ ★	59 <b>69</b>
	Z[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ{}}~!"#\$%&'()*+, /0123456789:;<>>?@ABCDEFGHIJK	61
0	[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ{;}~!"#\$%&'()*+, /0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKL	62
11	\J^_`ABCDEF@HIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ{{}?"!#\$%&'()*+, /0123454789;;(=>?@ABCDEF@HIJKLM ]^ \ABCDEF@HI,KLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ{}}\?!#\$%&'()*+, /0123454789;;(=>?@ABCDEF@HIJKLM	63
•		: e I
_	ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{{}?"##%%'()#+, /0123456789:; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDP	

• \

.'

	`ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}``'#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGR ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}``'#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRS CDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}``'#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRS CDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}``'#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTU EFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUV EFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUV FGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVW GHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWX HIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWX HIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWX JKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ KLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ KLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`'''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ KLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`'''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ KLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`'''#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ KLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''''' NDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}`''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''	3 4 5 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
5 ©	WXYZ(}>^!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ()]^_`ABCDEFGHI XYZ(}>^!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHI YZ(}>^!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJ Z(}>'!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJK {}^!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJK }^"!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKL }^"!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKL }^"!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKL }^"!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLM	24 25 26 27 28 29 30
6 •	~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ABCDEFGHIJKLMND	31 32 8 Butteres Forms, Inc. 5 36 5 37
♥ 7 •♥		38 39 40 41 42 43
8 8 		44 45 46 47 48 49
9 (2)		50 51 51 52 53 5 54 55
		56 57 58 59 60 61
11 •		62 63

1

į

	**** T4600 BUFFER TEST		
Ø		ં	~
1	80	3	
		4 c 400	
, W		° (1)	
	PRINTER*	7	
6	PRINTER*BU	8 🔊	
2	PRINTER*BUFF	9	
2	PRINTER*BUFFER	10	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*T	11 🋞	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	12	
. <b>6</b> 1.	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	13	
		14 💓	
3	PRINTER-SUFFERSTEST-SUFF	15	
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	17	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	18	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	19	
۲	PRINTER*BUFFER*TES1*PRINTER*BUFFER	20 🌑	
4	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	21	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	22	
W	PRINIEK#BUFFER#IESI#PRINIER#BUFFER#IESI#	23	•
	FRINICR&DVFERXIEDI%FRINIER&DVFER%IEDI%FR	24 25	
ß	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	26	
***	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	27	
5	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	28	
0	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	29 🛞	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	30 5	
· 👝	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	31	
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	32 🛞	
6	PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI* BRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*BRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*	33 #	
	FRINJER*BUFFER*IESJ*FRINJER*BUFFER*IESJ*FRINJER*BUFFER*IESJ*FR BRINTER*BUFFER*FEST&BRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*BRINTER*BUFFER*IEST*BRIN	34	
W	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	36	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	37	
0	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	38 🛞	
. 7	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	39	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	40	
0	PRINIEK#BUFFER#IESI#PRINIEK#BUFFER#IESI#PRINIER#BUFFER#TEST#PRINTER#BUFFER#T	41	
	FRINIER*BUFFER*IE01*FRINIER*BUFFER*IE01*FRINIER*BUFFER*IE01*FRINIER*BUFFER*IE01*FRINIER*BUFFER*IE0	42	
Ø	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	44	
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	45	
8	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	46	
0	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	47	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	48	
<b>A</b> 44	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	49	
0	rkiniek*buffek*lesi*trkiniek*buffer*tesi*triniek*buffer*tesi*triniek*buffer* BRINIEN*DUFER*LESI*triniuten*buffer*tesi*triniten*buffer*tesi*triniten*buffer*	50	
9	rainich #Burfer#icsi#frinich#Burfer#icsi#friNick#BUrfer#icsi#friNick#BUrfer#icsi#friNic PRINTE#RICEFCP#ferI#PRINTE#RICEFCP#ferI#DDINTEBARICECD#TECF#DDIN	51	
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	53	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	54	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	55	
<u>.</u>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	56 🌒 🛶	
S 10	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	57 T	
E no	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	58 0	
	PRINIER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	59 <b>39</b> "	
	rrinier#Burrer*ieji#frinier#Burrer*ieji#frinier* Drintebrnieredatestadrintedanieredatestadrinte	60 61	
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	62	
***	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	63	
11	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	-	
۲	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	. 🚳	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	-	

- '



J

i

i






	***** T6600 8 LPI TEST			
• 🔘 '	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH	3
- <b>Q</b>	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH	B LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH.	5 🛞
۲	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	B LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH.	B LINES PER INCH B LINES PER INCH B LINES PER INCH B LINES PER INCH.	7 8 🌒 9
© 2	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH	10 11 🔊 12
0	B LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. B LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	13 14 🔊
3 🛞	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH 8 LINES PER INCH	16 17 🏈
•	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH. 8 LINES PER INCH.	B LINES PER INCH B LINES PER INCH B LINES PER INCH B LINES PER INCH	19 20 🛞
4 🛞				21 22 23 🛞
				24 25 26 🛞
5				27 28 29 🔊
				30 <b>X</b> 31 32
6				33 34
<u> </u>				35 <b>3</b> 6 ¹⁰ 37
7				38 😻 39 40
<b>•</b>				41 🕥 42 43
<b>()</b> 8				44
0				47() 48
9				49 50
<b>O</b>				52 53
<b>619</b>				55 56 1 57 57
С ¹¹ -У				58 ⁴⁹ 59 ⁶⁰ 60
•				61 62
11				۲

Ń

Ì

D-15





	***** T8600 - 3 INCH SOLID BLACK BOX TEST	
1		3 4
- <b>@</b> -		5 <b>())</b> 6 7
<b>0</b> 2		8 🌑
<u> </u>		11 ( <b>3</b> ) 12
<b>Ø</b> 3		14 <b>(3)</b> 14 <b>(3)</b> 15
©		16 17 <b>3</b> 18
<b>@</b> 4		19 20 🌑 21
6		22 23 🏟 24
0		25 26 🔕 27
ø		28 29 🕢 30
0		31 32
6		34 35
•		37 38
7 🚱		39 40 41
•		42 43 44
8		45 46 47
0		48 49 50
9 Ø		51 52 53
		54 55 56
10 11-2491		57 1-24919 58 69
		60 61
11		62 <b>33</b>
		•



6	****→ TA600 - PLOT MODE TEST	1 2 🔕
	A BOSTEN OF ALTERNATING DOTS:	3 4 5≪≫) 6
→ (())		7 8 🛞 9
©	A SOULD LINE OF SINGLE-DENSITY PLOT:	10 11 🔊 12
۲		13 14 🛞 15
© →	A SOLID LINE OF DOUBLE-DENSITY PLOT:	17 <b>()</b> 13
۲		20 🛞 21 22
© →	TWO ROWS OF ALTERNATING VERTICAL LINES:	23 🔊 24 25
		26 ()) 27 23
		29 (m) 30 31 37 (m)
		33 34 35 (1) (1)
→ ©		36 37 38
•		39 ° 40 41 <b>()</b>
$\rightarrow$		42 43 44
		46 47 🏈 48
8		49 50 👀 51
© →		52 53 🔊 54
۲		56 🔇
		59 <b>()</b> 60 61
, 8 🔊		62 🛞 63 64
		65 🤍

			1						•				
-		44444	TRADO -	- FI	ONGATED C	ARACTER TEST							1
	<b>(</b> )												2 🛞
		THESE	SHOULD	BE	ELONGATED	Characters.	THESE	SHOULD	BE	ELONGATED	CHARACTERS.		4
- 12	0	THESE	SHOULD.	ßF		CHARACTERS	THESE	SHOULD	BF		CHARACTERS		s 🛞
		THEOR		nr.			TUEPE		пг		CUADACTERC	1	6 7
	۲	INESE	SHUULU	ßC	ELUNGATED	CHARACTERS.	INCOL	SHUVLU	BE	ELUNGATED	CHARACIERS.		3 <b>(3)</b>
		THESE	SHOULD	ΒE	ELONGATED	CHARACTERS. 7	THESE	SHOULD	BE	ELONGATED	CHARACTERS.	1	9
	۲	THESE	SHOULD	BE	ELONGATED	CHARACTERS	THESE	SHOULD	BE	ELONGATED	CHARACTERS.	1	1 🛞
- 1	$\rightarrow$											1	3
	0											1	4 🌒
												1	6
	0											1	7 🛞
-												1	9
	<b>(</b> )											2	20 🛞 🕽
	100.											2	2
	•											2	23 🥨
	>											2	15 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1
	<b>\$</b>											2	27 (17)
	<i>(</i> )											2	23 29 🔊
	•									•.		3	80
	ø											3	31 32 <b>(3)</b>
	•											3	33
	0											3	34 § 85 (1) §
<b>.</b>	_ <b>→</b>											3	86 <b>1</b>
	0											2	88 🌒 🎍
												:	39 ⁽ ,
	0											4	11 🛞
-	<b>&gt;</b>											4	12
	۲											4	14 🛞
•	<b>→</b>											2	15 1 16
	۲											4	17 🛞
	>											4	9
	۲											5	50 <b>339</b> 51
	ø											5	52
	w.					·						- E	x3 %397 x4
	> @											1	55
	<b>\$</b> \$\$											L L	57
	ø											5	58 59 🔊
												(	50
	ø ,											6	52 <b>()</b>
	2232E											ť	53 34
	🌑 🛱											6	
										•			

į

1

	***** TC600 - DELETE CHARACTERS TEST	
		3
	15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FOLLOW 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FOLLOW 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS	4 5 🔊 🕅
<b>Y</b>	15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FOLLOW 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS	6
6	15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FULLOW 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD FOLLOW 15 BLANK SPACES SHOULD PRECEDE THIS	7 8 🛞
2	1234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890	9
		11 🌒
[ <del></del>		12 13
0		14
3		16
•		17 💓 18
6		19 20. <i>8</i> 20
4		21
6		22 23 🛞
		24
° 🚯		26
5		27 28
0		29
		31
0		32 🛞 📱
6		34
		35 (g) 2 36 %
â		37 38 🖚
7		39
•		41
		42 43
۵		44
8		46
. Ø		47 <b>())</b> 48
6		49
9		51
Ó		52 53 🛞
		54
<u>ه</u>		56 ⊛ ⊣
87 10		57 -249 58 91
F 🚳		59 🧭 🦉
		61
		62()) 63
11 Ø		
WØ		

.....

		_
	**** TD600 - EVFU TEST BEGINNING	
0		`_ <b>@</b>
	USING CHANNEL 5. THIS SHOULD BE LINE 5.	4 5 🔇 🔊
•	USING CHANNEL 5. THIS SHOULD BE LINE 7.	7 8 🌒
• 2 •	USING CHANNEL 5. THIS SHOULD BE LINE 10.	9 10 11 🔊 12
<b>®</b> 3	USING CHANNEL 8. THIS SHOULD BE LINE 14.	13 14 🔇
©	USING CHANNEL 8. THIS SHOULD BE LINE 18.	17 (M) 18 19
<b>4</b>	USING THE VERTICAL TAB TO LINE 21.	20 () 21 22
©	USING THE VERTICAL TAB TO LINE 25.	23 <b>(3)</b> 24 25 26 <b>(3)</b>
5 •	USING EVFU TO SLEW 5 LINES TO LINE 30.	28 29
6 Ø	USING EVFU TO SLEW 5 LINES TO LINE 35.	32 8 Bundle Formation 10 States 10 S
7	USING EVFU TO SLEW 5 LINES TO LINE 40.	37 38 39 40 41 41
© 8 ©		43 44 45 46 47
<b>9</b>	USING EVFU TO SLEW 10 LINES TO LINE 50	49 50 51 52 53
61692-11 61692-11 61692-11 61692-11 61692-11 61692-11	USING EVFU TO SLEW 10 LINES TO LINE 60	54 55 55 57 57 58 59 60 61 62 63
<b>()</b>		۵

i

į

ł





.

ġ

1

D-25



## Appendix E

## ST820 Output

The following pages are examples of the output of the ST820 tests when executed with the default options. You can use these examples for comparison with the output you receive.

	***** T1820 FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST	
Ø		3
		4
<b>(</b> )		5 👐   6
		1
<b>\$</b>		9
2		10
		11382
	•	13
<b>.</b>		14.00
		16
<b>v</b>		18
•		19 20
4		21
		22 23
		24
•		25 26
5		27
0		28 29
		30 ş
0	THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	31 32
, 6		33
<b>`</b> Ø		35
		36 ∽ 37
۵		38
ı 7		39 40
۲		41
		42 43
<b>Ø</b>		44
8		45 46
۵		478
		48 49
		50 ⁶⁶⁹
9		52 ₀₀₀
8		53 <b>8</b> 6
		55
66		5688
2,10 ≓≪s		58
<b>W</b>		59 <b>329</b> ° 60
		61
<b>**</b>		62 <b>82</b> 63
8	•	w .

.

2270532-9701



E-3

ST820 Output



.

2270532-9701

A



ŕ

ł

ŕ



2270532-9701

E-6



E-7



A

	***** T3820 RIPPLE TEST	
		· 🛞 🛛
1		3
	: ##%@ ()#+;/0123456789:;<=>?@BDCDEFGHJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abCdefshijk1mnop "##%&()#+:/0123456789:;<=>?@BDCDEFGHJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefshijk1mnopg	5
	#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqr	6
	\$%%()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLWNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqrs	100
ø	2&*()*+,/0123456/8911<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPQKSIUVWXYZL\]^abcdefghijklmnopqrst &*()*+	800
2	<pre>()*+,/0123456/789::&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIUKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]abcdefsnijklmnopertuv</pre>	9
	()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopsrstuvw	11
	)*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnopqrstuvwx	12
~	*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`abcdef9h1Jklmnop9rstuvwxy	13
89	+,-/0123456789::<=>2000CFC6HLIKLMNOPORSTIVWXYZ[\]^ abcdefshiiklmnoperstuvwxy2	14302
3	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopsrstuvwxyz{	16
•	./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnop9rstuvwxyz(}}	17🛇
	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVMXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz(})~	18
6	0123436789;it=>?@ABCDEFOHIOKLMNUP@RSILVWXYZL\J'L_aDCdef9hiJkimn0P9fstuVwxyZti?" 12255789;it=>?@ABCDEFOHILKIMNUP@RSILVWYYZL\?'LaDcdef9hijkimn0P9fstuVwyyZti?"	19
Ŵ	2345678911 <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_ abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz[\]~!*	2002
4	3456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`wbcdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{\}~!"#\$	22
- 🛞	456789::(<>>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz[}?~!"#\$%	23
·	つち/お外:1く事ン/使品BUDEFGHIJKLMNUPGHRSIUVWXYZ[\]へ」abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz{i}/*!"#考え後 な789:(ニングABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPGPRSIUVWXYZ[\]へ」abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz{i}/*!"#考え後	24
	789:1<=>?@BBCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[]1^_bbcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz[]>~!##X&	25
	89:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&~()	27
5	<pre>9::&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&amp;`()*</pre>	28
° ⊗	::(<>>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZL)]^_/>~!"#\$%&/()#+	29
	<pre>it&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUP@KSIUVWXYZL\J^`&amp;DCG@f911JKIMn0P9r\$tUVWXYZ(;}*'****** &lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPDRSIUWXYZL\J***********************************</pre>	30 51
8	=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\abcdefshijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz{\}~! #\$%&(()*+,	3200
6	>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`@bcdefshijklmnopsnstuvwxyz{ }~!"##%& /	33
<b>1</b>	<pre>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefahijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}?~"#\$%&amp;'()*+,/0 approximate a start a star</pre>	34
	WABCDEFGHIUKLMNUPWKSIUVWXYLLJ"_"BOCGETENIJKIMNOPGFSTUVWXYZ()/":"#PKW'()#F,/01 Appreeghiuki MNUPWSTUVWYYLJ'^ 'abcdafshiikimopegestuvwxyz()/":"#PKW'()#F,/012	35
	BCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz(])~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123	37
۵	CDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ebcdefshijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/01234	38
7	DEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ebcdefshijkimmoserstuvwxyz[}>"!##%&()#+,/012345	39
200	EPUHIOKLINNUFUKSIUVWXYZL\\"_"&DCCCTDD1XKIMNOPFYSTUVWXYZ()>""##X%"()#+/0123430 FGHT.KKIMNOPQRSTIUVWXYZL\1"_">>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	40 41833
100 A	GHJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`ebcdefshijk1mnoperstuvwxyz{\}~!"##%&^()*+,/012345678	42
	HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\abcdefshijk\mnopqrstuvwxyz(\}~!\##%&(()*+,/0123456789	43
	IJKLMNDPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\ebcdefphijklmnopenstuvwxyz[]>"!"##%%'()#+,/01234567891	44
8	- UNLINVOFWINGIOVWATZL\」「」をDCG@T#FIJKIMNOFMPSTUVWXYZL)が、"##A&(\)#+,/U123456/89/1 KLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZL)/ACG@fehijkimnopmpstuvwxyZl)が「##S%2()が+,/U123456/89/14	45
	LMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef#hijklmnop=rstuvwxyz()~!"#\$%&()*+,/0123456789!!<=	473
	MNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefphijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{ }~!"##%&{()++,/0123456789:!<=>	48
	NOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz( }~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?	49
<b>9</b>	UFWR51U7WA71L\]"_'&DCG@FTBN1JKIMNOFFFSTUVWXYZ(}/''''##646''()#7+/0123430/8711{=}/@ PORSTIVWXYZ()]^_bcdafebijklmnoffstuVWXYZ(}/''##456''()#4/0123430/8711{=}/@	50
9	GRSTUVWXYI[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnoperstuvwxyz{\}~!"##%%'()#+,/0123456789!!<=>?@AB	52
$\otimes$	RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`@bcdef#hijk]mnoP=rstuvwxyz{ }~!"##%&{()#+,-,/0123456789#!<=>?@ABC	53
<del></del>	STUVWXYZ[\]^_`&bcdefehijklmnopenstuvwxyz[]>"##%&'()#+,-/012345678911<=>?@ABCD	54
. 114	IOVWATELVI = @DCG#TBNIJKIMNOPATETUVWXYZ(I)*" "##A@(()#T+=,/0123406/8711(=)?@ABDDE IVWXYZ[1]^- abcd#fehidihmnopatetuvwxyz(I)*" ##A@()#T+=,/0123406/8711(=)?@ABTNPE	55 50
6.6	VWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefphijk]mnoperstuvwxyz()>~!"##%%'()*+,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEF0	57
R 10	WXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz{ }~!"#\$%&~()*++/0123456789++<=>?@ABCDEFGH	58 ĝ
*⊗	XYZ[\]^_\abcdef#hijk]mnop=rstuvwxyz[]>~!"##%&'()#+;/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHI	59 ⁶⁰ °
	Y1L\J''_'&CCG0+9h1JK MN0P9F\$TUVWXY2(]}/''特報3&'()++,-,/0123456789!!く=>?@ABCDEFGH1J プ[\]へ、Abcd45451110の2000年11VWXY2(]}/''学者43&'()++,-,-/0123456789!!く=>?@ADCDEFGH1.W	60
	$[1]_{abcdef = hijk   mnoperstuvwxz(1)~! ##X&()#+,/012345678911<=>(@ABCDEFGHIJK   Note: Abcdef = hijk   mnoperstuvwxz(1)~! ##X&()#+/012345678911<=>(%ABCDEFGHIJK   Note: Abcdef = hijk   Note: A$	67
	\]^_`ebcdefshijklmnop=rstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%%~()#+,-,/0123456789!;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLM	63
11	]^_`@bcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz{;}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN	~
	abcdefshijk1mnoparstuvwxyz()>~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNO	. 😅
L	<pre>`abcdefshijkimnoperstuvwxyz()}~!"#\$%&amp;^()#+,/0123456789!!&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP</pre>	1

Ż

i

	`abcdefebijkimpoperstuvwyy{{}~"#\$%%/()*+/0123454789::<<>>268PCDEFCUT // MNOPO	<u> </u>
8	abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&()*+,/0123456789:!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQR	· 🛞 🔒
1	bcdef9hijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{;}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRS	3
	<pre>cdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxxz()&gt;~!"#\$%&amp;()&gt;+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRST childling</pre>	4
Ŷ	det9n1jk/mnoperstuvwxy2(i)~'"##%%()#+,-,/012345/39/i(=)/@HODDEFGHIJk/MNOP@KS/U afabii/i/moperstuvwxy2(i)~'"##%%()4+,-,/012345/39/i(=)/@ABCDEFGHIJK/MNOP@KS/U	5***
	fshijk\mnoperstuvwxyz()>"#\$%&(()*+,/0123456789:!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVW	7
	shijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWX	s 🔊 😴
2	hijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(l)~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOFQRSTUVWXY	9
	1jk[mn0P99\$tuvwyx2()/*!"##X&()/#+,/0123456/8711<=>/@ABCDEF0H1JKLMNUPWK51UVWXY2 	10
~~	klmnopgrstuvwxyz{{}~!/##%&{/}*+,/0123456789*!;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[	12
	1mnoperstuvwxyz{}/>~!"##%%~()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]	13
	mnoperstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^	14 🛞 🖉
3	noperstuvwxyz())~!"##X&*()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUPWRSIUVWXYZ()]^_ 	15
	09415(070772(1)~1"#\$%&(1)#+,-/012345678911(=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PGRSTUVWXYZ(1)^_3	16
<b>*</b>	<pre>stuvwxyz{}&gt;~!"#\$%&amp;^()*+,/0123456789::&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[]^ab</pre>	18
	rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&<()#+,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abc	19
Ø	stuvwxyz(1)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/012343678911(==?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNUFUNSTUVWXYZ(1)^abcd	20
4	uvwxyz())~; ##### ()##,-;/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLINNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_\abcdef	21
0	vwxyz(!}~!"#\$%&~()*+,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9	23
	wxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefgh	24
<b>~</b>	xyz()>+!"##7&*()#+,/0123456789!1<=>?@ABCDEFCHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ()^abcdefshi	25
Ŷ	Tatij': サチルダ (/サナリー/012350570)(ニノマの中国ビビビリコルにLINUのFWR5109WA721)」。急DCG合き目り13 2(1)→ (********)→ /01234557891(<=>2000FFFのH I.KLMNDPのR5110WXY71)へ >=hcdaf=hiit	26
5	{!}~!"##%&^()#+,/0123456789!!<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]	28
9	!}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789*;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1m	29
	>>"!##%&{()#+,/0123456789:1<=>?@ABCDEFC0HJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[)]^_`abcdefphijklmn	30 _ş
	<pre>~:"#\$%%'()#+;/0123436/89!!(=&gt;/@HBCDEF0HIJKLMNUPWKS10VWX12L\]^_ %BCdef9h1jk(mno</pre>	31
•		32
, 6		34
8		35 2
		36 🤊
		37
. 7		39
-		40
S		41
		42
0		44
8		45
		46
<b>1</b> 00		4700
		49
۲		50
9		51
<i>6</i> 6		52
v		54
~		55
e ₩		⁵⁶ ₩ ≓
¥ 10		57 -249 58
F 🛞 🗌		59 S B
		60
16		61
$\otimes$		62
11		03
۲		(2)

2270532-9701

			- N
	***** T4820 BUFFER TEST		1
0		· 🗇	
		3	
	PR	4	
	PRIN	533	
	PRINTE	6	
	PRINTER*	7	
- C 🐼 👘 👘	PRINTER*BU	8,333	
. 2	PRINTER*BUFF	9	
	PRINTER*BUFFER	10	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*I	11337	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*IES	12	
	PRINTER*BOFFER*TEST*	13	
Ø	PRINIER#BUFFER#IESI#FK	14%%	
3	CRINIER#DUFFEN#IESI#CRINE BENNEED#DIEFED#TEFED#TEFET#DEINTE	10	
	RAINIER#BUFFER#IESI#FRINE BENNEER#BUFEER#ESI#BENNEE#		
•	DETNICED AD LEED AT LEET ADD TNICKA BII	171000	1
	PRINTER-BUFFERTEST#PRINTER+BUFF	10	
	PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER	20	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	21	
4	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	22	
<b>A</b>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	23	
1987 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	24	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	25	
69	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	26	
<b>1</b>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	27	
Б	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	28	
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	29쯑	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	30	2
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	31	1
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	32	1 Lung
. 6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST* PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	33	1
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*1ESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*1ESI*PK	34	1 m.
	rkinier#Buffer#IESI#FKINIEK#BUffer#IESI#FKINIER#BUffer#IESI#FKIN	35	ĩ
	rkiniek#Buptek#ilsi#PKiniek#Buftek#ilsi#PKiniek#Buftek#ilsi#PKinie Doinies_Duced_Icot_Pointed_DucedDutestatest#Biniek#Buftek#ilsi#PKinie	36	″ <b>–</b>
<i>2</i> 24	FRINIER#BUFFER#IE3I#FRINIER#BUFFER#IE3I#FRINIER#BUFFER#IE3I#FRINIER# DotNiegwoliefer#IE3I#FRINIER#BUFFEF#IE3I#DTNIEG#BUFFER#IE3I#FRINIER#BUI	37 3 <b>.23</b>	
	FRINIERABUFFERANIESIAFRINIERABUFFERATESIAFRINIERABUFFERATESIAFRINIERABU Botniesaniesedatesiasiatinierabufferatesiaesiniesedatesiafrijes	38	
. 7 '	PRINTER+BUFFER*FEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	40	
<b></b>	PRINTER+BIFFFR*TEST*PRINTER+BIFFFR*TEST*PRINTER+BIFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BIFFFR*T	41	. N
~	PRINTER*BIJEFER*TEST*PRINTER*BIJEFER*TEST*PRINTER*BIJEFER*TEST*PRINTER*BIJEFER*TES	42	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	43	
<i>(</i> 2)	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	44	
Ť.	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	45	
8	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	46	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	473	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	48	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	49	12
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	50	
9	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	51	
, and the second s	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	52	
•	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*1ES1*PR	53 🥸	
	PKINIEK*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTEK*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFEK*TEST* BRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*SSINTER*BUFFEK*TEST	54	
	FRINIERTBUFFERTIESITFKINIERTBUFFERTIESITKINIERTBUFFERTIES Dointebadieeedateotaddintedadieeedateotaddintedadieeedt	55	
55 <b>66</b>	FRANCERABOUFFERATED INTERABULEETER EETER FLANCERABUUFFERATE Beintebabieeedateetaaten interabuleeetaateetadinitebabieeet	50 <b>00</b>	-
R 10	DRINTERABUTTERATEDIATINTERADUTTERATESIATORNUTTERATES DRINTERADUTTERATESIADRINTERADUESEATESIADRINTERADUTE	5/	749
É 🔊	PRINTER-BUFFERATESTAREINTER-BUFFERATESTAREINTER-BU	6000	119
6	PRINTER+BIFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BIFFER+TEST+PRINTER+	60	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTF	61	
<i>(</i> 18)	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	62	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	63	
11	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	00	
<b>3</b> 85	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	1	
<b>1</b>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	-	
		and an owned to be	-

đ

į



	Ø	***** T5820 CARRIAGE RETURN TEST		
	1	THIS LINE IS PRINTED IN THE PARCES	3	
	۲	THIS LINE IS FRINTED IN TWO PHODES	4 5 🛞	
			6	
	۲		®	
	2		9 10	
	$\odot$		11	
			12 13	
	@		14	
	3		16	
			1788 18	
	6		19	
	4		20500	
	۲		22 23	
			24	
	<b>©</b>		25 26	
	5		27	
j i	Ø		29	
		•	30 31	-
	0		32	•
	6		33 34	- 6
	<b>.</b>		35 <b>89</b> {	ī
	<i>.</i>		37	
	7		38 <b>%27</b> 39	
	8		40 41	
			42	
	0		43 44 <b>20</b>	
	8		45	
	۲		41	
			48 49	
	۲		50	
	9		52	
	w 		53 <b>3</b> 54	
			55	
1015	5. 10		57 S	
	÷.		58 48 50	;
			60	
	8		61 62 <b>88</b>	
	11		63	
	۵.,		۲	

į

i

į

	TRAD TRAD TO LINE TEST	
8	***** 16820 (AB TO LINE 185) THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 2	
1	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 3	3
۲	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 5	5 🛞 6
@		7 3
2	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 9	9
0		11
~		12 13
3		14💓 15
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 17	16 17
		18 19
®		20
4		21
<b>W</b>		23 😻 24
0		25 26
5		27
ø		29
		30 31
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 33	32 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
้ด		34 35
		36
۲		38
17		39 40
		41 <b>82</b> 42
0	у. У	43 44
8		45
8		47
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 49	48 49
<b>8</b>		50 <b>00</b> 51
, M		52
		54
20	THIS TEXT CHOILD BE AT LINE ST	56 S I
ត្រី 10	INTO IEXI SHOULD BE AI LINE 3/	57 -2491 58 91
~&		59 ^{® ©}
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 61	61 62
11	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 63	63
۲	THIS TEXT SHOULD DE HI LINE OF	. 🖇 🛛
<u>.</u>		

2270532-9701

			× T70	DO CET/	TES	T UI	DTTC/	N 7	IADO TEOT	
	) 	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT AT	LINE	2 3		· 🛞 3
۲	)	THIS	τεχτ	SHOULD	BE	AΤ	LINE	5		4 5 6
2 ©	) )	THIS	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	9		7 8 9 10 11 12
3 3	• •	THIS	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	17		13 14 15 16 17
4 6	)									19 20 21 22 23 23 24
5 5	) )									25 26 27 28 29 30
8 6 8	)	тніз	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	33		31 32 ³ Brones Furm, In 33 34 35 ³ 36 ⁵
, 7 . 8	)									37 38 39 40 41 42
8 8	•									43 44 45 46 47 48
9 9		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	49		49 50 51 52 53 53
11-24919	) ;	THIS	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	57		55 56 57 58 58 59 60
		THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	61		61 67
11 (1)	;	THIS THIS	ТЕХТ ТЕХТ	SHOULD SHOULD	BE BE	AT AT	LINE	63 64		63 (8)

. .

.

· .

į



ŝ

-

4

4

@	***** T8820 TAB TO ADDRESS TEST	·····	8
1	1111111111222222223333333333444444444555555555666666 123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234 ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑ ↑	666666777777777778 5678901234567890 1 1 1	3 4 5 🐼
	ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:		6
2	2 4 8 16 40 64 72 76 78		8 <b>8</b> 9
•			10 11 🛞
			12 13
3			14 🛇 🕫 15
0			17
			19 20
4			21 22
©			23 <b>&amp;</b> 24
0			25 26
5			27 28
·			30 31
Ø			32 <b>8</b>
0			34 35 <b>3</b> 7
			36 ∽ 37
* <b>27</b> 7			38 <b>4</b> 9
۲			41 41 42
8			43 44
8			45 46
<b>.</b>			47 <b>00</b> 48
۲			49 50
9			52 53
— —			54 55
و و 10			56 TI-22
[⊨] ⊗			58 59
 &&			60 61
11			63
۲			۲

i.

	***** T9820 SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TAB TEST		
1	11111111112222222233333333444444445555555556666666666	3 4 5 🛠	
	ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:	6 7	
	2 4 8 16 40 64 72 76 78	8*** 9	
		10 11 🏵	
		12 13	
*		14 <b>®</b> 15	•
		16 17	
		18 19	
Ø		20 🏵 21	
4		22 23	
		24 25	
۵		26 🌺 27	
5 (3)		28 29	
		30 31	
۵	•	32 🏵 33	B
, 6 200		34 35	7 g -
		36	·
٢		38	
, 7 (83)		40 41	
<b>—</b>		42	
۲		44	
8 @\		46	
		48	
۲		50 <b>8</b>	
9 305		52 52	
		53 <b>(</b> )	
20		55 56	-
₹10 É⊗		57	24919
		60	
۲		62 <b>8</b>	
11		63 &	
8		; <b>@</b>	
11 🛞		. *	

A

۲	***** TA320 LINES AND CHARS/INCH TEST	· 🛞
	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND & LINES/INCH	3 4 5
	******	6
		8
: 2	\$\$\$\$\$\$	9 10 200
	*****	11989 12
۲	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH	13 14
3	*****	15 16
		18
۲	\$\$\$\$\$	20
4		27
	BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH	23500
۲		25 26
5		27
·>> 		29 🥨 30
۲	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	31 32
6	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH	33 34
		35 🗳 🦻
۲		37 38
1.7	<u> </u>	39 40
		41999 42
۲		43 44
8 ,::::		45 46
	-	47 <b>00</b> 48
8		49 50 <b>3</b>
9 .@		51 52
	-	53 <b>33</b> 54
<u></u> 🕹		55 56 _
65 10		57 58
	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	59 [®] [∞] 60
۵		61 62
11		63
8	/	. 🕲

-

. 🐼 1	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 3 LINES/INCH	` 🗱
		4 5 🕱
¥ 	*****	6
		8
2	****	9 10
Ø	AXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	11 🐼 12
		13 14
3		15 16
	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 3 LINES/INCH	1/8
		19
4	****	20 🐼 21
۵	****	22 23
	×××××	24 25
		26 🏵 27
5 60		28
	BLOOK IS 14 5 CHRS/INCH AND 3 I INFS/INCH	30
0		32
6		33 }
Ø	**********	35 <b>22</b> - 36
8	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	37 38
. 7	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	39 40
		41
200		43
8	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 3 LINES/INCH	44 <b>.2</b> 45
8		46 4 7 🍑
·	*****	48 49
0	*****	50 <b>8</b> 51
.9 ∵&‰	******	52
		54
2		56 🖉 🚊
ີ 10 ວັນ		57 -249 58 - 49
- <b>@</b>		^{دی 1} 00 60
		61
11		63
8		*
		· ·

<u>.</u>				
S.				
a"	8		`₩ 3	- 194 -
1. S.			4	м. 
	3	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	533 6	
		\$\$\$\$\$\$\$	, ".	
	~	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	8 🐼 9	
Ľ.	~	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	10	
		222222222	11999	
	•	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	13 	
	3	XXXXX	14000	
	0	XXXXX	16 17	
*C.7	•.•	XXXXX	18	
	<b>®</b>		19 20	
	4	XXXXX	21	
	۲	BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	23	
		XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	24 25	
	۵		26	
	5		27 28	. í
<b>`</b>	٢		29	
			30	
818 1	8	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	32	2
м.	, 6	2888888	34	
	<b>1</b>	\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$	35 🤐 - 36	
	635	<u> </u>	37	
	 	*****	38 <b>62</b> 39	
	©		40 41	
	····		42	
	0		43 44	
	8		45 46	
	*		40 47 <b>©</b>	
			48 49	
	$\otimes$	· ·	50	
	9		51 52	
	8		53 <b>8</b> 64	
			59 55	
0			56 🍑 _ 57 - Ť	1
	(10 "		58 6	
	**		59 <b>₩</b> ° 60	
	*		61 67	
	чэ <b>г</b> 11		67 <b>02</b> 63	
	~		*	
	~			

į

1

<b>*</b>	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH	*	
1		4	
$\otimes$	*****	5	
		6	
<b></b>		8	÷.,
· · ·	****	9	
	*****	10	1
~~~		11382	2.5
		13	
	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH	14	
3		15	÷.,
۲	****	17 🏵	
		18	1.0
	00000	20	
	×××××	21	
	*****	22	
		2.3 24	
~		25	
	BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH	26***	· • .
5		28	
۵	*****	29	
	*****	30	:
		32	-
6		33 .	
· @2	*****	34	
~~		36 -	
		37	
3¥	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH	38	
17		40	
	*****	41	
	*****	42	
3	*****	44	
8	XXXXXXX	45	
*	0000000	400 4 / 🖉	
		48	
		49 	
- 1 27 0		51	
		62	
388 1		53 *2* 59	
		56	
		560	
÷ 10		57 52	
		59 ³	>
		60	
-		61 62	
		41 C	
**		#	
۵.		~~	

.

2270532-9701

4

	an tradition and		energia de la	115.255
	0	***** TB820 BELL TEST		
	- 000 1	·	3	
n vîr Nati	(())	PRINTER BELL SHOULD SOUND FOR 3 SECONDS	4 3	
	~		6	
	۲		7 8®	- · · ·
11 di -	2		9	
	8		10 11	
			12	
	۲		14 🏵	
2 <u>1</u>	3		15 16	
	۲		17	
			19	
			20 🐼	
	4		22	
	~		23 💓 24	
			25	
	5		26 💭 27	
Č.			28 20	
			30	2
	۵	•	31 ; 32	-
	6		23	-
	` &		35 3	r i
		·	36 - 37	
	*		38	
	7 '		39 40	
	*		41 ® 47	
			43	
į.	8	· ·	44 33 45	
		·	46	
	····		48	
	*		49 50	
	9		51	
έ.	۲		5? 53 8	
			54 65	
	<u>ु</u>		56 0 _	
	금 10 -		57 -249 58 58	:
	*⊗		59 S B	1
			60 61	
24 11 11	*		62 8 63	
	11		 	
	©		~	

.
@	***** TC820 k	EYBOARD TEST		· @ * *
				3
(()				
				6
· · · · ·				9
	DEPRESS KEV	S) SHOWN IN LEFT	COLUMN	10
~~	WITH UPPER C	CASE LOCK ENGAGED		11.00
•	(TAB - REPEA	AT ROW OF KEYS)		13
~~		JON 10 12017		14587
3	VEV	CODE		16
~~		CODE		1/***
	1	31		19
×20	∡ 3	33		20****
4	4	34		22
Ŵ	5	30 36		23**** 24
~	7	37		25
88	8	38 39		26
!>	ò	30		28
~~	-	20 30		29
	× .	60		30 31
· · · 🐡				32
<u>ر</u> 6	1	31	·	34
	2	32 33		3538
	4	34		37
**	5	35		38 🥨
17	7	37		39 40
	8	38		41
	Ó	30		42
	-	2D 3D		44 🏵
8	×.	60		45
*				A 100
	KEY	CODE		48 49
~	م م	51		50 8
9	ũ	57		57
*	E	45 52		53 ()
-	Ť	54		55
∛ ©	Y	59 55		56 🗱 🔤
:f 10 -	ĭ	49		57 2
1 🛠	0 P	4F 50		59 8 - 2
	Ĺ	5B		60 61
-	١	5C		62
11				63
	Q	51 57		*
	W	37		

A

.

.

	Ĕ	45		
	Ŕ Ţ	52 54		3
\otimes	Υ U T	59 55 49		4 5 💥
	ů P	4F 50		6 / :
2	C \	5B 5C		9 10
				11 🗶 12
۲	кеү	CODE		13 14
3	A S	41 53		15 16
. 🐨	F	44 46 47		1/88 18
•	Ч	48 48		19 20
	Ř L	4B 4C	•	21 22 23
····	;	3B 27		24 25
Ø	C	78		26 🗮 2 /
	A	41		28 29
	5 D F	53 44 44		30 31 -
6	G H	47		32 82
	J K	4A 4B		35
۵	L ;	4C 3B		37 38
, /	ć	27 7B		39 40
	VEV	CODE		4 1 22 42
۲	Z	5A		43 44
8	x c	58 43		45 46 4 ×
	B	56 42		48 49
8	N M	4E 4D		50 2 51
۲	•	20 2E 35		52 55 🎕
	,	21		54 55 Let 🏁
10	Z X	5A 58		57 5 58 9
	C V	43 56		
*	E N M	42 4E		61 6: / 🏵
11	1"1 •	40 20 25		6.3
<u>.</u>	;	2F		~~

. .

7

					1
*				. 🗮	
- -				4	
Ø	DEPRESS KEY	(S) SHOWN IN LEFT	COLUMN	5%8 6	
	WITHOUT UPP	ER CASE LOCK ENGA	GED	, ,	
. 🕫	(TAB - REPE (RETURN - A	AT ROW OF KEYS) BORTS TEST)		8337	
2				10	
@	KEV	CODE		1100	
				12	
@	1	31		14 🛞	
3	3	33		15 16	
Ø	4	34		17 🏵	
	6	36		18	
۲	7	37		20	
4	8	38		21	
۲	ò	30		23	
	-	2D 3D		24	
0	~	60		25	
5				27	
	1	31		28	
	2	32		30	-
æ	3	33 34		31	2
6	5	35		33	(
'	6 7	36 37		34	
*	8	38		36	
110	9	39		37	
- SQC - 7	-	2D		3 8%%* 39	
1 1	=	3D		40	
~		60		41 32 5 42	
				43	
*	KEY			44 00 45	
8	9	71		46	
	ω e	77 65		4 : 🥸	
	r	72		48	
	t	74 79		50	
9	u	75		52	
*	i	69 45		53	
	P	70		54 55	
2 8	E	5B 50		56	4
ž 10	Ň	JÇ.		57 58 0	:
~ 🏵	-	71		50	
	9 W	77		60	
0	e	65 70		62	
11	r t	72 74		6.3	
8	Ŷ	79		*	
	<u> u</u>	75			

1 65 2 70 2 55 3 64 6 67 3 64 6 67 4 67 5 67 4 66 5 35 6 78 78 78 6 78 78 78 6 78 78 78 6 78 78 78 6 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 79 78 70 78 70 78 78 78 78 78					
		i	69		
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		Û	6F		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
L SB 2 L 3 CODE 3 A 4 CA 4 CA 5 CA 6 CA 7 CA 8 CA 9 CA 1 CA 1 CA 2 CA 1 CA 2 CA 1 CA 2 CA 2 CA 3 CA 4 CA 5 CA 4 CA 5 CA 6 CA 7 CA 7 <td>1</td> <td>۴</td> <td>70</td> <td></td> <td>3</td>	1	۴	70		3
300 4 $5C$ 900 7 a 61 900 3 73 1000 11000 4 640 110000 1100000 3 1 640 $1100000000000000000000000000000000000$	<i></i>	Ē	5B		
$ \begin{array}{c} & \mathbf{Fey} & \mathbf{CODE} \\ \hline \mathbf{a} & 61 \\ \hline \mathbf{s} & 73 \\ \mathbf{d} & 64 \\ \mathbf{f} & 65 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 66 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 36 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 66 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 36 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 66 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 27 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 66 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 27 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 66 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 27 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 66 \\ \mathbf{d} & 1 & 1 \\ \mathbf{d} & \mathbf{d} \\ \mathbf{d} \\ \mathbf{d} & \mathbf{d} \\ \mathbf$	- W	\	50		5.00
KEY CODE 7 a 61 9 5 73 4 64 12 9 67 12 1 64 12 1 64 12 1 64 12 1 64 12 1 64 13 1 64 16 1 64 16 1 64 17 2 33 33 4 77 23 5 9 67 21 2 37 38 37 4 6 27 23 5 9 67 27 4 6 27 38 5 9 67 27 5 9 67 27 6 1 27 38 7 37 38 37 6 1 27 37 6 1 27 37 <th>··</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>в</th>	··				в
x x	A	KEY	CODE		í.
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	- *** 			_	9
3 73 10^{2} 4 64 10^{2} 3 1 64 1 64 10^{2} 3 1 64 10^{2} 1 38 10^{2} 10^{2} 1 38 10^{2} 10^{2} 4 27 20^{2} 21^{2} 4 27 20^{2} 21^{2} 4 61^{2} 27^{2} 22^{2} 4 61^{2} 27^{2} 21^{2} 4 61^{2} 27^{2} 22^{2} 5 5^{2} 67^{2} 27^{2} 4 61^{2} 27^{2} 27^{2} 6^{2} 10^{2} 10^{2} 27^{2} 4 66^{2} 27^{2} 27^{2} 4^{2} 77^{2} 27^{2} 27^{2} 4^{2} 77^{2} 76^{2} 30^{2} 4^{2} 77^{2} 42^{2} 42^{2} 4^{2} 77^{2} $42^$	2	a	61		10
d 64 12 e 67 14 3 j 6A 4 6B 1 20 2 327 4 7B 5 73 4 7B 5 76 4 7B 5 76 4 7B 7 7A 6 7A 7 7B 7 7B 7 7B 7 7B 8 6C 9 1 4 6C 7 7B 7 7B 7 7A 8 n 9 2 1 2C 1 40 1 40 1 40 1 40 1 40 1 40 1 40 1 40 1 40 1		5	73		11
f 66 73 g 67 73 h 69 74 i 38 73 i 37 73 i 61 73 i 61 73 i 64 74 i 67 74 i 77 74 i 77 74 i 77 74 i 77 74 i 776 74		đ	64		12
B 67 14 J 6A 15 k 6B 16 1 4C 18 2 27 20 4 77 20 4 73 20 5 5 6 4 73 20 5 5 6 5 5 6 4 64 20 5 5 6 4 64 20 5 5 6 4 64 20 5 6 73 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 7 27 30 6 1 38 7 27 30 6 1 38 7 27 30 8		f	66		13
3 h 48 19 4 468 10% 4 460 10% 4 400 10% 4 778 10% 5 67 27 6 466 27 7 466 27 8 733 27 4 466 27 5 567 27 4 468 30 4 468 30 4 468 30 6 778 36 6 778 36 6 778 36 7 778 36 6 778 36 7 776 36 9 776 47 9 277 47 9 776 47 9 776 47 9 776 47 9 776 47 9 776 47	*	9	67		14
$ \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{j} & 6 \mathbf{A} \\ \mathbf{k} & 6 \mathbf{B} \\ 1 & 6 \mathbf{C} \\ 1 & 3 5 \\ 2 & 1 & 2 \\ 2 & 1 \\ 2 & $	3	h	68		15
	~	j,	6A		16
$ \begin{array}{c} & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	***	ĸ	68		17***
1 27 4 C 7 27 4 C 5 73 4 64 5 9 4 66 5 9 4 68 1 66 36 77 4 78 5 78 6 78 7 76 8 78 2 74 4 62 7 76 6 27 7 76 6 62 8 62 9 76 6 62 9 74 7 27 7 76 8 62 9 74 7 27 7 27 7 27 7 27 7 37 7 78 9 74 7 27 7 27 7 27 7 27 7 27 7 27 7		:	20		18
4 4 7B a 61 b 73 a 64 f 64 f 66 k 66 k 66 i 38 i 6 i 38 i 6 i 38 i 1 i 38 i 38 i 1 i 7A i 7A i 2F	•	,	27	· · · ·	19
4 -	7607	Ę	27 78		20%*
a 61 20 s 73 27 s 76 64 f 64 20 k 68 27 k 48 26 6 727 26 6 727 26 6 727 a 78 6 78 7 78 a 78 a 78 a 78 a 78 b 62 a 78 a 78 a 78 a 78 a 78 b 62 a 63 a 74 b 62 a 78 a 78 a 78 a 78 a 78 a 74 b 62 a 78 b	4		<i>, .</i>		21
a 61 25 d 64 25 f 66 27 k 68 25 k 70 25 k 70 25 k 70 26 k 70 27 k 70 27 k 70 27 k 78 27 k 78 27 k 78 26 k 78 27 k <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>23</td></td<>					23
s 73 26 w f 64 f 64 w h k 68 w 1 6 1 7 27 w 1 6 1 7 27 w 1 6 1 7 27 w 78 c 63 w 78 d 64 w 78 d 78 </td <td>~</td> <td>a</td> <td>61</td> <td></td> <td>24</td>	~	a	61		24
$ \begin{array}{c} & d & 64 \\ & f & 66 \\ & 5 & 9 & 67 \\ & h & 68 \\ & 1 & 68 \\ & 1 & 6C \\ & 3 & 38 \\ & 1 & 6C \\ & 3 & 27 \\ & C & 78 \\ \hline \\ & C & 78 \\ \hline \\ & C & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & C & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & C & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & & 76 \\ \hline \\ & & & 76 \\ \hline \\ & & & & 2E \\ \hline \\ & & & & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & & & & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & & & & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & & & & 2E \\ \hline \\ & & & & & 78 \\ \hline \\ & & & & & & 2E \\ \hline \\ & & & & & & & 2E \\ \hline \\ & & & & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & &$		5	73		25
f 66 27 h 68 30 k 68 30 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 38 6 1 78 7 76 42 8 m 62 9 2 76 4 2 7 2 7 2 7 2 7 2 7 38 9 42 10 62 11 1	\otimes	d	64		26
3 67 74 4 68 30 1 60 31 1 60 31 6 27 31 6 27 31 6 27 31 6 27 32 6 27 36 6 27 36 6 27 36 6 77 36 6 776 42 7 76 42 7 22 74 7 76 42 7 76 42 7 76 42 76 57 76 66 776 576 76 76 576 76 76 576 776 76 576 776 76 576 776 776 776 776 776 77	5	f	66		27
i h 68 30 k 68 31 i 38 i 37 i 27 i 37 i 27 i 38 i 39 i 39 i 39 i 2 i 78 i 40 i 40 i 40 i 40 i 41 i 42 i 42 i 42 i 42 i 42 i 43 i 44 i 45 i 46 i 46 i 46 i 47 i 48 i 48 i 48 i 48 i 48 i <td>5</td> <td>9</td> <td>67</td> <td></td> <td>28</td>	5	9	67		28
$ \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{6A} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{6B} \\ 1 & \mathbf{6C} \\ 1 & \mathbf{3B} \\ 6 & 1 & 27 \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{CODE} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{7B} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{CODE} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{r} & \mathbf{7B} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{r} & \mathbf{2C} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{r} & \mathbf{2C} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{r} & \mathbf{2E} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{r} & \mathbf{7B} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{7B} \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{k} & 10 \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{k} & 10 \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{k} & 10 \\ \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{k} & \mathbf{k} \\ \mathbf{k}$	\otimes	h	68		29 😻
k CAB 3 4		j	6A		30
$ \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{w} & \mathbf{i} & \mathbf{o} \mathbf{C} \\ \mathbf{i} & \mathbf{3B} \\ \mathbf{i} & 27 \\ \mathbf{w} & \mathbf{CODE} \\ \mathbf{v} & \mathbf{7B} \\ \mathbf{v} & \mathbf{r} \\ \mathbf{v} & \mathbf{7A} \\ \mathbf{v} & 76 \\ \mathbf{v} & \mathbf{v} & 76 \\ \mathbf{v} & \mathbf{v} & \mathbf{v} \\ \mathbf{v}$		ĸ	6B (C		31
6 1 27 ♥ CODE 1/7 z 78 × 78 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 76 × 78 ×	<i>w</i>	:	0L 7D		3200
x 7B 36 x 7B 37 x 7A 38 x 78 40 x 78 42 x 76 42 x 76 45 m 6D 45 m 6D 46 x 78 46 x 78 45 x 78 46 x 78 46 x 78 50 y 2 7A x 78 50 y 76 57 y 76 57 y 2C 57 y 2E 60 y 2E 60 y 2E 60 <td>6</td> <td>2</td> <td>27</td> <td></td> <td>33 .</td>	6	2	27		33 .
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	്ക	{	27 78		34
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $		•			36
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $					37
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		KEY	CODE		38 🏶
$ \begin{array}{cccccc} $. 7			-	39
$ \begin{array}{c} \times & 78 \\ - & 2 \\ - & 2 \\ - & 76 \\ - & 76 \\ - & 76 \\ - & 76 \\ - & 26 \\ - & - & 26 \\ - & - & 226 \\ - & - & 226 \\ - & - & 226 \\ - & - & 78 \\ - & - & 78 \\ - & - & 78 \\ - & - & 78 \\ - & - & 78 \\ - & - & 78 \\ - & - & - & 26 \\ - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & - & 26 \\ - & - & - & 226 \\ - & - & - & - & - & - \\ - & - & - & -$	-00	z	7A 70		40
$ \begin{array}{c} $	₩	×	/8		41022
b 62 43 8 n 6E 45 8 n 6D 45 8 n 6D 45 9 2 7A 48 9 2 7A 51 9 2 7A 51 9 2 7A 55 0 2 7A 55 0 2 7A 55 0 2 7A 57 0 2 7A 57 0 2 7A 57 0 2 7A 57 0 2 76 55 0 60 57 56 0 76 57 58 60 10 m 60 60 60 11 2 2 60 61		C V			42
8 n 6E 45 8 m 6D 46 2 7 2E 44 1 2F 49 50 9 2 7A 51 9 2 7A 55 9 2 76 55 9 55 56 57 9 55 56 57 9 58 60 56 9 7 22E 60 10 m 60 60 11 11 11 11	<i>6</i> 05	• Ь	62		43
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	~~~	r n	6E		44
$ \begin{array}{c} & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	8	m	60		46
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	\otimes	,	2C		4700
/ 2F 49 9 z 7A ∞ x 78 c 63 v 76 b 62 m 6D 60 57 . 2C . 2E . 2F . 3	Ŭ		2E		48
9 z 7A 51 ∞ x 78 52 c 63 54 55 v 76 56 57 v 76 56 56 0 n 62 56 v 2C 50 56 v 2C 50 56 v 2E 60 61 v 2F 60 61 v 2F 63 63		/	2F		49
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	*				50
z 7A 57 x 78 50 c 63 56 v 76 56 b 62 50 v 76 56 v 76 57 v 76 56 v 76 57 v 76 56 v 7 57 v 2C 50 v 2E 60 i 2F 60 i 63	9				51
x 78 50% c 63 54 y 76 55 b 62 90% 71,74 5 10 n 6E 57,74 % , 2C 90% 56 </td <td></td> <td>Z</td> <td>7A</td> <td></td> <td>52</td>		Z	7A		52
v 76 b 62 r 10 m 6E v 2C v 2F v 76 b 62 v 76 v 76	*	×	/8		50 22
b 62 56 n 62 56 n 62 56 n 60 56 i i 56 i i 56 i i 56 i i 56 i 2C 50 i 2E 60 i 2F 61 i 63	· · ·	c V	03 74		54
- - - 000000000000000000000000000000000000		• b	62		55
10 m 6D 56 56 * 2C 56 56 . 2E 60 . 2F 60 11 63	ക	r n	6F		500 20 1
· 2C ∞ · 2E co / 2F ci 11 ci ci ∞	- 7, 10	m	60		ວາ ນັ ເສ ຜ
2E 00 7 2F 01 03 03 04 04 04 04 05 04 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05 05		,	20		50 × 60
/ 2F G1 ↔ 11 ↔ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓	n de la companya de l		2E		60
	^ė 😻	•			
	÷ ************************************	,	2F		61
	÷*************************************	;	2F		61 62
	÷	;	2F		61 62 63
	÷ 	;	2F		61 62 63
	÷ 	;	2F		61 62000 63
		,	2F		61 63 63

į

	DEPRESS KEY	S) SHOWN IN LEFT COLUMN R CASE LOCK ENGAGED		0	
	WITH SHIFT N	EY HELD DOWN		3	
1	(TAB - REPEA	T ROW OF KEYS)		4	
(2)	(RETURN - A	ORTS TEST)		5)
				6	
8	KEY	CODE			;
~~				9	
	!	21		10	
	e	40		1188	
·	#	23		12	
	ž	25	•	14	:
	×.	SE		15	
.3	81	26		16	
	*	2A 20		1788	:
)	20		18	
. 20	-	5F		20	
	+	2B		21	
4	~	7E		22	
. .		·		23	
	1	21		24	
	ē	40		26	
. •••	#	23		27	
5	\$	24		28	
- 🛞	%	25		29	•
-	8,	26		30	:
0	*	2A		32	; ;
	(28		33	
1)	29		د. روند	,
- W	-	5F 28		35	-
	~	7E		36	
					}
7				39	
1	KEY	CODE		40 🚕	
Ŵ		E1		41	۲ (
	ᇇ	57		42	
*	E	45		44)
8	R	52		45	
~	Ţ	54		46	
*	¥ LL	37 55		1.00	
	ĭ	49		48	
*	0	4F		50	2
9	P	50		51	
10.	1	50 70		52	
*	•	<i>/</i> L		5332	•
				59	
	Q	51		50	
10	₩.	57		57	1
	E	45 / 50		58 ***	1910
8	r. T	54		50***	
	Ŷ	59		60	
8	U	55		6.2	>
	I	49		6.1	
1 I 	0	4F			.
⊗	P	50 .		*	\$
	1	50			

ŕ

		70		
@	·			`, ⊗
- @)	KEY	CODE		3 -1 - 200
**2	A	41 53		6
@	D	44		**************************************
	Ğ	48		9 10
	н J	48 4A		11 🗱 12
	K L	48 40		13 14
3	:	3A 22		15 16
	3	70		1/🐼 18
	A	41		19 20
4	S D	53 44		21 22
	F G	46 47		23 🏶 24
	н U	48 4A		25 26
5	K L	48 40		27
· 🔅	5 11	3A 22		29 🏵
	>	70		31
, υ	ΚEY	CODE		33
- Q	Z	 5A		35
<i></i>	X C	58 43		37 39 889
, /	V B	56 42		39
*	N M	4E 4D		41
*		3C 3E		43
8	?	ЗF		45
	z	58	•	47
	x	58 43		49
9	v B	56 42		50 cm
*	N M	4E 4D		58 58
		30 35		54 55
ु ः 1 10	?	3F		5/ 5/ 24
² 🛞				58 919
				60 61
. ⊗ ⊒1	DEPRESS KEY(S) SHOWN IN L	EFT COLUMN	6./🛠 63
*	VITH CONTROL (TAB - REPEA	KEY HELD DOW T ROW OF KEYS	N)	*
	(RETURN - AB	ORTS TEST)		

, ·

	·····	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
®		
-	KEY	CODE
>		1F 1E
		îč
~~~~		
		1F 1F
		10
3	KEY	CODE
0	<u>н</u>	17
	T	14
0	Y	19 15
4	I	09
( <b>1</b>	C C	0F 00
<i></i>		
		17
*		05 14
·····-		19
۲		09
6		OF 00
<b>`</b> ©		
	KEY	CODE
- (v)	 A	01
, / .sb	S	13
w	F	04
	к J	OA OB
8	Ļ	OC 1D
₩	ì	10
		01
۲		13
Ũ		04
*		OA OB
		0C
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		ID
- 10 	KEY	CODE
	7	
*	×	18
i i	c V	03 16
8	B	02
	(A)	QE

. •

•

				 /	
	M	OD			
1		1A			4
		18 03			5 ⁶⁰⁰
		16			/
		02 0E	-		8
2		ÖD			10
~~			•		11000
					13
3			•		14 🐝
, m	DEPRESS KEY( (TAB - REPEA	S) SHOWN IN LE T ROW OF KEYS:	EFT COLUMN		16 1 7
~~~~~	(RETURN - AE	BORTS TEST)			18
					19 20
4	KEY	CODE			21
۲	тв	09			22
	LF CR	OA OD			24 25
	SP	20			26
5					27 28
۲		09			29
		OD OD			30 31
*		20		•	32
, 6					34
Ŵ				,	35 427 - 36 %
 %%					37
~~~					38
1					40 41
~~~					42
*					43 4 1
8					45
-					40 4 7
					48 49
					50
9					51 52
*					53 4
					· 55
ु ॐ 9 µ					56 ⁶ ∰ ⊒ 57 Å
± 10 ≅					58 58 58 59 19
					5988* ° 60
					61 42
11					63
-					*

1



Appendix F

LP840 Output

The following pages are examples of the output of the LP840 tests when executed with the default options. You can use these examples for comparison with the output you receive.

.

	***** TISAN CHARACTER SET	TECT				1
© '	ANALA INDIVICIANCIER SET	(20)				2 🛞 3
· 🍐		# # # #	\$6 \$8 \$8 \$8	X X X X X X	8. 8. 8. 8.	4 5 🛞)
>		# # # # # # # #	\$\$ \$\$\$\$ \$ \$ \$	×. ×.	* * * * *	7 8 🛞
	1. 1.	# # # #	\$\$\$\$\$ \$	× × × × × ×	8 8 8 8 8 8	9 10
\rightarrow	<i>′</i> ()				11 (1) 12 13
۲		`, ,	* *	+ +		14 🛞 15
۲	()	* * * * * *	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	.	16 17
\rightarrow	`(``	* *	+	•	19 20 🛞
		/	000	1	222	21 22 23
\rightarrow		, i	0 0 0 0	1 1	2 2	24 25
6				1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	26 💓 - 27 - 28
۲		,	•••			29 🛞 30
(in the second s	333 44 3 3 44 3 4	55555 5 5555	6 6	77777 7 7	888 8 8	31 32 (3)
0	33 4 4 3 4 4 4 4 4	5 5 5	5 5 5 5	7	888 888	33 34 35 (1) 20
\rightarrow	3 3 4 333 4	5 5 555	6 6 666	77	8 8 888	36 55 37
	999		< <		>>	38 👐 🖉
 ∅ → 	9 9 :: 9 9 ::	 	_ < ` _ < `		>`,	41 🛞 42
0	9 I I 9 I I	: :	$\mathbf{\hat{c}}_{\mathbf{c}}$	* = = = =	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	43 44 🛞
$\overset{\rightarrow}{\otimes}$	9		< <		> >	46 47 🛞
$ \xrightarrow{\circ} $??? @@@	A A A - A	BBBB B B	с с с с с		48 49 50
~	? @ @ @ ? @ @ @@@	A A A A	8 B 8 B B	C C	0 0 0 0	51 52
© →	? 6666 6 	A A A A A A A A	B B B B B B B B B	с с с ссс	ם ם ם ם חממח	53 🛞 🕽 54
6		., n				56 () 57
۲	EEEEE FFFF E F F F	666 6 6 6	H H H H		ل ل '	58 59 (3)
	EEEE FFFF E F	6 66 6 6	нннн н н	I I	ر ل ل ل	61 62 👀
Ø 1-2232	E F EEEE F	6 6 666	н н н н	III	ι υ ιιι	63 64
V						65 🦦

đ



2270532-9701

F-3





F-4

4

6	***** T2840 RIPPLE TEST	1 2 🕥
6	!"#\$%&^()*+/0123456789::<<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZI\]^_`abcdefghiik1mnop "#\$%&^()*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHI.KIMNOPQRSTUVWXYZI\]^_`abcdefghiik1mnopg	4 5 🛞)
© →	<pre>#\$7&^()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ `abcdefghiik1mnopqr \$7&^()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ `abcdefghiik1mnopqr</pre>	6 7
	%%'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrst &'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstu	8 🔘 9
()	<pre>()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuv ()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvw</pre>	10 11 🖏
>)*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwx *+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxy	12 13
0	+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz ,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(14 🥨 🕽 15
() ()	/0123456789:s s c>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz() ./0123456789:s s c>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZL\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz() ./0123456789:s	16 17 🔊
\sim	0123456789%;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(}?''	19 20 (3)
	23456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_~abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz{}}"# 3456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz{}}"#\$	21 22
	456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$% 56789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%	23 🛞 24
۲	6789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_}~!"##%&^(789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_}~!"##%&^(000:::00:::00:::00:::00:::00:::00:::0	25 26 🛞
6	89%;<=>?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghtjklmnopqrstuvwxyz()>""#\$/&`() 9%;<=>?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghtjklmnopqrstuvwxyz()>""#\$/&`()* .<=>?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghtjklmpopqstuvwyyz()>"#\$/&()*	27 28 29 🔊
→	;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}?*!"#\$%%`()*+, <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghiiklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}?*!"#\$%%`()*+,-	30 31
۲	=>?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+ >?@ABCDEFGHTJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+/	32 🏈 33
۲	<pre>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{}?~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0 @ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{}?~!"#\$%&^()*+,/01</pre>	34 35 🌒 🖥
\rightarrow	ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijkImnopqrstuvwxyZ{}}"#\$%&`()*+,/012 BCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijkImnopqrstuvwxyZ{}}"#\$%&`()*+,/0123	36
N	DEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^abcdefghijkTmnopqrstuvwxyz{}?**##%&`()*+,/012345 DEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_SabcdefghijkTmnopqrstuvwxyz{}?************************************	38 (S) 39 %
۲	<pre>FGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(}//"#\$%&^()*+,/01234567 GHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(}/"#\$%&^()*+,/012345678</pre>	41 🛞 42
→ ©	HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{;}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789 IJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{;}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:	43 44 🛞
	JKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:; KLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<	45 46
	LMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`&bcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}/`\"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<= MNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^`&bcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{}`\"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>	47 🐲 48
۲	NDFWRSTUVWXYZ[\]^abcdefghijk]mnopqrstuVWxyz[]>''##x&'()#+,/0123456/89';<=>/ OPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefghijk]mnopqrstuVWxyz[]>'!"##x&'()#+,/0123456/89';<=>?@ PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_abcdefghijk]mnopqrstuvWxvz[]>'!"##x&'()#+,/0123456/89';<=>?@	49 50 🔊 51
۲	QRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@AB RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABC	52 53 🔇
\rightarrow	STUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCD TUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDE	54 55
	UVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(}>"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF VWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(}>"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF0 UVYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz(}>"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF0	56 💓 57 58
۲	<pre>www.stridaucdergnljk/mnopgrstuvwxyz()>"##%&()#+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGH XYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz()>"##%&()#+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHI Y7[\]^ \abcdefghijk]mpopgrstuvwyyz()>"##%%()## - /0123456789:;<=>>@ABCDEFGHI</pre>	59 🔇
\rightarrow	Z[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz{}?~!"#\$%&?()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJK [\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz{}?~!"#\$%&?()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJK	61 62 🛞
.22325	<pre>\1^_`abcdefghijk1mnopgrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLM 1^ `abcdefghijk1mnopgrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%&^()*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLM</pre>	63 64
()) F	<pre>^ abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789*;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNO</pre>	65 🔇

i

-	<pre>`abcdefghijk1mnopqrstuvwxyz{ }~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQ</pre>	1	
	abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(;)~!" #\$% {`()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQR	2 🛞	
	bcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz{}>~!"#\$%x'()*+,/0123456789:,<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRS	3	
, do	$dafabiklenoparstuvwwyz(i)$ " "## λ " ()#+,/0123456789; <=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRST	₅ ∭3	
-W	det gill kinned gistuvwyzti?" **** ()*+ - /0123456/89:: <=>@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPWRS10	6	
\rightarrow	fabiikimnobgrstuvwyyz(1)~"##X@()#+,/0123436/89%;(=>/@ABCDEFGHIJKEMNOPORSTUV fabiikimnobgrstuvwyyz(1)~"##X@()#+ -/0123456/89%;(=>2000CCECHIJKEMNOPORSTUV	7	
6	$dhi(k)$ models turney $(1)^{-1}$ ##% $(1)^{+1} = (012355789; <= 20050 FEEGHT. REMANDED STURNEY$	8 🛞	•
••••	hikimnoporstuvwxvz{}}~!"#\$%&`()*+/0123456789; <<=>?@ABCDEF6HIJK!MN0PORSTUVWXY	9	1
	ijk1mnopgrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&`()*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ	10	
	iklmnopgrstuvwxyz{;}~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789::<<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[11 🌒	
	klmnopgrstuvwxyz(}>~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[\	12	
	<pre>lmnopgrstuvwxyz()>~!"#\$%&{()*+,/0123456789::<<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]</pre>	13	
	mnopgrstuvwxyz{}}~!"#\$%%`{}*+,~-,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^	14 💓	
	noperstuvwzy2117***********************************	15	
6.	049554900925135 ##4800775135 #7012340079751427007551400000000000000000000000000000000	17 3	
w/	arstuyuxyz())~! *##%%() ** /0123456/39; <=>?@HOUDEFORIUKLINNOPRGIUWWYZL()]_ **	18	
\rightarrow	rstuvwxyz{}}~!"##%&'()*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ{}]^Abc	19	
	stuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^ `abcd	20 🏈	
	tuvwxyz{!}~!"#\$%&`()*+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ `abcde	21	
	uvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef	22	
e ()	<pre>vwxyz{!}~!"##%&<()*+/0123456789:#<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^abcdefg</pre>	23 💓	
>	<pre>wxyz{!}~!"##%&^()#+/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefph</pre>	24	
a.	xyz(;)~("#\$7&'()#+,-,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[)]^_`abcdefghi	25 วะ 🕅	
1	yzti/************************************	20	
	2117*** WARK (7** -:/0123450/07*****/MEMDEDEFENTIONEDNUMWARKSTOVWARTELL)BECGETØNIJK (1)%**##\$%%()** -:/012345789:*<=>>@ABCDEFENTINEMNDPGRSTOVWARTELL)BECGETØNIJK	28	
6	1>+!#\$%2()#+/0123456789:.<=>?@ABCDEFOHT.KIMNOPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^ \abcdefohiikim	29	
6 377	<pre>>~!"##%& ()*+/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNDPGRSTUVWXYZ[\]^ `abcdefahiiklmn</pre>	30	
\rightarrow	~!"#\$%&^()*+,/01234567891;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmno	31	
۲		32 🛞	
		33	
<i>a</i>		34 🔬 💈	
•		35 💓	
>		36 🧃	
(2)		3/	
		39	
		40	
6		41 🛞	
₩ 00″		42	
\rightarrow		43	
		44 🛞	
		45	
1 00.		46	
		47 💓	
\rightarrow		48	
<i>6</i> ®		50 🚳	
		51	
		52	۰.
		53 🛞	
		54	
		55 📖	
		56 💓	
		57	
<i>i</i>		58 50 - Ma	1
N N N		59 % 9 / 60	
>		61	
6		62	
325		63	
1-22		64 👝	
© ⁻		65 🎱	

4

A

	***** T3840 BUFFER TEST	1
6		2 🛞
		3
4		ه
-0		5
		7
62	PRINTERABI	8 🚳
	PRINTER*BUFF	9
	PRINTER*BUFFER	10
()	PRINTER*BUFFER*T	11 🛞
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	12
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	13
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	14 🎯
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	15
1200	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	16 17 🖓
· •	PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER* DOINTED*BUEFER*TEST*PDINTED*DU	17 339
\rightarrow	rrinier*duffer*iesi*frinier*du Brinier*duffer*test*prinier*du	19
()	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	20
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	21
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	22
۲	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	23 🌒
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	24
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	25
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES1*PRINTE	26 👷
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	27
<i>6</i> 22	PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BU BRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*PRINIER*BUFE	20 29 🛞
S22	PRINTERABLEFRATESTARTINERABUFFERATESTARTINERABUFF	30
\rightarrow	PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFFR*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	31
0	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	32 🌒
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	33
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	34
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	35 🎯
\rightarrow	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	36
6	rkinier#Buffer#ie3i#FKINier#Buffer#ie3i#FKINier#Buffer#ie3i#FKINier# Dotnicg#Dieco#teco#teco#teco#Buffer#Buffeco#Buffer#Buffer#Dieco#teco#Buffer#Di	30
W	FRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*FRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*FRINIER*BUFFER*IESI*FRINIER*BU Drintebabileedatestadrinterabileeedatestadrinterabileedatestadrine	39
	PRINTER+BILEFER*TEST*PRINTER*BILEFER*TEST*PRINTER*BILEFER*TEST*PRINTER*BILEFER	40
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	41 🌒
••••	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST	42
\rightarrow	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	43
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	44 🎯
\rightarrow	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	45
10	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	46 4 - 300
S	rkinier#Buffer%iesi#Printer#Buffer#Iesi#Printer#Buffer#Isi#Printer#Buffer odinter#Duffero#Differ#Differ#Differencef#DDInter#Differd#Differ#Differ#Differ#Differ#Differ#Differ#Differ#Diffe	4/339
\rightarrow	rtinicr*durrer*icji*fKinicr*durrer*icji*fFrider#Drrer*icji*fKinicr*durrer*icji*fKinicr*dur Printer*differd#terd#triber*differdifferd#Printer*differt#tFratiffridtrer*li	49
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*	50
1 12	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	51
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	52
6	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	. 53 🏈
>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	54
~	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	55
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	56
	FRINIER#BUFFER#IESI#FKINIER#BUFFER#IESI#FKINEE#BUFFER DDINTER#BUFFER#DEFEN#DDINTER#BUFEEF#IEFET#DDINTER#BUFFEF	57
6 20	FRINIER#BUFFER#IE3I#FRINIER#BUFFER#IE3I#FRINIER#BUFF DDINTED#BUEFED#TECT#BDINTED#BUEFEC##FDINIER#BUF	50
w#	FRINTERABUEFERATESTAPRINTERABUFERATESTAPRINTERA	60
>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTF	61
(>	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	62
325	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	63
-22	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	64
()) F	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	65 🎱
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	

	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER	1
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF	2 🕥
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU PRINTER*DUFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	3
-	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	5 🛞
Š	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	6
1 10	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	7
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	8 💓
	FRINTER#BUFFER#IES	10
(PRINTER*BUFFER	11 🛞
>	PRINTER*BUFF	12
<i>i</i>	PRINTER#BU	13
	PRINTE	15
6 0	PRIN	16
	PR	17 🛞
\rightarrow		18 19
۲		20
		21
· 68		22 22
		23 × 🐲 24
\rightarrow		25
. 🔘		26
		27 · 28
		29 🛞
		30
63		31
•		32 ****
<i>.</i>		34
		35 🌒 e
>		36 ğ
()		38 🌒 🎍
		39 ິ
6		40
1000 C		42
		43 _{(M}
		44 💓
>		45
° 🛞		47 🏵
·		48
()		49 50 ()
		51
6 8		52
N (2)		53 (g) 54
		55
		56
		57
6		59
>		60
6		61 62
1325		63
1-52 1-52		64
***		65 🐲

4

A

			×.		•••	ζ.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	6	***** T4840	CARRIAGE RETURN	TEST			1
,	•		i				2 000 9 3
	\bigcirc	THIS LINE	IS PRINTED IN T	NO PASSES			4 5 ())
	*						6
							8 🛞
	<i>6</i> 5						9
							11 🛞 12
	6						13
	*60°						15
	(16 17 🏈
							18 19
	(>>						20 🛞
							21
							23 💓 24
	Ó						25 26 🛞
							27
							28
							30 31
	0						32
	600						33 34
							35 💓 🦉 36 👔
	6						37 5 38
							39 [°]
							40 41 🛞
	>						42 43
	0						44
	>						46
	• ~~						47**** 48
	0						49 50 🖏
							51 52
	0						53
	>						54 55
	ø						56 🌒 : 57
	0						58 59
	>						60
	ي (\$)						62
	1-2232						63 64
	^ي (()						65 🎱
						•	

i

i

6	***** T5840 FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST	1 2 🛞
-		3 4 5 ()))
→ ©		6 7 8 🛞
•••• •••		9 10
₩ →		12 13
0		14 🥨 15 16
© →		17 🛞 18 19
0		20 (3) 21
©		22 23 🛞 24
6		25 26 👀 27
6		28 29 🏈
→ Ø	THIS LINE IS AT THE CENTER OF THE FORM	31 32
۲		34 ₩
→ ©		37 38
۲		39
→ ©		42 43 44 🌑
-→ @		45 46 47 🔊
		48 49
		51 52
$ \xrightarrow{\otimes} $		53 ∰ 54 55
۲		56 💓 57 58
 ∅ → 		59 🔊 60
2325 🛞		62 ()) 63
С Ц		64 65 🌒

2270532-9701

		THIS I WE TO AT THE TOP OF THE FORM	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		THIS LINE IS HITTE FUR UP OF THE FURNI STATEMENT S	2 🛞
			3 4
	\diamond		5 🛞
	>		6 7
	۲		8 🛞
			9 10
	C		11 🛞
$ \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 1 \\ 1 & 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\$			13
$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\$			14 🥨
$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\$	100		16
$ \begin{array}{c} 19 \\ 21 \\ 22 \\ 21 \\ 22 \\ 24 \\ 25 \\ 26 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 26 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 28 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 29 \\ 20 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 20 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 20 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 20 \\ 27 \\ 28 \\ 20 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 20 \\ 20 \\ 21 \\ 20 \\ 20$			17
$ \begin{array}{c} & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	<i>i</i>		19 20 🚵
$\begin{array}{c} 22\\ 23\\ 22\\ 24\\ 24\\ 25\\ 26\\ 26\\ 27\\ 28\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29$	****		21
$\begin{array}{c} 24\\ 25\\ 26\\ 27\\ 28\\ 29\\ 29\\ 29\\ 30\\ 31\\ 32\\ 33\\ 34\\ 35\\ 32\\ 33\\ 34\\ 35\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39\\ 39$	©		22 23 🔇
$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 3$	>		24 25
$\begin{array}{c} 27\\ 28\\ 9\\ 9\\ 30\\ 1\\ 1\\ 12\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 4\\ 3\\ 5\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 6\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\ 3\\$	۲		25 26 🛞
9 ● 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49			27 28
$ \begin{array}{c} 30 \\ 31 \\ 32 \\ 33 \\ 34 \\ 35 \\ 35 \\ 36 \\ 37 \\ 38 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 40 \\ 41 \\ 39 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44$	۲		29 🛞
$ \begin{array}{c} 32 \\ 33 \\ 34 \\ 35 \\ 35 \\ 36 \\ 37 \\ 38 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 39$	>		30 31
	۲		32 🛞
$ \begin{array}{c} 35 \\ 36 \\ 36 \\ 36 \\ 37 \\ 38 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 40 \\ 39 \\ 40 \\ 39 \\ 40 \\ 39 \\ 40 \\ 41 \\ 41 \\ 42 \\ 42 \\ 43 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44$			34
$ \begin{array}{c} 37 \\ 38 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 40 \\ 41 \\ 41 \\ 42 \\ 43 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44 \\ 44$	۲		35 💓 📴
$ \begin{array}{c} 38 & 39 \\ 39 \\ 39 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 41 \\ 3 \\ 41 \\ 3 \\ 42 \\ 43 \\ 43 \\ 44 \\ 3 \\ 44 \\ 3 \\ 45 \\ 45 \\$	\rightarrow		37
$ \begin{array}{c} 40 \\ 41 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ $			38 💓 🥇
$ \begin{array}{c} & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	ø		40 41
	\rightarrow		42
45 46 47 47 48 49	0	· ·	43 44 🛞
46 47 48 48 49 _	>		45
48	۲		47 🛞
	\rightarrow		48 49
50 9	۲		50 🌒
51 52			51 52
53 🛞	۲		.53 🏈 54
→ ∞			55
56 39 57	•		56 🎲
58 600	6		58 59 🚳
₩ 60	>		60
61 62 ⁽¹⁾	6		61 62
	2325		63
	(⊗ ²		65 🏵
THICLINE TO AT THE DOTTOM OF THE FORM		THIS LINE IS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FORM	



2270532-9701

Å

		1010	1 7	10		7115	765		-					 · · · · ·			
0	1	1415	LINE	18	AT	THE	rop	OF	THE	FORM	 	 		 	 	2	
												•	• *			3 4	
\odot																5 🔇	
é																7 8 🖓	
•																9	
۲																10 11 🌒	
																12 13	
688																14 🏈 15	
()																16 17 🔊	
\rightarrow																18	
																20	
100																21	
© →																23 💓 24	
0																25 26 🔇	
																27 28	
																29 🛞 30	
õ																31 32	
																33	ş
																34 35 🏈	Nor Bus
																36 37	ness Forn
۲																38 💓	י י א
6																40 41 🛞	
>																42 43	
۲																44 🛞	
\sim																45 46	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~																47 🥪 48	
۲																49 50 🛞	
																51 52	
																53 🌒 54	
6																55 56	
-																57 60	-
۲																59 🛞	
>																60 61	
1325 1325																62 👀 63	
т-22	i :															64 65 🏈	
								10	در می ورژه						 		

,

6	***** T6840 TAB TO LINE TEST	1 2 \$
¥.	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 3	 3 4
<b>⇒</b>	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 5	5 4 6 7
©	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 9	8 9 10 11
→ ©		12 13 14 15 16
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 17	17 18 19 20 21
© →		22 23 24 25
•		25 26 27 28
© 		29 30 31
	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 33	32 33 34
© →		35
•		37 38 39 40
$\stackrel{}{\rightarrow}$		41 42 43
© →		443 45 46
© → ©	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 49	47 48 49 50
0		51 52 53 54
→ ©	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 57	55 56 57 58
<b>⊗</b> →		59 60
3325 <b>(b)</b>	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 63	61 62 ³ 63
€ 1-22	THIS TEXT SHOULD BE AT LINE 64	64 65

.

.

<b>1</b> 000	****	7784	O SET/	rest	VE	RTICA	AL 1	ABS	TEST	1
	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE BE	at At	LINE	2 3			2 🎕 3 4
Ó	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	5			5 🚿 6
Ś	тите	TEVT		pc	ΔΤ	1 1 1 1 1	0			7 8 🎆 9
0	1412	I E A I	SHUULD	DC	н	LINC	,			10 11 🕷
										12 13
<b>S</b>										14 % 15 16
$\bigotimes$	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	17			17 🕷 18
۲										20 🎆 21
0										22 23 🕷
→ ©										24 25 26 🏈
										27 28
© →										29 🦋 30 31
0	THIS	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	33			32 🎆 33
۲									:	34 35 🕷 36
⇒ ©										37 38 🎕
6										39 40 41 🏶
										42 43
© >										44 🧱 45 46
© →	TUTO		~~~~	55	<b>AT</b>					47 🕷 48
0	THIS	IEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	49			49 50 🕷 51
0										52 53 🎕
										54 55 56 🍀
 	THIS	техт	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	57			57 58
© →	THIS	техт	SHOULD	BF	АТ	LINF	61			59 🖏 60 61
3325 🛞	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	63			62 63
TI-22	THIS	TEXT	SHOULD	BE	AT	LINE	64		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	64 65 🕷

-

6	***** T8840 REMOTE ON/OFF TEST	1 2	
		3	
ත	THIS MESSAGE SHOULD APPEAR ONLY 3 TIMES. THIS MESSAGE SHOULD APPEAR ONLY 3 TIMES.	4 5 🛞	
$\rightarrow$	THIS MESSAGE SHOULD APPEAR ONLY 3 TIMES.	6	
0		8	
-		9	
0		11 🔘	
>		12 13	
۲		14 🌒	
		15 16	
۲		17 🌒	•
>		19	
۲		20 💓 21	
<i>e</i> .		22	
		23 💓 24	
		25 25	
<b>1</b> 89		26 🦋	
. 633		28 29	
••••		30	
6		31 32	
		33	
۲		34 35 🛞	- Bu
·		36	-neu f
6		38	······································
		39 40	~
۲		41 🌒	
>		42 43	
۲		44 🏈	
		46	
· 🐨		47 🥨	
		49	
¥©		50 🦏 🕅 51	
ß		52 53	
		54	
6		55 56 🛞	
		57	
		59 🛞	
>		60 61	
ي ©)`		62 🌒	
-2232		63 64	
(6) F		65 🕥	

2270532-9701

A

• :	***** T9840 SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TAB TEST	1
0	11111111112222222223333333344444444445555555555	2 🛞
Ŵ	123436789012343678901234367890123436789012343678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901	5 🛞 6
۲	ARROWS SHOULD BE IN FOLLOWING COLUMNS:	7 8 🛞
0	2 7 0 10 70 64 72 76 78	10 11 🛞
 @		12 13 14 🔊
<b>1</b> 00		15 16
₩ >		17 18 19
		20 🎲
•		23 <b>(3)</b> 24
Ó		25 26 🛞
0		28 29 🛞
, C		30 31 32 <b>3</b>
<i>c</i>		33 34
~ >		36 §
ø		38 💓 🕺 39 ú 40
© -→		41 🛞 42
<b>©</b>		43 44 🛞 45
(©		46 47 ())
		49 50 🛞
, s		51 52 53 🛞
> A20.		54 55
		57 58
© →		59 💓 60 61
2325		62 🛞
ц. 🧐		65 🕥

6	***** TA840 LINES AND CHARS/INCH TEST		1 2
6	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH		3 4 5 🖏
	*****		6
<b>(</b> 20)	******		7
	<b>XXXXXXXX</b>		9
63	******		10
	00000000		12
۲	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND	6 LINES/INCH	13 14 🛞
		****	16
		*****	17 💓
>		22222	19
60		*****	20 💓 21
<b>#</b> \$50			22
	BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH		23 💓 24
			25
<b>6</b> 33	*****************		20 🎲 27
62	******		28 20 🖏
	****************		30
	***********		31
¥00			33
6	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 6 LINES/INCH		34 §
	*****		36
6	XXXXXXX XXXXXXX		37 38
	******		39 0
0	×××××××× ××××××××		40 41 🛞
>			42
۲			43 44 🛞
<b>→</b>			45
۲			47
>			48 49
۲			50
			51 52
۲			53 🛞
>			54 55
۲			56 🌒
			57 58
			59 🛞
$\rightarrow$			61
32 W			62 🔇
1-225			64
€ ⊢			65 🥨

4

4

4

<i>6</i>		1
•	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 3 LINES/INCH	3
6		5 🛞
. ·· →	XXXXXXXX	7 8 🔊
	*****	9
۲	XXXXXXXXX	11 🛞
→ (0)		13 14 🔇
		15 16
۲	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 3 LINES/INCH	17 🌒 18
$\rightarrow$		19 20 💓
	×××××	21 22
©	×××××	23 👀 24
۲	*****	25 26 🛞
<i>6</i> 20		27 28
$ \longrightarrow $		29 ()) 30
0	BLUCK 15 16.5 CHRS/INCH HRD 3 LINES/INCH	31 32 🛞
63	*****	34 35 (1)
$\rightarrow$	*****	36 37 7
۲	******	38 🛞 🧍 39 🕺
۲		40 41 🛞
$\rightarrow$		42 43
$\otimes$	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 3 LINES/INCH	44 ‱9 45
۲		46 47 (3)
_→ ∅	*****	48 49 50
<b>4</b> 89	******	50
۲	*****	53 🔇
$\overset{\rightarrow}{\otimes}$		55 56 🔇
		57 58
		59 💓 60
ي َ ا		61 62 🏈
1-2232		63 64
© -		65 🎯

į

•		1 2 ()) 3	
-0	BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND S LINES/INCH	4 5 🛞	
→ ©	*****	6 7 8 🖏	
~~~~		9 10	
© - →	******	11 ())) 12 13	
۲	BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	14 🌑 15	
۲		16 17 🛞	
		19 20 🖗	
		21 22 23 🖏	
→		24 25	
		26 🛞) 27	
۲		28 29 ()) 30	
©	BLOCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 8 LINES/INCH	31 32 🌑	
0		33 34 35 🛞 🖗	
\rightarrow		36 37	
	XXXXXXXXXX	38∭9 ; 39 , 40	
		41 🛞 42	
۲		43 44 🛞	
$\overset{\rightarrow}{\otimes}$		46 47 🛞	
\rightarrow		48 49	
×.		50 %gar 51 52	
© →		53 🌑 54	
۵		56 () 57	
۲		58 59 👀	
→ ©		60 61 62	
1.22325		63 64	
		65 🤍	

A

BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH
BLOCK IS 10 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH BLOX IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUM MINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMINIMUMI
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH ROX IS 16.5 ORB/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUM MINIMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMU
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH INTIMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMUMU
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH ROOK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH HINTININININININI HINTINININININININI HINTINININININININI HINTINININININININI HINTINININININININI HINTINININININININI HINTININININININININI HINTININININININININI HINTINININININININININI HINTININININININININI HINTINININININININININI HINTININININININININININI HINTININININININININININI HINTININININININININININININININININININ
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXX BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH KXXXXX KXXXXX C BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH KXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH KXXXXX BLOCX IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH KXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
BLOCK IS 5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH 14 XXXXX 15 XXXXX 18 XXXXX 18 XXXXX 19 XXXXX 10 XXXXX 10 XXXXXX 10 XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Image: Solution of the synthesis of the sy
Image: Second state st
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Image: Statistic statis statis statistic statistic statistic statistic stat
Image: Second
() ××××× 22 23) 24 () BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH 26 27 27 () XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Image: Second secon
→ XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
BLOCK IS 16.5 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH 25 Image: Statistic statist
BLUCK 15 10.5 UNO/ HNU 4 LINES/INCH 2/ Image: Statistic st
€ XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Image: Market
33 34 € €
36
37
W BLUCK IS 8.25 CHRS/INCH AND 4 LINES/INCH
40
42 ★ XXXXXXX 43
45 VVVVVVV
46 ()
49
50 (%) 51
52
53
54
· · >
55 (∰ 56 ∰)
55 € 57
55 (*) 57 58 50
55 (*) 57 58 59 59 59 59 50 50
55 56 57 58 59 59 59 60 61
55 56 57 58 59 60 61 61 62 59 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 63 63 64 65 65 60 61 62 62 62 63 63 63 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64
55 56 57 58 59 60 61 61 62 63 64
55 56 57 57 58 59 60 61 62 61 62 63 64 65

			÷
	***** TB840 BELL TEST	1	
\$ \$\$		2 %% 9 3	
4	PRINTER BELL SHOULD SOUND FOR 3 SECONDS	4	
9		5 ())) 6	
>		7	
		8 🌑	
		9 10	
0		11 🛞	
>		12	
6		14	
		15	
r		16 17 🖏	
Ň		18	
		19	
		20 💓	
		22	
0		23 🏈	
>		24 25	
0		26 🛞	
		27	
0		28 29 🛞	
		30	
633	-	31	
\$ 00		32	
<i>6</i> 00		34	Magre
N		35 💓	B-usine
\rightarrow		37	-c For
		38 🛞 🖞	n Tre
		39 , 40	2
۲		41 🌒	
>		42	
۵		43 44 🌑	
>		45	
6		46 47	
		48	
<i>1</i> 33		49	
		50 *** 9 51	
6 %).		52	
۲		53 🌒	
>		55	
6		56	
		57 58	
۲		59	
>		60	
© _		61 62	
2325		63	
÷ ج		64 cr. 333	
*****		65.3	

A

A

111111111122222222233333333344		2 🛞
111111111222222222333333333344		
11111111112222222233333333344		4
123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901	4444444455555555555666666666666777777777	5 🛞) 6
	XXXXXXXXX	7
	*****	8 %# 9
	*******	10 11 🛞
××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××	*****	12
	*****	14
*********	******	15 16
		17 🛞
		19
***		20
©		22 23 🛞
		24
		26
		27 28
		29 / . 30
	•	31
***		32 - 33
•		34 နိ 35 🛞 ခု
		36 37
		38 🌒 🕺
		39 v 40
		41 💓 42
\rightarrow		43
		45
•		46 47 ())
\rightarrow		48 49
		50 🛞
<i>"</i>		52
		53 🥸
		55 56
		57 58
•		59
		60 61
32 W		62) 63
LI-22		64 65 🔊
		00%

. •

*****	TU840 TUP/BOTTOM MARGINS TEST	2
		3
1		4
Ŵ	,	5 (13) 6
· >		,
(W)		8
		9
(iii)		10
w		12
	****	13
•		14
	XXXXXXXXXX	16
۲	X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	17 🛞
	XXXXXXXXX	18
6 33	**************************************	19 20 🖏
1605	XXXXXXXXXX	21
100	XXXXXXXXX	22
0	*****	23
·>		24
· 🕼		26 🛞
		27
6		28
		30
\rightarrow		31
		32
		33 34 5
0		35 🛞 🚽
\rightarrow		36
633		37
Ŵ		38 ****
		40
		41 🛞
\rightarrow		42
0		43
		45
és.	^^^^^	46
N.())	XXXXXXXXX	4/‱¥ 48
\rightarrow	*****	49
		50 (
i i	XXXXXXXXXX	51
0	*****	53 🛞
	XXXXXXXXX	54
l e	**************************************	55 55
\$ 22	XXXXXXXXX	57
	****	58
(©	*****	59 🛞
	××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××××	60 61
() .	xxxxxxxxx	62 (3)
2325	****	63
2 E		64
S -	^^^^^^ XXXXXXXXX	65 🤍

A

A

6	***** TES40 ANSWERBACK MEMORY TEST	1 2
		3
6	ABM TRANSMISSION IS COMPLETE.	4 5 🛞
>		6
(Ø		8
		9
()		11
\rightarrow		12
۲		14 🛞
		15 16
۲		17 🛞
\rightarrow		18 19
		20
		22
		23 🛞 🕽 24
\rightarrow		25
		26 💓 27
<i>6</i> 00.		28
		29
Ó	•	31 32
•		33
0		34 35 🛞 🖉
\rightarrow		36
0		37
		39 💭
۲		41
>		42 43
۲		44 🛞
\rightarrow		45 46
()		47 🏈
\rightarrow		49
		50 💓 51
e en		52
	·	53 ((3) 54
6		55 56
·**		57
		58 59 🛞
_→		60
· 🛞		61 62
22325		63 64
()) ⊨		65

Appendix G

CPTEST Output

The following pages are examples of the output of printers using the CPTEST diagnostic when executed with the default options. You can use these examples for comparison with the output you receive.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	TET L _ CHARACTER CET TECT	
	IEST I - CHARACIER SET (EST	
1		3 4
	*****	5
	**************************************	6 7
۲	LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL	8
2		10
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	11 🌑 12
	***************************************	13
3		14
		16 17 🖚
———		18
۲	222222222222222222222222222222222222222	20
4	333333333333333333333333333333333333333	21 22
۲	55555555555555555555555555555555555555	23
	777777777777777777777777777777777777777	24 25
۲	88888888888888888888888888888888888888	26 🎆 27
5		28 20.4%
		30 s
<i></i>		31 ¥ 32 🐝 🖁
6		33
۲	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	34 35 ∰ į
		36 ∽ 37
۲		38
7	FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF	40
۲	ннняннымининничинининининининининининининининин	41 (1) 42
		43 44 🖑
8	KKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKKK	45
		46 47 🎡
		48 ^{°°°} 49
۲		50
9	RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR	51 52
۲	SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS	53 🎡 54
~		55 52 - 49
66 10		57 TI-22
1-2-	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	58 ⁶ 59 (10)
~~~~~		60 61
۲		62
11		63
۲		۲
	······································	

A

₫

đ

	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
	bbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbb	ં 🌒
1	444444444444444444444444444444444444444	3
	*****	5 🛞
	t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+t+	6
0		/ 8.43%
2		9
-	1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/1/	10
	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	12
	កកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកកក	13
	<u>₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽</u>	14
3	₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽	16
	999999999999999999999999999999999999999	17 🎆
		18 19
	***************************************	20
4		21
		22 23 🍩
····		24
	YYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYY	25 26 - ****
· 🖤		20 000
5		28
۲		29 🎆
·		31
۲		32
6		33 ¤ 34 §
۲	!"#\$%%^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnop	35 🌒 🕺
	"#\$%&`()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEF6HIUKLNNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9h1jk mnopq #\$%&'()*+/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEF6HIUKLNNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9h1jk mnopq	36 °∽
	\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLNNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqns	38 🚳
7	<pre>%&amp;1()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^abcdefshijklmnopgnst %////////////////////////////////////</pre>	39
<i>.</i>	**()**,-/0123456/37:1<=>?@ABCDEFONIUKLENOPURKS10VWXY2L1)^_3abcdef9hijklmnopgrstu *()*+,-/0123456/39:1<=>?@ABCDEFEGHIJkLMNOPORSTUVWXY2L1)^_3abcdef9hijklmnopgrstuv	40 41 🔊
	()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvw	42
	)*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPORSTUVWXZE\]^_`abcdefahijklmnoparstuvwx	43
	<pre>++/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMN0F@RSTUVWXYZLNJ^L_abcdefshijklmn0P9rstuVWXYZ ++/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMN0F@RSTUVWXYZLNJ^L_abcdefshijklmn0P9rstuVWXYZ</pre>	44 🎆 45
8	,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopqrstuvwxyz(	46
۲	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(' ./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(')	47
—	/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnopqrstuvwxyz[\)~	49
۲	0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZC\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopgrstuvwxyz()}~!	50
9	<pre>123436787**, \=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^L_%BCd@f9hiJk(mnop9rstuvWxYZ())~!"# 23456789*;; &lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^L^%bcdef9hiJk)mnop9rstuvwxyZ()/~!"#</pre>	51 52
<b>*</b>	3456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnopqrstuvw×yz(!)~!"#\$	53
	456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$% 54799::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdafghijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%	54
~	6789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hiJk1mnop9rstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&	oo 56.∭ _i
9 9 10	789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk}mnoperstuvwxyz{})~!"#\$%&^(	57 ⁷ 2
1-2 2-2	89:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwyyz(!)~!"#\$%&^() 9::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWYYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijklmnopgrstuvwyyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*	58 9 58 9
	<pre>:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLHNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnopsnstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%%(')*+</pre>	60
	;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[\]^abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,	61
•	<pre></pre>	62
11	>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^`abcdef9hijk]mnop9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&`()*+,/	
۲	?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(\)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0	۲
	@ABUDEFUHIUKEMNUPWKSIUVWXYZENJ~_~&DCdef9h1JkimnoP9rstuVWXYZ(;)~!~##%%~()*+;~./U1	

.

1

	ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRSTUVWXYZ[]]`abcdefehijklmnoperstuvwxyz[]]~!"#\$%%^()*+,/012	1
	BUDEFUGHIUKLMNUPURSIUVWXYZL\1^_`aBdddf9hljkimnoPqrstuVwxYZ(\}~'\"#\$%&(\)*+/0123 CDEECUTIKIMNUCCOCCIUNUXYZL\1^_`abdddcbf3llaraaraaraaraaraaraaraaraaraaraaraaraar	. 🛞
1	CDEFGHIJKLMNUPURSIUVWXYZL\7`abcdefghijk(mnopqrstuvwxyZ())~!"##%%%()*+,-,/01234	3
	DEFORIORLENNOPORTSIOVWXYZLYI"_ aDCdefynlykimnöpqrStuvwxYZ()/~"##%%%()*+,~./012345 EFOULWLWNOPORTSIUWXYZLYI'_ aDCdefynlykimnöpqrStuvwxYZ()/~"##%%%()*+,~./012345	4
	COUTIONLINNOPERSTOVENTILLST'L'ADCORTENTINE (MADPHESTOVENY)('#44/A/'()*+,-/01/23436 FOUTINE MADPORTINUTY/1/ 10 16 64/ (FF) () 16 56/ (F)	5 🋞
	COTIONEDNOTOROSIOVWATZENI = AUCOPTUTINIMOPPETSEUVWAYZE()/*:"##A@()/*://VIZ3436/	6
	$ \begin{array}{c} \text{Origonal Multiple Constraints} \\ \text{Intermatical Multiple Constraints} \\ Intermatical$	7
***	$\frac{1}{1} \frac{1}{1} \frac{1}$	8
2	$\frac{1}{10000000000000000000000000000000000$	9
<i>2</i> 00	KIMNORORSTIVWXYZENA A Jackateleniikhimnoegeetuvwyzeta ////##\$%a(////////////////////////////////////	10
	NNDPDRSTIVWXY7[\Acdefshijk mnopgrstuvwyy7[]>""#\$%&\/\#+//0123456739:;<=	11
	MNOFDRSTIVWXY7[\]^ `abcdefgbijklmpnegrstuvwxy2()~'"#\$%%()*+/0123454789::<=>	12
<i>a</i> n	NOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789::<=>?	14.000
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	OPORSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@	15
3	PQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz({)~!"#\$%&`()*+,/0123456789::<=>>@A	16
æ	QRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@AB	17.688.
	RSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(()~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABC	18
	STUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijklmnoperstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;(=>?@ABCD	19
	TUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk1mnoperstuvwxyz(\}~!"#\$%&^()*+,~./0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDE	20 🦔
4	UVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklmnop9rstuvwxyz(\)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEF	21
4	VWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk1mnoP9rstuvwxyz(\}~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFG	22
۲	WXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mnop9rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF6H	23 🎆
**	XYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk]mnop⊴rstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&{()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHI	24
	YZL\J^_`abcde+shijkimnopqrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#%%'()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEFGHIj	25
	ZL\]^&abcdefshijk mnopgrstuvwxyz())~!"#%X&())*+,/0123456789!;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJK	26 🍏
5	L 1 - BUCGETSD1JKIMD0P9PSTUVWXYZ())~(***+/0123456/89%)(*>>/@ABCDEF6HIJKL (************************************	27
-	NJ*1 * ADC000195111K1m00P9151UVWXYZ())***********************************	28
	J = abcdofobilkimmoP4P5CuvwxY2()/("##\$%(/)*+→"/0123436/707*;(->?@HDCDEFOHIKENM A ≥abcdofobilkimopapet/suvwyy()/("##\$%(/)*+→"/0123436/707*;(->?@ADCDEFOHIKENMO	29
	- accelentationmorphistation(2): ##AG ()#T) - (0123400/07): (-)/(2HDUDEFORIDALPHNU) 'abcdefehiikimnoppethywyy7()/01/##Y%()/04 /017345/300/07): (-)/04BC/TECHI W MMDD	30
alla.	2 about standard statements and the statement of the s	31 9 20 AA 9
<b>W</b>	abcdefshijk]mnoperstuvwxyz()~'"#\$2&'()*+,/0123456789:!<=>>@ABCDEF601.KIMM0P0R	32 33
6	bcdefshijk1mnoperstuvwxyz()/~!"#\$%%'()*+,/0123456789::<=>?@ABCDEF6H1.KLMNNPORS	34
<i>4</i> 10	cdefshijk]mnopgrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$2%'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPGRST	35.488 -
~#//	defshijklmnoperstuvwxyz()>~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTU	36
	efshijklmnoperstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%%^()*+,~./0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUV	37
	fshijklmnoperstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVW	38 🌰
7	shijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWX	39 ື້
'	hijklmnopgrstuvwxyz({)~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXY	40
۲	ijklmnopgrstuvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&(()*+,/0123456789!;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ	41 🛞
	jk1mnopgrstuvwxyz()~!"##%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEF6HIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ(	42
	kimnopgrstuvwxyz())~!"#\$%&'()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMN0PQRSTUVWXYZ()	43
۲	imnoperstuvwxyz(;)~!"#\$X\$"()*+,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOP@RSTUVWXYZ[]	44 🛞
8	mnoperstuvwxyz(;)~!"##X&'()*+,/0123456789:1(=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ()^	45
	noPerstuwwey2()//:***********************************	46
<b>W</b>	のFilstavwatz(1): ##743 ()#1.1.70123436707(1気=2/0HDCDEF0H10KLMN0F0K51UVWXY2L()"   dece1/vmvvz(1): #("#4737()3:1.1.7012345780()/=57400DCECut_0/MN0D0CT000V70()3:1.57	4/
	FT15144WW472(1)711 ##AX ()#T1777777777777777777777777777777777777	48
100		49 50.000
<b>W</b>	<pre>studmaxz())~''##X&amp;()*+,-,/0123456789;i&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHI.KLMN0P0RSTUMXY7[\]^ &gt;=bcd</pre>	50 51
9	tuywyz()/~!"#\$%%()*+,-,/0123456789;;<=>?@ABCDEF6HTJKLMNOP@RSTUYWXY7(\1^ \abcde	52
	uvwxyz(!)~!"#\$%%^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIUKLMNOFQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef	53
w/	vwxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9	54
	wxyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*++/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9h	55
o 📖	xyz(!)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshi	56 📖 💷
<b>F</b> 10	<pre>wz()&gt;~!"#\$%&amp;^()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshij</pre>	57 Ž
<u>6</u> 10	z(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefshijk	58 9
-	(;)~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZIN]^_`abcdefghijk1	59 () ⁶⁰
	<pre>13~!"##%&amp;&lt;()*+,/0123456789:;&lt;=&gt;?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijklm</pre>	60
	)~!"#\$%&<()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdefghijk)mn	61
۲	~!"#\$%&^()*+,/0123456789:;<=>?@ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ[\]^_`abcdef9hijk]mno	62
11		63
		1000 C

PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFER-TEST-RINTER-BUFFE	
<pre>PRINE PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* PRINTER* P</pre>	
PRINTER       PRINTER	
PRINTER® <td>~</td>	~
<pre>PRINTER#BUFFER*EST PRINTER#BUFFER*EST PRINTER#BUFFER*EST PRINTER#BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*BUFFER*EST*PRINTER*</pre>	ł
T       PRINTER&BUFFER         PRINTER&BUFFER*TES       PRINTER&BUFFER*TES         PRINTER&BUFFER*TES       P	
PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTER&BUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFERTES PRINTERBBUFFE	1
PRINTER&UFER&TC         PRINTER&UFER&TCST#         PRINTER&UFER*TCST#         PRINTER&UFER*TCST#FINE         PRINTER&UFER*TCST#FINE <td></td>	
2       PRINTERNUFERNTES         2       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#R         4       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#RINTE         5       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#RINTERNUF         6       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#RINTERNUFER         7       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#RINTERNUF         8       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#RINTERNUFER         9       PRINTERNUFERNTESST#RINTERNUFER <td< td=""><td>·@</td></td<>	·@
PRINTER&UJFERATES1*# PRINTER&UJFERATES1*# PRINTER&UJFERATES1*# PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTE PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJF PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1*#PRINTE PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1*#PRINTE PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1*#PRINTE PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1*#PRINTE PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTER#UJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#UJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTER&UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#UJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFERATES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1 PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1*#PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJFER*TES1##PRINTE#BUJF	
PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRIN PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFER PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFER PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERT PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERT PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERT PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERT PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERT PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERT PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERHTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER- PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFF	)
PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTE PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+ PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFERT PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFERT PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFERTEST+PRINTER+BUFFERTEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINT	
PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+ PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER* PRINTER+BUFFER+TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER+BUF	2
PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERHEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTER-BUFFERTEST+PRINTE	
3       PAINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFF         3       PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERT         4       PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERTEST         5       PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUF	
PAINLEARBUFFERTEST PRINTERABUFFER PAINTERABUFFERTEST PRINTERABUFFER PAINTERABUFFERTEST PRINTERABUFFERTEST PAINTERABUFFERTEST PRINTERABUFFERTEST PAINTERABUFFERTEST PRINTERABUFFERTEST PAINTERABUFFERTEST PRINTERABUFFERTEST PRIN	
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	i esa.
PAINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERTEST         PAINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERTEST         PAINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-BUFFERTEST PRINTER-B	
<pre>Printer#BUFFER*TEST*#RINTER#BUFFER*TEST#RINTER#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RINTE#BUFFER*TEST#RI</pre>	
4       PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PR       21         4       PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER       22         4       PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER       23         4       PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST-PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFFER-TEST+PRINTER-BUFF	
4       PRINTER-BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         9       PRINTER-BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*         9       PRINTER-BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	'₩
PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTE PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER* PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST PRINTER+BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST+PR	,
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER         BRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRI	***
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER         5       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         6       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*	;
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRI	*
5       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         9       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFE	
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	3
PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PR       33         PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PR       33         PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTE       33         PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFER*TEST*PRINTE	
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR.       10         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       11         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       12         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       13         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	)ີ້,
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       33         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T	
6       PRINTER&BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	ا ھ ^ي
6       PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUJFFER*TEST*PRI	۱ <i>۳</i> (
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF       39         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	۲. I
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*	i ھ
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T       38         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	3
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       33         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       34         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       46         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       47         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       47         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       47         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       48         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       48         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       45         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       45             PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       55	'
************************************	*@
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRI	•
PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINIER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*TESI*PRINTER*BUFFER*	) 
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       45         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       45         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       55         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	W
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       45         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       45         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       55         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56 <td< td=""><td>2</td></td<>	2
<ul> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFE</li></ul>	, 
8       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       44         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       44         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       44         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR       55         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       56         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         ••       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         ••       PR	
PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#       44         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       46         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       46         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       46         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       46         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       46         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       52         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST	, ,
PRINTERABUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE44PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR45PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*FEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*FES	-
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       44         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       55         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       56         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       56             PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       56<	, <b>**</b>
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       S         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       S </td <td>•</td>	•
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*     50       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     55       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     66       PRINTE	<b>)</b> @
9       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST       55         Image: Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer*Test*Printer*Buffer**Differ**Printer*Buffer**Differ**Differ**Differ**Differ**Differ*	
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T53PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER54PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE56PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR66PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR66PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER67 <td>2</td>	2
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     54       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF     55       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFE	4@
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFF     55       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     57       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     67 </td <td>۳</td>	۳
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU     55       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*     57       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     58       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     58       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     61       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     61       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     61       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     61       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     62       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     62       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     62       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES     64	5
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*     55       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINT     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN     56       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     67       PRINTER*BUFFE	³ @ =
No     PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     SS       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     SS	/ 1
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN     55       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     67       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     66       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     64       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     65       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     64       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     65       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     64       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     65	3
PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER#BUFFER*TEST*PR     60       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     61       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST     62       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     63       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER     64	?@ `
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES1*       61         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*TES       62         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T       63         11       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       63         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       63         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       64         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER       65	0
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T       65         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER*T       65         11       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFF       PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFF         PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU       65	I - 2000
<ul> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINIER*BUFFER*</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFER</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFF</li> <li>PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU</li> </ul>	200
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUFFE PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BUF PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	5
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTER*BU	
PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*FRINTER*BU	

. . '

.

	PRINTER*BUEFER*TEST*PRINTER*	
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRINTE	· 🔊
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PRIN	3
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*PR	4
	PRINTER*BUFFER*TEST*	5
T	PRINTER*BUFFER*TES	6
-	PKINTER*BUFFER*T	7
	PRINTER BUFFER	8
2	FRINICR#DUFF Definicreadii	9
an a	PRINTER*	10
	PRINTE	12
	PRIN	13
	PR	14 🍩
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		15
		16
۲	IEST 4 - JITTER IEST	17 🌑
	ннынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынын	18
	аластанаровородска с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с	19
\$		20 388
. 4		22
		23 🛞
		24
	TEST 5 - JITTER INTERVAL TEST	25
		26
5	арасспородониканыныныныныныныныныныныныныныныныныныны	27
	и и и и и и и и и воросовози и и и и изворсски посторово со се	28 20 ×**
		30
		31 8
		32 🛞 💈
	TEST 6 - CENTER OUT TEST	33 🕺 🕯
6		34
۲		35 🌒 💈
		36 ∽
-	на на полнатически полна	37
		39
7		40
A	TEST 7 - ALTERNATING LEFT TO RIGHT TEST	41
		42
	ны	43
۲		44
8	нанкананананананкананананананананананан	45
	HORBANNAANNAANNAANNAANNAANNAANNAANNAANNAAN	40 47 🖇
		48
	TEST 8 - ALTERNATING RIGHT TO LEFT TEST	49
		50
*	нниннинниннинниннинниннинниннинниннинни	51
9	ни	52
۲		53
	ннынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынын	54
~		55 56
616	TEST 9 - INTERPLACED JUTTER TEST	57 H
R 10		58 49
Ê.	наннаннынынынынынынынынынынынынынынынын	59 🔊 ⁶
	ннынныныныныныныныныныныныныныныныныныны	60
	на	61
	нниннинниннинниннинниннинниннинниннинни	62
11		63
	TECT 4. OUTDETDING TECT	
	IEST IN - OVERSTRIKE (EST	1

,

A

● 1 -©	, наличинининининининининининининининининини	3 4 5 (1)
2	[—] TEST 11 – ALTERNATING OVERSTRIKE TEST ИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИН	6 7 8 9 10 11 12
3 ***	TEST 12 - RANDOM PRINT TEST ———————————————————————————————————	13 14 (***) 15 16 17 (***) 18 19 20 (***)
4 *** *** 5	TEST 13 - LEFT TO RIGHT INVERTED STRIKE TEST — АНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИ	21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
@ 6 @	TEST 14 - RIGHT TO LEFT INVERTED STRIKE TEST ИНИННИЧНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИНИ	29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 5 36 5
* 7 *	TEST 15 - BLACK LINE TEST BROADDAWARDAWARDAWARDAWARDAWARDAWARDAWARD	37 38 39 40 41 42 43
8 8 		44 45 46 47 48 49
9	_	50 51 52 53 54 55 56
11-24919 ● ● ● ●		57 57 58 59 60 61 62
11		63 [°]

é

,

Appendix H

Messages

H.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

This appendix lists the Online Diagnostics messages that are installed in the file, volumename.S\$ODIAG.MSG. The driver or the device diagnostic task extracts a message as needed from the file and fills in any information needed to complete the message. It then displays the message at the control terminal and/or copies it to the diagnostic history file, volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTROY, depending on the message type code.

Each message is shown here as it is stored in the file. Information about the message and details of action that should be taken follow the message.

H.2 MESSAGE FORMAT

The messages are composed of a maximum of 5 lines of 74 characters each. Each message includes 3 fields:

- Message serial number (DTNN)
- Message type code (C)
- Message text (TEXT)

H.2.1 Message Serial Number

The message serial number, DTNN, is four hexadecimal digits formatted as follows:

- D = Number representing the device type or name of the originating task
- T = Test number, if originated from a device diagnostic task
- NN = Unique number of the message within the test

Table H-1.	Message Module/Device Numbers	
Number (D)	Module/Device	
	Online Disgonation Driver	
U	Online Diagnostics Driver	
1	51820	
2	LP810, RP810	
3	LP2260	
4	CPTEST (LP850)	
5	ST911	
6	XDISK (Extended Disk)	
7	DSRW (Nonextended Disk)	
8	МТ979	
9	LP600	
А	ST940	
В	LP840	
D	ST931	
F	MEMxx	

Table H-1 lists the numbers in field D of the message serial number.

As an example, the message serial number for the MT979 Test 8, message number 2, is as follows:

8802

H.2.2 Message Type Code

The message type code consists of one character and indicates the classification of the message. Table H-2 lists the message type codes and associated classifications. Status messages (code S) are the only messages not stored in the diagnostic history file.

 Table H-2.	Message Type Codes	
 Code (C)	Classification	
E	Error	
F	Fatal	
I	Informational	
W	Warning	
S	Suppress From History File	
Т	Test	

able n-z. Messade i voe Codes	able	H-2.	Messa	ae Type	Codes
-------------------------------	------	------	-------	---------	-------

2270532-9701

H.2.3 Message Text

The message text is the only message field that you can modify. It is from 1 to 370 characters, and is in an abbreviated form to conserve space at the message output device and the history file. Many of the message text fields contain variable data items, called fill-ins. In the following paragraphs, these fill-ins are represented by the characters ?n, where n is a number from >0 to > F, which is the relative number of fill-in within the message. When the messages are displayed on the screen or placed in the history file, the driver or diagnostic task has filled in the appropriate information. In some cases, the fill-in is a DNOS error code which you may need to look up in the DNOS Messages and Codes Error Reference Manual.

The messages in the following paragraphs are listed in groups depending on the diagnostic task from which they originate, and, within the task, in ascending order of message serial number. The message text is shown as it appears at the control terminal except that in the manual, the variable field fill-ins are still represented by ?n. The n represents the relative number of the fill-in within the message (0 for first, 1 for second, etc). The message is described, and, when appropriate, action which you should take is given.

H.3 ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS DRIVER MESSAGES

Online Diagnostics Driver issues the following messages, most of which provide information about driver activities. However, some messages indicate abnormal internal conditions that require reinstallation of the Online Diagnostics Object Kit. SVC and SCI hexadecimal error codes are explained in the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual.

0001 I DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS VERSION 1.2.0 BEGINNING EXECUTION. AT ANY TIME, ENTER THE WORD 'HELP' FOR MORE INFORMATION.

This is the message displayed by the driver that indicates that the Online Diagnostics Driver is in execution.

0002 W MESSAGE ?0 IS TOO LONG FOR MESSAGE BUFFER.

The message text of the indicated message serial number (?0) is larger than the maximum allowable number of characters. This is an internal design restriction.

0003 S DEVICE ?0 MUST BE IN THE DIAGNOSTIC STATE TO TEST. IF THERE IS A PRINTER ATTACHED TO THIS DEVICE, IT MUST ALSO BE PLACED INTO THE DIAGNOSTIC STATE. TO PLACE A DEVICE INTO THE DIAGNOSTIC STATE, USE THE ONLINE 'DIAG' VERB.

The target device (?0) is not in the proper device state. Use the Show System Device List (SD) verb to see what state it is in. If in online, use the driver's DIAG verb to change to diagnostic state. If it is offline, you must terminate the driver and use SCI ON or DIAG commands. If it is in use, you cannot change it to the diagnostic state.

0004 F SVC ERROR > 2B?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING TO BID DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC NO ?1

The SVC code for Execute Task (> 2B) generated the error (?0) when the driver attempted to start a diagnostic task for the device (?1). SVC ERROR > 2B is an error code for which an explanation can be found in the *DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual*.

0005 S DEVICE ?0 IS ALREADY EXECUTING!

You have attempted to start a diagnostic for a device (?0) that is being tested.

0006 S DEVICE ?0 NOT FOUND IN THE PHYSICAL DEVICE TABLE!

You have attempted to start a diagnostic for a device that is not configured on your system.

0007 S DEVICE ?0 IS NOT EXECUTING!

You have attempted to modify or inquire about a nonexistent diagnostic task.

0008 S DEVICE ?0 IS SELECTED.

The device (?0) has been selected by the driver for testing.

0009 S DEVICE ?0 HAS STARTED EXECUTION.

The diagnostic task for the device (?0) has started.

000A S ONLINE DRIVER AVAILABLE - PRESS 'COMMAND' FOR NEXT COMMAND VERB

The driver is monitoring the diagnostic message queue. You may now leave the diagnostic session unattended. To regain the attention of the driver, press the Command key.

000B F MESSAGE ?0 RECEIVED FROM UNKNOWN TASK. RUNTIME ID = ?1

A message from an unidentified task was found in the diagnostic message queue. Terminate this diagnostic session and start again. When the session is terminated, you may need to issue the Show Task Status (STS) and Kill Task (KT) commands to ensure that no leftover diagnostic tasks are hung in task state 9 waiting for a message to be processed.

000C E MESSAGE ?0 NOT FOUND IN THE MESSAGE FILE.

The message number (?0) was not on file when the driver tried to access it.

000D S ILLEGAL INPUT. ENTER CORRECT INPUT OR ENTER 'HELP' FOR ASSISTANCE.

You entered invalid input. Reenter the correct input or use the Help feature.

000E I DNOS ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS COMPLETED EXECUTION.

This is an informational message, displayed when the driver completes execution.

000F S DEVICE ?0 TERMINATION STARTED.

The diagnostic task for device name ?0 has begun end of task procedures.

0010 E FILL IN MATERIAL FOR MESSAGE #?0 COMING ACROSS T QUEUE FROM THE INDICATED DIAGNOSTIC IS TOO LONG (DETECTED IN ROUTINE CHECK Q).

The variable data is larger than the allotted internal buffer space allocated by the driver.

0011 S DEVICE ?0 IS AN UNSUPPORTED DEVICE

You have attempted to start a diagnostic for a device (?0) that is not supported by a diagnostic task.

0012 S DEVICE STATE AVAILABLE FOR TEST

This message is used in setting up the device table displayed by the SD command verb.

0013 S ?0 ?1 ?2

This message is also used in the SD command verb device table. The ?0 is device ID, ?1 is device state, and ?2 is 'YES' or 'NO'.

0014 S COMMAND VERB NOT VALID IN BATCH MODE.

The following command verbs are valid only during interactive diagnostic sessions: Show Diagnostic Files (SF), List Device Configuration (LDC), Show Memory Map (SMM), and Show Progress (SP).

0015 S F COMMAND VERB INVALID WHEN DIAGNOSTIC HISTORY NOT A DNOS FILE.

You have assigned a device rather than a file, or the null file name DUMY, to the diagnostic history file. The SF command verb with the default option does not work under such conditions.

0016 S COMMAND VERB ONLY VALID IN VDT MODE.

The Show Memory Map (SMM) and Show Progress (SP) command verbs can be used only with a video display terminal (VDT):

- 0017 E FILL IN MATERIAL FOR A DRIVER MESSAGE FROM THE MESSAGE FILE IS TOO LONG (DETECTED IN ROUTINE FILL).
- 0018 F STARTING STATE NOT FOUND!
- 0019 F ACTION NOT FOUND. ACTION NAME: ?0
- 001A F ACTION ?0 HAS UNDEFINED TASK, OVERLAY, OR FUNCTION NUMBERS!
- 001B F TOO MANY ACTIONS!
- 001C F UNKNOWN STATE ERROR NAME! ERROR NAME = ?0
- 001D F UNKNOWN STATE ESCAPE NAME! ESCAPE NAME = ?0

Messages 0018 through 001D indicate abnormal internal conditions in the driver. You should reinstall the Online Diagnostics Object Kit.

001E S ILLEGAL INPUT! INPUT = ?0

The data you entered (?0) is not valid.

- 001F F NEW STATE IS UNDEFINED! STAYING IN SAME STATE.
- 0020 F FUNCTION NOT FOUND! FUNCTION NUMBER = ?0
- 0021 F TOO MANY DEFAULT STATES!
- 0022 F CANNED FUNCTION NUMBER OUT OF RANGE! FUNCTION NUMBER = ?0
- 0023 F INPUT PARAMETER TO ACTION OUT OF RANGE!

Messages 001F through 0023 indicate abnormal internal conditions in the driver. You should reinstall the Online Diagnostics Object Kit.

- 0024 F SSIRP CALLS NOT SUPPORTED BY ONLINES.
- 0025 F ABNORMAL TERMINATION FROM UNKNOWN DEVICE! RUNTIME ID = ?0.

Both the driver and device diagnostic task have aborted. Check messages in the diagnostic history file to determine the cause of the fatal error and correct before trying the diagnostic session again.

0026 S ATTEMPT TO RUN DIAGNOSTIC ON A DEVICE NOT SUPPORTED BY ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS. SEE USER'S GUIDE FOR A LIST OF SUPPORTED DEVICES.

You can also display a table of supported devices on your terminal by entering the Show Supported Devices (SSD) command verb.

0027 F ABNORMAL TERMINATION FROM DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC > ?0.

A fatal run-time error in the diagnostic task for the device name ?0 has occurred. Look at the diagnostic history file to determine the cause of the error.

0028 S MEMORY DIAGNOSTIC ALREADY EXECUTING.

0029 E ERROR ?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING A SHOW FILE.

An SCI error has been made. See the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual for SCI errors.

002A S SF COMMAND FOR FILE SELECTED INVALID IN TTY MODE.

The SF command verb works only in VDT mode.

002B S TOTAL NUMBER OF ERRORS REPORTED = ?0

This message is displayed at the end of the diagnostic session. Look in the diagnostic history file for more information about the errors.

002C I UNABLE TO PLACE ?0 IN DIAGNOSTIC STATE.

You have tried to place a device that is either in use or offline in the diagnostic state. See message 0003.

002D I UNABLE TO PLACE ?0 IN ONLINE STATE.

You have tried to place a device that is either in use or offline in the online state. If the device is in use as a target device for a diagnostic task, the task must terminate before you can place the device online.

002E I NO ERRORS LOGGED FOR REQUESTED DEVICE(S)

An SF verb with ERRORS option was selected and no errors were found in the online diagnostic history file.

002F E ERROR > 2B?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING TO BID SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS TASK.

An Execute Task (>2B) error (?0) has been detected. See the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual for SVC errors.

- 0030 S SYSTEM LOG ANALYSIS TASK HAS BEGUN EXECUTION.
- 0031 S ENDING HEAD IS GREATER THAN STARTING HEAD. REENTER VALUES.

You have made an error in responding to the prompt for starting and ending heads for a disk test.

0032 S ENDING CYLINDER IS GREATER THAN STARTING CYLINDER. REENTER VALUES.

You have made an error in responding to the prompt for starting and ending cylinders for a disk test.

0033 S DEVICE MUST BE OF TYPE DISK IN ORDER TO EXECUTE CLEAN HEADS VERB.

You can execute the Clean Heads on FD1000 DSDD (CH) command verb only on FD1000 diskettes.

- 0034 E ERROR > 2B?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING TO BID SHOW MEMORY MAP TASK.
- 0035 W CHANGE EXECUTION COMMAND IS NOT ALLOWED FOR MEMXX DEVICES.

The CE command verb cannot be executed in the memory diagnostic task.

- 0036 S CURRENTLY RUNNING MAXIMUM NUMBER OF MEMORY TASKS ALLOWED FOR YOUR SYSTEM!
- 0038 W *** WARNING *** CLEANUP WAS NOT COMPLETE. USE A KT ON LEFTOVER TASKS.
- 0039 E FILL IN MATERIAL FOR A DRIVER STATE PROMPT IS TOO LONG (DETECTED IN ROUTINE FILLST).
- 0040 E ERROR PERFORMING I/O ?0. ERROR FROM MODULE ?1. MODULE CALLED FROM ?2. I/O STATUS = > ?3.

An I/O SVC error has occurred. The ?0 is the SVC subopcode; ?1 is the procedure in which the error was detected; ?2 is the test or procedure from which the error routine was called; and ?3 is the SVC error code. See the *DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual*.

0041 F DEVICE ?0 IS OFFLINE OR NOT READY.

The task checked the ready bit on the communications register unit (CRU) input line and found device ?0 was not ready.

0042 F INTERFACE VERIFICATION ERROR: CHECK CABLE AND/OR INTERFACE.

The task checked the interface verification error bit on the CRU input line and found it set.

- 0043 F DEVICE IS POWERED OFF
- 0044 F FATAL ERROR WHILE ASSIGNING LUNO TO .S\$UTIL.
- 0045 E ERROR > 2B?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING TO BID LIST DEVICE CONFIGURATION

An SCI error (>?0) has been encountered in executing the SD command verb. See the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual for SCI bid task errors.

0046 E ERROR WHILE ATTEMPTING TO MAP ODIAG SYNONYM.

- 0047 E ERROR > ?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING TO DELETE LDC TEMPORARY FILE.
- 0050 E ERROR WHILE ATTEMTING TO GET PROGRAM FILE LUNO!
- 0101 S *** DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC ABNORMAL TERMINATION MESSAGE ***
- 0102 S *** DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC PASSES INCREMENT MESSAGE ***
- 0103 S *** DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC OPERATIONS INCREMENT MESSAGE ***

Messages 0101 through 0103 precede other messages when execution of the Check Message Queue (CQ) command verb produces a message. The messages will be displayed if possible or will go into the history file if they cannot be displayed.

0402 I DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC ?0 TERMINATED WITH ?1 ERRORS, ?2 PASSES.

This message lists the number of errors or the number of passes through all of the tests. The fill-in numbers are in decimal.

- 0840 E FILL IN MATERIAL FOR MESSAGE THAT BELONGS TO THE INDICATED DIAGNOS-TIC IS TOO LONG (DETECTED IN ROUTINE DDFILL).
- 0901 W ASSIGN LUNO SVC ERROR > 21 THE DRIVE DOES NOT HAVE A DISK VOLUME INSTALLED IN IT. INSTALL A DISK VOLUME AND RETRY THIS DEVICE.

You attempted to start a diagnostic for a disk drive that has no volume installed or the volume name on the disk pack could not be read.

0940 E IOSTATUS ERROR > ?0 IN SPECIFIC OPERATION REQUEST > ?1.

An SVC error (?0) has occurred during the specific operation code (?1). See the DNOS *Messages and Codes Reference Manual*.

0941 E REQUESTED SVC SUBOPCODE IS UNUSED!

You selected an SVC operation code that is not used for this device.

0942 E INVALID SPECIFIC OPERATION WAS REQUESTED!

You entered a number that is not a valid SVC operation code for this device. To see the valid SVC operation codes, use the help feature, the Show Operation Codes (SO) verb, or Appendix H of this manual.

0943 E INVALID TEST NUMBER REQUEST!

You entered a test number that is not within the range of valid test numbers for this device. Enter the word HELP or refer to Appendix H of this manual to see the test tables.

0944 E ASSIGN LUNO SVC ERROR > 27 – THE DISK VOLUME DOES NOT CONTAIN THE DIAGNOSTIC FILE '.S\$DIAG'. THE PACK MAY NEED TO BE INITIALIZED.

All disk packs initialized under DNOS 1.1, DX10 3.3, or later will contain a diagnostic file named volumename.S\$DIAG. If your disk pack does not, you need to initialize the disks, using the Initialize New Volume (INV) command, under the appropriate operating system.

0946 E ERROR PERFORMING CHANGE TASK PRIORITY. ERROR FROM MODULE CHGPRI. MODULE CALLED FROM REDMSG. ERROR CODE = > 11?0.

A request for a change in task priority generated an error. Priority must be greater than 0 and less than 4. Retry the request.

0947 E LDC OUTPUT NOT COMPATIBLE WITH ACTUAL PDT STRUCTURE.

The List Device Configuration (LDC) command verb has produced a display that does not represent the actual devices on your physical device table.

0948 E I/O TIMEOUT ERROR WHILE PERFORMING I/O OPERATION > ?0.

When the Online Diagnostic Driver attempts to read a device's characteristics, (or to perform an I/O operation), but cannot find the device (or receives no response), it reports this error.

0949 E I/O ERROR > ?0 WHILE PERFORMING I/O OPERATION > ?1.

When the Online Diagnostic Driver attempts to read a device's characteristics, (or to perform an I/O operation), but cannot find the device (or receives no response), it reports this error.

H.4 ST820 — 820 KSR TERMINAL MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the 820 KSR terminal.

1000 I DNOS ST820 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The device diagnostic task for the 820 KSR terminal has started and has been assigned a run ID of (?0).

1100 T TEST 1 — FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

1200	T TEST 2 — CHARACTER SET TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 2 has started.
1300	T TEST 3 — RIPPLE PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 3 has started.
1400	T TEST 4 — BUFFER LENGTH TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 4 has started.
1500	T TEST 5 — CARRIAGE RETURN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 5 has started.
1600	T TEST 6 — TAB TO LINE TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 6 has started.
1700	T TEST 7 — SET/TEST VERTICAL TABS TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 7 has started.
1800	T TEST 8 — TAB TO ADDRESS TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 8 has started.
1900	T TEST 9 — SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TABS TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 9 has started.
1A00	T TEST 10 — LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 10 has started.
1B00	T TEST 11 — BELL TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 11 has started.
1C00	T TEST 12 — INTERACTIVE KEYBOARD TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 12 has started.
1C41	E ST820 KEYBOARD CODE DOES NOT MATCH REQUIRED CODE. EXPECTED DATA BYTE = > ?0, ACTUAL DATA BYTE = > ?1.

.

In the interactive keyboard test, the entered value does not match the expected value.

H.5 LP810 - 810 LINE PRINTER MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the 810 Line Printer in both device classes LP and RP.

2000 I DNOS LP810 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION RUN: ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the 810 line printer has started and has been assigned a run ID of (?0).

2100 T TEST 1 — FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

2200 T TEST 2 — CHARACTER SET TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

2300 T TEST 3 — RIPPLE PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

2400 T TEST 4 — BUFFER LENGTH TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

2500 T TEST 5 — CARRIAGE RETURN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 5 has started.

2600 T TEST 6 — TAB TO LINE TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

- 2700 T TEST 7 --- SET/TEST VERTICAL TABS TEST BEGINNING. Test 7 has started.
- 2800 T TEST 8 TAB TO ADDRESS TEST BEGINNING.

Test 8 has started.

2900 T TEST 9 — SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TABS TEST BEGINNING.

Test 9 has started.

2270532-9701

2A00 T TEST 10 — LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH TEST BEGINNING.

Test 10 has started.

2B00 T TEST 11 — BELL TEST BEGINNING.

Test 11 has started.

H.6 LP2230/LP2260 — 2230/2260 LINE PRINTER MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the 2230 and 2260 Line Printers.

3000 I DNOS LP2260 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the 2230/2260 line printer has started and has been assigned a run ID of (?0).

3100 T TEST 1 — FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

3200 T TEST 2 — CHARACTER SET TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

3300 T TEST 3 — RIPPLE PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

- 3400 T TEST 4 BUFFER LENGTH TEST BEGINNING. Test 4 has started.
- 3500 T TEST 5 HAMMER ALIGNMENT TEST BEGINNING. Test 5 has started.
- 3600 T TEST 6 CHARACTER BURST TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

H.7 CPTEST — CHARACTER PRINTER MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for character printers.

4000 I DNOS CPTEST DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The device diagnostic task for character printers has started and has been assigned a run ID of (?0).

4100 T TEST 1 — CHARACTER SET TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

4180 T TEST 16 --- PRINT WHEEL TEST BEGINNING.

Test 16 has started.

4200 T TEST 2 — RIPPLE DUMP TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

4280 T TEST 17 — NEGATIVE LINE FEED TEST BEGINNING.

Test 17 has started.

4300 T TEST 3 — BUFFER TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

- 4380 T TEST 18 SUPERSCRIPT AND SUBSCRIPT TEST BEGINNING. Test 18 has started.
- 4400 T TEST 4 JITTER TEST BEGINNING.
- 4500 T TEST 5 JITTER INTERVAL TEST BEGINNING. Test 5 has started.
- 4600 T TEST 6 CENTER-OUT TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

- 4700 T TEST 7 ALTERNATING RIGHT TO LEFT TEST BEGINNING. Test 7 has started.
- 4800 T TEST 8 ALTERNATING LEFT TO RIGHT TEST BEGINNING. Test 8 has started.

2270532-9701

4900	T TEST 9 — INTERPLACED TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 9 has started.
4A00	T TEST 10 — OVERSTRIKE TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 10 has started.
4B00	T TEST 11 — ALTERNATING OVERSTRIKE TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 11 has started.
4C00	T TEST 12 — RANDOM PRINT TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 12 has started.
4D00	T TEST 13 - LEFT TO RIGHT INVERTED STRIKE TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 13 has started.
4E00	T TEST 14 — RIGHT TO LEFT INVERTED STRIKE TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 14 has started.

4F00 T TEST 15 — BLACK LINE TEST BEGINNING.

Test 15 has started.

H.8 ST911 - 911 VDT MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the Model 911 Video Display Terminal.

5000 I DNOS ST911 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the Model 911 VDT has started and has been assigned a run ID of (?0).

5100 T TEST 1 — ONES AND ZEROS TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

5141 E MEMORY ERROR! ONE'S TEST PATTERN CHANGED.

The ones and zeros test wrote all ones to the 911 VDT controller memory and read back something other than all ones.

5142 E MEMORY ERROR! ZERO'S TEST PATTERN CHANGED.

The ones and zeros test wrote all zeros to the 911 VDT controller memory and read back something other than all zeros.

5200 T TEST 2 — SCROLL TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

5241 E ST911 MEMORY ERROR! SCROLL TEST PATTERN CHANGED. EXPECTED DATA = >?0, ACTUAL DATA = >?1, AT ROW = >?2, COLUMN = >?3.

The scroll test wrote A through Z followed by blanks to the bottom line, scrolled it to the top line, and read back the top line with compare error ?1 (instead of ?0) at row ?2, column ?3.

5300 T TEST 3 — BEEPER TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

5400 T TEST 4 — INTENSITY TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

5500 T TEST 5 — CHARACTER GENERATOR TEST BEGINNING.

Test 5 has started.

5600 T TEST 6 — NONBLINKING/BLINKING CURSOR TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started. This is an interactive test. Go to the target terminal and respond to the test.

5700 T TEST 7 — KEYBOARD TEST BEGINNING.

Test 7 has started. This is an interactive test. Go to the target terminal and respond to the test.

5741 E ST911 KEYBOARD CODE DOES NOT MATCH REQUIRED CODE. EXPECTED DATA BYTE = > ?0, ACTUAL DATA BYTE = > ?1.

The entered hexadecimal value does not match the expected hexadecimal value.

H.9 DS — DISK MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the device class DS.

6000 I DNOS EXTENDED DISK DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for class DS has started and has been assigned a run ID of (> ?0).

- 6001 W SVC ERROR >09 (EXTENDED DISK I/O ATTEMPTED BY A NONPRIVILEGED PROGRAM). THE EXTENDED DISK TESTS WILL RUN ONLY UNDER ?0 OR LATER RELEASES.
- 6003 W SVC ERROR > 02 (YOUR SYSGEN DOES NOT SUPPORT THE EXTENDED DISK TESTS THE SYSGEN PROMPT 'ONLINE DIAGNOSTICS?' MUST BE ANSWERED 'YES')
- 6004 W LAST OPERATION WAS RETRIED BY THE DISK CONTROLLER. HEAD ADDRESS = >?0. CYLINDER ADDRESS = >?1.

The disk controller automatically retried the last operation and set the retry bit in controller status.

6005 W LAST OPERATION REQUIRED 'ECC' CORRECTION TO RECOVER THE DATA. HEAD ADDRESS = > ?0 CYLINDER ADDRESS = > ?1.

> During a read data operation, a data error occurred and the controller made an attempt to correct it. If the data error is also set, then the attempt was not successful; otherwise it was successful.

6006 W LAST OPERATION WAS PERFORMED WITH HEAD OFFSET ENABLED. HEAD ADDRESS = > ?0 CYLINDER ADDRESS = > ?1.

The head offset could have been either forward or reverse.

6007 I TPCS IMAGES: BEFORE = >?0>?1>?2>?3>?4>?5>?6>?7 AFTER = >?8>?9>?A>?B>?C>?D>?E>?F

> This message displays all eight TILINE Peripheral Control Space (TPCS) registers before and after the I/O was performed. It will follow message number 6040 which reports the command issued, the number of retries made by the diagnostic task, and so on.

When this message appears at the terminal, the diagnostic task has replaced ?0 with the last command issued, ?1 with the word 'passed' or 'failed' depending on the status returned at the end of the retry sequence, and ?2 with the number of times the diagnostic task retried the command. This does not include any retries made by the controller. See message 6004. ?3 is filled in with a brief description of the status returned by the controller. ?4 and ?5 are the current head and cylinder addresses respectively, expressed in hexadecimal. ?6 is the SVC block status byte returned by the operating system.

6042 E DISK TYPE CANNOT BE IDENTIFIED (STORE REGISTERS DATA INVALID).

The data recovered does not match any of the known disk information data blocks; therefore, the disk cannot be identified. This is a fatal error.

6043 E ILLEGAL HEAD OR CYLINDER ADDRESS ENTERED FOR THIS DISK TYPE.

Use the help feature or see Appendix H of this manual to determine head/cylinder ranges for this disk.

6044 E SVC ERROR > ?0 WHILE ATTEMPTING TO GET DATE AND TIME.

An error has occurred while the task is processing SVC code > 03. See the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual.

6045 E SVC ERROR > E8 PASSWORD 4 (MINUTE) ERROR — INITIALIZE DATE AND TIME (IDT) AND TRY EXECUTING THE DIAGNOSTIC TASK AGAIN.

An operating system/diagnostics interface error has occurred. If the message persists after execution of an Initialize Date and Time (IDT) command, the system software or the system clock has failed.

6046 E DISK MUST BE IN THE DIAGNOSTIC STATE TO RUN THE EXTENDED WRITE TESTS.

You have attempted to perform an extended write test with the disk in the ON state.

6047 E ID COMPARE ERROR (HEADER VERIFICATION ERROR) ON HEAD > ?0, CYLINDER > ?1. POSSIBLE BAD TRACK THAT SHOULD BE MAPPED IN THE DISK ERROR MAP.

The actual head and cylinder addresses read from the header do not match the expected head/cylinder address that is calculated by the test.

6048 E RESTORE COMMAND TERMINATED WITH A FATAL ERROR. DISK STATUS = > ?0, CONTROLLER STATUS = > ?1, SVC STATUS = > ?2.

H-18

2270532-9701

6049 E TEST ABORTED BECAUSE AN EXCESSIVE NUMBER (> ?0) OF RESTORES WERE REQUIRED.

If any one test is required to issue more than 10 restores to recover from an error, the test terminates with a fatal error.

- 6080 T HEAD CLEANING PROCEDURE (CH) VERB FOR FD1000 DISK DRIVE BEGINNING.
- 6081 I HEAD CLEANING PROCEDURE (CH) VERB FOR FD1000 DISK DRIVE COMPLETE.
- 60C1 E THE 'CH' VERB MAY BE RUN ONLY ON A FD1000 DISK DRIVE WITH A SPECIAL 'CLEANING' DISKETTE INSTALLED.
- 6100 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 1 BEGINNING READ SPECIFIED TRACKS.

Test 1 has started.

6200 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 2 BEGINNING – CONSECUTIVE SECTOR READ.

Test 2 has started.

6300 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 3 BEGINNING – JITTER SEEK/READ.

Test 3 has started.

6400 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 4 BEGINNING – RANDOM SEEK/READ.

Test 4 has started.

6500 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 5 BEGINNING – CRESCENDO SEEK/READ.

Test 5 has started.

6A00 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 10 BEGINNING – ID ERROR STATUS CHECK.

Test 10 has started.

- 6A01 W TEST 10 WAS NOT RUN ON THE TARGET DISK BECAUSE ITS CONTROLLER DOES NOT SUPPORT ALL FUNCTIONS NECESSARY TO MODIFY AND/OR RECOVER HEADER ID WORDS.
- 6A41 E THE DISK CONTROLLER FAILED TO SET THE ID ERROR BIT WHEN A HEADER CRC ERROR WAS FORCED. THE CRC LOGIC OR THE UNFORMATTED WRITE COMMAND FAILED.
- 6B00 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 11 BEGINNING FORMAT/VERIFY TRACKS.

Test 11 has started.

6C00 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 12 BEGINNING – WRITE/READ/COMPARE TRACKS. Test 12 has started.
6C01 I SECTOR = > ?0, WORD = > ?1, EXPECTED DATA = > ?2, ACTUAL DATA = > ?3.
6C02 I TOTAL WORDS COMPARED THIS TRACK = > ?0. TOTAL DATA COMPARE ERRORS THIS TRACK = > ?1.
6C41 E **** DATA COMPARE ERROR(S) **** HEAD = > ?0, CYLINDER = > ?1.

6D00 T EXTENDED DISK TEST 13 BEGINNING – COMPREHENSIVE WRITE/SEEK/READ.

Test 13 has started.

- 7000 I DISK DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.
- 7040 E ERROR IN LOGICAL RECORD LENGTH OF FILE VOLUMENAME.S\$ODDWRT!

The logical record length returned from the Read ASCII operation is not the same as the logical record length returned from the Open LUNO operation.

7041 E DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER READ COMPARE ERROR. WORD = >?0, RECORD = >?1 EXPECTED DATA = >?2, DATA READ = >?3

The data read from the diagnostic cylinder does not match the expected data. The word number and record number are shown, along with the expected data and the actual data read. All numbers are in hexadecimal.

7042 E BUFFER COMPARE TERMINATED ON FIVE COMPARE ERRORS. WORD = >?0, RECORD = >?1, EXPECTED DATA = >?2, DATA READ = >?

The comparison of data read from the diagnostic cylinder and the expected data has failed five times. The test aborts. All numbers are in hexadecimal.

7100 T TEST 1 — READ DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

T TEST 2 — READ DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER WITH HEAD MOTION TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

7300 T TEST 3 — READ/WRITE RANDOM PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

7400 T TEST 4 — READ/WRITE PATTERNS TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

7441 E READ/WRITE DATA PATTERN OUT OF RANGE!

H.10 MT979 - 979, 979A, AND MT1600 MAGNETIC TAPE MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for Models 979, 979A, and MT1600 Magnetic Tape Drives.

8000 I DNOS MT979 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the 979, 979A, and MT1600 Magnetic Tape Drives has started and has been assigned the run ID (> ?0).

8045 F DIAGNOSTIC TERMINATED DUE TO END OF TAPE WHILE WRITING!

The task detected an end-of-tape (EOT) while performing a write operation. This condition should not exist. The task is terminated.

8046 F DIAGNOSTIC TERMINATED DUE TO END OF TAPE WHILE READING!

The task detected an EOT while performing a read operation. This condition should not exist. The task is terminated.

8100 T TEST 1 — MT979 BASIC READ/WRITE TEST WITH REWIND BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

8200 T TEST 2 — MT979 BASIC READ/WRITE TEST WITH BACKSPACE BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

8300 T TEST 3 — MT979 FORWARD CREEP TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

8400 T TEST 4 — MT979 EVEN/ODD WRITE AND READ TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

8500 T TEST 5 — MT979 SPECIAL MOVEMENT AND END OF FILE TEST BEGINNING. Test 5 has started.

Messages

8543 E END OF FILE NOT DETECTED ON BACK SPACE OPERATION!

An end-of-file (EOF) condition should have been recognized after the backspace operation completed.

8544 E END OF FILE NOT DETECTED ON FORWARD SPACE OPERATION!

An EOF condition should have been recognized after the forward space operation completed.

8545 E END OF FILE NOT DETECTED ON A READ ASCII OPERATION!

An EOF condition should have been recognized after the Read ASCII operation completed.

8546 E A RECORD LENGTH OF > ?0 RETURNED FROM A READ ASCII, EXPECTED RECORD LENGTH > ?1.

The expected and actual record lengths of a record read by this task did not agree. Both lengths are displayed in hexadecimal.

8600 T TEST 6 — MT979 WRITE FULL REEL OF TAPE, CHECK EOT TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

8601 I TEST 6 NORMAL TERMINATION — END OF TAPE WAS DETECTED.

An EOT condition was recognized. Test 6 has ended normally.

8700 T TEST 7 — MT979 READ FULL REEL OF TAPE, CHECK EOT TEST BEGINNING.

Test 7 has started.

8701 I TEST 7 NORMAL TERMINATION — END OF TAPE WAS DETECTED.

An EOT condition was recognized. Test 7 has ended normally.

8745 E MT979 DATA COMPARE ERROR. WORD NUMBER = >?0 ACTUAL DATA WORD READ = >?1, DATA WRITTEN = >?2.

The data comparison has failed. The word number within the record, actual word read, and the data that was written are displayed in hexadecimal.

8746 E BUFFER COMPARE TERMINATED ON FIVE COMPARE ERRORS. WORD NUMBER = >?0, ACTUAL DATA WORD READ = >?1, DATA WRITTEN = >?2.

The comparison for this record has ended because five failures have occurred.

8800 T TEST 8 — MT979 WRITE RING AND RECORDING TEST BEGINNING

Test 8 has started.

8802 I TAPE UNIT IS ONLINE, WITH WRITE RING INSTALLED.

This is an informational message from Test 8.

8803 I TAPE UNIT IS ONLINE, NO WRITE RING INSTALLED.

This is an informational message from Test 8.

8804 I TAPE UNIT IS OFFLINE.

This is an informational message from Test 8.

8805 I PHASE-ENCODED RECORDING, 1600 BITS PER INCH (BPI).

This tape drive is using the phase-encoded (PE) recording method, and the recording density is 1600 bits per inch (bpi).

8806 I NON-RETURN TO ZERO INVERTED (NRZI) RECORDING, 800 BITS PER INCH (BPI).

This tape drive is using the non-return-to-zero inverted (NRZI) recording method, and the recording density is 800 bpi.

8840 E MT979 DATA COMPARE ERROR. BYTE NUMBER => ?0, ACTUAL DATA BYTE READ => ?1, DATA WRITTEN => ?3.

The data comparison has failed. The byte number, actual byte read, and the data that was written are displayed. All numbers are in hexadecimal.

8841 E BUFFER COMPARE TERMINATED ON FIVE COMPARE ERRORS. BYTE NUMBER = > ?0, ACTUAL DATA BYTE READ = > ?1, DATA WRITTEN = > ?3.

The comparison for this record has ended because five failures have occurred.

H.11 LP300/LP600 — 300/600 LINE PRINTER MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the Models 300 and 600 Line Printers.

9000 I DNOS LP600 DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the Model LP300/LP600 Line Printer has started and has been assigned run ID of (> ?0).

9100 T TEST 1 — FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

9200 T TEST 2 — CHARACTER SET TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

9300 T TEST 3 — RIPPLE PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

9400 T TEST 4 — BUFFER LENGTH TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

9500 T TEST 5 — HAMMER ALIGNMENT TEST BEGINNING.

Test 5 has started.

9600 T TEST 6 — EIGHT LINES PER INCH TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

9700 T TEST 7 --- CHARACTER BURST TEST BEGINNING.

Test 7 has started.

9800 T TEST 8 — SOLID BLACK BOX TEST BEGINNING.

Test 8 has started.

- 9900 T TEST 9 CARRIAGE RETURN AND UNDERLINE TEST BEGINNING. Test 9 has started.
- 9A00 T TEST 10 PLOT MODE TEST BEGINNING.

Test 10 has started.

9B00 T TEST 11 — ELONGATED CHARACTERS TEST BEGINNING. Test 11 has started.

9C00 T TEST 12 — DELETE CHARACTERS TEST BEGINNING. Test 12 has started.

9D00 T TEST 13 — ELECTRONIC VERTICAL FORMAT UNIT TEST BEGINNING. Test 13 has started.

9E00 T TEST 14 — GRAPHIC EXAMPLE PLOT TEST BEGINNING.

Test 14 has started.

9F00 T TEST 15 — TI LOGO PLOT TEST BEGINNING.

Test 15 has started.

H.12 ST940 - 940 EVT MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the Model 940 Electronic Video Terminal (EVT).

A000 I DNOS ST940 DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.0.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the 940 EVT has started and has been assigned the run ID (> ?0).

A100 T TEST 1 — MEMORY TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

A200 T TEST 2 — BEEPER TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

A300 T TEST 3 — INTENSITY TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

A400 T TEST 4 — SCROLLING TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

A441 E ST940 MEMORY ERROR! SCROLL TEST PATTERN CHANGED. EXPECTED DATA = > ?0, ACTUAL; DATA = > ?1, AT ROW = > 3, COLUMN = > ?3.

A500 T TEST 5 — CURSOR TEST BEGINNING.

Test 5 has started.

A600 T TEST 6 — KEYBOARD TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

- A641 E ST940 KEYBOARD CODE DOES NOT MATCH REQUIRED CODE. EXPECTED DATA BYTE = >?0, ACTUAL DATA BYTE = >?1.
- A700 T TEST 7 HOST INITIATED SELF TESTS BEGINNING

Test 7 has started.

A741 E SELF TEST ?0 FAILED.

H.13 LP840 — 840 RO PRINTER MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the diagnostic task for the Model 840 RO Printer.

B000 I DNOS LP840 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.0.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0.

The diagnostic task for the 840 RO line printer has started and has been assigned the run ID (> ?0).

B100 T TEST 1 — CHARACTER SET TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

B200 T TEST 2 — RIPPLE PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

B300 T TEST 3 — BUFFER LENGTH TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

B400 T TEST 4 — CARRIAGE RETURN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 4 has started.

B500 T TEST 5 — FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST BEGINNING.

Test 5 has started.

B600	т	TEST 6 — TAB TO LINE TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	st 6 has started.
B700	т	TEST 7 — SET/TEST VERTICAL TABS TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	st 7 has started.
B800	Т	TEST 8 — REMOTE ON/OFF TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	st 8 has started.
B900	т	TEST 9 — SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TABS TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	st 9 has started.
BA00	Т	TEST 10 — LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	st 10 has started.
BB00	т	TEST 11 — BELL TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	est 11 has started.
BC00	Т	TEST 12 — LEFT/RIGHT MARGINS TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	est 12 has started.
BD00	Т	TEST 13 — TOP/BOTTOM MARGINS TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	est 13 has started.
BE00	т	TEST 14 — ANSWERBACK MEMORY REMOTE TRIGGER TEST BEGINNING.
	Те	est 14 has started.

H-27

H.14 ST931 - 931 VDT MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the 931 VDT diagnostic task.

D000 I DNOS ST931 DEVICE DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.0.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = > ?0

The diagnostic task for the 931 VDT has started and has been assigned the run ID (> ?0).

- D002 I WARNING! PROBABLE CRT MONITOR OR SWEEP BOARD FAILURE.
- D003 I WARNING! PROBABLE KEYBOARD FAILURE.
- D004 I WARNING! PROBABLE TERMINAL CONTROL BOARD FAILURE.
- D005 I WARNING! PROBABLE P/S WITH FIBER OPTICS FAILURE.
- D006 I WARNING! PROBABLE P/S WITHOUT FIBER OPTICS FAILURE.
- D007 I WARNING! PROBABLE AUX COMM PORT FAILURE.
- D008 I WARNING! PROBABLE HOST/931 COMMUNICATIONS FAILURE.
- D100 T TEST 1 COMMUNICATIONS TEST BEGINNING.

Test 1 has started.

- D140 S ERROR IN TERMINAL ID, EXPECTED 931 RECEIVED ?0 .
- D141 S ERROR IN DATA LOOPBACK TEST, TRANSMITTED 79 CHARACTERS BUT ONLY RECEIVED ?0 CHARACTER(S).
- D142 S ERROR, EXCESSIVE PARITY ERRORS DETECTED BY THE 931.

D200 T TEST 2 — HOST INITIATED SELF TEST BEGINNING.

Test 2 has started.

- D201 S 931 RAM SELF TEST PASSED.
- D202 S 931 ROM ?0: VERSION ?1, REVISION ?2, TI P/N ?3: ?4 CRC.
- D240 E ERROR, 931 RAM SELF TEST FAILED
- D241 E ERROR, 931 ROM SELF TEST FAILED
- D300 I TEST 3 CURSOR TEST BEGINNING.

Test 3 has started.

E ?0 MODE ERROR CURSOR ?1 COMMAND FROM ROW ?2 COLUMN ?3 PLACED D342 CURSOR AT ROW ?4 COLUMN ?5. T TEST 4 — THROUGHPUT TEST BEGINNING. D400 Test 4 has started. D440 E ERROR, LOSS OF 931 PACING. THROUGHPUT TEST ERROR - ?0 CHARACTERS WERE READ, OUT OF 1920 D441 E WRITTEN D500 Т SHOW GRAPHICS TEST BEGINNING. Test 5 has started. D600 T SHOW MASK TEST BEGINNING. Test 6 has started. D700 T VIDEO MONITOR TEST BEGINNING. Test 7 has started. D800 T AUXILIARY PORT TEST BEGINNING. Test 8 has started. E PORT PRINTER EITHER OFFLINE OR NOT READY. D840 E 931 DIAGNOSTIC IS NOT INITIALIZED TO TEST THE AUX PORT. D841

E ERROR, CURSOR FAILED TO RETURN TO INITIAL POSITION.

CURSOR ?0 COMMAND FROM ROW ?1 COLUMN ?2 PLACED CURSOR AT ROW ?3

D900 T KEYBOARD TEST BEGINNING.

Test 9 has started.

- D940 E RECEIVED ILLEGAL KEY CODE: CODE = ?0.
- D941 E NONSUPPORTED MODE CHANGE OCCURRED.

D340

D341

S

COLUMN ?4.
H.15 MEMORY EXERCISER MESSAGES

The following messages are produced by the memory exerciser diagnostic task.

F000	I DNOS MEMXX DIAGNOSTIC VERSION 1.2.0 STARTING EXECUTION: RUN ID = $>$?0.
	The diagnostic task for the memory has started and has been assigned the run ID (> $?0$).
F041	E TASK = $>$?0, WORD = $>$?1, DATA READ = $>$?2, EXPECTED DATA = $>$?3.
	The data read does not match the expected data. The task and word hexadecimal num- bers are given along with the actual data read and the expected data.
F042	E BUFFER COMPARE TERMINATED ON FIVE COMPARE ERRORS.
	The test has terminated because the data has been compared five times and failed.
F043	E READ/WRITE PATTERN NUMBER OUT OF RANGE!
F044	E OPERATION MODE NOT ALLOWED. MEMXX TASK EXECUTED IN TEST MODE.
F100	T TEST 1 — READ/WRITE > 0101 PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 1 has started.
F200	T TEST 2 — READ/WRITE > AAAA PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 2 has started.
F300	T TEST 3 — READ/WRITE > 5555 PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 3 has started.
F400	T TEST 4 — READ/WRITE > FFFF PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 4 has started.
F500	T TEST 5 — READ/WRITE > 0000 PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.
	Test 5 has started.
F600	T TEST 6 — READ/WRITE I — INDEX PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 6 has started.

A

F700 T TEST 7 — READ/WRITE I-INVERSE PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 7 has started.

F800 T TEST 8 — READ/WRITE > DB67 PATTERN TEST BEGINNING.

Test 8 has started.

Appendix I

Reference Tables

I.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Appendix I supplies you with quick-reference tables to use in responding to the prompts displayed by the Online Diagnostics Driver when you are starting a diagnostic session. Most of these tables and charts are available to you online if you have installed the Help feature. You can display them as you select your options in the long message level or when you enter the HELP command verb. If you have not installed the help feature, study these tables and charts so you can find them quickly when you need them. The reference tables and charts included are:

- Test tables for device diagnostic tasks (includes summary of each test)
- I/O SVC subopcode charts
- Charts for disk head and cylinder ranges

I.2 TEST TABLES

The test tables contain very brief summaries of the information in Section 5. They are the same test tables that you can display by operating in the long message level or by entering the word HELP (or H) in response to a prompt requesting a test number.

I.2.1 Line Printer Tests

The diagnostic tasks for line printers supports the Models 810, 840 RO, 850 (CPTEST), 2230/2260, and 300/600 Line Printers. Many of the tests are similar, but, since there are some differences in the tests for each model, separate tables are shown.

I.2.1.1 LP810 Test Summary Table. The line printer diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-1 on the 810 line printer.

Table I-1. Summary of LP810 Tests

THE FO	DLLOWII	NG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE LP810 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1 –	FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST: A MESSAGE IS WRITTEN AT THE TOP, CEN- TER, AND BOTTOM OF A FORM.
TEST	2 -	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE 810 CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK FORMAT REPRESENTING DOT MATRIX STRUCTURE.
TEST	3 —	RIPPLE PATTERN TEST: 94 LINES OF A RIPPLE PATTERN OF ALL NON- GRAPHIC CHARACTERS IS PRINTED.
TEST	4 —	BUFFER LENGTH TEST: (1) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARAC- TERS LONG. (2) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OR 132 TO 1 CHARACTER LONG.
TEST	5 —	CARRIAGE RETURN TEST: PRINTS A MESSAGE IN TWO PASSES.
TEST	6 —	TAB TO LINE TEST: MESSAGES ARE PRINTED AT PRESET LINES.
TEST	7 –	SET/TEST VERTICAL TABS TEST: CAUSES PRINTER TO TAB TO PRESET VERTI- CAL TABS.
TEST	8 –	TAB TO ADDRESS TEST: WRITES LINES OF NUMBERS THAT IDENTIFY HORI- ZONTAL TAB SETTINGS.
TEST	9 —	SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TABS TEST: SETS HORIZONTAL TAB STOP AND PRINTS AN UP ARROW AT EACH TAB STOP.
TEST	10 –	LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH TEST: PRINTS SEVERAL MESSAGES AT VARIOUS LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH.
TEST	11 –	BELL TEST: SOUNDS THE PRINTER ALARM FOR THREE SECONDS.

I.2.1.2 LP840 Test Summary Tables. The line printer diagnostic task performs the tests listed in Table I-2 when the 840 RO line printer being tested does not have the device/forms control (DFC) option.

 Table I-2.
 Summary of LP840 Tests 1 Through 4

THE FOLLOWING TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE LP840 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:

TEST	1 –	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK
		FORMAT.
TEST	2 –	RIPPLE PATTERN TEST: 94 LINES OF A RIPPLE PATTERN OF ALL
		NONGRAPHIC CHARACTERS ARE PRINTED.
TEST	3 —	BUFFER LENGTH TEST:
		(1) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARACTERS LONG.
		(2) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OR 132 TO 1 CHARACTER LONG.
TEST	4 –	CARRIAGE RETURN TEST: PRINTS A MESSAGE IN TWO PASSES.

When the 840 RO line printer has the DFC option, the diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-3.

THE FO		IG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE LP840 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1 —	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK FORMAT.
TEST	2 –	RIPPLE PATTERN TEST: 94 LINES OF A RIPPLE PATTERN OF ALL NONGRAPHIC CHARACTERS ARE PRINTED.
TEST	3 —	BUFFER LENGTH TEST: (1) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARACTERS LONG. (2) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OR 132 TO 1 CHARACTER LONG.
TEST	4 —	CARRIAGE RETURN TEST: PRINTS A MESSAGE IN TWO PASSES.
TEST	5 —	FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST: A MESSAGE IS WRITTEN AT THE TOP, CEN- TER AND BOTTOM OF A FORM.
TEST	6 —	TAB TO LINE TEST: MESSAGES ARE PRINTED AT PRESET TABS.
TEST	7 –	SET/TEST VERTICAL TABS: CAUSES PRINTER TO TEST PRESET TABS.
TEST	8 —	REMOTE ON/OFF TEST: TESTS THE PRINTER'S ON AND OFF COMMANDS.
TEST	9 –	SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TABS: SETS HORIZONTAL TAB STOPS AND PRINTS AN UP ARROW AT EACH TAB STOP.
TEST	10 –	LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH TEST: PRINTS SEVERAL MESSAGES AT VARIOUS LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH.
TEST	11 –	BELL TEST: SOUNDS THE PRINTER ALARM FOR THREE SECONDS.
TEST	12 –	LEFT/RIGHT MARGINS TEST: MODIFIES THE LEFT AND RIGHT MARGINS.
TEST	13 —	TOP/BOTTOM MARGINS TEST; MODIFIES THE TOP AND BOTTOM MARGINS.
TEST	14 –	ABM TEST: TESTS OUT THE ANSWERBACK MEMORY FEATURE.

Table I-3. Summary of LP840 Tests

I.2.1.3 LP850 (CPTEST) Test Summary Tables. The line printer diagnostic task performs the tests listed in Table I-4.

THE FC	LLOWI	NG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE CPTEST DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK FORMAT.
TEST	2 –	RIPPLE PATTERN TEST: 94 LINES OF A RIPPLE PATTERN OF ALL NONGRAPHIC CHARACTERS ARE PRINTED.
TEST	3 –	BUFFER TEST: (1) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARACTERS LONG. (2) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OR 132 TO 1 CHARACTER LONG.
TEST	4 –	JITTER TEST: OUTPUTS A CHARACTER PATTERN FROM LEFT TO RIGHT WORKING TO THE CENTER OF A LINE.
TEST	5 —	JITTER INTERVAL TEST: PERFORMS THE JITTER TEST IN INTERVALS.
TEST	6 —	CENTER OUT TEST: OUTPUTS A PATTERN WORKING FROM THE CENTER OF A
		LINE OUTWARDS TO THE LEFT AND RIGHT MARGINS.
TEST	7 –	ALTERNATING LEFT TO RIGHT TEST: OUTPUTS A CHARACTER PATTERN
		FROM LEFT MARGIN TO CENTER, AND CENTER TO RIGHT MARGIN.
TEST	8 –	ALTERNATING RIGHT TO LEFT TEST: OUTPUTS A CHARACTER PATTERN
		FROM RIGHT MARGIN TO CENTER, AND CENTER TO LEFT MARGIN.
TEST	9 -	INTERPLACED JITTER TEST: PERFORMS A JITTER TEST IN TWO PASSES.
TEST	10 -	OVERSTRIKE TEST: PRINTS AND THEN OVERPRINTS A LINE.
TEST	11 -	ALTERNATING OVERSTRIKE TEST: PERFORMS TEST 7 AND PRINTS OVER
		THE LINE BY PERFORMING TEST 8.
TEST	12 –	RANDOM PRINT TEST: OUTPUTS A LINE OF CHARACTERS IN A RANDOM
		SEQUENCE.
TEST	13 –	LEFT TO RIGHT INVERTED STRIKE TEST: PRINTS A LINE OF CHARACTERS IN
		A STAGGERED FASHION FROM LEFT TO RIGHT.
TEST	14 –	RIGHT TO LEFT INVERTED STRIKE TEST: PRINTS A LINE OF CHARACTERS IN
	••	A STAGGERED FASHION FROM RIGHT TO LEFT.
TEST	15 –	BLACK LINE TEST: PRINTS A SOLID BLACK LINE IN A SERIES OF OVER-
. 20.		STRIKES.

Table I-4. Summary of LP850 (CPTEST) Tests

I.2.1.4 LP2230/LP2260 Test Summary Table. The task executes the tests in Table I-5 for the 2230/2260 line printer.

		Table I-5. Summary of LP2230/LP2260 Tests
THE FO	LLOWI	NG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE LP2230/LP2260 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1 –	FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST: EXECUTES 2 FORM FEEDS AND WRITES A MESSAGE AT THE TOP OF EACH FORM.
TEST	2 –	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE LP2230/LP2260 CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK FORMAT.
TEST	3 —	RIPPLE PATTERN TEST: 94 LINES OF A RIPPLE PATTERN IS PRINTED.
TEST	4 –	BUFFER LENGTH TEST: (1) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARACTERS LONG. (2) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OR 132 TO 1 CHARACTER LONG.
TEST	5 -	HAMMER ALIGNMENT TEST: ISOLATES DEFECTIVE OR MISALIGNED HAMMERS BY PRINTING OUT LINES OF H'S, E'S, AND HYPHENS.
TEST	6 —	CHARACTER BURST TEST: PRINTS A FULL LINE OF EACH AVAILABLE CHAR- ACTER ON THE LP2230/LP2260.

I.2.1.5 LP300/LP600 Test Summary Table. The task executes the tests in Table I-6 for the 300/600 line printer.

TADIE PO. SUITHIATVULESUVILEOUVIESU	Table	1-6.	Summar	v of	LP300/L	.P600	Tests
-------------------------------------	-------	------	--------	------	---------	-------	-------

THE FOI	LLOV	VIN	IG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE LP300/LP600 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1		FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST: EXECUTES 2 FORM FEEDS AND WRITES A
TEST	2	_	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK FOR-
TEST	3	_	RIPPLE PATTERN TEST: 94 LINES OF A RIPPLE PATTERN IS PRINTED.
TEST	4	_	BUFFER LENGTH TEST:
0 .	•		 OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARACTER LONG. OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OB 132 TO 1 CHARACTERS LONG.
TEST	5	-	HAMMER ALIGNMENT TEST: ISOLATES DEFECTIVE OR MISALIGNED HAMMERS BY PRINTING OUT LINES OF H'S, E'S, AND HYPHENS.
TEST	6	_	EIGHT LINES PER INCH TEST: TESTS CONTROL OF 8 LPI OPTION.
TEST	7	-	CHARACTER BURST TEST: PRINTS A FULL LINE OF EACH AVAILABLE CHAR- ACTER ON THE PRINTRONIX LINE PRINTER.
TEST	8	_	SOLID BLACK BOX TEST: PRINTS 3 INCH BOX IN PLOT MODE.
TEST	9	_	CARRIAGE RETURN AND UNDERLINE TEST: UNDERLINES MESSAGES.
TEST	10	_	PLOT MODE TEST: PRINTS SEVERAL DESIGNS IN PLOT MODE.
TEST	11		ELONGATED CHARACTERS TEST: TESTS ELONGATED CHARACTER OPTION.
TEST	12	_	DELETE CHARACTERS TEST: TESTS DELETE CHARACTER OPTION.
TEST	13	-	EVFU TEST: THE ELECTRONIC VERTICAL FORMAT UNIT IS TESTED.
TEST	14	_	GRAPHIC EXAMPLE PLOT TEST: PRINTS OUT A GRAPHIC DESIGN.
TEST	15		TI LOGO PLOT TEST: PRINTS THE TI LOGO IN PLOT MODE.
32-9701			

227053

I.2.2 Keyboard Devices Tests

The diagnostic task for keyboard devices supports the Model 820 KSR Terminal, the Model 911 Video Display Terminal, and the Model 940 Electronic Video Terminal. A separate test table is shown for each one.

I.2.2.1 ST820 Test Summary Table. The task executes the tests summarized in Table I-7 for the 820 KSR terminal. Except for Test 12, the interactive terminal test, the ST820 KSR tests are the same as the 810 line printer tests.

Table I-7. Summary of ST820 Tests

THE FC	DLLOWI	NG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE ST820 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1 –	FORM LENGTH AND FEED TEST: A MESSAGE IS WRITTEN AT THE TOP, CEN-
TEOT	•	TER AND BUTTOM OF A FORM.
1651	2 -	CHARACTER SET TEST: THE CHARACTER SET IS PRINTED IN BLOCK
TEGT	3 _	RIDDIE DATTERNI TESTI ON LINES OF A RIDDIE DATTERNI OF ALL
ILUI	0 -	NONGRAPHIC CHARACTERS ARE PRINTED
TEST	4 –	BUFFER LENGTH TEST:
		(1) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 1 TO 80 OR 132 CHARACTERS LONG.
		(2) OUTPUT BUFFERS FROM 80 OR 132 TO 1 CHARACTER LONG.
TEST	5 —	CARRIAGE RETURN TEST: PRINTS A MESSAGE IN TWO PASSES.
TEST	6 —	TAB TO LINE TEST: MESSAGES ARE PRINTED AT PRESET TABS.
TEST	7 -	SET/TEST VERTICAL TABS: CAUSES PRINTER TO TEST PRESET TABS.
TEST	8 —	TAB TO ADDRESS TEST: WRITES LINES OF NUMBERS THAT IDENTIFY THE
	_	HORIZONTAL TAB SETTINGS.
TEST	9 -	SET/TEST HORIZONTAL TABS TEST: SETS HORIZONTAL TAB STOPS AND
	40	PRINTS AN UP ARROW AT EACH TAB STOP.
TEST	10 -	LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH TEST: PRINTS SEVERAL MESSAGES AT
тгет	44	VARIOUS LINES AND CHARACTERS PER INCH. RELL TEST: SOUNDS THE DRINTED ALADM FOR THREE SECONDS
TEOT	12 -	
1201	12 -	TARGET KEYROARD TO EXPECTED VALUES

2270532-9701

I.2.2.2 ST911 Test Summary Table. The keyboard device diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-8 on the 911 VDT.

		Table I-8. Summary of ST911 Tests
THE FO	LLOWI	NG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE ST911 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST TEST	1 – 2 –	ONES AND ZEROS TEST: EXERCISES THE CONTROLLER MEMORY. SCROLL TEST: THE LETTERS A THRU Z APPEAR ON THE SCREEN MOVING FROM THE BOTTOM TO THE TOP.
TEST	3 –	BEEPER TEST: SOUNDS THE AUDIBLE ALARM FOR A SPECIFIED NUMBER OF SECONDS.
TEST	4 —	INTENSITY TEST: WRITES A RIPPLE PATTERN IN LOW INTENSITY, THEN WRITES THE PATTERN IN HIGH INTENSITY OVER IT.
TEST	5 –	CHARACTER GENERATOR TEST: GENERATES THE 911 CONTROLLER BOARD CHARACTER SET.
TEST	6 -	NONBLINKING/BLINKING CURSOR TEST (INTERACTIVE): EXERCISES THE ABILITY TO DISPLAY A NONBLINKING OB BLINKING CURSOB
TEST	7 –	KEYBOARD TEST (INTERACTIVE): COMPARES CHARACTERS READ FROM THE TARGET KEYBOARD TO EXPECTED VALUES.

I.2.2.3 ST931 Test Summary Table. The keyboard device diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-9 on the 931 VDT.

		Table I-9. Summary of ST931 Tests
THE FO	LLOWI	NG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE ST931 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1 –	COMMUNICATIONS: CHECKS THE COMMUNICATIONS INTERFACE BETWEEN THE COMPUTER AND THE TARGET TERMINAL.
TEST	2 –	RAM/ROM HOST INITIATED SELF TESTS: PERFORMS A CRC CHECK ON RAM AND ROM.
TEST	3	CURSOR: CHECKS THE TERMINAL'S ABILITY TO PERFORM CURSOR FUNCTIONS.
TEST	4 —	THROUGHPUT: VERIFIES THAT THE TARGET TERMINAL IS ABLE TO ACCEPT A FULL SCREEN OF CHARACTERS WITHOUT PACING.
TEST	5 —	SHOW GRAPHICS: DISPLAYS ALL THE AVAILABLE BLOCK GRAPHICS CHARACTERS (IN THE SHAPE OF A SQUARE).
TEST	6 -	SHOW MASK: FILLS THE SCREEN WITH INDIVIDUAL CHARACTERS (O).
TEST	7 -	VIDEO MONITOR: CHECKS TO SEE IF THE 931 VDT HARDWARE CAN EXTEND
		A GRAPHICS CHARACTER ACROSS THE HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CHAR-
		ACTER CELL BOUNDARIES. VERIFIES THE CHARACTER GENERATOR ROMS.
		CHECKS CURSOR FUNCTIONS. CHECKS THAT THE HARDWARE CAN DIS-
		PLAY ALL CHARACTER ATTRIBUTES.
TEST	8 —	AUXILIARY PORT (INTERACTIVE): VERIFIES THAT THE AUXILIARY PORT CAN
		HANDLE DATA TRANSMISSION.
TEST	9 -	KEYBOARD (INTERACTIVE): VERIFIES THAT THE 931 KEYBOARD GENERATES
		THE CORRECT RAW ASCII KEYCODES PROCESSED INTERNALLY BY THE 931.

	Table	I-8.	Summar	v of	ST911	Test
--	-------	------	--------	------	-------	------

:

,

÷

I.2.2.4 ST940 Test Summary Table. The keyboard device diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-10 on the 940 EVT.

		Table I-10. Summary of ST940 Tests
 THE FOL	LOWIN	IG TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE ST940 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST TEST	1 – 2 –	MEMORY TEST: EXERCISES THE CONTROLLER MEMORY. BEEPER TEST: SOUNDS THE AUDIBLE ALARM FOR A SPECIFIED NUMBER OF SECONDS.
TEST	3 -	INTENSITY TEST: WRITES A RIPPLE PATTERN IN LOW INTENSITY, THEN WRITES THE PATTERN IN HIGH INTENSITY OVER IT.
TEST	4 —	SCROLLING TEST: A PATTERN IS PLACED ON THE SCREEN AND IS SCROLLED UP AND DOWN IN REGULAR AND SMOOTH SCROLLING. THE TEST IS THEN DONE IN 132-CHARACTER MODE.
TEST	5 —	CURSOR TEST: EACH ROW AND COLUMN POSITION IS TESTED IN 80- AND 132-CHARACTER MODE. THE CURSOR'S ADDRESSING ABILITY IS ALSO TESTED BY PLACING THE CURSOR IN ALL 4 CORNERS
TEST	6 –	KEYBOARD TEST (INTERACTIVE): COMPARES CHARACTERS READ FROM THE TARGET KEYBOARD TO EXPECTED VALUES.

I.2.3 Disk Test Summary Tables The disk diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-11 and Table I-12.

	Table I-11. Summary of Disk Tests
THE FO	LLOWING TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE NONEXTENDED DISK DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
NOTE:	AN INITIALIZED AND INSTALLED DISK VOLUME MUST BE USED TO TO EXECUTE THE FOLLOWING TESTS.
TEST TEST TEST TEST	 READ DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER TEST: READ/COMPARE OF S\$DIAG FILE. READ DIAGNOSTIC CYLINDER WITH HEAD MOTION: S\$DIAG AND VCATALOG. READ/WRITE RANDOM PATTERN TEST: WRITE/READ OF FILE S\$ODDWRT. READ/WRITE PATTERNS TEST: WRITE/READ SET PATTERNS OF S\$ODDWRT.

2270532-9701

THE FO	LOWING TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE EXTENDED READ DISK DIAGNOSTIC TASK:	
NOTE:	AN INITIALIZED AND INSTALLED DISK VOLUME MUST BE USED TO TO EXECUTE THE FOLLOWING TESTS.	
TEST TEST	 READ SPECIFIED TRACKS TEST: FULL TRACK READ WITH CRC CHECK. CONSECUTIVE SECTOR READ: INCREMENTAL READ OF ALL SECTORS OF THE INNER AND OUTER TRACKS. 	
TEST TEST TEST	 JITTER SEEK: SEEKS FROM CENTER TRACK OUT TO BOTH LIMITS. RANDOM SEEK TEST: SEEKS TO RANDOM GENERATED TRACK ADDRESSES. CRESCENDO SEEK: COMPREHENSIVE TRACK TO TRACK SEEK. 	
THE FO	LOWING WRITE TESTS ARE PERFORMED BY THE EXTENDED DISK TASK:	
NOTE:	JSE SCRATCH MEDIA AND THE DISK IN DIAGNOSTIC STATE TO EXECUTE THE FOL- LOWING TESTS.	
TEST TEST TEST TEST	 ID ERROR STATUS CHECK: INSURE ID ERROR BIT OPERATION. WRITE FORMAT/VERIFY TRACKS: FORMATS AND VERIFIES TRACKS. WRITE/READ/COMPARE TRACKS: WRITES DATA PATTERN TO SELECTED TRACKS, READS AND COMPARES DATA BIT TO BIT. COMPREHENSIVE WRITE/SEEK/READ: WRITES AND READS ALL TRACKS SEQUENTIALLY AND PERFORMS ALL SEEK LENGTHS. 	

į

I.2.4 Magnetic Tape Test Summary Table

The magnetic tape diagnostic task executes the tests summarized in Table I-13.

		Table I-13. Summary of MT979 Tests
THE FC		NG ARE TESTS PERFORMED BY THE MT979 DIAGNOSTIC TASK:
TEST	1 –	BASIC READ/WRITE TEST WITH REWIND: (1) REWINDS TAPE. (2) WRITES A RECORD 256 CHARACTERS LONG. (3) REWINDS TAPE. SHOULD BE POSI- TIONED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE RECORD WRITTEN IN STEP 2. (4) READS RECORD (5) RECORDS ERROR IE THERE IS DISCREPANCY
TEST	2 –	BASIC READ/WRITE TEST WITH BACKSPACE: (1) WRITES A RECORD. (2) BACK- SPACES TO BEGINNING OF RECORD. (3) READS THE RECORD. (4) RECORDS ERROR IF THERE IS DISCREPANCY.
TEST	3 –	FORWARD CREEP TEST: THE PATTERN IS WRITE, WRITE, BACK-SPACE, READ. ALTERNATING RECORDS ARE READ AND COMPARED.
TEST	4 –	EVEN/ODD WRITE AND READ TEST: RECORDS OF DIFFERENT LENGTHS ARE WRITTEN, AND THEN READ AND COMPARED FOR ERRORS.
TEST	5 –	SPECIAL MOVEMENT AND END OF FILE: OPERATIONS CHECKED ARE FORWARD SPACING, BACKSPACING, AND CHECK FOR EOF CONDITION.
TEST	6 —	WRITE FULL REEL OF TAPE, CHECK EOT: WRITES A FULL REEL OF RECORDS AND CHECKS FOR AN END OF TAPE (EOT) CONDITION.
TEST	7 –	READ FULL REEL OF TAPE, CHECK EOT: READS THE RECORDS ON TAPE FROM TEST 6 AND COMPARES RECORDS FOR EBBORS.
TEST	8 –	WRITE RING AND RECORDING TYPE CHECK: CHECKS THE WRITE RING STATUS BIT, THE DEVICE STATUS, AND RECORDING TYPE STATUS BITS.

I.3 SUBOPCODE CHARTS FOR OPERATION EXECUTION MODE

When a device diagnostic task executes in the operation execution mode, it causes the device to respond to appropriate I/O SVC subopcodes. When you choose to execute in the operation execution mode, you must also choose the subopcode. You can find the valid subopcodes for each device class either online by entering the Show SVC Operation Codes (SO) command verb or in the charts shown in this appendix. You can use the SO command verb only if you have installed the help feature.

I.3.1 Device Class LP Subopcode Chart

The validity column of Table I-14 shows whether line printers respond, ignore, or return error codes to each subopcode.

Operation	Code	Validity	
OPEN	00	R ·	
CLOSE	01	R	
CLOSE/EOF	02	R	
OPEN/REWIND	03	R	
CLOSE/UNLOAD	04	R	
READ STATUS	05	I	
FORWARD SPACE	06	1	
BACK SPACE	07	1	
UNUSED	08	E	
READ ASCII	09	E	
READ DIRECT	0A	E	
WRITE ASCII	0B	R	
WRITE DIRECT	0C	Е	
WRITE EOF	0D	R	
REWIND	0E	R	
UNLOAD	0F	1	
FOR VALIDITY = R, d I, de E, d	levice respo evice ignores levice return	nds to subopcode s subopcode s error code	

 Table I-14.
 Subopcode Chart for Line Printers

I.3.2 Device Class ST Subopcode Chart

The validity column of Table I-15 shows the subopcodes to which keyboard devices respond.

Operation	Code	Validity	
OPEN	00	R	
CLOSE	01	R	
CLOSE/EOF	02	R	
OPEN/REWIND	03	R	
CLOSE/UNLOAD	04	R	
READ STATUS	05	R	
FORWARD SPAC	E 06	l,	
BACK SPACE	07	l l	
UNUSED	08	Е	
READ ASCII	09	R	
READ DIRECT	0A	R	
WRITE ASCII	0B	R	
WRITE DIRECT	0C	R	
WRITE EOF	0D	1	
REWIND	0E	R	
UNLOAD	0F	I	
FOR VALIDITY =	R, device respo I, device ignores E, device return	nds to subopcoo s subopcode s error code ,	de

Table I-15. Subopcode Chart for Keyboard Devices

I.3.3 Device Class MT Subopcode Chart

The validity column of Table I-16 shows the subopcodes to which magnetic tapes respond.

 Operation	Code	Validity	
OPEN	00	R	
CLOSE	00	B	
	02	R	
	02	R	
	03	R	
READ STATUS	04	R	
FORWARD SPACE	06	B	
BACK SPACE	07	R	
UNUSED	08	F	
BEAD ASCIL	09	B	
BEAD DIBECT	0Å	B	
WRITEASCII	08	B	
WRITE DIBECT	00	B	
WRITE FOF	00	B	
BEWIND	0E	B	
UNLOAD	0E 0F	R	
FOR VALIDITY = R, d I, de E, d	evice respor evice ignores evice returns	nds to subopcode subopcode s error code	

Table I-16. Subopcode Chart for Magnetic Tapes

I.4 CHARTS FOR DISK HEADS AND CYLINDERS

.

When you choose to execute extended disk tests 1, 5, 11, or 12, you are asked to indicate the tracks to which you want to read or write by specifying starting and ending heads and cylinders. If you have installed the help feature, you can display the charts that show head and cylinder ranges for each disk model supported by Online Diagnostics.

I.4.1 Disk Head Range Chart

Table I-17 shows the chart displaying head ranges.

Disk	Туре	ŀ	lead Range
FD1	000		0 – 1
DS3	1		0 – 1
DS1	0		0 – 1
DS2	5		0 - 4
DS5	0		0 - 4
DS8	80		0 - 4
DS2	00		0 - 18
DS3	00		0 – 18
CD1	400 (32mb REI	MOVABLE)	0
CD1	400 (32mb FIX	ED)	0
CD1	400 (64mb FIX	(ED)	0 - 2
CD1	400 (96mb FIX	ED)	0 - 4
WD	500		0 - 3
WD	800 (2 PLATTE	ERS)	0 – 2
WD	800 (4 PLATTE	ERS)	0 - 6

Table I-17. Disk Head Range Chart

I.4.2 Disk Cylinder Range Chart

Table I-18 is the chart that displays the cylinder ranges.

 Disk Type		Cylinder Range	
FD1000		0 – 76	
DS31		0 – 202	
DS10		0 - 407	
DS25		0 - 407	
DS50		0 – 814	
DS80		0 - 802	
DS200		0 – 814	
DS300		0 - 802	
CD1400	(32mb REMOVABLE)	0 – 820	
CD1400	(32mb FIXED)	0 – 820	
CD1400	(64mb FIXED)	0 – 820	
CD1400	(96mb FIXED)	0 - 820	
WD500	, ,	0 - 149	
WD800	(2 PLATTERS)	0 - 650	
WD800	(4 PLATTERS)	0 - 650	

Table I-18. Disk Cylinder Range Chart

2270532-9701

¢

Glossary

This glossary provides short explanations of many of the terms used in this manual. The terms are arranged alphabetically except for symbols, which are located at the end. For a more complete glossary of DNOS data processing terms see the DNOS Concepts and Facilities Manual.

- ASCII American National Standard Code for Information Interchange. A method for data representation.
- Batch Mode Under DNOS, SCI commands can be executed from any terminal, sequential file, or sequential device. When the input device is other than a terminal, that is, it is a sequential file or device, SCI is said to be running in batch mode. In this mode, all parameters must be supplied in KEYWORD = value format.
- Buffer Storage used to compensate for differences in the rate of data flow, time of occurrence of events, packing of data, or transmitting data from one location to another.
- Cache Memory A portion of memory that operates much faster than primary memory and in which the controller stores frequently-used data from primary memory.
- Change Command Verbs The subset of command verbs that alter the execution options of the diagnostic tasks after they have started. They can be used at any time during the diagnostic session.
- Command A directive to perform an action. The System Command Interpreter (SCI) is provided to interpret commands and initiate utilities as needed to perform the desired functions.
- Command Verbs Instructions entered at the control terminal that request actions of the Online Diagnostics Driver. The command verbs have two-character mnemonics, or abbreviations, that are entered at the control terminal. Command verb mnemonics may be the same as SCI mnemonics, but are distinguished from SCI commands because they control only the Online Diagnostics Driver.
- Concatenated File A set of two or more physical files (sequential or relative record) considered as a logically contiguous set of data. A concatenated file is accessible by the logical name used when defining the concatenated file.
- Control Terminal The terminal at which you activate the Online Diagnostics Driver (ODD). When Online Diagnostics executes in foreground, the control terminal cannot access SCI until the Quit Online Diagnostics (QD) verb ends the diagnostic session. When executed in background, the control terminal can access SCI during the diagnostic session.

CRC — See Cyclic Redundancy Check.

- Creep The positioning of a magnetic tape at slightly different positions each time a record is read or written. When each of these small variations is in the forward direction, the tape slowly moves ahead. This is called forward creep.
- Cyclic Redundancy Check (CRC) A method of error detection that matches CRC characters generated by transmitting and receiving data. CRC characters are compared in the 931 VDT and 940 EVT self-tests, in Test 1 of the extended read only disk test, and in Test 10 of the extended write/read disk tests.
- Cylinder The bands on the recording surfaces of a multiplatter disk that are accessed when the disk heads are in one position. Each recording band is called a track and is divided into sectors.
- Data Pattern The hexadecimal values that fill the input/output (I/O) buffers for the use of the diagnostic tasks. The data pattern is requested for each applicable device class by the Execute Diagnostic Task (XD) command verb.
- Device Class The first two characters of a device name identify the class of the device. For example, in the line printer device name LP01, LP is the device class, 01 is the device number.
- Device Service Routine (DSR) A routine within the operating system that communicates directly with an I/O device. It services interrupts and performs the desired I/O operations.
- Device State The state of a device: online, offline, or diagnostic. Device states are modified with the ON and DIAG commands. Devices other than disk units must be in the diagnostic state to be accessible to the driver for testing. Disks can be tested while in the online state.
- Diagnostic Cylinder The file named volumename.S\$DIAG, allocated by DNOS and DX10 when you initialize disks with the Initialize New Volume (INV) command. It is located on the innermost cylinder of the disk and is used by the disk diagnostic task.
- Diagnostic Error File A file, line printer, or class ST device on which the Online Diagnostic Driver stores error records extracted from the history file. The file is created when the SF command verb receives the ERRORS response to the ENTER FILE NAME? prompt.
- Diagnostic History File A file, line printer, or class ST device on which the Online Diagnostics Driver records the error and activity messages for the current diagnostic session.
- Diagnostic Message Queue A first-in first-out (FIFO) waiting list of service requests from operating diagnostic tasks to the Online Diagnostic Driver. When the driver is not waiting for responses from the terminal, it is monitoring the message queue.
- Diagnostic Session The period of time from the activation of the Online Diagnostics Driver until the termination of the driver.
- Diagnostic State A device state that allows diagnostic testing. See Device State.
- Diagnostic Task The task that performs tests or operations on a given device class. The group of tests for any one device class.

Glossary-2

- Diagnostics Computer programs specifically designed to exercise hardware devices with the intention of provoking specific types of errors to provide information about hardware malfunctions. This information is used to determine what types of repairs, if any, are required.
- Driver The Online Diagnostics Driver. The task that initiates and controls the device diagnostic tasks.
- DSR See Device Service Routine.
- ECC See Error Detection and Correcting Circuit.
- Error Detection and Correcting Circuit (ECC) A circuit in the controller of the DS80, DS300, and CD1400 disk systems that detects and corrects certain types of errors.
- Execute Command Verbs The subset of command verbs that start the tasks and select the execution options.
- Execution Mode A diagnostic task can be executed in two ways, or modes: by executing the tests provided with the driver, or repeatedly executing a specific supervisor call (SVC) operation code. The execution mode is selected by the responses to the prompts of the XD command verb, and changed with the Change Execution Mode (CE) command verb.
- Execution Options The execution options are: diagnostic task priority, execution mode, and termination mode.
- Format (1) The arrangement or layout of data on a data medium. (2) A disk operation performed when a disk is initialized with the INV command or when the I/O SVC subopcode > 08, Write Format operation, is performed. The operation defines the number of sectors per record on all tracks (INV) or on one track (subopcode > 08).
- Hard Break Termination of a task by DNOS caused by the following steps. Press the Attention key, release it, and hold down the Control key while you press the X key. (See Appendix A for a listing of key names applicable for your specific terminal.) For Online Diagnostics, the hard break terminates the diagnostic session, but you must perform a Kill Task (KT) command on any diagnostic tasks that may still be operating. To find these tasks, perform a Show Task Status (STS) command.
- Messages SCI, SVC, system log, and Online Diagnostics messages are used in initializing, executing, and interpreting Online Diagnostics and the System Log Analysis Task. All of the Online Diagnostics messages are listed and explained in Appendix H. System log messages are summarized and explained in the System Log Analysis Task reports and in Section 6 of this manual. For further explanation of SCI and SVC messages, see the DNOS Messages and Codes Reference Manual.
- Offline A device state in which the device is not under the control of, nor is accessible to, the operating system.
- Online A device state in which the device is under the control of, and is accessible to, the operating system.

- Online Diagnostics Diagnostics that execute under the control of, and are accessible to, the operating system. This eliminates the need to shut down the entire system for diagnostic testing. Even though the target devices (except disks) cannot be online while being tested, the tests are controlled from a terminal that is online, and so the diagnostic system is said to be online.
- Online Diagnostics Driver A task that executes under the control of the operating system, through which Online Diagnostics tasks are started, controlled, and terminated by command verbs. The driver handles requests for messages and services made by the diagnostic tasks. It records activity on the diagnostic history file. The driver is activated at the control terminal.
- Opcode An SVC operation code. See SVC Operation Codes.
- Refresh The process of repeatedly producing a display image on a cathode ray tube (CRT) screen so that the image remains visible.
- SCI See System Command Interpreter.
- Show Command Verbs The subset of command verbs that display information at the control terminal.
- SVC Operation Code Supervisor calls (SVCs) are the programmer interface to the operating system. An SVC operation code is a call to the operating system for a specific service. An Online Diagnostics session executing in operation mode uses subopcodes of the I/O SVC operations code 00.

System Command Interpreter (SCI) — The user interface to the operating system.

- System Diagnostics A group of programs that isolate errors in TI 990 computers and peripheral devices that are supported by the operating system; they can operate while normal system operation continues.
- System Log Analysis Task A nonprivileged task that sorts, compresses, and provides reports on the information in the system log file.
- System Log Files Files maintained by the operating system to record system activities, including device errors, memory errors, and task errors.

Target Device — The device that is to be tested by the diagnostic task.

- Task A program that executes under the control of the operating system. Tasks may cause other tasks to begin or end. For example, the Online Diagnostics Driver task causes the diagnostic tasks to begin and end.
- Terminate Command Verbs A subset of command verbs which end the diagnostic tasks and end the diagnostic session.
- Termination Mode The termination mode sets the conditions under which the testing done by the diagnostic task is to end. The diagnostic task will run until the specified one of four conditions is met. See paragraph 1.2.2.3 for a list of the conditions.

Glossary-4

2270532-9701

- Unit Diagnostics A group of programs that isolate hardware errors in TI 990 computers and peripheral devices when the operating system is shut down. Two types of tests are performed by the programs: stand-alone tests and tests running under DOCS, a small operating system that supports tests requiring user interaction.
- VDT Mode A screen-oriented mode of operation that has the ability to read and write fields at any position on the screen. Video terminals can be used in TTY mode as well as VDT mode, but utilize their full power and speed only in the latter.
- Volume A logical device, such as a disk pack or magnetic tape reel, that can be uniquely identified by name and that can store one or more logical files.
- Volume Name A character string that identifies a volume. Disk volume names can contain up to eight alphanumeric characters, but must begin with a letter.
- > A symbol used to indicate that the digits following the symbol are base 16 (hexadecimal) digits.

Ý

This index lists key words and concepts covered in this manual together with references to the area(s) in the manual in which they are covered. The key words and concepts appear on the left side of the index column. The references along the right side of the column specify the following manual areas:

- Sections References to sections of the manual appear as "Section N" with the symbol n representing a numeric quantity.
- Appendixes References to appendixes of the manual appear as "Appendix X" with the symbol X representing a capital letter.
- Paragraphs References to paragraphs of the manual appear as a string of alphanumeric characters punctuated with decimal points. The first character of the string refers to the section or appendix of the manual in which the paragraph is found. The following numbers are paragraph numbers.

Examples: 3.5.2 refers to Section 3, paragraph 5.2. A.2 refers to Appendix A, paragraph 2.

• Tables — References to tables in the manual are represented by the letter T followed immediately by a character that represents the section or appendix that contains the table. The second character is followed by a dash (-) and the ordered number of the table in that section or appendix.

Examples: T3-10 refers to Section 3, Table 10. TB-4 refers to Appendix B, Table 4.

• Figures — References to figures in the manual are represented by the letter F followed immediately by a character that represents the section or appendix that contains the figure. The second character is followed by a dash (-) and the ordered number of the figure in that section or appendix of the manual.

Examples: F2-7 refers to Section 2, Figure 7. FG-1 refers to Appendix G, Figure 1.

• See and see also references — Reference that direct you to other entries in the index.

You can find the page numbers that correspond to the see references in the table of contents, the list of illustrations, and the list of tables.

Activating Online Diagnostics Driver	. 1.2.1
Batch Input File2.4.1,	3.6.2
CE Command Verb CH Command Verb Change Device State to Diag (DIAG)	3.4.1 3.7.1
Command Verb Change Device State to On (ON)	3.7.4
Command Verb Change Execution Mode (CE)	3.7.3
Command Verb Change Message Level (CM)	3.4.1
Command Verb2.6.1, Change Task Priority (CP)	3.4.2
Command Verb Change Termination Mode (CT)	3.4.3
Check Message Queue (CQ) Command Verb	372
Clean Heads on FD1000 Floppy Drive (Ch Command Verb	4) 3.7.1
CM Command Verb2.6.1, Command, Purge Records in	3.4.2
.S\$\$DML FileSee Name or Acrony	6.5 /m of
Individual Command Verbs 1.2.1, 3.1, F3-1,	Verb T3-1
Prompt Responses	F3-2 F3-2
Configuration, System Device	3.5.1
CP Command Verb	3.4.3 5.3.3
Messages Append Tests Apper	H xit I xibr
CQ Command Verb	3.7.2
Decision Man Disk Test	3.2.3
Default Options, Diagnostic Session	3.2.2
Device Class	T5-1
Configuration, System Diagnostic:	3.5.1
Tasks	3.3.2 Idix I
Target Devices Supported by	2.2
Online Diagnostics	F3-4 2.2
DIAG Command Verb 2.2, Diagnostic Session	3.7.4
	3.2.2

Diagnostic:	
Error File	4.3.1
History File	4.3.1
Message Queue	3.7.2
Messages, Online Append	H xit
Picture, Disk	4.3.1
Session	2.5
Disk	ion 4
PrototypeSect	ion 4
Tasks	T1-1
Device	1.2.2
Killing	3.6.1
Terminating	3.6.3
Test Summaries, Device Appen	idix I
Tests	T1-1
Diagnostics Driver	nline
Diagnostics D	river
Diagnostics:	
Purpose of Online	. 1.1
Structure of:	
Online	F1-1
System	1.2
Unit	1.1
Diagnostic (DIAG) Command	2.2
Diagnostic (DIAG) Command Verb	2.2
Disk Cylinder Banges	ΓI-18
Disk:	
Diagnostic:	
Picture	4.3.1
Session	on 4
Extended Read Only Tests	4.3.1
Disk Head Ranges	FI-17
Disk:	
Messages	lix H
Test Decision Map	F4-1
Test Summaries	FI-12
Tests	.5.5
Display Long Message for Current	
Prompt (HELP) Command Verb	3.7.6
Driver:	
Activating Online Diagnostics	1.2.1
Messages, Online	
DiagnosticsAppend	lix H
Online Diagnostics	3.2.1
Terminating Online Diagnostics	3.6.3
- •	
Equivalence File	3.2.3
Error File, Diagnostic	4.3.1
Execute All Diagnostics (XA)	
_ Command Verb	3.3.1
Execute Diagnostic Task (XD)	
Command Verb	3.3.2
Execute Memory Task (XMEM)	
Command Verb	3.3.3
Execute Online Diagnostics Driver (XODD	1)
Command	2.5.1
Execute System Log Analysis Task	
Command verb6	5.4.2

2270532-9701

d

Execute System Log Analyzer (XSLA)
Execution Mode 1.2.2.2, 3.3.2.4, 3.4.1 Operation
Extended Read Only
Disk Tests
FD Verb
File: Batch Input
Error
Equivalence
volumename.S\$DML
volumename.S\$ODIAG.CMD 2.5.1 volumename.S\$ODIAG.EQFILE 3.2.3,
T3-2 volumename.S\$ODIAG.HISTORY 2.5.1,
3.5.2.1, 4.3.1 volumename.S\$SLAMSG6.1
volumename.S\$SLARPT 3.5.2.4, 6.1 Files:
System Log 1.2.3, 3.5.2.3 System Log Analysis
HELP Command Verb
History File, Diagnostic4.3.1
Initializing System Log Analysis Task6.4
I/O SVC Subopcodes
I/O SVC Subopcodes, Line Printer11-14
Magnetic Tapes
KD Command Verb
Keyboard Devices Diagnostic Task5.4 Kill Diagnostic Task (KD)
Killing Diagnostic Tasks
LDC Command Verb
Analysis Task
Analysis Task
Analysis Task
Line Printer Diagnostic Task
Command Verb

Log:
Files, System 1.2.3, 3.5.2.3 Records, System 6.1, 6.6, F6-2
Messages Appendix H
Test Summaries
LP300/LP600:
Messages
Tests
LP600 Tests Appendix D
Messages Appendix H
Test Summaries
LP840:
Messages
Tests Appendix F, 5.2.2, T5-3
LP850:
(CPTEST) Test Summaries
Magnetic Tapes I/O SVC
Subopcodes
Memory Map
Messages Appendix H
Test
Message Level
Message Queue, Diagnostic3.2.4, 3.7.2 Messages
CPTEST Appendix H
DiskAppendix H
LP300/LP600Appendix H
LP810Appendix H
Memory Appendix H
MT979Appendix H
Online Diagnostics Driver Appendix H
ST820 Appendix H
ST931 DiagnosticAppendix H
ST940Appendix H
Execution
Operation Execution
Test Execution
Test Execution
Test Execution
Test Execution

Model 979A Magnetic Tape
UNIT 16STS
Messages
Nonextended Disk Tests 5.5.1, T5-10
ON Command
Messages Appendix H Online Diagnostics: F3-4 Driver 1.2.1, 3.2.1 Activating 1.2.1, 3.2.1 Messages Appendix H Purpose of 1.1 Structure of F1-1 Terminating 3.6.3
Test Tables2.6.4Online (ON) Command2.2Online (ON) Command Verb2.2Operation Execution Mode3.3.2.4, 3.5.4
Performing the Extended Write Disk Tests
Command Verbs
Purpose of Online Diagnostics
QD Command Verb
Records, System Log 6.1, 6.6, F6-2 REJECT Command Verb
System Log Analysis Task: Level One
System Log Analysis

SD Command Verb	351
Socion:	0.0.1
Diagnostic	0 E
Diagnostic	. 2.5
	on 4
Prototype DiagnosticSecti	on 4
SF Command Verb	3.5.2
Show Diagnostic Files (SF)	
Command Verb	3.5.2
Show Memory Map (SMM)	
	3.5.3
Show Progress of Diagnostics (SP)	
Command Verb	3.5.5
Show Supported Devices (SSD)	51010
Command Verb 356	F3.4
Show SVC Operation Codes (SO)	104
Command Verb 265	3 5 1
Show System Davias List (SD)	5.5.4
Command Varb	0 5 4
	3.5.1
SLASee System Log Analysis	lask
SMM Command Verb	3.5.3
SO Command Verb	3.5.4
SP Command Verb	3.5.5
SSD Command Verb	F3-4
States, Device	3.7.4
Structure of:	
Online Diagnostics	F1-1
System Diagnostics	1.2
System Log Analysis Task	F1.2
ST820.	
Mossagos Annonc	ᇥᆈ
Tost Summarias	1212
	TC 0
	12-0
51911:	
Messages Append	IX H
Lest Summaries	. 11-8
Tests	T5-8
ST931 Diagnostic Messages	H.14
ST931:	
Test Summaries	. TI-9
Tests	T5-9
ST940:	
Messages	lix H
Test Summaries	ГI-10
Tests 5.4.3 T	5-10
Suboncodes	0.0
	354
Keyboard Device	Л. ГІ.15
Magnotic Tapos VO SVC	
SVC Subopoodos:	1-10
1/U	5.5.4
	1-10
System:	
Device Configuration	3.5.1
Diagnostics, Structure of	.1.2
System Log Analysis See System	Log
Analysis	Task
Files	.6.1
Reports	.6.2
System Log Analysis Task 1.2.3.3	3.3.4
Initializing	.6.4
Level One Report6.7.1,	F6-3
•	

Index-4

2270532-9701

₫

Level Three Report	6-5 6-4 .6.7 1-2
Files	.2.3 -6-2
Tables, Online Test	.6.4 .2.2
DiagnosticSee also Te (Device Model Num)	sts, per)
Tasks: Device Diagnostic	.5.2
Diagnostic	1-1
Terminating Diagnostic	.6.3
Terminal, Control1.2.1,	2.3
Diagnostic Tasks	.6.3
Termination Mode	.6.3 2.5,
3.4.4, Test:	3.6
Decision Map, DiskF	4-1
Memory	5.7
Device Diagnostic Append	lix l
DiskTi-11, T	I-12
LP300/LP600	ŢI-Ğ
LP810	TI-3
LP850 (CPTEST)	ГІ-4 I-13
ST820	ΓI-7
ST911	ГІ-8 ГІ-9
ST940Ti Test Tables, Online	-10
Tests:	
DiagnosticT	1-1
Extended Read Only	5.5
Extended Read Only Disk5.5.	1.2

LP2230/LP2260 LP300/LP600 LP600 LP810 LP840 LP850 Memory Model MT1600 Mag Model 979 Magneti Model 979A Magneti Model 97A Magneti Model	Appendix C, Appendix B, Appendix B, Appendix F, Cape Unit Cape Unit tic Tape Unit ended nextended and ad Only Disk	5.2.3, T5-4 5.2.4, T5-5 ppendix D 5.2.1, T5-2 5.2.2, T5-3
ST820. ST911 ST931 ST940		E, 5.3, T5-6 F5-5, T5-8 5.4.2, T5-9 .4.3, T5-10
Unit Diagnostics		1.1
Verb, ON Command Video Terminal Diagr volumename.S\$DIAG volumename.S\$DML volumename.S\$ERRG	oostic Task i File File DR File3.5	3.7.3 5.4 5.5.1.1 .1.2.3, 6.1 5.2.2, 4.3.1
File	5.5.1.1, 5.5.2 G.CMD File G EQFILE	2.3, 5.5.2.4 2.5.1
File		3.2.3, T3-2
volumename.S\$ODIA Filevolumename.S\$SLAN volumename.S\$SLAF	2.5.1, 3.5.2.1 ASG File 3 PT File 3	, 4.3.1, 5.5 6.1 3.5.2.4, 6.1
Wait on Diagnostics (Command Verb WD Command Verb .	WD)	3.6.2 3.6.2
XA Command Verb . XD Command Verb . XMEM Command Ver XODD Command XSLA Command Verb XSLAP Command CPTEST) Test Summa	b	3.3.1 3.3.2 2.5.1 3.3.4, 6.4.2 6.5 TI-4

USER'S RESPONSE SHEET

Manual Date: 15 Novemb	ber 1983	Date of This Letter:
User's Name:	·	Telephone:
Company:		Office/Department:
Street Address:		
City/State/Zip Code:		
following space. If there them. Thank you.	e are any other suggest	ions that you wish to make, feel free to include
Location in Manual		Comment/Suggestion
<u></u>		

CUT ALONG LINE



FOLD